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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 21 MAY 2021 

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing ,  Mr  Chaska lson,  good 

morn ing  eve rybody.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Good morn ing ,  Cha i rperson.    

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  we ready?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    We are ,  Cha i r,  bu t  be fore  we get  

to  the  ev idence fo r  today,  there  is  an  issue re la t ing  to  

Ru le  33  wh ich  I  need to  address and I  have . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  have seen the  le t te r  f rom DM5 

Inco rpo ra ted .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Indeed,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r,  I  wou ld  ask  tha t  we do not  

ment ion  the  name o f  the  c l ien t  o f  DM5 Incorpora ted ,  

because tha t  i s  par t  o f  the  po tent ia l  harm tha t  they  speak  

to .  

Cha i r,  the  repor t  o f  Mr  Ho lden to  wh ich  he  w i l l  

tes t i f y  today exposes soph is t i ca ted  money launder ing  

ne tworks  tha t  a re  opera t ing  ins ide  South  A f r i ca ,  some o f  

wh ich  ne tworks  were  sub jec t  to  ongo ing  South  A f r i can  20 

Reserve  Bank invest iga t ions,  even before  Mr Ho lden 

became aware  o f  the .  

The Commiss ion  shared an advanced copy o f  

Mr  Ho lden ’s  repor t  w i th  the  Reserve  Bank.   A f te r  th is  

happened o r  a f te r  th is  took p lace i t  became c lear  tha t  



24 MAY 2021– DAY 401 
 

Page 4 of 266 
 

p remature  d isc losure  o f  the  repor t  m ight  p re jud ice  the  

South  A f r i can Reserve  Bank invest iga t ions and potent ia l  

add i t iona l  regu la tory  ac t ion  tha t  the  Reserve  Bank may 

have wanted to  take  f low ing f rom the  repor t ,  and so  a t  the  

request  o f  the  South  A f r i can  Reserve  Bank the  

invest iga t ion  team under took no t  to  re lease the  repor t  

th rough the  Ru le  33  process un t i l  a f te r  c lose  o f  bus iness  

on  Fr iday 21  May,  so  as  to  a l low the  Reserve  Bank  to  take  

whatever  ac t ion  i t  cou ld  to  p revent  the  poss ib le  p re jud ice .  

That  meant  tha t  the  Ru le  33s were  sent  ou t  on l y  10 

over  th is  l as t  weekend,  in  fac t  most  o f  them went  ou t  on  

Saturday morn ing .   So the  a f fec ted  par t ies  wou ld  have  

not ice  o f  the  a l legat ions aga ins t  t hem in  advance,  so  tha t  

were  go ing  to  be  made in  the  repor t  and d id  no t  hear  about  

these a l legat ions  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime in  the  press  or  on  

te lev is ion  today,  tha t  was the  purpose o f  send ing  the 

no t ices  ou t  on  Sa turday morn ing .  

Obv ious l y  there  was no su f f i c ien t  t ime fo r  the  

a f fec ted  pa r t ies  t o  b r ing  app l i ca t ions to  c ross-examine o r  

fo r  o ther  re l ie f .   We have had a  compla in t  f rom one or  f rom 20 

DM5 in  the  le t te r  tha t  you re fer red  to ,  to  represen t  one o f  

the  named par t ies  who take i ssue  w i th  an  a l legat ion  made  

aga ins t  them in  the  repor t  and have ind ica ted  tha t  they  

in tend to  fu rn ish  an  a f f idav i t  in  respect  o f  those  

a l legat ions.  
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I  wou ld  ask ,  Cha i r,  tha t  a t  th is  s tage o f  the  

proceed ings tha t  un t i l  tha t  en t i t y  has had an oppor tun i ty  to  

respond,  as  i t  ind ica tes  tha t  i t  wants ,  i t s  name shou ld  be  

redacted f rom any copy o f  the  repor t  tha t  i s  pub l i shed and 

i t  shou ld  no t  be  named in  ev idence ,  so  no  one w i l l  know o f  

the  a l legat ion ,  a t  leas t  no  one w i l l  know i f  i t  un t i l  they  have  

had an oppor tun i t y  to  respond.  

I  have spoken to  Mr  Ho lden about  th is  and we have 

ar ranged redacted pages o f  the  repor t  so  tha t  i f  he  ever  

shares a  screen today MS Team quest ion  w i l l  no t  appear  in  10 

pub l i c  o r  w i l l  no t  be  named or  shown.  

I  wou ld  ask  tha t  sub jec t  to  tha t  qua l i f i ca t ion  tha t  

Mr  Ho lden ’s  ev idence shou ld  proceed and tha t  any  o f  the  

Ru le  33  par t ies  who want  to  app ly  fo r  Mr  Ho lden to  be  

reca l led  fo r  c ross-examinat ion  shou ld  be  g iven a  fu l l  per iod  

o f  two weeks,  wh ich  wou ld  be  two weeks today,  to  make 

such an app l i ca t ion ,  bu t  the  po tent ia l  p re jud ice  to  th is  

par t y  tha t  has compla ined can  be addressed  by  no t  

ment ion ing  the  name o f  the  par t ies  or  d isc los ing  i t  

inadver ten t ly  in  any o f  the  tab les  in  the  repor t  o r  a l i ke .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    The d i f f i cu l t y  o f  course  wh ich  

immedia te ly  a r ises  i f  we do tha t  in  regard  to  th is  pa r t i cu la r  

par t y  i s ;  what  about  pa r t ies  who may not  have  had a  

chance to  no t i f y  us  tha t  they take  the  same s tance?   

Because the re  may be le t te rs  tha t  have not  reached you,  
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have not  reached  us ,  tha t  maybe are  in  w i th  the  secre tary,  

o r  tha t  were  on ly  seen by  those par t ies  th is  morn ing  and 

there fo re  they have not  been ab le  to  no t i f y  us .   They may  

be lucky  tha t  they saw th is  on  Saturday and have been  

ab le ,  were  ab le  to  send the  no t ice  yesterday,  the  le t te r  

yes terday,  bu t  there  may be o the rs  who are  in  the  same 

pos i t ion  who  wou ld  be  mak ing  the  same request  o r  

compla in t  i f  there  was enough t ime .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r,  I  can  conf i rm tha t  as  o f  

08 :30  th is  morn ing  th is  was the  on ly  compla in t  o f  th is  10 

na ture  tha t  had been made.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    O ther  peop le  had cor responded 

w i th  the  Commiss ion  in  response  to  the  repor t ,  bu t  there  

have been no o ther  compla in ts  o f  th is  na ture .    

CHAIRPERSON:    I  mean i f ,  in  regard  to  anyone who had 

rece ived the  33  not ice  ove r  the  weekend and has  

communica ted  and has not  taken the  same s tance,  tha t  

may be f ine ,  bu t  I  th ink  the  d i f f i cu l t y  wou ld  ar i se  w i th  

regard  to  somebody f rom whom we have not  rece ived  20 

anyth ing ,  maybe because they on ly  became aware  o f  the 

le t te r  a t  09 :00  as  we were  s ta r t ing ,  you know.    

Now they say jus t  because DM5’s  c l ien t  happened 

to  see i t ,  o r  to  see the  33  not ice  ove r  the  weekend and 

they were  ab le  to  send a  no t ice  yesterday,  they are  g iven a  
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cer ta in  t rea tmen t ,  bu t  they are  no t  g iven the  same 

t rea tment  jus t  because they on ly  saw the  33  not ice  a t  

09 :00 ,  they m ight  compla in  tha t  i t  is  un fa i r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r,  I  take  tha t  po in t .   I t  may 

be,  I  mean the re  are  poss ib l y  two s teps tha t  need to  be  

taken.   The f i rs t  i s  I  can ge t  ins t ruc t ions f rom the  

Secre tar ia t  as  to  who,  a  fu l l  l i s t  o f  who has acknowledged 

the  repor t  and i t  may be tha t  we need to  cons ider  s tand ing  

down a t  leas t  fo r  a  coup le  o f  hours ,  because by  Monday 

morn ing  the re  is  a ,  i f  we d id  no t  rece ive ,  were  no t  aware  o f  10 

the  repor t  on  the  weekend,  a re  much more  l ike l y  to  

g radua l ly  to  become aware  o f  the  repor t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  ask  tha t  the  mat te r  s tands  

down b r ie f l y?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  yes .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  w i l l  then get  ins t ruc t i ons f rom 

Secre tar ia t .   I f  i t  tu rns  ou t  tha t  we have acknowledgements  

f rom any o f  the  par t ies  tha t  may  be potent ia l l y  named or  

imp l ica ted  th is  morn ing  then we can p roceed immedia te ly.   20 

I f  i t  tu rns  ou t  tha t  there  are  some who do not ,  then we w i l l  

need to  dec ide  how much t ime wou ld  be  a  fa i r  t ime to  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  o f  course  the  o the r  comp l ica t ing  

fac to r,  and fo r  tha t  I  am respons ib le ,  i s  tha t  we are  s ta r t ing  
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a t  09 :00 ,  whereas ou r  usua l  s ta r t ing  t ime is  a t  10 :00 .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    O ther  par t ies ,  those pa r t ies ,  I  do  no t  

know,  the  33  not ice  m ight  no t  have to ld  them we s tar t  a t  

09 :00 .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  have looked a t  i t ,  i t  does not .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  jus t  ment ions the  da te ,  no t  the 

t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  because i t  was prepared obv ious ly  10 

on  the  bas i s  o f  the  usua l  s ta r t ing  t ime and the  i dea  o f  

s ta r t ing  ear l ie r  i s  someth ing  tha t  happened a f te r,  so  

whoever  has go t  the  33  not ice  m ight  be  say ing  okay,  they 

are  s ta r t ing  a t  10 :00 ,  I  am go ing  to  make sure  tha t  by 

09 :30 a  le t te r  has been sent  o f f  to  them and to  us  and so  

on .  

So cer ta in l y  we can s tand down,  obv ious ly  the  idea 

o f  s ta r t ing  a t  09 :00  is  jus t  to  t ry  and make use o f  as  much  

t ime as  poss ib le ,  th is  be ing  the ,  as  we approach the  end o f  

o ra l  ev idence,  tha t  i s  the  one th ing ,  so  we can s tand down,  20 

we must  jus t  look  a t  fo r  how long.  

Two,  o f  course  as  you w i l l  be  aware  there  is  

p rov is ion  in  the  ru les  to  the  e ffec t  tha t  i f  any  pa r ty  fee ls  

tha t  they have no t  been g i ven a  reasonab le  no t ice  in  te rms  

o f  Ru le  33  they can app ly  to  the  Cha i rperson fo r  such re l ie f  
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as  may poss ib l y  address whatever  p re jud i ce  may have  

ar isen out  o f  no t  be ing  g iven a  reasonab le  no t ice .    

Of  cou rse  there  m ight  be  pre jud ice  tha t  can be 

addressed,  there  m ight  be  pre jud i ce  tha t  cannot  be  

addressed,  so  I  am jus t  say ing  tha t  there  i s  tha t  p rov i s ion  

and o f  cou rse  I  th ink  there  have been ins tances where ,  o r  I  

th ink  the  Ru les  have been unders tood to  mean tha t  there  

may be cases where  an  imp l ica ted  par ty  does not  ge t  g iven 

advance not ice  in  an  appropr ia te  case,  you know and there  

can be c i r cumstances where  there  is  jus t i f i ca t ion  fo r  g iv ing  10 

shor te r  no t ice  than the  no t ice  prov ided fo r  in  the  Ru les .  

So I  th ink  we can  s tand down and such check ing  as  

may need to  be  done w i l l  be  done by the  Secre tar ia t  to  see  

wh ich  par t ies  may have communica ted  and then we w i l l ,  

when we resume we can take  i t  f rom there .   In  the  

meant ime I  th ink  I  had,  I  had ind ica ted  to  the  Eskom works  

team tha t  a t  09 :45  I  cou ld  b r ie f l y  hear  an  app l i ca t ion  fo r  

leave to  cross-examine one o f  the  Eskom wi tnesses and I  

had  sa id  I  wou ld  g ive  Eskom’s  lawyers  about  10  or  

15  m inutes  to  p resent  the i r  a rgument  and then  I  w i l l  20 

dec ide ,  so  there  is  tha t ,  so  I  do  no t  know how,  what  t ime 

you had in  m ind  fo r  us  to  resume i f  we s tand the  mat te r  

down now.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wel l  Cha i r,  I  take  your  po in t  tha t  

i t  w i l l  have to  be  a f te r  10 :00  a t  the  very  least .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes ja ,  ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  i f  we take  10:00 as  the  po in t  

a t  wh ich  we shou ld  take  a  f ina l  look  a t  what  the  Secre tar ia t  

has rece ived by  way o f  acknowledgement ,  can I  suggest  we 

s tand down unt i l  10 :30?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  I  th ink  10 :30 wou ld  be  f ine .   How 

many par t ies  more  or  less  are  we look ing  a t  who cou ld  be  

potent ia l l y  a f fec ted?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The number  o f  Ru le  33  is  c lose  

to  200,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  i t  i s  a ,  i t  i s  a  huge number.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    A l though in  te rms  o f  the  

s t ruc ture  o f  Mr  Ho lden ’s  ev idence the  vast  ma jo r i t y,  we 

cou ld ,  we cou ld  cer ta in ly  s t ruc ture  mat te rs  so  tha t  we 

cou ld  advance Mr  Ho lden ’s  ev idence s ign i f i can t ly  w i thout  

maybe,  w i thout  touch ing  on more  than maybe 30  o f  those 

imp l ica ted  pa r t ies .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Wel l ,  dur ing  the  break you may 20 

w ish  to  re f lec t  on  whether  the  c i rcumstances are  no t  such 

tha t  as  long as  the  imp l ica ted  pa r t ies  have been not i f ied  

tha t  Mr  Ho lden wou ld  be  g iv ing  ev idence today tha t  may  

imp l ica te  them,  tha t  i s  no t  enough even to  ment ion  the i r  

names on the  bas i s  tha t  wh i le  tha t  may not  be  the  best  
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s i tua t ion ,  bu t  somet imes g iven the  k ind  o f  inves t iga t ion  

tha t  the  Commiss ion  is  do ing  i t  may we l l  be  tha t  there  may  

be jus t i f i ca t ion  i n  p roceed ing ,  as  long as  they know and 

they are  no t  caught  o f f  by  surpr ise  w i th  TV o r  rad io ,  

ment ion  o f  the i r  name wi thout  knowing what  i s  happen ing ,  

bu t  you are  much  c loser  to  the  ev idence than I  may  be and 

you wou ld  be ,  you may be in  a  be t te r  pos i t ion  to  take  a  

v iew on tha t ,  bu t  cer ta in ly  I  th ink  we have had s i tua t ions  

where ,  ac tua l l y  we have had many  s i tua t ions where  peop le  

who are  imp l i ca ted  by  w i tness ev idence have rece ived  10 

shor te r  no t ice  wh ich  d id  no t  a l low them to  f i le  any a f f idav i t ,  

bu t  were  no t i f ied  tha t  on  tha t  day  a  cer ta in  w i tness wou ld  

imp l ica te  them,  wou ld  g ive  ev idence and then o f  course  

condonat ion  is  asked fo r,  fo r  the  fa i lu re  to  g i ve  a  fu l l  

14  days ’ no t ice  and o f  course  tha t  i s  taken in to  account  

together  w i th  the  ru le  I  was ta lk ing  about  ear l ie r  about  any  

order  tha t  m ight  he lp  address any pre jud ice .  

I  do  remember  tha t  we had a t  some s tage a  

s i tua t ion  where  some imp l ica ted  par t ies  had to  be  no t i f ied  

a t  leas t  by  te lephone because o f  the  pa r t i cu la r  20 

c i rcumstances j us t  to  make sure  tha t  a t  leas t  i f  they  hear  

on  te lev is ion  tha t  a  w i tness has sa id  someth ing  tha t  

imp l ica tes  them they are  aware  and then o f  course  they  

cou ld  a lways app ly.  

So I  am jus t  ment ion ing  a l l  o f  those fo r  you to  
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re f lec t  on  and then when we resume you can ind ica te  what  

you th ink  shou ld  be  done.   Of  course  hav ing  looked a t  

Mr  Ho lden ’s  repor t ,  I  am inc l ined to  th ink  tha t  fo r  the  

benef i t  o f  the  pub l i c  i t  wou ld  be  impor tan t  to  g ive  

Mr  Ho lden as  much t ime as  we can g i ve  fo r  h im to  dea l  

w i th  the  repor t  p roper ly.   Of  course  I  th ink  i t  i s  very  

impor tan t  fo r  the  pub l i c  to  unders tand wha t  the 

invest iga t ions have revea led  in  re la t ion  to  funds and so  on ,  

so  bu t  re f lec t  on  i t  and then when  we resume we can take  

i t  f rom there .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.   We are  go ing  to  s tand the  

mat te r  down unt i l  10 :30  and a t  09 :45  I  may come back to  

dea l  w i th  another  mat te r.   We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  Mr  Chaska lson?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r,  i f  I  can  g ive  an  update ,  

bu t  I  have jus t  no t iced tha t  Mr  Ho lden does not  seem to  be  

w i th  us ,  so  I  wonder  i f  we can ask  fo r  h im to  be  connected.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  the . . .   Oh,  there  he  appears  now.   

Ja?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank  you.   Cha i r,  I  have an 

update ,  wh ich  is  thee has been one fu r ther  compla in t  and I  

have a  l i s t  o f  en t i t ies  tha t  have e lec t ron i ca l l y  
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acknowledged rece ip t  o f  the  Ru le  33 .   I  am go ing  to  

p ropose tha t  we  proceed today on a  bas is  wh ich  I  w i l l  

ou t l ine  to  you Cha i r,  wh ich  is  ca lcu la ted  to  m in im ise  

pre jud ice  to  any a f fec ted  par t ies .  

A t  the  ou tse t  I  wou ld  submi t  tha t  condonat ion  o f  a  

depar tu re  f rom Rule  3  i s  cer ta in ly  poss ib le  and i t  has ,  th is  

Commiss ion  has  investor  funds ac t  condoned such  

depar tu res  on  many occas ions i n  the  past .   In  fac t ,  in  

re la t ion  to  the  ev idence o f  Mr  Agre ts i ,  no  Ru le  33s were  

sent  ou t  un t i l  a f te r  h is  ev idence because o f  the  par t i cu la r  10 

r i sk  tha t  an  advance not ice  m ight  have posed in  tha t  case.  

I  wou ld  submi t  tha t  in  th is  case  we are  dea l ing  

obv ious ly  no t  w i th  as  th rea ten ing  a  s i tua t ion  as  tha t  wh ich  

was presented by  Mr  Agre ts i ,  bu t  s t i l l  an  ex t raord inary  

s i tua t ion ,  wh ich  i s  tha t  d i sc losure  o f  the  repor t  wou ld  have 

pre jud iced ongo ing  invest iga t ions  in to  money launder ing  

w i th in  South  A f r i ca .   The Reserve  Bank spec i f i ca l l y  

requested add i t iona l  t ime to  take  whatever  s teps i t  cou ld  

take  to  m in im ise  tha t  p re jud i ce  and in  par t i cu la r  to  be  ab le  

to  take  those s teps un t i l  c lose  o f  bus iness on  Fr iday las t  20 

week.  

In  those c i r cumstances I  wou ld  submi t  tha t  a  

depar tu re  wou ld  be  jus t i f ied  and tha t  p re jud ice  to  the  two 

compla in ing  par t i es  can be conta ined by  no t  men t ion ing  

the i r  names in  th is  ev idence or  in  any o f  the  pages o f  the  
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repor t  tha t  w i l l  be  d isp layed in  the  course  o f  th is  ev idence 

and I  w i l l  j us t  re fe r  to  them as company A and company B ,  

and o f  cou rse  in  re la t ion  to  a l l  o ther  in te res ted  and 

a f fec ted  pa r t ies  nobody loses the i r  r igh t  to  app ly  to  c ross-

examine Mr  Ho lden or  indeed to  pu t  up  the i r  vers ion  on  

oath  and Mr  Ho lden ’s  ev idence w i l l  on ly  go ,  w i l l  on ly  be ,  

the  repor t  i t se l f  w i l l  on l y  be  pu t  on  l ine  when Mr Ho lden ’s  

ev idence has been comple ted .  

What  I  wou ld  propose to  you,  Cha i r,  i s  tha t  we  

exc ise  f rom the  ev idence tha t  we w i l l  dea l  today,  dea l  w i th  10 

today,  the  sect ion  o f  the  repor t  tha t  dea ls  w i th  the  la rgest  

numbers  o f  in te res ted  and a f fec ted  par t ies  where  there  

wou ld  be  the  greates t  po ten t i a l  r i sk  o f  p re jud ice  to  

innocent  pa r t ies  and I  w i l l  ta i lo r  th is  repor t  to  dea l  on l y  

w i th  par t ies ,  we l l  I  th ink  i t  wou ld  be  about  30  par t i es  who 

wou ld  be  named in  tha t  p rocess and those par t ies  w i l l  no t  

have repor t  pub l i shed on l ine  tha t  ment ions them unt i l  a f te r  

they have had the  oppor tun i ty  to  respond.  

The two tha t  have spec i f i ca l l y  taken issue w i th  th is  

p rocess and sa id  tha t  they do  in tend to  respond,  we w i l l  20 

no t  ment ion  a t  th is  s tage and fo r  the  res t  i f  the  par t ies  do  

choose to  respond a t  a  la te r  s tage and i f  they  have a  

vers ion  cont rary  to  Mr  Ho lden ’s ,  we can put  tha t  to  

Mr  Ho lden i f  Mr  Ho lden wants  to  re t rac t  h is  vers ion  on  the  

s t rength  o f  tha t  the  vers ion  w i l l  go  ou t  pub l i ca l l y.   We wi l l  
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do  tha t .   I f  he  does not ,  then we  can poss ib ly  post  bo th  

vers ions on l ine  so  tha t  the  pub l i c  can see what  the  

compet ing  pos i t ions  are  and on tha t  bas is  I  wou ld  ask  i f  we 

can cont inue and i t  w i l l  be  necessary  fo r  Mr  Ho lden to  

come back a t  a  la te r  s tage to  dea l  w i th  the  sect i on  tha t  

dea ls  w i th  the  la rge ,  we l l  w i th  the  b ig  money launder ing  

ne tworks  where  there  are  very  many in te res ted  and  

a f fec ted  pa r t ies ’ names and wh ich  I  do  no t  p ropose to  

address today.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   We can proceed  on tha t  10 

bas is ,  ja ,  ja  we can proceed on tha t  bas i s .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing ,  Mr  Ho lden.    

MR HOLDEN:    Good morn ing ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you fo r  coming back.   Okay,  then 

sha l l  we do the  a f f i rmat ion  or  oa th  now?  Then you can  

proceed.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    P lease admin is te r  the  oa th  or  

a f f i rmat ion .  20 

FEMALE SPEAKER:    P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names  fo r  the  

record .  

MR HOLDEN:    Pau l  Edward  Ho lden.  

FEMALE SPEAKER:    Do you have any ob jec t ion  to  mak ing  

the  prescr ibed a f f i rmat ion?  
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MR HOLDEN:    I  do  no t .  

FEMALE SPEAKER:    Do you a f f i rm tha t  the  ev idence you  

w i l l  g ive  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ,  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  bu t  

the  t ru th?   I f  so  p lease ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and say;  I  

t ru ly  a f f i rm.  

MR HOLDEN:    I  t ru ly  a f f i rm.  

PAUL EDWARD HOLDEN:  (a ff i rmed)   

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you,  Mr  Ho lden.   Yes,  

Mr  Chaska lson?  You might  w ish  to  b r ie f l y  ou t l ine  the  

purpose o f  h i s  ev idence,  jus t  fo r  the  benef i t  o f  the  pub l i c .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  w i l l  do  tha t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    In  fac t  tha t  was go ing  to  be  one 

o f  my ve ry  f i rs t  quest ions to  Mr  Ho lden.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You can do i t  tha t  way,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  be fore  I  do  tha t  Cha i r,  may I  

a t tend to  a  few mat te rs  o f  housekeep ing?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The f i rs t  i s  jus t  to  check tha t  you 

have the  fu l l  range o f  bund les  re levant  to  Mr Ho lden ’s  20 

ev idence.   Mr  Ho lden ’s  main  po in t  i s  in  FOF bund le  9 ,  i t  

runs f rom page 124 to  174.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  have got  bund le ,  FOF bund le  9 .   You 

say i t  goes up to?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wel l ,  the  annexures s ta r t  on 
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page 475,  the  repor t  ends on 474 o f  bund le  9 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   On my one the  repor t  ends on  

page 475 and the  annexures s ta r t  on  page 476.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  apo log ise ,  Cha i r.   My note  was  

wrong.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then the  annexures go  up to  page 

what ,  900 and someth ing .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wel l ,  they  go  to  the  end o f  tha t  10 

bund le  and then they ca r ry  on ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    They go a l l  the  way to  

bund le  16 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  okay no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Now we wi l l  fo r  the  most  pa r t  

today not  re fe r  to  annexures,  jus t  because o f  p ressures o f  

t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  I  jus t  do  want  to  check tha t  20 

you have bund les  10  to  16  as  we l l ,  wh ich  w i l l  inc lude the  

annexures i f  we do have to  re fe r  to  some.  

MR HOLDEN:    Ja ,  my Reg is t ra r  says I  do  have.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then Cha i r,  there  are  a  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON:    I  have got  th is  g reen f i le  here  wh ich  has  

go t  DM5’s  le t te r  on  the  12 t h ,  bu t  i t  has  go t  o ther  

documents .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  has  an  execut ive  summary.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  shou ld  have an  execut ive  

summary underneath .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then two add i t iona l  

annexures,  bu t  I  w i l l ,  one o f  wh ich  be longs in  the  repor t  10 

and one o f  wh ich  I  am go ing  to  in t roduce th rough 

Mr  Ho lden la te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  i f  we can dea l  w i th  those as  

we get  to  them.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r,  there  i s  a  las t  se t  o f  

annexure  f i les  wh ich  requ i res  spec i f i c  t rea tment ,  tha t  i s  

bund le  17  to  19  and those are  bank s ta tements  and  now as  

you w i l l  see  and  the  pub l i c  w i l l  see  in  the  course  o f  th is  20 

ev idence,  Mr  Ho lden tes t i f ied  about  l i te ra l l y  thousands o f  

ind iv idua l  bank t ransact ions in  one way or  another  l inked  

to  s ta te  capture .  

Those bund les ,  FAF17 to  FAF19 conta ins  3000  

pages o f  bank s ta tements  wh ich  underp in  the  tab les  tha t  
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you  w i l l  see  in  Mr  Ho lden ’s  repor t .   Now the  prob lem wi th  

the  bank s ta tements  i s  tha t  they a re  no t ,  on  one page you  

w i l l  have poss ib ly  one t ransact i on  tha t  i s  re levant  to  

Mr  Ho lden ’s  repor t ,  bu t  you w i l l  have 40 t ransact ions tha t  

a re  no t  and w i th in  those 40 t ransact ions there  may we l l  be  

pr iva te  in fo rmat ion  re la t ing  to  ind iv idua ls  who are  who l ly  

unconnected to  anyth ing  here ,  l i ke  fo r  ins tance  sa la ry  

in fo rmat ion  o f  ind iv idua ls  and mate r ia l  l i ke  tha t .  

Now we thought  i n i t ia l l y  tha t  what  we wou ld  propose 

to  do  i s  to  redact  eve ry th ing  o ther  than the  ind iv idua l  10 

t ransact ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  yes .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  tha t  wou ld  be  a  monumenta l  

exerc ise  and wou ld  ach ieve very  l i t t le  in  the  end,  because 

a l l  tha t  one wou ld  have is  the  s ing le  t ransact i on  tha t  

m i r ro rs  someth ing  up  a t  the ,  in  the  repor t  i t se l f  and ins tead 

what  we wou ld  propose Cha i r,  i s  tha t  those bank 

s ta tements  are  no t  made pub l i c  when the  repor t  i s  

pub l i shed on the  in te rnet ,  bu t  o f  course  i f  any  in te res ted  

par t y  who sees the  tab les  o f  t ransact ions tha t  Mr  Ho lden  20 

quotes  in  h i s  repor t  says you say th is  amount  was pa id  you 

know,  by  Transnet  to  my company on such and  such a  

da te ,  tha t  i s  wrong,  i f  anyone ra i ses  a  d ispute  we w i l l  then  

produce a  redacted bank s ta tement  in  respect  o f  a  spec i f i c  

d ispute  tha t  has been ra i sed.  
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So  i f  anybody wants  to  pu t  in  i ssue any o f  the  

t ransact ions tha t  a re  recorded in  Mr  Ho lden ’s  repor t  i t se l f ,  

we w i l l  p roduce  the  bank s ta tement  and you,  Cha i r,  o f  

course  w i l l  have s igh t  o f  a l l  o f  those bank s ta tements ,  bu t  

in  the  in te res t  o f  th i rd  par ty  p r ivacy  we submi t  the  pub l i c  

shou ld  no t  have  access to  those 3000 pages o f  bank  

s ta tements .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  I  th ink  tha t  i s  sens ib le .   We wi l l  

need,  we w i l l  no t ,  a re  we not  go ing  to  need a  p roper ly  

c ra f ted  order  to  re f lec t  exact ly  what  you say tha t  I  can 10 

make in  due course?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r,  I  th ink  in  te rms  o f  the 

pr ivacy  prov i s ion  the  s imp le  orde r  wou ld  be  to  ru le  tha t  

bund les  FOF17,  FOF18 and FAF19 are  no t  to  be  made 

pub l i c .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    P rov ided tha t  any in te res ted  and 

a f fec ted  pe rson who d i sputes  a  pa r t i cu la r  t ransact ion  in  the  

repor t  w i l l  be  en t i t led  to  be  prov ided w i th  p roof  o f  tha t  

t ransact ion  f rom the  re levant  bank s ta tement  in  those  20 

vo lumes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   No,  tha t  is  f ine .   I  am jus t  say ing  

maybe i f  you cou ld  in  due course  p repare  a  dra f t  o rder.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    A dra f t  o rde r,  I  w i l l  do  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay a l l  r igh t .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you.   Then the  las t  i ssue  

o f  housekeep ing  is ,  re la tes  to  a  number  o f  co r rec t ions,  

m inor  co r rec t ions  tha t  one needs to ,  I  need to  jus t  ra ise  

w i th  Mr  Ho lden before  we get  in to  the  de ta i l  o f  h is  repor t .   

The f i rs t  i s  t ha t  on  page 82 o f  bund le  9  there  is  a  re ference 

to  Mr  John Duate  as  the  son  o f  Ms Jess ie  Duate .   

Mr  Ho lden,  can you jus t  cor rec t ,  can you ident i f y  why tha t  

i s  wrong and wha t  needs to  be  cor rec ted?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   John Duate  is  ac tua l l y  the  

ex-husband o f  Ms  Duate ,  no t  the  son.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And  then i f  one goes to  

page 440 o f  the  repor t ,  sor ry  o f  the  bund le ,  440,  bund le  9 ,  

there  i s  a  head ing  a t  10 .1 .3  tha t  i s  desc r ibed as  the  Tr i l l i an  

Asset  Management  loan.   Mr  Ho lden . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    A t  what  page d id  you say tha t  i s ,  m is te r?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    440 Of  bund le  9 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    440,  Okay.   Yes,  I  am there .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr  Ho lden,  can you jus t  te l l  the 

Cha i r  what  the  cor rec t  company ’s  name tha t  shou ld  be  20 

ment ioned there  i s?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   Apo log ies  fo r  the  typo 

there .   I t  shou ld  be  Tr i l l i an  Management  Consu l t ing  and not  

Tr i l l i an  Asset  Management .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  shou ld  be  Tr i l l i an  Management?  
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MR HOLDEN:    Management  Consu l t ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  tha t  i s  in  10 .1 .3 .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    In  the  head ing  to  10 .1 .3 ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And jus t  to  po in t  ou t  Cha i r,  tha t  

i f  one goes to  the  body o f  the  tex t  under  10 .1 .3  i t  i s  c lear  

tha t  the  ent i t y  i s  Tr i l l i an  Management  Consu l t ing ,  no t  

Tr i l l i an  Asset  Management ,  as  Tr i l l i an  Asset  Management  

i s  no t  ment ioned in  the  sect ion  o ther  than in  the  head ing .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  do  want  to ,  i t  i s  qu i te  an  

impor tan t  d is t inc t ion  to  make Cha i r,  because the  two  

compan ies  are  owned by  d i f fe ren t  en t i t ies  and  Tr i l l i an  

Asset  Management  has in  fac t  been bought  ou t  o f  

l iqu ida t ion  and ex is ts  as  a  company today,  so  i t s  name 

shou ld  no t  be  confused w i th  Tr i l l i an  Management  

Consu l t ing ,  wh ich  is  the  en t i t y  tha t  i s ,  to  wh ich  10 .1 .3  

re la tes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay no,  tha t  i s  f ine .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then f ina l l y  Mr  Ho lden,  there  

are  th roughout  your  repor t  re fe rences to  Tegeta  Resources,  

can you g ive  the  Cha i r  the  fu l l  name o f  the  company tha t  

you re fer red  to  when the  repor t  i s  in ,  you know men t ions to  

Tegeta  Resources?  
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MR HOLDEN:    Abso lu te ly,  Cha i r.   I  am re fer r ing  to  Tegeta  

Exp lo ra t ion  and Resources (P ty)  L td .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  any re ference to  Tegeta  

Resources shou ld  be  unders tood  as a  re ference to  Tegeta  

Exp lo ra t ion  and Resources (P ty)  L td .  

MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then Mr  Ho lden,  can I  ask  you  

to  go  to  page 475 o f  the  bund le  where  there  is  a  s ignature  

a t  the  foo t  o f  the  repor t?  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    What  i s  tha t  page aga in?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    475.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And can you conf i rm tha t  tha t  i s  

your  s ignatu re?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cha i r,  i t  i s  indeed my s ignatu re .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And can  you conf i rm tha t  sub jec t  

to  the  cor rec t ions  tha t  we have ra i sed w i th  the  Cha i r  to  the  

best  o f  your  knowledge and be l ie f  the  contents  o f  th is  

repor t  a re  t rue?  20 

MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r,  I  do .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  thank you .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then Mr  Ho lden,  I  unders tand  

tha t ,  we l l  no t  I  unders tand,  I  know tha t  you have prepared  

an execut ive  summary o f  your  repor t .   That  Cha i r,  i s  the  
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document ,  the  second document  in  the  f i le  tha t  has been  

put  be fore  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  the  green f i le .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The green f i le ,  indeed Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And I  wou ld ,  Cha i r,  th is  i s  a  

document  wh ich  w i l l  be  a  much eas ie r  document  o f  wh ich  

to  lead Mr  Ho lden in  th is  ev idence and I  wou ld  ask  i f  we  

cou ld  in t roduce i t  as  an  exh ib i t .   I t  w i l l  serve  two pu rposes.   

One,  i t  w i l l  p rov ide  a  f ramework  fo r  th is  o ra l  ev idence,  bu t  10 

two,  i t  a lso  prov ides no t  a  shor t ,  because i t  i s  over  70  

pages,  bu t  i t  p rov ides a  d igested  account  o f  an  incred ib l y  

de ta i led  and leng thy  repor t ,  wh ich  wou ld  be  very  usefu l  fo r  

the  pub l i c  to  see.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  might  I  ask  Cha i r,  tha t  tha t  

document  be  adm i t ted  as  an  exh ib i t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And hav ing  asked tha t  Cha i r,  I  

do  no t  ye t  have. . .   Mr  Ho lden ’s  repor t  i t se l f  i s  VV10.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    BB10?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    VV10.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  ask  tha t  th is  be  en tered as  

EXHIBIT VV10A? 
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Because I  th ink  tha t  there  is  

a l ready a  VV11 in  la te r  f low o f  funds ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Okay,  the  execut ive  summary o f  

Mr  Ho lden ’s  repor t  wou ld  be  admi t ted  and w i l l  be  marked 

as  EXHIBIT VV10A.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Now 

Mr  Ho lden,  you  have tes t i f ied  be fore  the  Commiss ion  

prev ious l y  in  the  f i rs t  week o f  December  las t  year  and in  

your  s ta tement  tha t  you con f i rmed in  ev idence on 10 

3  December  las t  year  the re  was a t tached a  copy o f  you r  

CV.   I  do  no t  want  you to  go  th rough your  CV aga in ,  bu t  

can you very  b r ie f l y  jus t  remind the  Cha i r  who you are  and 

what  you do?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   I  am a  South  A f r i can  

c i t i zen ,  I  am cu r ren t ly  the  D i rec tor  o f  Invest iga t i ons a t  

Shadow Wor ld  Invest iga t ions .   Shadow Wor ld  

Invest iga t ions is  a  smal l  non pro f i t  en t i t y  tha t  is  run  by  

myse l f  and my co l league,  Mr  Andrew Fe ins te in ,  who is  a  

fo rmer  A f r i can Na t iona l  Congress member  o f  Par l iament .  20 

Shadow Wor ld  Invest iga t ions under takes deta i led  

invest iga t ions in to  i ssues o f  g rand  cor rup t ion  and advocacy 

around tha t .   In  te rms o f  my persona l  exper ience  I  have  

been invest iga t ing  grand cor rup t ion  re la ted  to  the  de fence  

sector  and o ther  sec tors  fo r  the  be t te r  par t  o f  13  years .    
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I  a lso  serve  as  an  invest iga t ive  methods t ra iner  and  

I  have t ra ined approx imate ly  1000  journa l i s t s ,  most ly  f rom 

the  Midd le  East  and Nor th  A f r i ca ,  bu t  a lso  f rom Sub  

Saharan A f r i ca  as  we w i l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  f ine .   Before  you  proceed 

Mr  Chaska lson,  th is  g reen f i le  had inc luded in  i t  DM5’s  

le t te r,  I  am check ing  i t ,  i s  there  any reason why i t  shou ld  

be  in  th is  g reen f i le?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    No,  green f i le ,  the  green f i le  

mere ly  inc luded documents  tha t  I  was go ing  to  re fer  to  you,  10 

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  yes .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  i t  a lso  inc ludes two  

add i t iona l  documents  beyond the  execut ive  summary tha t  

a re  beh ind  the  execut ive  summary,  wh ich  are ,  one needs to  

be  added to  the  annexures to  Mr  Ho lden ’s  ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  i t  w i l l  on ly  be  addressed 

when Mr  Ho lden re turns .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The second is  a  document  tha t  

shou ld  have been in  Mr  Ho lden,  as  an  annexure  to  

Mr  Ho lden ’s  repor t ,  bu t  we over looked tha t  and wh ich  I  

wou ld  want  to  in t roduce as  a  new exh ib i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Exh ib i t ,  ja .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  i f  I  can  do tha t  when  we get  

to  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  bu t  you agree I  can 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The DM5 yes,  the  le t te r  does not  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  no t  an  exh ib i t ,  ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  i s  no t  an  exh ib i t ,  indeed,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l l  r igh t .    10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then Mr  Ho lden,  can I  ask  you  

to  g ive  a  ve ry,  very  b r ie f  ou t l ine  o f  what  the  purpose o f  

your  ev idence today and when you re turn  w i l l  be ,  and what  

mat te r  i s  t rave rsed in  your  repor t?   And fo r  tha t  purpose i f  

I  m igh t  ask  you to  go  to  the  execut ive  summary,  

annexure  VV10A a t  page 6 ,  pa ragraph 1 ,  where  you  se t  ou t  

in  usefu l  fo rm,  in  neat ly  summar i sed fo rm what  you r  repor t  

a t tempts  to  do?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   To  read f rom the  repor t ,  

th is  repor t  se ts  ou t  the  known and  ev idence f low o f  funds 20 

pass ing  to  the  benef i t  o f  the  Gupta  Enterpr ise  f rom Sta te 

Capture .   The repor t s  examines a )  the  to ta l  cos t  es ta te  o f  

cont rac ts  a f fec ted  by  S ta te  Captu re ,  b )  the  to ta l  amounts  

pa id  i r regu lar i t y  and d i rec t l y  to  the  Gupta  Enterp r ise  

en t i t ies  by  the  s ta te ,  the  to ta l  amount  pa id  t o  Gupta  
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En terp r ise  en t i t ies  by  cont rac tors  to  the  s ta te  tha t  secured  

the i r  own income th rough an i r regu lar  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  the  

Gupta  Enterpr i se ,  d )  the  to ta l  amount  pa id  to  the  Gupta  

Enterp r ise  in  the  fo rm o f  k ickbacks,  wh ich  has par t i cu la r  

re levance to  the  Eskom 95,  100  and 106 fo r  locomot ive  

procu rement  cont rac t s  and fu r ther  c rane cont rac ts  p laced  

by  Transnet  w i th  ZBMC and L iebher r  Cranes,  the  to ta l  

amount  pa id  in to  a  compl ica ted  and ex tens ive  loca l  laundry  

th rough f i r s t  leve l  laundry  en t i t ies  to  the  benef i t  o f  the  

Gupta  Enterpr i se ,  and we w i l l  ou t l ine  what  we mean  by  f i rs t  10 

leve l  laundry  en t i t ies  a  l i t t le  b i t  la te r,  I  am sure .  

The opera t ion  o f  a  complex  loca l  laundromat  tha t  

rece ives funds  f rom Sta te  Capture  an t ic ipa ted  and 

onwards,  usua l l y  abroad,  in to  enormous and complex  

in te rnat iona l  money launder ing  opera t ions based in  

Hong Kong,  Ch ina  and Duba i ,  g )  the  opera t ion  as  fa r  as  

can be es tab l i shed are  vast  in te rna t iona l  money launder ing  

opera t ions tha t  were  used by  the  Gupta  En terpr i se  

a longs ide  many  o ther  cr im ina l  ac tors  to  rece ive  and  

d iss ipa te  c r im ina l l y  der ived funds.   Paragraph 2 ,  ev idence 20 

leader,  shou ld  I  re fe r  to  parag raph  2  as  we l l?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    P lease,  p lease do.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cha i r,  a t  paragraph 2  fu r the r  th is  repor t  

se ts  ou t  the  manner  in  wh ich  the  Gupta  Enterp r ise  made  

use o f  funds acc ru ing  to  i t  through cr im ina l  ac t i v i t y,  
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inc lud ing  how these funds were  recyc led  and  used to  

purchase s ign i f i can t  assets  such as  Opt imum Hold ings,  and 

to  ensure  the  l iqu id i t y  o f  the  en terp r ise ’s  leg i t imate  

bus inesses,  leg i t imate  as  in  parenthes is .  

Th is  inc ludes a  d iscuss ion  o f  a )  the  manner  in  

wh ich  the  major i t y  o f  funds used by  Opt imum Hold ings,  the  

parent  company  o f  Opt imum Coa l  Mine,  der i ved f rom 

proceeds o f  c r ime,  the  manner  in  wh ich  the  Gupta  

Enterp r ise  used  cr im ina l  funds  to  repay a  cer ta in  

p ropor t ion  o f  the  loan taken up  by  Oak Bay Investments  10 

and o thers  f rom the  Indust r ia l  Deve lopment  Coopera t ion  to  

purchase Sh iva  Uran ium,  the  manner  in  wh ich  funds 

laundered th rough A lber t ine  were  used to  ba lance Sahara  

Computers ’ Books where  the  company wou ld  no t  be  ab le  

to ,  on  the  bas is  o f  i t s  own bus iness and not  appear ing  here  

sad ly,  bu t  wh ich  we w i l l  address i n  ev idence,  i s  a l so  the  

manner  in  wh ich  Inkonkey Ink  was bought  w i th  c r im ina l  

in tens i ve  funds.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Mr  Ho lden.   Before  

we get  to  the  de ta i l  o f  the  repor t ,  can I  ask  you br ie f l y  to  20 

ou t l ine  the  ev ident ia ry  approach taken to  the  presenta t ion  

o f  the  repor t  and  what ,  how you suppor t  the ,  how you w i l l  

suppor t  the  conc lus ions tha t  you  draw in  the  repor t  and  

what  ev idence you use?  

MR HOLDEN:    Abso lu te ly,  Cha i r.   In  add i t ion  to  the  
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annexures f rom,  ou t  o f  the  f low funds bund les  and as  the  

ev idence leader  ment ioned,  we re fer  to  a  very,  ve ry,  very  

la rge  number  o f  bank s ta tements  and bank t ransact ions,  

inc lud ing  every  s ing le  t ransact ion  as  an  annexure  was very  

cha l leng ing  and  cer ta in l y  wou ld  be  ve ry  cha l leng ing  to  

re fer  to  every  annexure  in  ev idence.    

So the  rou te  tha t  we have taken i s  to  concatenate  

and ident i f y  a l l  the  key payments  in  tab les  in  the  main  

repor t ,  o f  wh ich  I  th ink  there  a re  over  250 tab les ,  and 

those tab les  a re  then re ferenced aga ins t  par t i cu la r  10 

annexures tha t  w i l l  be  a t tached in  bund les ,  I  th ink  i t  i s  17  

and 19 i f  I  am cor rec t ,  and eve ry  s ing le  t ransac t ion  in  

those tab les  w i l l  be  cross- re ferenced to  those s ta tements ,  

tha t  i s  in  add i t ion  o f  course  to  qu i te  a  substant ia l  number  

o f  suppor t ing  documents ,  tha t  a ren ’ t  bank s ta tements  such  

as  cont rac ts  and  re levant  e -mai l s  and a l so  ex t rac ts  f rom 

what  a re  known as the  Gupta  leaks .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Now the  cont rac ts  tha t  you cover  

in  the  repor t  a re  cont rac t s  by  organs o f  s ta te  tha t  you  

character i se  as  be ing  a f f l i c ted  by  S ta te  Capture .   There  20 

are  many o f  these cont rac t s  wh ich  have been the  sub jec t  

o f  ex tens ive  ev idence before  the  Commiss ion  a l ready and 

your  repor t  does not  t raverse  tha t  ev idence a t  a l l ,  i t  mere l y  

takes i t  as  granted,  bu t  there  are  some cont rac ts  tha t  you  

ment ioned here  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime tha t  have not  been seen 
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in  ev idence in  t he  repor t .   Can  you jus t  b r ie f l y  te l l  the  

Cha i r  and the  pub l i c  how you jus t i f y  you r  conc lus ion  tha t  

those cont rac ts  a re  i r regu lar  cont rac ts  ta in ted  by  S ta te  

Capture?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   So there  is  a  number  o f  

tes ts  we app l ied ,  the  f i rs t  wou ld  be  the  ev idence tha t  had  

been gathered most ly  by  the  con t rac ts  wh ich  prov ided a  

nar ra t i ve  as  to  the  manner  in  wh ich  cont rac ts  were  en tered  

and as  we w i l l  see  as  we go th rough the  ev idence there  

was a  who le  number  o f  cont rac ts  tha t  were  en te red  in to  by 10 

dev ia t ion  w i thout  compet i t i ve  b idd ing ,  o r  awarded,  very  

c lea r  and mater ia l  i r regu lar i t ies ,  in  add i t ion  to  wh ich  we 

have ident i f ied  those cont rac ts  where  the re  a re  payments  

made to  what  we  ca l l  f i rs t  leve l  laundr ies  where  those f i rs t  

leve l  laundr ies  cannot  be  conce ived o f  per fo rm ing any 

leg i t imate  bus iness se rv i ce ,  bu t  were  ins tead condu i ts  and 

re f lec t ing  payments  to  the  benef i t  o f  the  Gupta  En terpr i se  

and  where  tha t  was the  case we  a lso  inc luded those as  

cont rac ts  a f f l i c ted  by  S ta te  Captu re .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr  Ho lden,  you re fer red  to  the 20 

cont rac ts  team,  tha t  wou ld  be  the  Commiss ion ’s  team tha t  

was invest iga t ing  cont rac ts  a f f l i c ted  by  S ta te  Captu re .  

MR HOLDEN:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Mr  Ho lden.   Can we 

then s tar t  ge t t ing  in to  some o f  the  impor tan t  numbers?  
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And the  f i rs t  number  I  want  you  to  ask  to  repor t  to  the  

Cha i r  i s  the  to ta l  amounts  pa id  by  the  s ta te  in  cont rac ts 

tha t  were  ta in ted  by  S ta te  Cap ture ,  accord ing  to  your  

invest iga t ions and i t  . . . [ in te rvenes ]  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I f  you  can jus t  g ive  us  tha t  

number.  

MR HOLDEN:    The number  i s  R49 157 323 233.68 ,  and to 

make tha t  eas ie r  fo r  the  peop le  mak ing  the  t ranscr ip t ions ,  

tha t  i s  R49 157 323 233.68.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank  you,  Cha i r.   Thank you,  

Mr  Ho lden.   Now I  am go ing  to  ask  you to  tu rn  to  page 152 

where  there  is  a  very  lengthy  tab le  wh ich  exp la ins  how you  

reach tha t  number  o f  R49 b i l l i on  and a  b i t ,  bu t  be fore  I  do  

so  I  want  to  remind you tha t  there  are  two ent i t ies  whose 

names are  on  the  or ig ina l  vers ion  o f  tha t  tab le  and who  

have ra i sed ob jec t ions to  the  la te  de l i very  o f  Ru le  33s.   

Now I  jus t  want  to  conf i rm tha t  you have redacted f rom tha t  

tab le ,  wh ich  I  am go ing  to  ask  you  to  d isp lay,  the  names o f  

bo th  o f  those ent i t ies .  20 

MR HOLDEN:    Cha i r,  I  have done so .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And we can re fe r  to  them,  

because we w i l l  be  re fe r r ing  to  them a t  var ious po in ts ,  we  

can jus t  re fe r  to  them as company A and company  B .   So 

can I  then ask  you to  take  the  Cha i r  to  page 153  o f  f low 
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funds bund le  9?   Sor ry,  tab le  73  a t  page 152 o f  bund le  9 .    

MR HOLDEN:    Cha i r,  I  have jus t  shared the  sc reen.   I  just  

want  to  make sure  tha t  i t  i s  showing up on your  screens.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  i t  i s  showing up.  I  am jus t  doub le-

check ing .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r,  I  have g iven you the  

wrong re ference,  I  must  apo log ise .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  i s  73 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  bu t  tha t  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Page 153,  i t  i s  a t  the  foo t  o f  

153.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay I  have got  i t ,  ja .   That  i s  what  

I  was t r y ing  to  check,  whether  i t  was the  same as  what  I  

had.   Yes okay,  a l r igh t .   Yes,  we have got  i t ,  Mr  Ho lden.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And can I  ask  you to  go  l i te ra l l y  

l ine  by. . .   I  th ink  we w i l l  need  tha t  a  l i t t le  b i t  la rge r,  

because I  am not  sure  the  peop le  w i l l  see  i t  f rom there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  they w i l l  s t rugg le .   That  i s  be t te r.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And can you go l i te ra l l y  l ine  by  20 

l ine ,  descr ib ing  the  organ o f  s ta te ,  who had pa id ,  what  the  

amount  was and what  the  pe rcentage o f  the  to ta l  amount  o f  

R49 b i l l i on  odd is?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   So jus t  to  descr ibe  the  

tab le ,  obv ious ly  the  fa r  le f t  co lumn descr ibes the  
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government  en t i t y  tha t  i s  mak ing  the  payment ,  the  second 

ident i f ies  the  en t i t y  to  wh ich  the  payment  was made.   The 

th i rd  co lumn ident i f ies  the  to ta l  expend i tu re  by  the  s ta te ,  

hav ing  been ab le  to  ident i f y,  and then f ina l l y  in  the  las t  

co lumn I  have ca lcu la ted  the  cont r ibu t ion  o f  tha t  pa r t i cu la r  

s ta te  expend i tu re  aga ins t  the  to ta l  f igure  o f  funds we have  

ident i f ied  as  be ing  pa id  ou t  in  con t rac ts  a f f l i c ted  by  S ta te 

Capture  and I  shou ld  ment ion  Cha i r,  jus t  to  c la r i f y,  when I  

say  in  th is  ev idence cont rac ts  a f f l i c ted  by  S ta te  Capture ,  

what  I  am re fe r r ing  to  i s  cont rac ts  a f f l i c ted  by  S ta te 10 

Capture  invo lv ing  the  Gupta  Enterp r ise .   I  am not  su re  

there  i s  any o ther  cont rac ts  tha t  need to  be  d iscuss in  

re la t ion  to  S ta te  Captu re ,  bu t  those are  fo r  Gupta  

Enterp r ise  fo r  the  substance o f  th is  repor t .   So w i th  tha t ,  

Cha i r,  the  f i rs t  en t ry  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  hang on,  Mr  Ho lden.  

MR HOLDEN:    What  we s ta te  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on,  Mr  Ho lden.   I  do  no t  know 

whethe r  someth ing  can be done,  I  do  no t  th ink  the  

recept ion  is  the  best .   Mr  Ho lden  seems to  be  break ing  20 

when he speaks.   I  assume tha t  i s  techno logy.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  th ink  i t  i s ,  Cha i r.   I  am not  sure  

where  the  prob lem is ,  whether  i t  is  on  our  s ide  or  h is  s ide .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    We might ,  i f  we poss ib ly  can t ry  



24 MAY 2021– DAY 401 
 

Page 35 of 266 
 

to  a t tend to  tha t  a t  the  tea  break ,  we cou ld  even do tha t  

now i f  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  th ink  he  can cont inue,  bu t  a t  leas t  

see i f  the  techn ic ians can t ry  and look a t  tha t  inso fa r  as  

they are  ab le  to  wh i le  we are  cont inu ing .   We are  f i ve  

m inutes  away f rom the  tea  break.   We cou ld  cont inue,  bu t  I  

a lso ,  I  was th ink ing  whethe r  we shou ld  take  the  tea  break 

w i th  the  de lay  we had ea r l ie r  on ,  bu t  what  do  you say,  

Mr  Chaska lson?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  am in  your  hands,  Cha i r.   I  am 10 

happy to ,  I  am cer ta in  happy to  cont inue.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Maybe  the  techn ic ians can t ry  

and a t tend to  i t  in  the  background.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  le t  me f ind  ou t .   Can the  

techn ic ians a t tend to  i t  in  the  background?  Okay,  they w i l l  

work  on  i t .   Okay,  le t  us  cont inue w i thout  tak ing  the  tea  

break fo r  now,  then maybe we  w i l l  see  around 12:00  

whethe r  we shou ld  take  a  shor t  b reak o r  no t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr  Ho lden,  can you then go  

l i te ra l l y  l ine  by  l ine  th rough th is  tab le?  

MR HOLDEN:    Abso lu te ly,  Cha i r.   So to  beg in  w i th  the  f i rs t  

en t ry,  the  government  en t i t y  is  the  Free S ta te  Depar tment  
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o f  Agr icu l tu re  and Rura l  Deve lopment ,  they pa id  New Lane  

Investments  204,  the  amount  tha t  they pa id  was  

R24 984 240.00 and the  pe rcentage in  re la t ion  to  tha t ,  the  

second ent ry  i s  t he  Free S ta te  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  hang on  Mr  Ho lden,  I  th ink  you  

broke.   Jus t  repeat  tha t  number  fo r  the ,  tha t  f i rs t  en t ry.   I t  

i s  R24 984 240.00.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  okay,  go  to  the  second i tem,  l ine .  

MR HOLDEN:    The second  l ine  is  the  Free S ta te  10 

Depar tment  o f  Agr icu l tu re  and Rura l  Deve lopment  wh ich  

pa id  to  Ast ina  (P ty)  L td ,  wh ich  you have heard  about  in  

p rev ious ev idence,  and the  to ta l  s ta te  expend i tu re  there  

was R280 202 652.00 and i t s  cont r ibu t ion  to  the  to ta l  funds  

d ispersed by  the  s ta te  in  re la t ion  to  the  S ta te  Capture  i s  

0 .57%.    

The th i rd  en t ry  i s  the  Free S ta te  Depar tment  o f  

Educat ion ,  wh ich  pa id  an  ent i t y  ca l led  Sunbed and the  

amount  tha t  they pa id  was R28 050 000.00,  wh ich  

cont r ibu ted  0 .06% of  the  to ta l  funds re la ted  to  S ta te 20 

Capture .    

The Free S ta te  Off i ce  o f  the  Premier  wh ich  pa id  

Sunday Trad ing  in  an  amount  o f  R4 578 810.00,  wh ich  

cont r ibu ted  0 .01% of  the  to ta l  amount  o f  the  S ta te  Capture .   

The Free S ta te  Depar tment  o f  house,  wh ich  pa id  
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Eureva/Mediosa  Hea l th  R25  111 188.00  and tha t  

percentage f igure  i s  0 .05%.  

The Nor th  West  Depar tment  o f  Hea l th  pa id  

Eureva/Mediosa Hea l th  R30 mi l l ion  and tha t  i s  0 .06% of  

the  to ta l  S ta te  Capture  funds spent  by  the  s ta te .   The  

Free S ta te  Depar tment  o f  Agr icu l tu re  and  Rura l  

Deve lopment  pa id  Tsebo Bus iness In te l l igence an  amount  

o f  R12 492 500.00 and wh ich  percentage is  0 .03%.   

The Free S ta te  Depar tment  o f  Agr icu l tu re  and Rura l  

Deve lopment  pa id  a  company we w i l l  re fe r  to  as  company A 10 

an amount  o f  R2 487 480,  wh ich  is  0 .01% of  the  to ta l  S ta te  

Capture  funds.   The Free S ta te  Depar tment  o f  Economic  

Deve lopment ,  Tour i sm and Env i ronmenta l  A f fa i rs  pa id  

Innova Management  Consu l t ing  an  amount  o f  

R6 972 395.04,  wh ich  is  0 .01% of  the  to ta l  S ta te  Capture  

funds.  

South  A f r i can A i rways,  SA,  pa id  Reg iments  Cap i ta l  

an  amount  o f  R6  241 500 and tha t  percentage is  0 .01%.   

SA Express pa id  Reg iments  Cap i ta l  an  amount  o f  

R8 218 123.20,  wh ich  amounts  to  0 .02%.   Transnet  pa id  to  20 

Reg iments  Cap i ta l  an  amount  o f  R1 015 051 242.21 ,  wh ich  

cont r ibu tes  2 .06% of  the  to ta l  amounts  pa id  by  the  s ta te  in  

re la t ion  to  S ta te  Capture .  

The Free S ta te  Prov ident  Fund  pa id  Reg iments  

Cap i ta l  an  amount  o f  R2 319 216,  wh ich  was less  than  
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0 .01%,  as  you can see the re .   Dene l  pa id  to  Reg iments  

Cap i ta l  an  amoun t  o f  R7 980 000,  wh ich  is  equa l  to  0 .02% 

of  the  to ta l  S ta te  Capture  funds.   SAFCOL pa id  Reg iments  

Cap i ta l  R5 711 400,  wh ich  is  0 .01%.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry,  sor ry  Mr  Ho lden,  sor ry  to  

in te r rup t  you a t  tha t  po in t .   Not  everyone knows who  

SAFCOL a re .   Am I  cor rec t  tha t  they are  the  South  A f r i can  

Forest ry  Company L im i ted?  

MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can you cont inue?  10 

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   Th is  en t ry  i s  ac tua l l y,  I  

have used the  wrong,  i t  i s  ac tua l l y  the  Transnet  Second  

Def ined Benef i t  Fund wh ich  pa id  Reg iments  Cap i ta l  

R248 729 210,  wh ich  is  0 .51%.   Transnet  wh ich  pa id  the  

Tr i l l i an  Group R169 859 999.91,  wh ich  cont r ibu tes  0 .35%.    

Eskom which  pa id  the  Tr i l l i an  Group  

R595 228 913.29,  wh ich  cont r ibu tes  1 .21%.   SA Express  

wh ich  pa id  the  Tr i l l i an  Group R5 700 000.00,  wh ich  is  

0 .01% of  a l l  S ta te  Captu re  amounts .   Transnet  pa id  to  

Neote l  an  amount  o f  R5 581 955 471.63.  wh ich  cont r ibu tes  20 

11.63% of  the  to ta l  S ta te  Captu re  funds pa id  ou t .  

Eskom pa id  to  McK ingsey an amount  o f  

R1 108 164 558.26,  wh ich  i s  2 .25% of  the  to ta l  S ta te  

Capture  funds d i spersed by  the  s ta te .   Transnet  pa id  to  

McK ingsey R687  970 961.05.  wh ich  cont r ibu ted  1 .4%.   



24 MAY 2021– DAY 401 
 

Page 39 of 266 
 

South  A f r i can A i rways pa id  to  McK ingsey an amount  o f  

R6 243 210,  wh ich  cont r ibu ted  0 .01%.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So r ry  Mr  Ho lden,  i f  I  can  jus t  

in te r rup t  there .   We have heard  ev idence ear l i e r  tha t  

McK ingsey has  repa id  the  Eskom amount  and has 

under taken to  repay the  fu l l  amount  o f  the  Transnet  and  

SAA amounts  tha t  you have jus t  quoted,  I  do  no t  know i f  

they  have,  we l l  the  fu l l  amounts  tha t  they earned f rom SAA 

and Transnet .   Techn ica l  Suppor t  Off i cer  the  best  o f  your  

knowledge,  has anybody e l se  on  th is  l i s t  repa id  the  fu l l  10 

amount  o f  what  you see on th is  l i s t?  

MR HOLDEN:    Not  to  the  best  o f  my knowledge,  no .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you.   Can you cont inue?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly.   Per ta in ing  to  the  l ine  i tem 

Transnet  pa id  to  Combined Pr iva te  Invest iga t ions an  

amount  o f  R151 698 373.17,  wh ich  cont r ibu ted  0 .31% to  

the  to ta l  S ta te  Capture  amount .   I  am sure  we w i l l  add ress  

the  reason re la ted  to  th is  a  b i t  la te r  in  ev idence.  

Transnet  pa id  to  Inkonkey Ink  an  amount  o f  

R5 861 759.16,  wh ich  is  0 .01%.   Transnet  pa id  to  De lo i t te  20 

an  amount  o f  R236 226 517.93,  wh ich  cont r ibu tes  0 .48%.   

Transnet  pa id  to  KPMG an amount  o f  R63 280  377.50,  

wh ich  amounts  to  0 .13%.   Eskom Pa id  to  PWC an amount  

o f  R107 773 438.56,  wh ich  is  a  percentage amount  o f  0 .22 .  

Transnet  pa id  t o  Cut t ing  Edge  an amount  o f  
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R45 984 113.24,  wh ich  is  0 .09%.   Eskom fur ther  pa id  to  

Cut t ing  Edge an  amount  o f  R107 773 438.56,  wh ich  is  

0 .22%.   Eskom pa id  SAP,  wh ich  is  Systems App l ica t ions 

Products ,  an  amount  o f  R564 733 122.57.  wh ich  is  1 .15% 

of  to ta l  funds d ispersed.  

Transnet  pa id  to  SAP an amount  o f  

R225 883 124.88,  wh ich  cont r ibu tes  0 .46%.   Eskom pa id  

Zest i lo r  an  amount  o f  R13 407 883.18,  wh ich  amounts  to  

0 .03%.   Transnet  pa id  to  Zes t i lo r  v ia  Innovo  Asset  

Management  an  amount  o f  R222 839 809.93,  wh ich  i s  10 

0 .45% of  to ta l  S ta te  Capture  funds.  

Transnet  pa id  an  amount  to  a  company we w i l l  re fe r  

to  as  company B  an amount  o f  R4 529 377 797.46,  wh ich  

cont r ibu ted  9 .21% of  to ta l  S ta te  Capture  funds d ispersed.   

Eskom pa id  Adent in  South  A f r i ca  an  amount  o f  

R20 892 885.56,  wh ich  amounts  to  0 .04% of  S ta te  Capture  

funds d ispersed.   Dene l  pa id  Adent in  South  A f r i ca  an  

amount  o f  R5 997  422.24,  wh ich  is  an  amount  o f  0 .01%. 

The SABC pa id  Ta lona Vis ion  an  amount  o f  

R62 733 557.24,  wh ich  cont r ibu ted  0 .13  to  the  to ta l  o f  20 

S ta te  Captu re  funds.   Transnet  pa id  Tegeta  Exp lora t ion  and 

Resources an  amount  o f  R2 442 523 980.95,  wh ich  

cont r ibu ted  an amount  o f  4 .97%.   Eskom pa id  to  Opt imum 

Coa l  an  amount  o f  R1 682 026 066.26,  wh ich  is  3 .42% of  

to ta l  S ta te  Capture  funds.    
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Then tu rn ing  to  the  fo l low ing page,  wh ich  is  f low  

funds 09155.   The Indust r ia l  Deve lopment  Corpora t ion  or  

IDC pa id  to  Oak Bay Investments ,  Oak Bay Resources and  

Act ion  Investmen ts  an  amount  o f  R250 000 000.00,  i t  i s  

R250 mi l l ion ,  wh ich  cont r i bu ted  0 .51% in  to ta l  S ta te 

Capture  funds.  

Eskom pa id  to  the  New Age Media ,  TNA Media ,  an  

amount  o f  R3,  5  m i l l ion  401 246 .60,  wh ich  cont r ibu ted  

0 .07% of  S ta te  Capture  funds.   Eskom pa id  t o  TNA Media  

an  amount  o f  R144 147 790.00,  wh ich  cont r ibu ted  0 .29%.  10 

The Off i ce  o f  the  Premiere  o f  the  Free S ta te  t ransfer red  to  

TNA Media  an  amount  o f  R42 062 906.36,  tha t  i s  0 .09%.   

The Free S ta te  Treasury  pa id  TNA Media  an  amount  o f  

R11 331 233.68,  wh ich  is  equa l  to  0 .02%.  

The Off i ce  o f  the  Premie r  o f  Mpumalanga pa id  TNA 

Media  an  amoun t  o f  R6 581 301 .20,  wh ich  i s  0 .01% of  

S ta te  Captu re  funds.   The Off i ce  o f  the  Premier  o f  the  

Nor th  West  Prov ince pa id  TNA Media  an  amount  o f  

R9 308 888.02,  wh ich  cont r ibu ted  0 .02% of  S ta te  Capture  

funds.  20 

Dene l  pa id  VR Laser  an  amount  o f  

R242 425 736.70,  wh ich  is  0 .49%.   Transnet  pa id  to  an  

en t i t y  ca l led  G loba l  Sof tech  So lu t i ons or  GSS in  the  repor t  

an  amount  o f  R16 199 400.00,  wh ich  is  0 .03% of  S ta te 

Capture  funds.    
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Transnet  on  the  95  locomot ive  procu rement  pa id  

CSR China South  Ra i l  an  amoun t  o f  R3 432 869  565.21,  

wh ich  cont r ibu ted  6 .98% of  S ta te  Capture  funds.   Transnet  

on  the  100 locomot ive  procurement  pa id  CSR an amount  o f  

R5 159 831 654.92,  wh ich  is  equa l  to  10 .50%.   Transnet  in  

re la t ion  to  the  359 locomot ive  procu rement  pa id  

CSR/CRRC R14 901 751 921.66,  wh ich  is  equa l  to  30 .33%.  

Transnet  pa id  in  re la t ion  to  the  232 locomot ive  

procu rement ,  pa id  CSR/CRRC an amount  o f  

R2 823 869 773.71,  wh ich  is  5 .74%.   Transnet  pa id  to  10 

L iebher r  Cranes  an amount  o f  R841 098 942.64,  wh ich  

cont r ibu ted  1 .71%.   Transnet  pa id  to  ZPMC an amount  o f  

R877 806 234.00 ,  wh ich  cont r ibu ted  1 .79% and in  to ta l  

together  we come to  an  amount  o f  R49 157 343 233.68.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank  you,  Mr  Ho lden.   I  must  

apo log i se  fo r  do ing  th is ,  bu t  I  have,  as  you were  go ing  

th rough those numbers  I  p icked up a  t ranspos i t ion  er ro r.   

Can I  ask  you to  go  back up  to  Eskom and Cut t ing  Edge?  

I t  i s  in  the  m idd le  o f  page 153.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    What  appears  to  have happened  20 

in  respect  o f  tha t  number  i s  tha t  the  number  fo r  PWC has  

been cop ied  the re  inadver ten t ly.   Can I  ask  you to  go  to  

tab le  64  on page 144?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  Mr  Chaska lson.   You  say  on  

153.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  i s  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  i t  the  bo t tom tab le?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  beg your  pardon Cha i r,  i t  i s  

154,  i t  i s  154,  I  apo log ise .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Okay ja ,  I  see i t  a t  154.   So the 

f igure  o f  R107 773 438.56 is  an  er roneous copy  fo r  the  

f igure  fo r  PWC.   Mr  Ho lden has gone to  tab le  64  on 

page 144 and the  cor rec t  f igure  to  inser t  there  i s  about  

R12 mi l l ion  less .   Mr  Ho lden,  can you jus t  read out  tha t  

f igure?  10 

MR HOLDEN:    The cor rec t  f igure  i s  R95 598 913.44.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  tha t  the  f igure  fo r  Eskom’s  Cut t ing  

Edge or  fo r  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Eskom’s  Cut t ing  Edge,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  so  the  cor rec t  f igure ,  jus t  repeat  

i t ,  Mr  Ho lden.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   I t  i s  R95 598 913.44.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay I  am so r ry  aga in ,  Mr  Ho lden,  I  

went  to  the  Transnet  Cut t ing  Edge ins tead o f  the  Eskom 

Cut t ing  Edge.   So jus t  repeat  the  Eskom Cut t ing  Edge one,  20 

the  co r rec t  one.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   I t  i s  R95 598 913.44.    

CHAIRPERSON:    44?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  thank you .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r,  what  we w i l l  do  is  in  the  

copy o f  the  repor t  tha t  i s  f ina l l y  pub l i shed,  we w i l l  inse r t  

the  cor rec t  f igure  and the  to ta l  o f  R49,  157 b i l l i on  w i l l  d rop  

to  R49,  145 b i l l ion .   I t  i s  no t  go ing  to  a f fec t  any th ing  in  

s ign i f i can t  de ta i l .   We are  ta l k ing  about  less  than 0 .2%.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes okay,  bu t  the  Eskom Cut t ing  Edge  

was the  on ly  page where  we needed to  make cor rec t ions.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    As  fa r  as  Mr  Ho lden  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes okay,  a l r igh t .   Okay.    10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr  Ho lden,  we have now gone 

l ine  by  l ine  th rough  each o f  these,  each o f  these S ta te  

Capture  cont rac ts .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry,  I  am so r ry  Mr  Chaska lson,  tha t  

w i l l  a f fec t  the  to ta l  o f  R49 b i l l i on  a  l i t t le  b i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wel l ,  i t  w i l l  s t i l l  be  R49 b i l l i on .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  w i l l  be  R49 145 000 000,  no t  

R49 157 000 000.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay no,  tha t  i s  f ine .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr  Ho lden,  many o f  these 

cont rac ts  have not  been t raversed in  ev idence  in  the  

Commiss ion  and I  wou ld  l i ke  to  take  you to  those tha t  have 

not  been t raversed in  ev idence so  tha t  you can  exp la in  

your  reason ing  fo r  inc lud ing  them on th i s  l i s t ,  and  the  f i rs t  
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one i s  the  New Lane Investment  cont rac t  and  fo r  tha t  

purpose can I  ask  you to  go  to  page 34 o f  low  funds  

bund le  9?  

CHAIRPERSON:    There  was ev idence on New Lane,  I  do 

no t  know i f  th is  i s  a  d i f fe ren t  one,  in  regard  to  the  

Free S ta te .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Oh Cha i r,  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  when I  looked a t  these ent i t ies  

there  are  on ly  a  few tha t  I  thought  had not ,  I  had not  heard  

ev idence about .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r,  i f  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ac tua l l y  my reco l lec t ion  is  tha t  i t  m igh t  

even be less  than  s ix ,  seven,  you know a t  leas t  those tha t  I  

p icked up.   Most  en t i t ies  I  though t  the  ev idence was,  had 

been heard .   I  know,  I  do  no t  th ink  I  heard  ev idence  about  

the  Off i ce  o f  the  Premier  in  Mpumalanga.   I  know I  have  

not  heard  ev idence I  th ink  about  SAP and I  know I  have not  

heard  ev idence  I  th ink  about ,  i s  i t  L iebher r  Cranes 

t ransact ion?  

So there  are  on ly  a  few tha t  I  had heard  about  20 

ou ts ide  o f  the  ev idence o f  the  Commiss ion ,  most  o f  them I  

have heard  ev idence,  so  o f  course  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you Cha i r,  we l l  I  cer ta in ly  

do  no t  want  to  dup l i ca te  ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  



24 MAY 2021– DAY 401 
 

Page 46 of 266 
 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr  Ho lden has not  obv ious l y  go t  

f i rs thand knowledge o f  the  ev idence tha t  you have a l ready   

heard .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    My knowledge o f  the  record  o f  

th is  Commiss ion  is  nowhere  near  as  comprehens ive  as  

yours ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  I  th ink  what  can be done is  tha t  those  

tha t  you or  he  has ident i f ied ,  as  you ment ion  the  en t i t y  I  

w i l l  ind ica te  i f  I  have heard ,  bu t  a l so  i t  m igh t  be  tha t  I  have 10 

heard  ev idence in  re la t ion  to  a  par t i cu la r  en t i t y  in  regard  to  

one t ransact ion  and maybe th is  i s  about  another  

t ransact ion ,  I  am not  su re .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The New Lane Transac t ion  tha t  

you wou ld  have heard  ev idence about  i s  the  same one as  

we a re  ta lk ing  he re .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  we w i l l  no t  t raverse  the  same 

ground.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr  Ho lden ’s  documents  are  in  

h is  repor t ,  they  can,  we can mere l y  re fe r  you to  them f rom 

page 34 onwards in  the  re levant  annexures.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  we do not  need to  dup l i ca te  
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tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay no,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then the  f i rs t  poss ib le 

t ransact ion  wh ich  has no t  been descr ibed in  the  repor t  i s  

the  t ransact ion  be tween Innovo and Tsebo  and Cha i r,  I  am 

not  su re  i f  you  a re  fami l ia r  w i th  tha t  one.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   No,  no ,  I  am not ,  ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And fo r  tha t  can I  ask  you to  go  

to  page 51 o f  the  repor t?   But  be fore  you do so ,  jus t  check  

tha t  your  copy i s  su i tab ly  redacted,  because a l though. . .   10 

Company A is  a l so  ment ioned on the  page,  on  page  51.  

MR HOLDEN:    Wou ld  you l i ke  me to  take  the  v isua l i sa t ion ,  

the  parag raph on sc reen?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    In  fac t  we do not  need  you to 

take  the  parag raph on the  screen,  so  the  prob lem does not ,  

we do not  need to  share  the  screen,  so  the  prob lem does  

not  a r ise .  

MR HOLDEN:    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can you br ie f l y  descr ibe  to  the  

Cha i r  what  the  Tsebo cont rac t  was and where  the  20 

i r regu lar i t y  was on page 51,  paragraph 33?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly.   What  was d i scovered was tha t  

on  the  8 t h  o f  June 2012 the  Free S ta te  Depar tment  o f  

Agr icu l tu re  and  Rura l  Deve lopment  B id  Eva lua t ion  

Commi t tee  awarded a  cont rac t  to  Tsebo Bus iness 
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In te l l igence Serv ice ,  wh ich  I  w i l l  re fe r  to  as  Tsebo  

hereaf te r,  to  p rov ide  eng ineer ing  serv ices  to  the  

depar tment .  

Mov ing  to  the  fo l low ing paragraph,  I  s ta ted  the  

award  o f  the  cont rac t  to  Tsebo tha t  was man i fes t l y  

i r regu la r,  because the  B id  Eva lua t ion  Commi t tee  scored  

Tsebogo Maloka  and Vi l joen C iv i l  Eng ineers  (P ty)  L td  

cons iderab ly  h igher  than Tsebo,  bu t  dec ided never the less  

to  award  the  con t rac t  to  Tsebo as ,  and I  quote ;  as  th is  i s  

what  the  depar tment  requ i res .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then can I  ask  you to  go  to  

page 53,  paragraph 37 and take  the  Cha i r  th rough the  

movement  o f  funds f rom the  Free  S ta te  Depar tmen t  to  the 

Gupta  Enterpr i se  th rough Tsebo,  th rough Tsebo and then  

th rough Innovo Management  Serv i ces?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly.   I  th ink  fo r  tha t  I  p robab ly  w i l l  

b r ing  up  the  screen to  make i t  s l igh t l y  eas ie r.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry,  I  may have taken you out  

o f  tu rn  here ,  Mr  Ho lden,  bu t  i t  seems to  me we  shou ld  

probab ly  exp la in  to  the  Cha i r  who Innovo Management  20 

Serv i ces  are  be fo re  we get  to  th is  movement  o f  funds,  even  

though i t  appears  la te r  in  the  repor t .   So can I  ask  you to  

go  to  page FOF9,  53  o f  bund le  9  where  you descr ibe  who  

Innovo Management  Serv ices  a re ,  parag raph 37?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   Innovo Management  
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Serv i ces ,  Innovo  was owned by  Chway i ta  Mabude,  bu t  

appears  to  be  managed by  Sa l im Essa and Ashok Narayan.   

In  tha t  regard  we have a t tached an annexure  wh ich  

ind ica tes  an  e-mai l  address fo r  Innovo Management ,  i t  i s  

innovomanagement20012@gmai l . com and tha t  was used to  

cor respond w i th  the  Free S ta te  Depar tment  o f  Tour i sm and 

Economic  A f fa i rs  and tha t  was opera ted  by  Ashok Narayan  

and in  those e-mai ls  i t  becomes c lear  tha t  the  depar tment  

t rea ted  Essa as  Innovo ’s  representa t i ve .  

I  am sure  the  Cha i r  reca l l s ,  bu t  Ms Mabude has I  10 

th ink  been d iscussed in  ev idence before .   She was  

appo in ted  to  the  Board  o f  A i rpor t  Company South  A f r i ca  

f rom 2012 to  2017 and served two te rms on the  Board  o f  

Eskom,  where  I  am in fo rmed the  Commiss ion  has heard  

ev idence tha t  she was invo lved in  approv ing  a  range o f  

t ransact ions re la t ing  to  Eskom’s  suppor t  fo r  the  acqu is i t ion  

o f  Opt imum Coa l  by  the  Gupta  Enterp r ise .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can you . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Th is  m ight  no t  be  in  your  repor t ,  bu t  i t  

wou ld  be  in te res t ing  to  es tab l i sh  who the  MEC,  the  20 

re levant  MEC was fo r  tha t  depar tment ,  in  case i t  i s  an  MEC 

who has appeared before  the  Commiss ion  in  regard  to  

o ther  t ransact ions,  bu t  tha t  we can look a t  la te r  on  i f  i t  i s  

no t  dea l t  w i th  her.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r,  I  th ink  Mr  Ho lden may be 
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ab le  to  answer  tha t  quest ion ,  because i t  was the  

Agr icu l tu re  MEC who was the  same Agr icu l tu re  MEC who  

dea l t  w i th  the  Ast ina  Pro jec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  tha t  was what  I  was suspect ing ,  so  

are  you ab le  to  conf i rm tha t ,  Mr  Ho lden?  

MR HOLDEN:    I  th ink  you a re  re fe r r ing  to ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  I  

assume you a re  re fer r ing  to  Mr  Peter  Thabet te .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wel l ,  Mr  Thabet te  was  not  the  

MEC,  he  was one  o f  the  o f f i c ia ls .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  the  MEC was . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Zwane?  

MR HOLDEN:    No apo log ies ,  i t  was Mr  Zwane,  apo log ies .  

CHAIRPERSON:    He was the  MEC for  th is  depar tment  a t  

the  re levant  t ime.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then Mr  Ho lden,  i f  you  can take  

the  Cha i r  to  page 52 on the  tab le  wh ich  shows how the  

money f lowed f rom the  depar tment  to  Tsebo and then f rom 20 

Tsebo to  Innovo and yes,  f rom the  depar tment  to  Tsebo and 

then f rom Tsebo  to Innovo.   We wi l l  ta lk  shor t l y  about  

where  i t  went  f rom Innovo.  

MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  tab le  12 .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.   That  i s  
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cor rec t ,  Mr  Ho lden.   I f  you  can share  the  screen a t  th is  

po in t ,  so  i t  wou ld  probab ly  be  more  conven ien t .  

MR HOLDEN:    Yes.   Cha i r,  wha t  we can see is  tha t  the 

funds tha t  were  pa id  to  Tsebo were  a lmost ,  once they were  

rece ived by  Tsebo were  very  f requent ly  pa id  in  a  very  

substant ia l  por t i on  to  Innovo Asset  Management  on  the  

19 t h  o f  Ju ly  2012.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry  Mr  Ho lden,  when I  look  a t  

th is  tab le  I  rea l i se  we have not  se t t led  i t  in  a  way tha t  

makes c lear  wh ich  owns wh ich ,  who ho lds  wh ich  account .   10 

So can you te l l  the  Cha i r,  who i s  the  ho lder  o f  the  S tandard  

Bank account  2004 and 363000,  and who is  the  ho lde r  o f  

the  FNB account  62359091734.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly.   The S tandard  Bank account  i s  

cont ro l led  by  Tsebo Bus iness In te l l igence and the  FNB 

account  i s  Innovo  Management  Serv ices ’ account .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  okay I  am sor ry,  STD there  s tands 

fo r  S tandard  Bank.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And the  444 account  i s  Tsebo.  20 

MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And the  o ther  account  you ment ioned is  

FNB,  i s  tha t  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR HOLDEN:    The FNB.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And whose one is  tha t?  
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MR HOLDEN:    That  be longs  to  Innovo Management  

Serv i ces .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Innovo,  i s  what  Mr  Ho lden sa id ,  

Cha i r,  Innovo Management  Serv ices .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.   Ja ,  you may cont inue  then.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   So the  f i rs t  en t ry  we have 

is  on  the  19 t h  o f  Ju l y  2012,  Tsebo  was pa id  an  amount  o f  

R1,  5  m i l l ion  by  the  Free S ta te  Depar tment  o f  Agr icu l tu re .   

The fo l low ing day on  the  20 t h  o f  Ju ly  o f  tha t  amount  10 

R1,  3  m i l l i on  was  pa id  to  Innovo.  

On the  26 t h  o f  Ju ly  an  amount  o f  R2,  035,00 was 

pa id  to  Tsebo by  the  depar tment .   Four  days la te r  on  the  

30 t h  o f  Ju l y  an  amount  o f  R1,  835 ,00 was pa id  to  Innovo by  

Tsebo.   On the  2 n d  o f  August  2012 an amount  o f  

R2,  165,000 was  pa id  by  the  depar tment  to  Tsebo  and on 

the  3 r d  o f  August ,  tha t  i s  the  fo l low ing day,  an  amount  o f  

R1,  5  m i l l ion  was  pa id  to  Innovo.    

Three days la te r  on  the  6 t h  o f  August  d rawing f rom 

a  s im i la r  se t  o f  funds,  Tsebo pa id  Innovo an amount  o f  20 

R660 000.   On the  4 t h  o f  October  2012 the  depar tment  pa id  

Tsebo an amount  o f  R1 492 500.   Four  days l a te r  on  the  8 t h  

o f  October  2012 an amount  o f  R1  mi l l ion  was t ransfer red  

f rom Tsebo to  Innovo.    

On the  7 t h  o f  December  an  amount  o f  R22982.46 
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was t ransfe r red  f rom Tsebo to  Innovo.   On tha t  same day  

Tsebo had rece ived a  payment  o f  R950 000 f rom the  

depar tment .   On the  25 t h  o f  August  2013 the  depar tment  

pa id  Tsebo an amount  o f  R2 850  000 and then a  day la te r  

there  were  two payments  f rom Tsebo to  Innovo,  the  f i rs t  

one was fo r  R519 736.85 and the  second amount  was fo r  

R1,  5  m i l l ion .  

On the  3 r d  o f  October  2013  an amount  o f  

R1,  5  m i l l ion  was  pa id  by  the  depar tment  to  Tsebo o f  wh ich 

an  amount  o f  R1  052 631.58 was  pa id  by  Tsebo to  Innovo  10 

and we have to ta ls  a t  the  bo t tom here ,  fo r  wh ich  we can  

see tha t  o f  the  R12 492 500 tha t  was pa id  to  Tsebo,  an  

amount  o f  R9 390 350.89 was t ransfer red  f rom Tsebo to 

Innovo.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  is  the  pa t te rn  he re  tha t  the 

government  depar tment  wou ld  a lways make a  payment  f i rs t  

to  Tsebo and then subsequent l y  Tsebo wou ld  pay to  

Innovo?  

MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  thank you .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then i f  we go down to  

tab le  14  we see what  happened to  the  money tha t  went  to  

Innovo,  and can  you take  the  Cha i r  th rough tab le  14 ,  

bear ing  i n  m ind tha t  the  repor t  dea ls  w i th  company A above 

and the  Tsebo funds tha t  go  to  Innovo are  m ixed w i th  some 
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funds tha t  come f rom company A?   So you w i l l  be ,  we w i l l  

no t  have ta lked about  the  company A funds a t  th is  s tage,  

bu t  can you take  the  Cha i r  th rough tab le  14  jus t  to  show 

what  happens to  the  funds when they land in  Innovo? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on before  tha t ,  Mr  Chaska lson,  I  

thought  we were  dea l ing  w i th  the  Depar tment  o f  Tour i sm 

and Economic  A f fa i rs  be ing  the  one tha t  was mak ing  

payments ,  bu t  I  see tha t  in  tab le  12  the  re ference tha t  i s  

made is  to  Free S ta te  Depar tment  o f  Agr icu l tu re .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    No,  we  have been dea l i ng  w i th  10 

Agreement  a l l  a long,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh okay,  okay.   Wel l ,  I  made,  maybe I  

made a  no te  on  the  wrong p lace,  in  paragraph 37  I  th ink  

where  Mr  Ho lden  was exp la in ing  Innovo who was invo lved  

and so  on  and I  saw the  re ference to  the  Depar tment  o f  

Tour i sm and Economic  A f fa i rs  and I  sa id  i t  wou ld  be  

in te res t ing  to  f ind  ou t  who the  MEC was and we ta lked 

about  Mr  Zwane and I  was say ing  he  was Min i s te r  o f  th is  

depar tment ,  because I  know tha t  he  moved f rom Agr icu l tu re 

in  March 2013 to  Economic  A f fa i rs  I  th ink ,  bu t  I  may be  20 

mis taken.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    You a re  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson,  

and in  fac t  i f  you  look a t  pa ragraph  37 you w i l l  see  tha t  the  

da te  i s  2014 there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And we  w i l l  come to  the  contex t  

in  wh ich  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  these are  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    These a re  2012.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So we w i l l  come to  what  went  on 

be tween Innovo and Tour ism Economic  A f fa i rs  in  2014,  a  

l i t t le  la te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes okay,  a l r igh t .   Le t  me conf i rm tha t  

when Mr  Ho lden  sa id  the  MEC was Mr  Zwane he was  10 

re fer r i ng  to  paragraph 37,  o r  was he re fer r ing  to  the  

prev ious page?  Mr  Ho lden?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   What  I  was in tend ing  to  

say was tha t  du r ing  the  pe r iod  i n  wh ich  Depar tment  o f  

Agr icu l tu re  was  mak ing  payments  to  Tsebo Bus iness  

In te l l igence,  the  MEC at  tha t  po in t  was Mr  Zwane.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

MR HOLDEN:    And subsequent  to  tha t  we w i l l  come to  the ,  

a t  a  la te r  s tage  when Innovo is  then cont rac ted  by  the  

Economic  Depar tment ,  a t  tha t  s tage Mr  Zwane had  moved  20 

f rom Agr i cu l tu re  to  tha t  depar tment .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  so  he  was  MEC in  bo th  cases.  

MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  okay,  a l r igh t ,  thank you.   Thank you,  

Mr  Chaska lson.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then Mr  Ho lden,  can you go to  

tab le  14  to  ta lk  about  the  f i rs t  s tage  o f  what  happens to  

these amounts  tha t  a re  pa id  f rom Tsebo to  Innovo? 

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   What  we have here  a t  

tab le  14 ,  wh ich  shou ld  be  on  the  screen now,  i s  a  

desc r ip t ion  o f  the  way in  wh ich  a  to ta l  amount  o f  

R8,  9  m i l l ion  was pa id  to  Aerohaven Trad ing ,  wh ich  is  

obv ious ly  a  we l l -known Gupta  Enterp r ise  company,  by  

Innovo Management ,  and tha t  happened in  the  course  o f  

th ree  separa te  t ransfers  and the  f i rs t  was on the  15t h of  10 

August  2012 where  R5 mi l l ion  was  t ransfer red  f rom Innovo 

Management  to  Aerohaven Trad ing  and tha t  amount  i s  

d rawn f rom the  payments  I  have descr ibed above o f  

R1,  3  m i l l ion  on  the  20 t h  o f  Ju ly  2012,  an  amount  o f  

R1 835 000 on the  30 t h  o f  Ju ly,  R1,  5  m i l l ion  on  the  3 r d  o f  

August  2012 and an amount  o f  R660 000 pa id  on  the  6 t h  o f  

August  2012 and jus t  to  make i t  en t i re ly  c lea r,  tha t  i s  

payments  f rom [ ind is t inc t  –  d is to r t ion ]  to  Innovo tha t  

funded those payments .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on,  Mr  Ho lden.   You were  dea l ing  20 

w i th  tab le  12 ,  i s  i t  no t?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Tab le  14 ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  tab le  14 .   I  was look ing  a t  

the  cor rec t  tab le ,  bu t  I  was not  see ing  the  f igures  tha t  you 

were  ment ion ing ,  bu t  I  th ink  those  wou ld  be  the  f igures  in  
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the  nar ra t ion .   I s  tha t  r igh t ,  in  the  m idd le  co lumn? 

MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Okay,  cont inue.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly.   The second payment  was made  

on the  12 t h  o f  January  2013 where  Innovo Management  

pa id  an  amount  o f  R1,  9  m i l l ion  to  Aerohaven Trad ing .   

That  i s  d rawn f rom a  pre-ex is t ing  ba lance tha t  was  drawn 

f rom the  prev ious payments  made to  Innovo o f  R295 000  

and an add i t iona l  payment  f rom Tsebo o f  R1 mi l l ion  on  the  

8 t h  o f  October  2012,  an  amount  o f  22982.46 on the  7 t h  o f  10 

December  2012,  payment  o f  R1,  5  m i l l ion  on  the  3rd of August 

2012 by  company A ,  and a f te r  wh ich  there  was a  ba lance 

o f  R917 982.46 tha t  remained in  the  account  and then two 

months  la te r  on  the  5 t h  o f  March  2013 an amount  o f  

R2 mi l l ion  was pa id  f rom Aerohaven and tha t  was drawn 

f rom the  pre-ex is t ing  ba lance wh ich  I  have desc r ibed.  

A payment  o f  432445 on the  15 t h  o f  January  2013  

and a  fu r ther  one o f  R50 000 on the  30 t h  o f  January  2013 

and those were  pa id  by  company A .   An add i t iona l  Tsebo  

payment  o f  R519  736.85 pa id  on  the  26 t h  o f  February  2013  20 

and a  fu r ther  R1,  5  m i l l ion  pa id  on  the  26 t h  o f  February  

2013 wh ich  was pa id  f rom Tsebo to  Innovo and a f te r  wh ich  

the  to ta l ,  as  I  have jus t  ment ioned,  i s  tha t  Aerohaven was 

pa id  R8,  9  m i l l ion  by  Innovo Management ,  d rawn f rom 

funds pa id  to  i t  by  Tsebo In te l l igence Serv i ces  and  a lso  by  
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company A .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then can you te l l  the  Cha i r  what  

happened on the  15 t h  o f  November  2013 a f te r,  seve ra l  

months  a f te r  Innovo had moved R8,  9  m i l l ion  to  Aerohaven 

and tha t  R8,  9  m i l l ion  had u l t imate ly  der i ved f rom the  

Free S ta te  Government?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   On the  15 t h  o f  November  

Aerohaven Trad ing  re tu rned tha t  amount  o f  R8,  9  m i l l ion 

and pa id  i t  in to  Innovo ’s  account  by  means o f  bank t ransfer  

and tha t  payment  then jo ined and ming led  w i th  the  depos i t  10 

tha t  had been made in  by  Tsebo in to  Innovo ’s  account  o f  

R1 052 631.58 tha t  was pa id  on  the  3 r d  o f  October  2013.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  jus t  s top  you there?  That  

R1 052 631.58  payment ,  d id  tha t  der ive  f rom the  

Free S ta te  Depar tment  o f  Agr icu l tu re  too?  

MR HOLDEN:    Yes i t  d id ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  to ,  you know in  tab le  14  you have 

tha t  f i rs t  da te  there ,  15  August  2012,  I  th ink  you sa id  2012,  

i s  tha t  r igh t?   2  I s  a t  the  bo t tom,  i t  looks  l i ke  201,  bu t  I  

th ink  i t  i s  2012,  bu t  the  way tha t  da te  i s  wr i t ten  causes 20 

some confus ion ,  because you normal ly  wr i te  your  da tes  by  

s ta r t ing  w i th  the  year  and then the  month  and the  day,  so  

th is  one is  wr i t ten  the  o the r  way.   So I  was th ink ing  is  i t  

2015,  bu t  I  th ink  i t  i s  2012 and I  th ink  you d id  say tha t ,  i s  

tha t  cor rec t?  
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MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  and d id  I  m iss  somewhere ,  

Mr  Chaska lson,  the  exp lanat ion  o f  who Aerohaven Trad ing  

is  in  the  scheme o f  th ings here?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr  Ho lden br ie f l y  ment ioned i t .   

Bu t  maybe Mr  Ho lden,  can you te l l  the  Cha i r  who  

Aerohaven is?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly.   I  cannot  reca l l  o f fhand the  

prec ise  d i rec to rsh ip  and ownersh ip ,  bu t  I  d iscussed  

Aerohaven in  qu i te  a  lo t  o f  de ta i l  in  re la t ion  to  the  Ast ina  10 

ev idence and Aerohaven i s  a  company tha t  i s  cont ro l led  by  

the  Gupta  Ente rp r ise  and i f  my memory  serves me cor rec t l y  

Aerohaven was e f fec t i ve l y  cont ro l led  most ly  by  Ranako 

Raghavan.   

In  the  Ast ina  ev idence Aerohaven  was one o f  the  

compan ies  tha t  was used to  es tab l i sh  a  loan back th rough  

wh ich  funds a re  l aundered f rom Ast ina  in  a  round t r ipp ing  

exerc ise .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  thank you .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And i f  you can go back then to  20 

paragraph 43,  Mr  Ho lden,  to  exp la in  what  happened to  the 

R8,  9  m i l l ion  tha t  went  to  Aerohaven.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   The R8,  9  m i l l ion  tha t  was  

pa id  to  Aerohaven,  pa id  f rom Aerohaven,  apo log ies ,  back  

to  Innovo Management  then co-ming led  w i th  the  depos i t  o f  
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R1 052 631.58 wh ich  was pa id  by  Tsebo on the  3 r d  o f  

October  2013 to  increase the  ba lance to ,  my ar i thmet ic  i s  

fa i l ing  me a t  the  moment ,  bu t  jus t  under  R10 mi l l ion ,  o f  

wh ich  then on the  15 t h  o f  November  Innovo t ransfe r red  an 

amount  o f  R9 756 500 and tha t  was an amount  o f  950 000  

Do l la rs ,  to  Gateway L im i ted  and Gateway L im i ted  was the  

Gupta  Enterpr i se  en t i t y  in  Duba i  and I  am sure  the  Cha i r  

w i l l  reca l l  and has heard  much ev idence about  Gateway.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR HOLDEN:    In  my ev idence on Transnet  I  d iscussed i t  10 

a t  length .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then tab le  15  descr ibes in  a  

tab le  what  you have jus t  desc r ibed in  nar ra t i ve  fo rm,  I  am 

not  go ing  to  ask  you to  repeat  i t ,  bu t  can I  ask  you to  go  

down to  page 57 and exp la in  what  happened w i th  the  

Free S ta te  Depar tment  o f  Economic  Deve lopment  in  2014 

by  s ta r t ing  a t  pa ragraph 47?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   In  2014 Tab le  Bus iness  

In te l l igence was no longer  cont rac ted  fo r,  ins tead  Innovo 20 

was d i rec t l y  con t rac ted  by  the  Free S ta te  Depar tment  o f  

Economic  Deve lopment ,  Tour ism and Env i ronmenta l  A f fa i rs .   

I  was prov ided an uns igned copy o f  the  cont rac t  be tween  

the  par t ies ,  wh ich  I  have a t tached,  and in  the ,  the  

annexure  ind ica tes  tha t  Innovo was  represented dur ing  tha t  
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con t rac t  by  Ms Mabude and Sa l im Essa.    

The cont rac t  was fo r  what  i s  re fe r red  to  as  Bus iness  

Eng ineer ing  Serv ices ,  wh ich  as  fa r  as  I  can te l l  f rom the  

a t tached cont rac t  re fe r red  to  deve lop ing  a  ser ies  o f  

e f f i c ienc ies  in  the  way in  wh ich  the  depar tment  worked,  bu t  

to  be  honest ,  there  seemed to  be  a  ser ies  o f  un re la ted  

e f f i c ienc ies ,  i f  any th ing .   The to ta l  va lue  o f  tha t  cont rac t  

was then R6 972 395.04.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No I  remember,  Mr  Chaska lson.   

Ms Chway i ta  Mabude,  so  now I  remember.   I  can  put  her  in  10 

contex t ,  I  can  remember,  I  remember  the  contex t  in  wh ich  I  

have heard  ev idence about  he r.   I  th ink  i t  i s  in  re la t ion  to  

Eskom.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    That  wou ld  be  cor rec t  Cha i r,  

because she was an Eskom Board  member.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  she was  a  Board  member,  yes .   

Now I  remember,  ja .   Okay,  good.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    In  tab le  17  you descr ibe  how 

those payments  aggregat ing  to  R6,  972 mi l l ion  were  made  

and can you te l l  the  Cha i r  what  happened to  these  20 

payments  w i th  re ference to  parag raph 49 in  tab le  18? 

MR HOLDEN:    So  I  w i l l  i nd ica te  t o  you,  so  in  tab le  17  we 

see the  d is t r ibu t ion  o f  funds f rom the  depar tment  to  Innovo 

and Cha i r,  I  am not  go ing  to  b r ing  i t  up  on  the  screen here ,  

because I  no t ice  tha t  there  is  a  tab le  a t  the  top  wh ich  
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desc r ibes the  payments  to  a  ce r ta in  ind iv idua l  who,  I  am 

in fo rmed,  the  ev idence leader  in fo rmed me tha t  a  Ru le  33  

not ice  had not  been g iven to  tha t  ind iv idua l  over  the  

weekend.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR HOLDEN:    So  I  do  no t  want  to  re lay  tha t  name.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay no,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

MR HOLDEN:    Because o f  p r i vacy  o f  tha t  person.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR HOLDEN:    So  re fer r ing  to  the  hard  copy then,  tab le  17  10 

shows tha t  there  were  th ree  payments  made.   The f i rs t  was  

on the  27 t h  o f  March 2014 and  tha t  was an amount  o f  

R2 997 096.48.   On the  15 t h  o f  May 2014 an amount  o f  

R1 990 440.00 was pa id  to  Innovo  by  the  depar tment .   On 

the  26 t h  o f  June  2014 an amoun t  o f  R1 984 858 .56 was 

pa id  to  Innovo by  the  depar tment ,  b r ing ing  us  to  a  to ta l  o f  

R6 972 395.04.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And what  happened to  those 

funds?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cha i r,  I  th ink  I  now can rever t  back to  the  20 

tab le  w i th  no  fear  o f  revea l i ng  any ind iv idua l .   Th is  i s  

tab le  18 ,  the  typo was ac tua l l y  on  the  s ta r t  on  funds  

09057,  bu t  then the  tab le  runs substant ive ly  on  09058 and  

the  funds were  a lmost  en t i re l y  pa id  to  Homex,  o f  wh ich  the  

Commiss ion  has heard  a  substant ia l  amount  o f  ev idence.   
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Shou ld  I  go  th rough the  tab le  l ine  by  l ine ,  I  wou ld  imag ine? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Yes,  I  th ink  go  l ine  by  l ine ,  i t  is  

f ine .  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   So f i rs t  to  repeat  the  

payments  tha t  were  made in  the  prev ious pa ragraph,  the  

prev ious tab le .   On the  27 t h  o f  March 2014 an amount  o f  

R2 997 096.48 was pa id  by  the  depar tment  to  Innovo.   On 

the  27 t h  o f  March 2014 an amount  o f  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry,  I  am sor ry  to  in te r rup t ,  

Mr  Ho lden.   A re  we ta lk ing  about  the  exact  the  same day 10 

the  money ar r i ved f rom the  depar tment?  

MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you.   P lease cont inue.  

MR HOLDEN:    The exact  same,  so  the  exact  same date  

the  money ar r i ved in  the  depar tment ,  an  amount  o f  

R2 679 000 was  pa id  f rom Innovo to  Homex and I  

ca l cu la ted  tha t  the  payment  f rom Innovo to  Homex was 

89% of  the  funds tha t  were  pa id  by  the  depar tment  to  

Innovo.  

On the  15 t h  o f  May 2014 the  depar tment  pa id  Innovo  20 

an amount  o f  R1 990 440.   The fo l low ing day on  the  16 t h  o f  

May 2014 Innovo  pa id  to  Homex an amount  o f  R1 881 000,  

wh ich  means tha t  Homex was pa id  94 .5% of  the  funds tha t  

were  pa id  by  the  depar tment  to  Innovo.   On the  26th of June 

2014 the department paid to Innovo an amount of R1 984 858.56 and 
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then the  fo l low ing  day Innovo pa id  to  Homex an amount  o f  

R1 824 000,  wh ich  I  ca l cu la ted  equa ls  91% of  the  funds 

tha t  were  pa id  by  the  depar tment  to  Innovo and in  the 

fo l low ing,  in  the  bo t tom- l ine  you can see tha t  in  to ta l  the  

depar tment  pa id  to  Innovo an amount  o f  R6 972 395.04 and 

subsequent ly  Innovo made,  a f te r  rece iv ing  those payments ,  

e i ther  on  the  same day or  sho r t l y  thereaf te r,  an  amount  o f  

R6 384 000,  wh ich  means tha t  o f  the  funds pa id  to  the 

depar tment ,  pa id  by  the  depar tment ,  apo log ies ,  to  Innovo,  

91 .5% of  those funds were  then t ransfe r red  immedia te ly  on 10 

to  Homex.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Mr  Ho lden.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am jus t  d iges t ing .   So but  Innovo and  

Homex were  bas ica l l y  cont ro l led  by  the  same peop le .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wel l ,  one o f  the  same peop le ,  

because I  do  no t  want  to  suggest  tha t ,  I  do  no t ,  we l l  I  do  

no t  want  to  be  the  w i tness,  bu t  we  have seen no ev idence  

tha t  Ms Mabude cont ro l led  Homex.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  we  have seen ev idence tha t  20 

Mr  Essa cont ro l led  Homex and we have a l so  seen ev idence 

tha t  Mr  Ho lden  has re fer red  to  today tha t  Mr  Essa  

rep resented Innovo in  i t s  dea l ings w i th  the  Free S ta te .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  and o f  course  d i f f i cu l t  to ,  I  

unders tand why i f  you d id  any work  you wou ld  take  91.5% 
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o f  your  fees and send to  somebody e l se ,  to  anothe r  en t i t y  

tha t  you rea l l y  have noth ing  to  do  w i th .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Indeed,  Cha i r.   La te r  on  in  

today ’s  ev idence  when we get  to  the  laundry  en t i t ies ,  o f  

wh ich  Homex is  one,  we w i l l  see  vast  amounts  o f  ev idence 

o f  tha t  sor t  o f  phenomenon.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Not  a lways on the  same sor t  o f  

sca le  o f  90% p lus .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  usua l l y  on  a  sca le  o f  50% 

p lus .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes okay,  a l r igh t .   Thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr  Ho lden,  now the  nex t  se t  o f  

payments  on  the  l i s t  tha t  I  want  to  take  you to  o r  the  

payments  made to  the  Reg iments  Group,  and we have  

heard  a  lo t  o f  ev idence in  the  Commiss ion  about  these 

payments ,  so  I  do  no t  want  to  go  in to  the  de ta i l s  o f  the 

ind iv idua l  cont rac ts ,  bu t  what  I  wou ld  want  you to  do  is  go  

to  tab le  28  on page 75 o f  the  repor t  where  you b reak up  20 

tha t  aggregate  f igure  o f  an  amount  pa id  to  Reg iments  and 

you ident i f y  wh ich  en t i t ies  were  pay ing  Reg iments  wh ich  

amounts .  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   A t  tab le  28  we see the  

f i rs t  en t ry  i s  Transnet ,  wh ich  pa id  an  amount  o f  
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R1 015 051 24.21  and i f  I  may I  can d i rec t  the  Cha i r  to  the  

ind iv idua l  payments  tha t  make up  tha t  amount ,  a re  se t  ou t  

in  a  d i f fe ren t  tab le  wh ich  appears  a t  f low o f  funds 09,  061,  

tab le  20 .   I  have recorded tha t  in  the  execut ive  summary to  

make tha t  s l igh t l y  eas ie r  fo r  the  Cha i r  to  fo l low.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Okay,  thank you.    

MR HOLDEN:    The second amount  i s  the  Transnet ,  the 

Second Def ined  Benef i t  Fund  is  an  amount  o f  

R248 729 210 and tha t  appears ,  the  fu l l  se t  o f  payments  

tha t  under l ies  tha t  aggregate  f igu re  are  se t  ou t  a t  f low o f  10 

funds 09,  072,  tab le  26 ,  South  A f r i can A i rways.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry  Mr  Ho lden,  I  apo log ise  fo r  

in te r rup t ing ,  bu t  maybe to  make i t  s imp ler,  i f  we can jus t  

take  the  Cha i r  o r  ask  the  Cha i r  to  jus t  inse r t  a  c ross-

re ference to  page  9 ,  paragraph 5  o f  the  execut ive  summary  

wh ich  w i l l  have the  de ta i led  tab le  re ferences,  the  de ta i led  

tab le  c ross- re ferences so  tha t  we  do not  have to  dup l i ca te  

them in  th is  ev idence,  so  i t  i s  page 9 ,  paragraph 5  o f  the  

execut ive  summary,  as  th i s  tab le  w i th  re fe rences  to  the  

under l y ing  lengthy  tab les  o f  t ransact ions.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  I  have done so .   Thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr  Ho lden,  can you fo r  the  

benef i t  o f ,  we l l ,  the  Commiss ion  record  jus t  go  on?  You 

were  a t  SA A i rways.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly.   South  A f r i can A i rways pa id  to  
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the  Reg iments  Group an amount  o f  R6 241 500.   

SA Express pa id  an  amount  o f  R8 218 123.20.   The 

Free S ta te  Prov ident  Fund pa id  an  amount  o f  R2 319 216.   

SAFCOL pa id  an  amount  o f  R5 711 400 and then  f ina l l y  

Dene l  pa id  an  amount  o f  R7 980  000 and tha t  i s  a  to ta l  

amount  o f  R1 194  258. . .  

[Mechan ica l  in te r rup t ion ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    You sa id  258?  

MR HOLDEN:    I f  I . . . .  

[Mechan ica l  in te r rup t ion ]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  Mr  Ho lden.  

MR HOLDEN:    Sor ry?  

CHAIRPERSON:    On the  to ta l  I  th ink  in  the  m idd le  you 

sa id  258,  I  th ink  you meant  250.   Do you want  to  ca l l  tha t  

number  ou t  aga in?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly.   Apo log ies ,  Cha i r.   I t  i s  

R1 294 250 691.41.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Chaska lson,  wou ld  i t  

be  the  r igh t  t ime to  take  a  10  minu te  ad jou rnment?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cer ta in ly  Cha i r,  yes .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    A l r igh t ,  le t  us  take  a  10  minute  

ad journment .   We ad jou rn .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES:  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  le t  us  con t inue.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Mr  Ho lden,  

we have been ta l k ing  about  payments  to  Reg iments .   One 

o f  the  l ine  i tems we have been desc r ib ing  is  payments  by  

Transnet  to  Reg iments .  

In  you r  repor t  you exp la in  tha t  you have not  

inc luded a l l  payments  f rom Transnet  to  Reg iments .   Can 

you exp la in  to  the  Cha i r  why there  are  some payments  tha t  

you have le f t  ou t  o f  you r  account ing?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   The payments  tha t  I  have  

not  inc luded where  those cont rac ts  d id  no t  invo l ve  onward  10 

payments  to  the  Gupta  Ente rp r ise  as  supp ly  deve lopment  

fees or  o ther  fees.   And o f  par t i cu la r  no te  he re  is  tab le  22  

wh ich  I  have brought  up  on  screen.  

The most  no tab le  add i t iona l  con t rac ts  tha t  were  

p laced w i th  Reg iments  were  what  Reg iments  ca l led  the  

Maputo  cor r ido r  cont rac t ,  and under  tha t  reg iment  was pa id  

an  amount  o f  R42,151,197.81 but  I  do  no t  add tha t  f igure  

to  the  to ta l  ta l l y  o f  payments  made in  re la t ion  to  

S ta te  Captu re  invo l vement  the  Gupta  Enterpr i se ,  because 

tha t  d id  no t  invo lve  the  Gupta  Enterp r ise .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And can I  –  Cha i r,  i f  I  can  jus t  

g ive  you the  re ference to  tha t  tab le ,  i t  i s  page 67 o f  the 

bund le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes thank you,  I  have got  i t .   Thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Jus t  to  i l l us t ra te  the  sca le  o f  the  
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payments  tha t  were  sub jec t  to  S ta te  Capture ,  can I  ask  you 

to  take  the  Cha i r  to  tab le  20  on page 61?  And I  do  no t  

need you to  read them a l l  o f f ,  bu t  maybe i f  you can jus t  

s lowly  scro l l  down th rough tha t  tab le  20  wh ich  l i s ts  a l l  o f  

the  payments  tha t  you have inc luded in  your  account ing  fo r  

S ta te  Captu re .  

Or,  maybe i f  you  can jus t  exp la in  to  the  Cha i r  the  

s t ruc ture  o f  tha t  tab le  as  you scro l l  down.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   What  we have  here  is  

payments  tha t  a re  made f rom Transnet  -  the  reg iment ’s  10 

group.   We have the  da te  o f  the  payment ,  the  amount  and 

then the  reg iment ,  the  cor respond ing  reg iment  invo i ce  

number  wh ich  is  a lso  then re fer red  in  the  bank s ta tement  

desc r ip t ions  in  the  payments  f rom Transnet ’s  Reg iments .  

 The tab le  i s  o rgan ised ch rono log ica l l y,  tha t  as  

payments  come in ,  you w i l l  s ta r t  see ing  tha t  there  are  

mul t ip le  d i f fe ren t  cont rac ts  be ing  –  invo ices,  Reg iments  

ge ts  mul t ip le  d i f fe ren t  cont rac ts  over  a  per iod  o f  t ime and  

the  fo l low ing tab le  l i ke  th is  aggregate  by  cont rac tors  a lso  

and we can have a  look a t  tha t  too .  20 

 Th is  i s  jus t  a  ch rono log ica l  record ing  o f  the  to ta l  

amounts  pa id  ove r  qu i te  a  substant ia l  per iod  o f  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR HOLDEN:    As  you can see on your  fa r  r igh t  I  have  

ind ica ted  -  I  have  g iven an ind i ca t i on ,  a  shor t  ind ica t ion  o f  
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what  i t  re fe rs  to .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then tab le  21 ,  can you 

exp la in  to  the  Cha i r  how tha t  tab le  i s  o rgan ized? 

MR HOLDEN:    May I?   Scro l l ing  down,  i t  i s  qu i te  a  long 

tab le  as  you can see.   Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   What  we have  

done here  is  th is  aggregate  the  payments  made by  cont rac t  

wh ich  a l lows us  to  es tab l i sh  how much was pa id  per  

cont rac t  the  reg iment  had w i th  Transnet  over  a  pe r iod  o f  

t ime.  10 

So,  th is  one i s  no t  o rgan ized ch rono log ica l l y,  i t  i s  

o rgan ized by  cont rac t  ins tead.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR HOLDEN:    And i t  fo l lows the  same pat te rn  as  in  they  

come in  on  the  le f t  and not  the  reg iment ’s  invo i ce  number  

tha t  was ra ised and then the  shor thand re ference to  what  

tha t  cont rac t  revo lves around.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I f  I  can  jus t  in te r rup t  a t  tha t  

po in t ,  you a lso  had subto ta l s  fo r  each cont rac t .  

MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  can see tha t  thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I f  we can then leave Reg iments  

and move on to  Tr i l l i an  and aga in ,  there  has been 

substant ia l  ev idence before  the  Commiss ion  about  Tr i l l i an  

so ,  I  wou ld  ask  you on ly  to  go  to  page 78 o f  the  Bund le ,  
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tab le  32 .  

And b r ie f l y  take  the  Cha i r  th rough tha t  tab le  bear ing  

in  m ind tha t  there  is  –  i f  I  can  g i ve  Cha i r  a  c ross - re ference 

to  the  execut ive  summary,  page 11 paragraph 6  has the  

same tab le  bu t  w i th  a l l  o f  the  sourced tab les  re ference are  

on  i t  as  we l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You sa id  page 11 parag raph 6 .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Parag raph 6 .   Indeed,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Fo r  now,  Mr  Ho lden can you go  10 

to  page 78,  tab le  34?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   We have an amount  tha t  

i s  pa id  f rom Eskom to  the  Tr i l l i an  Group o f  

R595,228,913.29.   From Transnet ,  a  ne t  to ta l  o f  

R169,059,999.91.   F rom the  Transnet  

Second Def ine  Benef i t  Fund,  i t  i s  an  amount  o f  

R185,530,350.08.  

That  i s  ac tua l l y  a  f igure  tha t  is  d rawn f rom –  

or ig ina l l y  d rawn f rom an amount  tha t  i s  pa id  to  reg iment  o f  

R228,983,985 o f  wh ich  the  one R185- f igure  is  d rawn and  20 

pa id  to  Tr i l l i an .   And then f ina l l y  we have an amount  a t  

SA Express o f  R5 ,7  m i l l ion  and the  to ta l  f igure  we a r r i ve  as  

a  resu l t  there  is  R9,56,319,263.28 .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then aga in ,  Mr  Ho lden in  

re la t ion  to  the  McK insey cont rac t s ,  I  am in te res ted  on ly  in  



24 MAY 2021– DAY 401 
 

Page 72 of 266 
 

the  amounts  wh ich  are  se t  ou t  a t  paragraph – sor ry,  a t  

tab le  33  on page 79.   Can you  take  the  Cha i r  th rough 

those?  Sor ry  page 80 o f  the  bund le  –  80  o f  the  bund le ,  

tab le  33 .  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   Cha i r  we have on the  fa r  

le f t  the  descr ip t ion  o f  the  re levant  SOE,  then the  amount  o f  

the  re levant  cont rac t .   The f i rs t  l i ne  Eskom pa id  to  

McK insey an amount  o f  R78,572,059.26.   Tha t  i s  an 

amount  inc lud ing  VAT and I  g ive  the  amount  be low tha t ,  the  

exc lud ing  VAT f igure ,  jus t  R68,922,859 and i t  was the  10 

Eskom-Copco p lan .  

I t  was McKinsey  work  done a longs ide  Reg iments  

tha t  ac tua l l y  Tr i l l i an  was pa id  fo r  th is  par t i cu la r  cont rac t .   

Eskom then fu r ther  pa id  an  amount  o f  R1,029,592 ,499 in  

re la t ion  to  the  Eskom turna round p lan  wh ich  are  be ing  

re fer red  to  as  the  maste r  serv ices  agreement  wh ich  br ings 

us  to  a  subto ta l  o f  payments  made by  Eskom to  McK insey 

o f  R1,108,164,558.26.  

And then mov ing  a long,  Transnet  pa id  an  amount  o f  

R41,684,84.64 wh ich  was fo r  the  resu l ts  management  20 

o f f i ce  and then  there  is  an  invo i ce  number  there ,  

GSM12/08/0527 . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry,  Mr  Ho lden i f  I  can  –  i f  I  

can  jus t  in te r rup t  a t  tha t  po in t .   I t  is  no t  an  invo i ce  number,  

i t  i s  a  cont rac t  number  or  a  b id  –  i f  you  can cont inue? 
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MR HOLDEN:    Oh,  i s  tha t  the  cont rac t  number.   Cer ta in ly,  

the  amounts  o f  R120,668,400.56 are  on  the  Swat -One 

pro jec t  w i th  a  cont rac t  number  GSM12/10/0578,  an  amount  

o f  R31.5  m i l l ion  pa id  by  Transnet  f o r  the  i ron  ore  pro jec t  in  

re la t ion  to  wh ich  the  cont rac t  number  was GSM14/04/1038.  

 Transnet  pa id  an  amount  o f  R105 ,289,851.23 pa id  

on  a  cu l l  con tac t  fo r  wh ich  the  cont rac t  number  i s  

GSM14/04/103.   An amount  pa id  by  Transnet  o f  R163,701,  

410.72 pa id  on  the  NMT1 and 2  cont rac ts  and tha t  i s  a  

cont rac t  number  GSM14/04/104.  10 

An amount  o f  R78,582,492 pa id  by  Transnet  in  the  

Manganese con tac t  fo r  wh ich  the  cont rac t  number  

GSM14/04/1039 by  Transnet ,  then added a  fu r the r  amount  

o f  R71,947,581.65 in  re la t ion  to  the  Swat -Two cont rac t  and  

tha t  i s  cont rac t  number  GSM14/04 /1052.  

 An amount  o f  R74,596,740.25 w i th  the  f i rs t  to  the  

Genera l  F re igh t  Bus iness Breakthrough cont rac t  wh ich  I  

a lso  re fer  to  i n  my repor t  as  the  GSB cont rac t  wh ich  i s  

aga ins t  cont rac t  number  GSM15/03/1255,  wh ich  br ings us  

to  a  subto ta l  o f  payments  made by  Transnet  o f  20 

R687,970,961.05.  

 Fo l lowed by  a  one fu r ther  amoun t  pa id  by  SAA o f  

R6,243,210 wh ich  when added to  the  res t  o f  the  payments ,  

b r ing  us  to  a  to ta l  o f  R1,802,378,729.31.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Mr  Ho lden.   We now 
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move to  Neote l  and he re  we a re  go ing  to  need to  ta lk  a  

l i t t le  b i t  about  why you have ca tegor ised these payments  

as  payments  ta in ted  by  S ta te  Capture  because I  

unders tand tha t  there  has no t  been s ign i f i can t  ev idence on 

these payments  or  on  the  background o f  these payments  

tha t  has come be fore  the  Commiss ion .  

 Can I  ask  you to  go  to  page 80 o f  the  Bund le ,  

parag raph 81 and take  the  Cha i r  th rough the  contex t  in  

wh ich  Neote l  –  we l l ,  what  b r ings  you to  t rea t  the  Neote l  

payments  as  S ta te  Capture  ta in ted  payments .  10 

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly.   Paragraph 81 I  se t  ou t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  jus t  want  to  ment ion  –  I  am sor ry,  

Mr  Ho lden?  I  jus t  ment ion  qu ick ly,  Mr  Chaska lson tha t  yes ,  

there  was some ev idence in  re la t ion  to  Neote l  and I  see  

th is  re fe rence to  buy-back –  asset  buy-back bu t  he  can jus t  

dea l  w i th  i t  qu ick l y.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   B r ie f l y  then  

f rom paragraph 81,  Mr  Ho lden.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly.   Neote l  wh ich  is  now t rad ing  as  20 

L iqu id  Te lecommunica t ions,  rece ived two cont rac ts  fo r  

Transnet  fo r  wh ich  payments  were  then made  to  the  

Gupta  Enterp r ise  f i rs t  leve l  laundry  en t i t y  by  the  name o f  

Homix .   The f i rs t  was a  C isco  equ ipment  cont rac t  

conc luded on 21 s t  February  2014  and a  master  serv i ces  
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agreement  conc luded on the  19 t h  o f  December  2014 to  

p rov ide  ne twork  serv i ces  to  Transnet .  

 In  add i t ion  to  these two cont rac ts  in  May 2014 and  

March 2015,  Neo te l  conc luded two CCTV cont rac t s  w i th  

Transnet  f rom wh ich  payments  a re  made to  a  company by  

the  name o f  TecPro .   In  re la t ion  to  the  . . . [ ind is t inc t  

d is to r t ion ]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry,  Mr  Ho lden can you jus t  

exp la in  who TecPro  are?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly.   TecPro  is  –  I  am not  sure  what  10 

the  fu l l  name is .   TecPro  is  an  en t i t y  tha t  de l i vered  cer ta in  

o f  the  hardware  in  re la t ion  to  the  CCTV cont rac t .   

E f fec t i ve ly  a  subcont rac to r  o f  Neote l ,  a  L iqu id  

Te lecommunica t ions in  re la t ion  to  th is  cont rac t .  

 Funds were  pa id  to  TecPro  and f rom TecPro  they  

were  pa id  ou t  to  . . . [ ind is t inc t  -  d i s to r t ion ]   I  th ink  the  fu l l  

name is  Techno logy Procurement  Ho ld ings i f  I  reca l l  

cor rec t l y.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  I  seem to  reca l l  tha t  too .   

Can you go to  paragraph 82 because I  th ink  i t  touches on 20 

an issue wh ich  is  very  impor tan t  in  re la t ion  to  

S ta te  Captu re  wh ich  is  the  ro le  o f  aud i to rs  and in  th is  case 

we have aud i to rs  who d id  the i r  work  appropr ia te ly  and they  

shou ld  be  commended fo r  tha t .  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   What  we have in  re la t ion  
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to  these cont rac ts  i s  tha t  De lo i t te  ident i f ied  the  payments  

tha t  were  fo r  Homix  as  i r regu lar  and re fused to  p roper ly  

cer t i f y  those f ina l  annua l  repor t s  on  tha t  bas i s .  

Indeed i t  was ac tua l l y  th is  pa r t i cu la r  repor t ing  

wh ich  brought  to  l igh t  -  to  the  pub l i c ’s  l igh ts  the  degree o f  

the  Gupta  Enterp r ises  invo lvement  in  S ta te  Captu re  and 

e f fec t i ve l y  began  the  process and  tha t  has ended in  th is  

Commiss ion .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then can you take  the  Cha i r  

b r ie f l y  th rough the  to ta l  amounts  o f  payments  made to  10 

Neote l  by  Transnet  tha t  were  ta in ted  in  th i s  way by  

S ta te  Captu re .  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly.   On the  7 t h  o f  March 2014 under  

the  C isco  equ ipment  cont rac t  and amount  o f  

R69,067,039.72 was pa id .   On the  14 t h  o f  May 2014 a lso  

under  the  C isco  equ ipment  cont rac t ,  an  amount  o f  

R276,268,158.90 was pa id .  

 On the  23 r d  o f  December  2014 in  re la t ion  to  the  

master  se rv i ces  agreement  asset  buy-back fee  and  amount  

o f  R228,000,000.00 –  tha t  i s  R228 mi l l ion  was pa id .   On 20 

the  same day,  an  amount  was pa id  in  re la t ion  to  the  master  

serv i ces  ag reement  mob i l i sa t ion  fee  fo r  an  amount  o f  

R256,500,000.00 –  tha t  i s  R256 mi l l ion ,500 thousand .  

 Between 2015 and 2018 are  in  re la t ion  to  the  CCTV 

cont rac t ,  a  ve ry  la rge  number  o f  payments  were  made 
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to ta l l ing  R827,441,799.18 and between 2015 and 2019 in  

re la t ion  to  the  mast  serv i ces  agreement  fees,  an  amount  o f  

R3,924,678,473.83 was pa id  fo r  a  to ta l  amount  pa id  o f  

R5,581,955,471.63.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The next  en t i t y  on  your  l i s t  was  

Combined Pr i va te  Invest iga t ions.   To  the  best  o f  my 

knowledge,  the  Commiss ion  has no t  heard  much ev idence  

in  re la t ion  to  combined Pr iva te  Invest iga t ions.   Can you  

exp la in  why you have inc luded them on your  l i s t  and maybe 

i f  you can s tar t  w i th  parag raph  84 and then move to  10 

paragraph 87.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   There  a re  two  pr imary  

reasons why we  focussed  on  

Combine Pr iva te  Invest iga t ions.   The f i rs t  i s  tha t  be tween  

January  2016 and January  2016 –  January  2013 and 

January  2016,  Combine Pr iva te  Invest iga t ions was  mak ing  

month l y  payments  to  Gupta  Ente rp r ise  f ron t  compan ies  and 

ac tua l l y  pa id  to  a  number  o f  d i f fe ren t  o f  them a t  the  t ime.  

 In i t ia l l y  the  month ly  payment  amounts  to ta l led  

R500 thousand a l though th is  i ncreased to  R1,459,200 per  20 

month  in  October  2013 and to  R1,575,760.37 f rom the  17 t h  

o f  November  2015,  un t i l  the  f ina l  payment  a t  the  end o f  

January  2016.  

The payments  were  f i rs t  made a  f ron t  company  

ca l led  Ch iv i ta ,  then Homix ,  then For  Sure  Consu l tancy,  and  
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f ina l l y  Med jou l  in  the  ev idence tha t  we w i l l  d iscuss the  f i rs t  

leve l  laundry  i s .   A l l  o f  those ent i t ies  are  e f fec t i ve l y  

cont ro l led  by  the  Gupta  Ente rpr i se  or  a l te rna t ive ly  were  

rece iv ing  funds and d iss ipa t ing  them on beha l f  o f  the 

Gupta  Enterp r ise .  

In  re la t ion  to  th is  cont rac t ,  the  f inanc ia l  

surve i l lance depar tment  o f  the  Sou th  A f r i can Reserve  Bank 

made contac t  w i th  Combined Pr iva te  Invest iga t ions i n  

re la t ion  to  the  d iscovery  tha t  CPI  had made payments  to  

Homix ,  Ch iv i ta  and Forsure  and incor rec t ly  ident i f ied  10 

payments  made to  Innova Globa l .  

 There  were  no t  ac tua l l y  payments  made to  

Innova Globa l  a l though I  do  genera l l y  dea l  w i th  tha t  

company in  g reat  de ta i l  a t  a  la te r  s tage.   In  response to  

tha t ,  CPI  a t to rneys,  R Tannen rep l ied  to  the  

South  A f r i can Reserve  Bank exp la in ing  why they were  

mak ing  these payments  on  a  regu lar  bas is  to  var ious Gupta  

f i rs t  leve l  laundry  en t i t ies .  

 And what  was  par t i cu la r ly  in te res t ing  the re  i n  

re la t ion  to  –  and I  se t  th is  ou t  a t  paragraph 87,  i s  tha t  they  20 

were  approached  –  CPI  was approached in  l a te  2012 by  

Sa l im Essa on beha l f  –  a l leged ly  on  beha l f  o f  Ch iv i ta ,  and  

Sa l im Essa a t  tha t  t ime ind ica ted  to  the  CPI  tha t  he  cou ld  

secure  fu r the r  bus iness fo r  them as he  was -  and I  quote  

here ,  he  was we l l  connected.  
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 And a  fu r ther  quote  sa id  tha t  he  was a  dea l  b roke r  

and a  fu r ther  quo te  was tha t  Sa l im  Essa was a  ra in  maker.   

Combined Pr i va te  Invest iga t ions fu r ther  then ind i ca ted  tha t  

Essa worked a longs ide  and w i th  Mr  John Duar te  who is  the  

ex-husband o f  Mrs  Jess ie  Duar te  and Malco lm Mabaso who  

as  the  Commiss ion  now knows was a  fo rmer  adv isor  to  

Mosebenz i  Zwane  and tha t  these  th ree  members  wou ld  

then prov ide  consu l tancy se rv i ces  to  CPI  to  he lp  secure  i t s  

bus iness.  

 In  tha t  same a f f idav i t  CPI  jus t i f ies  the  payments  10 

under  the  ve ry  b road exp lanat ion  tha t  they be l ieve  tha t  the 

payments  to  made to  th is  -  what  they ca l l  the  team o f  Essa,  

Duar te ,  Mabaso wou ld  then increase the  pro f i tab i l i t y  o f  

CPI .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Now you are  l i s t  in  your  –  in  

your  repor t  cont rac ts  tha t  CPI  conc luded w i th  a  range o f  

d i f fe ren t  o rgans o f  S ta te  and some munic ipa l i t ies ,  some 

S ta te  Owned Enterp r ises .   In  your  account ing  you have  

conf ined yourse l f  to  the  payments  tha t  they rece ived –  

sor ry.  20 

I  am ta lk ing  about  payments  they rece ived,  no t  

payments  tha t  they made.   In  your  account ing  you have 

conf ined yourse l f  to  payments  rece ived f rom Transnet .   

Can I  ask  you to  go  to  parag raph  90 and exp la in  why you  

inc lude on ly  the  payments  made by  Transnet  to  CPI  in  your  
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overa l l  account ing .  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.    In  descr ib ing  in  CPI ’s  

vers ion  tha t  was las t  amicab le  channe ls  tu rn ing ,  they  

desc r ibed the  reason ing  beh ind  cer ta in  cont rac ts  bu t  i t  

on ly  in  re la t ion  to  the  cont rac t s  invo lv ing  Transne t  where  

they ind i ca ted  spec i f i ca l l y  tha t  they 

Gupta  Enterp r ise  Ent i t y  was pa id  as  par t  o f  the  supp ly  

deve lopment  ob l i ga t ion  a t  Transne t .  

 Which  was 20 pe rcent  o f  va lue  f rom 2013 to  2015  

and 40 percent  o f  va lue  f rom 2015 to  2018,  wh ich  is  the  10 

same in  more  s t ra igh t  fo rward  te rms,  bu t  we can conf i rm 

f rom CPI ’s  own vers ion  tha t  the  payments  tha t  i t  made to 

the  Gupta  Enterp r ises  in  re la t ion  to  the  Transnet  cont rac t  

were  because –  spec i f i ca l l y  because CPI  had con t rac ted  

w i th  the  Gupta  Enterp r ise  compan ies .  

 But  we cannot  make tha t  same conc lus ion  -  cannot  

reach tha t  same conc lus ion  in  re la t ion  to  the  o ther  

cont rac ts  tha t  CP I  have remunera ted .   I  had imag ined tha t  

i t  may be tha t  the  Commiss ion  wou ld  l i ke  to  f ind  ou t  

whethe r  they were  fu r the r  supp l ied  benef i t  agreements  tha t  20 

jus t i f ied  the  payments  f rom o ther  en t i t ies  or  whether  i t  was 

jus t  conf ined to  Transnet .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then i f  I  can  ask  you to  go  

down to  page 86,  tab le  36  where  you i temised the  Transnet  

payments  and jus t  very  br ie f l y  take  the  Cha i r  th rough tha t  
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tab le  because the  amounts  are  ve ry  s im i la r,  I  do  no t  th ink  

we need to  go  l ine  by  l ine ,  bu t  b r ie f l y  take  the  Cha i r  

th rough the  tab le  and th rough the  to ta l .  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly.   As  the  tab le  we have here  is  

re fe rence made to  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    There  is  a  tab le  –  sor ry,  Cha i r  

tab le  36  indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay a l r igh t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Th is  i s  the  Transnet  payments  

on ly.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MR HOLDEN:    Cha i r,  tab le  36  se ts  ou t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  am there .  

MR HOLDEN:    Payments  tha t  

Combined Pr i va te  Invest iga t ions a t  a  spec i f i c  account  

number  wh ich  I  prov ide  there  by  Transnet  f rom the  23 r d  o f  

January  2014 to  t he  1s t  o f  Apr i l  2016 and you can see the re  

are  very  regu lar  numbers  e f fec t i ve ly,  usua l l y  R7,48 mi l l ion  

bu t  somet imes increas ing  to  R8 m i l l ion  and f ina l  payment  

i s  made on the  1 s t  o f  Apr i l  2016 and the  to ta l  f igure  there  20 

was R151,698,373.17.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then the  next  l ine  i tem on wh ich  

i t  may be necessary  to  go  to  some exp lanat ion  o f  the 

cont rac ts  i s  the  Sap cont rac t  –  S-A-P cont rac t  tha t  were  
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rewarded by  Eskom and Transnet .   And you dea l  w i th  them 

a t  the  foo t  o f  page 89 o f  the  Bund le ,  pa ragraph 91.   Can  

you take  the  Cha i r  b r ie f l y  th rough those cont rac t s?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   There  were  four  cont rac ts  

tha t  were  awarded to  Sap  by  SOE’s  and the  

South  A f r i can Revenue Serv i ce  aga ins t  wh ich  Sap pa id  

commiss ion  fees to  two Gupta  Enterp r ise  compan ies ,  

G loba l  Sof tech  So lu t ions and Cad House.  

The to ta l  cont rac t  va lue  o f  these four  cont rac ts  was 

R790,616,247.45  and the  commiss ions pa id  by  Sap I  dea l t  10 

w i th  in  de ta i l  fu r the r  on  in  the  repor t  in  re la t ion  to  

payments  to  f i rs t  leve l  laundry  en t i t ies  and  o ther  

Gupta  Enterp r ise  en t i t ies .  

F i r s t  cont rac t  was awarded by  Sap on the  27h o f  

December  2014 by  Transnet .   There  were  cont rac ted  to  

have the  se rv i ce  re la ted  to  a  so f tware  l i cense  suppor t  

agreement .   The  to ta l  va lue  o f  the  cont rac t  inc lud ing  VAT 

was R111,870,480 aga ins t  wh ich  a  VAT exc lus ive  Transnet  

c red i t  was se t -o f f  leav ing  an  amount  o f  R74,100,000 – tha t  

i s  R74 mi l l ion100  thousand to  be  pa id  by  Transnet  to  Sap.  20 

 And the  invo i ces and a l l  the  fo rms a re  

a t tached to  the  repor t  a t  Annexure  18 .   The  second 

cont rac t  was conc luded on the  30 th  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Be fore  you leave the  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on,  I  th ink  you have los t  me,  o r  I  

have los t  you.   What  page were  –  d id  you re fer  to ,  

Mr  Chaska lson?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    We a re  on  page 90 and  

Mr  Ho lden has jus t  taken us  th rough paragraph 92.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.   I  th ink  I  was on 91 and then I  

moved too  much back.   Okay,  a l r igh t  –  thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr  Ho lden,  you reca l l  –  you were  

say ing  tha t  the  amount  tha t  had to  be  pa id  a f te r  the  

Transnet  c red i t  was R74,100.   Can  you reca l l  o f f  the  top  o f  10 

your  head,  what  the  amount  pa id  to  the  re levant  

Gupta  Enterp r ise  sub-cont rac tor  was?  I f  you  –  i f  you  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR HOLDEN:    I  cannot  reca l l  and  I  have a  cont rac t  a t  the 

top  o f  my head . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wel l  then,  le t  us  ge t  to  i t  la te r  

and I  w i l l  take  you –  I  w i l l  take  you back,  I  w i l l  take  you  

back.   I f  you  can go then to  paragraph 93.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly.   The  second cont rac t  was 

awarded to  Sap on the  30 th  o f  September  2015 by  20 

Transnet .   Sap were  de l i ver ing  serv ices  re la ted  to  so f tware  

l i cense suppor t  agreements ,  re la ted  to  the  supp l ie r  Hybr i s  

and Remix  so f tware .  

The to ta l  cont rac t  va lue  was  R114,012,644.88 

inc lus ive  o f  VAT and was pa id  by  Transnet  on  the  1s t  o f  
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Apr i l  2016 and the  re levant  o rder  fo rm is  a t tached a t  

Annexure  19 .   The th i rd  cont rac t  was awarded to  Sap on 

31 s t  o f  March 2016 by  Eskom.  

Sap were  cont rac ted  to  de l i ver  serv ices  re la ted  to  a  

l i cense suppor t  agreement  . . . [ incomple te  –  30 :00]   

Cont rac t  va lue  was R70,158,284.70 and was pa id  by  

Eskom on the  17 t h  o f  June 2016 and aga in  the  re levant  Sap 

order  fo rm is  a t tached a t  Annexure  20 .  

The fou r th  cont rac t  was awarded to  Sap on the  25 t h  

o f  November  2016 by  Eskom.   Sap was cont rac ted  to  10 

de l i ver  serv i ces  re la ted  to  a  f u r the r  so f tware  l i cences 

suppor t  ag reement .   The to ta l  cont rac t  va lue  was 

R494,574,937.87  and tha t  was pa id  by  Eskom on the  23 r d  

o f  December  2016 and the  re levant  Sap orde r  fo rm was  

a t tached as  Annexure  1  to  the  repor t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    A l though I  sa id  we w i l l  ge t  there  

la te r  i t  may make  sense to  do  tha t  now.   Because i t  is  qu i te  

in te res t ing  to  see what  the  amounts  pa id  to  the 

Gupta  Enterp r ise  compan ies  were  re la t i ve  to  the  amounts  

pa id  to  Sap.  20 

 Can I  ask  you to  go  to  page 213 o f  the  Bund le  9  –  

213,  parag r4aph 280  and exp la in  the  re la t ionsh ip  be tween  

what  the  Gupta  Enterp r ise  go t  re la t i ve  to  what  Sap got  

f rom Eskom and Transnet .  

MR HOLDEN:    I  am a f ra id  I  have los t  your  re fe rence there .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Page 213,  F low o f  Funds  

Bund le  9 ,  page 213.  

MR HOLDEN:    Okay,  page . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And i t  is  pa rag raph 280.  

MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  co r rec t .   Okay,  apo log ies ,  Cha i r.   In  

re la t ion  to  the  payments  o f  R74,100 mi l l ion  was pa id  by  

Transnet  to  Sap.   Sap pa id  G loba l  Sof tech  So lu t ions an  

amount  o f  R7,410 ,000.00 and tha t  is  equa l  to  10  percent  o f  

the  cont rac t  f igure  tha t  was awarded to  Sap by Transnet ,  

wh ich  i s  e f fec t i ve  as  fa r  as  I  unders tand i t ,  a  10  percent  10 

success fee  in  re la t ion  to  th is  cont rac t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then i f  one go down to  

tab le  124 wh ich  ta lks  about  the  payments  by  Sap by  

Cad House on the  o ther  th ree  con t rac ts ,  i f  you  can take  the  

Cha i r  th rough tha t  tab le .  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly.   The payments  to  Cad House by  

Sap A f r i ca ,  there  were  th ree  payments .   The f i rs t  payment  

was made on the  8 t h  o f  Apr i l  2016 an amount  o f  

R16,987,884.09.   That  was a  payment  f rom Sap A f r i ca  to  

Cad House and tha t  was a  14 .9  percent  commiss ion  on  a  20 

payment  o f  R114,012,644.88 tha t  was made by  Transnet  in  

re la t ion  to  Sap order  fo rm 59.  

On the  4 t h  o f  Ju ly  2016,  and amount  o f  

R9,245,459.01 and the  payment  was made f rom Sap to 

Cad House.   That  appears  to  be  a  commiss ion  on  
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R70,158,284.70 tha t  was pa id  by  Eskom on the  17 t h  o f  

June aga ins t  tha t  o rde r  fo rm 24.  

 And then f ina l l y  on  the  28 t h  o f  December  2016,  an  

amount  o f  R73,691,650.84 was pa id  by  Sap to  Cad House 

and tha t  was a  14 .9  percent  commiss ion  on  the  la rgest  

cont rac t  wh ich  Sap rece ived in  re la t ion  to  S ta te  Capture  

fo r  the  Gupta  Enterp r ise .  

 And tha t  cont rac t  was wor th  R494,574,837.87 and 

tha t  was pa id  by  Eskom on the  23 r d  o f  December  2016.   

The to ta l  amount  then pa id  to  Cad House by  Sap in  re la t ion  10 

to  th is  cont rac t  was R99,924,993.94.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And we  see the  two o f  the  th ree  

payments  a re  14 .9  percent  commiss ions.   I s  there  anyth ing  

tha t  you can say about  tha t?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly.   I t  appears  to  be  a  ve ry  la rge  

sum o f  money and I  wou ld  be  very  in te res ted  to  f ind  ou t  

p rec ise ly  what  se rv ices  were  be ing  prov ided by  Cad House  

tha t  wou ld  prov ide  fo r  a  percentage commiss ion .  

I  shou ld  ment ion  and in  a  very  long per iod  o f  work  

on  ant i -cor rup t i on  mat te rs  tha t  percentage  base 20 

commiss ions a re  cons idered some o f  the  most  dangerous  

in  te rms o f  p re jud ice  to  the  S ta te  and tha t  i s  par t ia l l y  

because where  there  are  po tent ia l l y  cor rup t  ac tors  

invo l ved,  i f  i t  i s  a  percentage commiss ion  on  a  S ta te  

payments ,  the  co r rup t  ac tors  may seek to  inc rease the  cost  
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o f  the  S ta te  con t rac t  in  o rde r  to  increase the i r  po ten t ia l  

abso lu te  va lue  tha t  exp resses as  a  percentage.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  looks  l i ke  i t  m igh t  be  the  conven ien t  

t ime,  Mr  Chaska lson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   I t  is  in  fac t  

very  conven ien t  to  take  a  b reak.   Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  we w i l l  take  the  lunch ad journment  

and we w i l l  resume a t  two.   We are  ad journed.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 10 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t  us  con t inue.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.   Thank  

you,  Mr  Ho lden.   Mr  Ho lden the  next  en t i t y  on  our  l i s t  was 

go ing  to  be  Company B  but  on  re f lec t ion  i t  i s  go ing  to  be  

d i f f i cu l t  to  address Company  B  w i thout  ident i f y ing  

Company B  so ,  I  w i l l  ask  you not  t o  do  tha t  and jus t  mere ly  

to  s tand by  your  repor t  in  tha t  regard .  

 And then the  next  en t i t y  tha t  we need to  address  

spec i f i ca l l y  i s  Denton and can I  ask  you to  go  to  page 101  20 

o f  your  –  o f  Bund le  9  where  you address the  s i tua t ion  in  

re la t ion  to  Denton ’s .   Maybe go up a  page to  where  you 

s tar t  a t  paragraph 115 on page 100.  

And maybe d i c ta te  to  the  Cha i r  why you have -  a  

desc r ip t ion  o f  why you have inc luded Denton ’s  under  th is  
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ca tegory.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   So,  paragraph 115 I  se t  

ou t  tha t  I  were  show an a f f idav i t  tha t  was deposed by  

Mohamed Noor  Kapd i  on  beha l f  o f  Kapd iTwala  Incorpora ted  

wh ich  t rades as  Denton South  A f r i ca  wh ich  is  da ted  the 

30 t h  o f  November  2020.  

I  have cons ide red the  contents  o f  tha t  a f f idav i t  

a longs ide  the  fac t  tha t  Denton has made a  number  o f  

payments  to  f i rs t  leve l  laundry  en t i t ies  ar i s ing  f rom the  

cont rac t  tha t  Denton ’s  was awarded by  the  S ta te .   In  10 

par t i cu la r  I  d raw the  a t ten t ion  o f  the  Commiss ion  to  the  

vers ion  o f  events  tha t  he  se ts  ou t  and wh ich  I  reco rded a t  

parag raphs 116 to  118.  

The substance o f  wh ich  is  tha t  in  2015,  Mr  Kapd i  

c la ims tha t  he  was approached by  one Mr Raf ique  Bagus.   

He was a  c l ien t  o f  Denton ’s  and then a l so  the  Cha i rperson 

o f  A lexkor  who agreed to  adver t i se  Denton ’s  to  the  pub l i c  

sec to r,  a l though i t  i s  a  l i t t le  b i t  unc lea r  as  to  what  tha t  

adver t i sement  invo lve .  

Subsequent  to  the  awarded cont rac ts  to  Denton ’s  by  20 

Eskom we wi l l  d iscuss the  exact  amount  o f  the  cont rac t  

be low.   The cont rac t  was re fer red  to  Denton ’s  South  A f r i ca  

and Eskom Pro jec t  P icard i ,  Mr  Kapd i  s ta ted  tha t  a f te r  be ing  

awarded the  cont rac t  by  Eskom.  

 He then contac ted  Mr  Bagus to  thank h im fo r  h is  
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e f fo r ts  to  market  the  f i rm and he  a lso  fu r ther  says and I  

quote :  

“ I  a lso  ra i sed the  issue o f  remunera t ion . ”  

He a lso  be l ieved  he wou ld  be  ent i t led  fo r  work  done in  

market ing  the  f i rm.   He fu r ther  then a l leges tha t  Mr Bagus  

ind ica ted  tha t  he  wou ld  no t  requ i re  remunera t ion ,  bu t  a  

th i rd  pa r ty  wou ld  contac t  Denton ’s  to  a r range payment  fo r  

the i r  marke t ing  serv i ces .  

 And then subsequent  to  tha t ,  Mr  Kapd i  was 

approached by  Ashok Narayan to  d iscuss the  payments .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  then ask  you to  go  down to  

parag raph 123 on  page 102 where  you d iscuss the  te rms o f  

the  ar rangement  reached between Denton ’s  and 

Mr  Narayan.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   A t  paragraph 123  

accord ing  to  Mr  Kapd i ,  he  was prompted by  

Ashok Narayan,  he  then ente red in to  a  consu l tancy  

agreement  be tween Denton ’s  and  For t ime to  e f fec t  the  

payment  w i th  regard  to  the  Eskom cont rac t .  

 I  summar ised my d isqu ie t  about  th is  vers ion  o f  20 

events  in  the  fo l low ing pa ragraph.   The issue tha t  I  –  there  

a  number  o f  i ssues tha t  I  ra ised there ,  the  f i rs t  one is  that  

I  f ind  i t  remarkab le  tha t  Denton ’s  wou ld  en ter  in to  a  

market ing  agreement ,  subsequent  to  a  cont rac t  be ing  

awarded on wh ich  bas i s  i t  i s  a l leged tha t  Denton ’s  secured 
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a  cont rac t  because o f  tha t  market ing .  

In  add i t ion  to  wh ich  there  were  a  number  o f  

documents  tha t  were  a t tached to  Mr Kapd i ’s  a f f idav i t  wh ich  

inc luded an ag reement  –  the  agreement  tha t  govern  these 

payments  to  For t ime,  be tween Den ton ’s  and For t ime  and i t  

i s  da ted  the  1s t  o f  February  2015.  

That  agreement  I  shou ld  ment ion  was s igned by  one  

Mr  Sab iya  Ahmed and Mr  Sab iya  Ahmed we wi l l  d iscuss in  

much g reater  de ta i l  in  la te r  ev idence regard ing  the  much  

la rger  laundry  su f f i ce  i t  to  say  tha t  he  was the  d i rec tor  o f  a  10 

number  o f  f i rs t  leve l  laundry  en t i t ies  tha t  the  

Gupta  Enterp r ise  made us  o f .  

I t  appears  then  f rom an emai l  cha in  tha t  was  

d isc losed to  in  Mr  Kapd i ’s  a f f idav i t  tha t  the  agreement  tha t  

was dated the  21 s t  o f  February,  was ac tua l l y  s t i l l ;  i n  d ra f t  

fo rm as la te  as  21 s t  o f  August  2015 a f te r  i t s  s t ipu la ted  

te rm inat ion  da te .  

I t  was then backdated to  the  1s t  o f  February  t o  

make i t  look  l i ke  For t ime had been prov id ing  consu l tancy 

serv i ces  fo r  wh ich  i t  appeared to  have been remunera ted  20 

and I  f ind  tha t  a r rangement  to  be  incred ib ly  susp ic ious,  no t  

leas t  tha t  For t ime  appears  to  have the  se rv i ces  prov ided by  

For t ime are  remarkab le  vague and  opaque in  th is  vers ion .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then you l i s t  in  fac t  tab le  46  the  

payments  tha t  Eskom made to  Den ton ’s .   Can you take  the  
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Cha i r  th rough those payments?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  I  am jus t  shar ing  my screen very  

qu ick ly.   I  hope I  have succeeded.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  has  now.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Very  we l l .  

MR HOLDEN:    So ,  tab le  46  I  se t  ou t  the  payments  to  

Denton South  A f r i ca  f rom Eskom in  re la t i on  to  

Pro jec t  P icard i .   On the  8 t h  o f  Ju ly  2015,  Denton ’s  was pa id  

an  amount  o f  R359,185.06.   On  the  21s t  o f  Ju ly  2015,  

Denton ’s  was pa id  an  amount  o f  R7,844,197.50.  10 

On the  18 t h  o f  August  2015 i t  was pa id  an  amount  o f  

R9,686,846.   On the  17 t h  o f  November  2015,  i t  was pa id  an  

amount  o f  R2,985,087 and then on the  29 t h  o f  February,  i t  

was pa id  an  amount  o f  R17,570,  fo r  a  to ta l  f igure  o f  

R20,892,885.56.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Okay,  and then in  parag raph 127  

you descr ibe  the  amount  tha t  was pa id  to  For t ime by  

Denton ’s .  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly.   Fo r t ime was u l t imate ly  pa id  

R1,231,200 in  re la t ion  to  th i s  cont rac t  on  the  22n d  o f  20 

August  2015.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then you go on to  address the  

Denton ’s  /  Dene l  cont rac t .   Can you te l l  the  Cha i r  about  

tha t?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly.   In  2015  Denton ’s  was appo in ted  
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to  Dene l ’s  lega l  pane l .   In  September  2015,  the  head o f  

lega l  a t  Dene l  approached Mr Kapd i  and in fo rmed h im tha t  

Denton ’s  had been se lec ted  to  submi t  a  request  p roposa l  in  

re la t ion  to  an  invest iga t ion  tha t  was requ i red  by  Dene l .  

 On the  5 t h  o f  October  2015,  Denton submi t ted  a  b id  

fo r  the  work  quot ing  a  fee  capped  a t  R4.1  m i l l ion  and tha t  

becomes re levant  and we d iscuss the  amount  tha t  Denton ’s  

was eventua l l y  pa id .   Wi th in  four  days on  the  9 t h  o f  

October  2015,  Denton ’s  was fo rmal ly  appo in ted  by  Dene l  to  

under take the  pro jec t  wh ich  was then ca l led  Pro jec t  Bet ty.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Okay.  

MR HOLDEN:    Denton ’s  then –  apo log ies .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    P lease cont inue.  

MR HOLDEN:    As  I  showed a t  tab le  47 ,  Denton ’s  

u l t imate ly  invo iced Dene l  R5,971,266.24 wh ich  is  obv ious l y 

qu i te  substant ia l l y  more  than the  capped fee  and I  do  se t  

ou t  the  re ferences and the  payments  bu t  there  a re  qu i te  a  

la rge  number  o f  them.   I  am not  sure  i f  Cha i r  requ i res  me 

to  read them a l l  in to  the  record  or  no t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  those the  ones on the  tab le  a t  104?  20 

The tab le  47 .  

MR HOLDEN:    A t  tab le  47  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  th ink  jus t  read them in to  the 

record .  

MR HOLDEN:    Okay.   On the  3 r d  o f  November  2015  
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Dentons was pa id  by  Dene l  an  amount  o f  R669,693.00.   On  

the  3 r d  o f  November  2015 –  so  the  same day,  i t  was pa id  

an  amount  o f  R30 ,843.39.   On the  24 t h  o f  November  2015 i t  

was pa id  an  amount  o f  R1,465,640.86.  

 On the  15 t h  o f  December  2015,  Denton ’s  was pa id  

an  amount  o f  R2,413,243.20 .   On the  15 t h  o f  

December  2015,  i t  was a id  an  amount  o f  R86,361.44.   On 

the  29 t h  o f  December,  i t  was  pa id  an  amount  o f  R 

438,982.50.   On the  29 t h  o f  December  2015 i t  was  pa id  an  

amount  o f  –  i t  was the  same day,  R368,624.12.  10 

 On the  29 t h  o f  January  2016,  i t  was pa id  an  amount  

o f  R420,67.80.   On the  1s t  o f  February  2016,  i t  was pa id  an  

amount  o f  R26,163.82.   On the  25 t h  o f  February  2016,  i t  

was pa id  an  amount  o f  R6,840.00.   On the  6 t h  o f  

Apr i l  2016,  i t  was pa id  an  amount  o f  R50746  –  so ,  

R50,746.11.  

 And then on the  19 t h  o f  Ju l y  2016,  the re  was a 

c red i t  no te  i ssued by  Denton ’s  th rough wh ich  they repa id  a  

cer ta in  amount  o f  R6,840 wh ich  was a  re fund aga ins t  the  

amount  tha t  was pa id  to  them on the  25 t h  o f  February  2016.   20 

Which  then br ings us  to  the  to ta l  amount  w i th  tha t  amount  

–  the  cred i t  no te  inc luded,  o f  R5,971,266.24.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can you then exp la in  how 

For t ime came to  be  invo lved in  the  Dene l  payments  to  
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Denton ’s .  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly.   Accord ing  to  Mr  Kapd i ’s  vers ion ,  

in  January  2016 fo l low ing the  comple t ion  o f  the  work  a t  

Dene l ,  he  was approached aga in  by  Mr  Ashok Narayan in  

o rder  to  negot ia te  a  market ing  fee  in  re la t ion  to  the  

cont rac t  and in  to ta l ,  For t ime was u l t imate ly  pa id  

R642,588.36.  

In  re la t ion  to  t h is  cont rac t  the  th ree  payments  

be tween December  2015 and February  2016,  I  do  hes i ta te  

to  no te  tha t  I  f ind  -  I  d id  no t ice  when I  was work ing  th rough 10 

these,  th rough th i s  repor t  aga in  yesterday,  tha t  the  t ime l ine  

accord ing  to  Mr  Kapd i ,  does not  appear  to  work  in  th is  

regard .  

 In  tha t  he  says he  was approached in  January 2016 

to  negot ia te  the  fee ,  bu t  there  was  a  payment  to  Fo r t ime in  

December  2015 a l though I  am not  sure  how much hangs on  

tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So ,  were  you  ab le  to  te l l  Mr  Ho lden  

whethe r  Denton ’s  invest iga t ion  a t  Dene l  tha t  you a re  

ta lk ing  about  he re ,  was the  inves t iga t ion  connected w i th  20 

the  suspens ion  o f  execut ives  –  o f  cer ta in  execu t ives  a t  

Dene l  in  2015?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r,  a t  Eskom o r  a t  Dene l?  

CHAIRPERSON:    They were  invo lved in  bo th  Eskom and 

Dene l  and in  bo th  en t i t ies ,  cer ta in  execut ives  were  
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suspended under  h igh ly  susp ic ious c i r cumstances.   So,  I  

th ink  they s ta r ted  a t  Eskom,  and they f in ished the i r  repor t  

o r  they were  to ld  to  s top  the  invest iga t ion  a round June o r  

Ju l y  in  Eskom and then,  by  then  cer ta in  execut ives  who  

had been suspended,  had le f t .  

 And then in  September  same year  a t  Dene l ,  th ree  

execut ives  were  suspended and  on the  bas i s  tha t  there  

was to  be  a  d isc ip l ina ry  enqu i ry.   And tha t  d isc ip l inary  

enqu i ry  had not  happened more  than a  year  la te r  when  

they were  o f fe r  some se t t lements ,  bu t  Dene l  was invo lved 10 

in  invest iga t ions i f  I  am not  m is taken.  

So,  I  jus t  wanted  to  check w i th  Mr  Ho lden whether  

he  had come ac ross anyth ing  tha t  ind ica ted  tha t  Denton ’s  

invest iga t ion  a t  Dene l  was connected w i th  the  suspens ion  

o f  those execut ives .  

MR HOLDEN:    Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hmm?  The execut ives  was 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR HOLDEN:    P lease fo rg ive  me –  you were  ta lk ing .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    No,  no ,  p lease go  ahead,  20 

Mr  Ho lden.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The execut ives  were  Mr  Sa loo jee ,  

Mr  Mhlont lo  and Ms A f r i ca  in  case  tha t  m ight  he lp  you.  

MR HOLDEN:    I  am a f ra id ,  Cha i r  bu t  I  have not  seen  the  

resu l ts  o f  the  invest iga t ion ,  the  invest iga t ive  repor t  tha t  i s  
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re fe r red  to  here .  

CHAIRERSON:    Yes.  

MR HOLDEN:    And I  th ink  my ev idence,  Cha i r  may  be ab le  

to  shed some l igh t  on  th is  mat te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   I  th ink  we w i l l  –  i t  w i l l  be 

good i f  we can check because you know,  i t  seems to be  – 

they are  used a t  bo th  en t i t ies ,  Eskom and Dene l  and the  

fac t  tha t  in  bo th  en t i t ies  execut ives  were  suspended  

roundabout  –  or  soon befo re  Denton ’s  go t  invo lved  may be 

someth ing  to  look  a t .   Okay no,  tha t  i s  f ine .   Le t  us  10 

cont inue.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   I  mere ly  

wanted to  no te  tha t  in  Mr  Kapd i ’s  a f f idav i t  he  does g ive  a  

broad out l ine  o f  what  the  sub jec t  o f  the  invest iga t ion  was.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  w i l l  ge t  the  re ference  a t  the  

next  b reak and I  w i l l  re fe r  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  know tha t  in  respect  o f  Dene l ,  

there  i s  no th ing  ment ioned about  suspended execu t ives .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  know a lso  tha t  there  is  no th ing  

ment ioned about  suspended execut ives  in  re la t ion  to  

Eskom.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  I  unders tand  f rom 

documents  and I  am not  su re  i f  they  fo rm annexures to  h i s  

a f f idav i t  o r  no t ,  bu t  the  issue o f  ind iv idua l  cu lpab i l i t y  o f  

execut ives  was express ly  exc luded f rom the  ambi t  o f  

Dene l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  a t  Eskom ja .   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The Dene l  invest iga t ion .   I t  was  

exc luded,  a t  Dene l  no t  –  I  beg your  pardon,  a t  Eskom.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A t  Eskom.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Eskom,  yes.   Dene l  asked not  to  10 

look a t   . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Ind iv idua l  execut ives  

m isconduct .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  ja  – ja .   No,  no ,  I  remember  tha t  as 

we l l .   Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The next  i tem on the  l i s t  i s  tha t  

requ i res  some exp lanat ion  is  Lornav is ion  and  tha t  i s  

addressed a t  page 105 o f  you r  repor t .   Can you  br ie f l y  

exp la in  to  the  Cha i r  how Lornav is ion  came to  be  inc luded  20 

in  your  repor t?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   A t  paragraph 132 I  

ind ica te  tha t  in  2017 the  spec ia l  invest iga t ion  un i t  

successfu l l y  sought  and procured a  H igh  Cour t  judgment  

tha t  se t  as ide  the  cont rac t  be tween Lornav is ion  and the  
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SABC to  wh ich  I  re fe r  he re .  

 Lornav is ion  a t  the  t ime o f  wh ich  Kuben Mood ley  

was a  d i rec tor  were  cont rac ted  by  the  SABC to  prov ide  

debt  co l lec t ion  se rv ices .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And can you show what  your  

invest6 iga t ions revea led  in  re la t i on  to  what  happened to  

the  amounts  pa id  by  the  SABC to  Lornav is ion?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  the  amounts  tha t  were  pa id  to  

Lornav is ion ,  were  subsequent ly  pa id  to  an  en t i t y  ca l led  

Customer  Communica t ions Serv i ces  Company wh ich  I  10 

abbrev ia te  as  TCCSC and f rom there  to  a  Gupta  Enterp r ise  

f i rs t  leve l  laundry  veh ic le  by  the  name o f  B i rsaa Pro jec ts .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And a t  tab le  48  you l i s t  the  

payments  to  Lo rnav is ion .   Can you take  the  Cha i r  b r ie f l y  

th rough tha t  tab le  wh ich  s ta r t s  a t  page 105.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly.   We have qu i te  a  substant ia l  

number  o f  payments  wh ich  I  am go ing  to  read in to  the 

record  aga in .   On the  17 t h  o f  September  2015,  there  was  

an amount  o f  R2,433,900 pa id  by  SABC to  Lo rnav i s ion .   On 

the  30 t h  o f  January  2016,  there  is  an  amount  o f  20 

R3,631,931.88.  

 On the  16 t h  o f  February  2016 there  is  an  amount  o f  

R2,604,825.37.   On the  1s t  o f  March  2016 there  is  an  

amount  o f  R3,582 ,851.68 pa id  to  Lornav i s ion  by  SABC.   On 

the  17 t h  o f  March  2016 there  is  an  amount  o f  R541,717.22.   
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On the  31 s t  o f  March 2016 there  is  an  amount  o f  

R1,663,311.78.  

On the  28 t h  o f  Apr i l  2016,  there  is  an  amount  o f  

R760,361.59 tha t  was pa id  by  the  SABC to  Lornav is ion .   

Mov ing  on to  the  fo l low ing page  wh ich  is  f low o f  funds 

09/106.   On 17 t h  o f  May 2016 an amount  o f  R2,252,163.12  

was pa id  to  Lornav is ion .  

On the  31 s t  o f  May 2016,  and amount  o f  

R2,248,575.80 was pa id  to  Lo rnav is ion .   As  the  Cha i r  w i l l  

p robab ly  no t ice  a l l  those payments  tha t  I  have jus t  10 

ment ioned,  were  pa id  in to  Lornav is ion ’s  F i r s t  Nat iona l  bank  

account  –  FNB account ,  and I  g ive  the  number  there .  

A l l  payments  tha t  a re  made subsequent  to  tha t  

da te ,  a re  then  made in to  a  separa te  S tandard  Bank  

account .   Ad –  oh  apo log ies ,  Cha i r  I  have now sk ipped 

fo rward .   Turn ing  to  the  tab le  on  the  15 thy  o f  June 2016,  

Lornav is ion  was pa id  an  amount  o f  R844,193.47.  

On the  7 t h  o f  Ju l y  2016,  i t  was pa id  an  amount  o f  

R4,650,710.39.   On the  30 t h  o f  Ju ly  2016,  i t  was pa id  an  

amount  o f  R1,695,021.84.   On the  16 t h  o f  August  2016,  i t  20 

was pa id  an  amount  o f  R991,182.70.   On the  31s t  o f  

May 2016.  I t  was pa id  an  amount  o f  R2,468,671.38.  

On the  15 t h  o f  September  2016,  i t  was pa id  an  

amount  o f  R1,340,401.07. `  On the  29 t h  o f  September  2016.  

I t  was pa id  an  amount  o f  R3,065 ,413.13.   On the  4 t h  o f  
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October  2016,  i t  was a id  an  amount  o f  R885,162.12.   On 

the  18 t h  o f  Oc tober  2016,  i t  was a id  an  amount  o f  

R1,434,669.92.  

 On the  31 s t  o f  October  2016,  i t  was pa id  an  amount  

o f  R2,692,150.06  and on the  same day the  31s t  o f  October,  

i t  was pa id  an  amount  o f  R659,805.55.   On the  15 t h  o f  

October  2016,  i t  was pa id  an  amount  o f  R1,883 ,899.20.   

On the  30 t h  o f  November  2016,  i t  was pa id  an  amount  o f  

R3,632,401.67.  

 On the  15 t h  o f  December  2016,  i t  was pa id  an  10 

amount  o f  R2,504,308.99.   ons the  31s t  o f  December  2015,  

i t  was pa id  an  amount  o f  R3,466 ,404.32.   On the  17 t h  o f  

January  2017,  i t  was pa id  an  amount  o f  R1,674 ,965.06.   

On the  31 s t  o f  January  2017,  i t  was pa id  an  amount  o f  

R6,968,543.52.  

 On the  16 t h  o f  February  2017,  i t  was pa id  an  amoun t  

o f  R2,046,013.61,  wh ich  br ings  us  to  a  to ta l  f igure  o f  

R62,733,557.24.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Mr  Ho lden.   The next  

se t  o f  cont rac ts  tha t  you address in  your  repor t  tha t  ca l l  fo r  20 

some exp lanat ion  is  the  contac t s  tha t  were  awarded by  

Eskom and Nkonk i  –  sor ry,  Eskom and Transnet  to  Nkonk i  

and a lso  to  o ther  aud i t ing  f i rms tha t  engaged Nkonk i  as  a  

subcont rac to r  fo l low ing the  acqu is i t ion  o f  Nkonk i  by  the  

Tr i l l i an  Group. 
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 You address tha t  f rom page 106,  Cha i r  aga in  I  must  

re fe r  to  you on th is  one.   I  am not  sure  how much o f  the  

Nkonk i  ev idence has a l ready  served before  the  

Commiss ion?  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  I  th ink  no t  much.   I f  there  i s ,  i t  i s  

very  l i t t le .   So,  ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then,  Mr  Ho lden can you b r ie f l y  

exp la in  the  s ign i f i cance or  how these cont rac ts  came to  be  

in  your  repor t ,  bear ing  in  m ind tha t  a t  a  la te r  s tage in  your  

ev idence,  we w i l l  go  in to cons iderab le  de ta i l  as  to  how 10 

Tr i l l i an  acqu i red  Nkonk i .   But  i f  I  can  ask  you to  s ta r t  a t  

page 135 –  sor ry,  a t  page 106,  pa ragraph 135.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   A t  paragraph 136  I  no te  

tha t  the  Commiss ion  have procured an in  the  a f f idav i t  o f  

Tebogo Leba l lo  who was the  ch ie f  f inanc ia l  o f f i cer  a t  

Tr i l l i an  dur ing  the  per iod  under  rev iew and a  copy o f  tha t  

a f f idav i t  and then  th ree  supp lementary  a f f idav i t s  fu rn ished  

by  Mr  Leba l lo  were  shown to  me and I  cached the  

submiss ion .  

 In  tha t  a f f idav i t  Mr  Leba l lo  se t  ou t  how Nkonk i  20 

acqu i red  –  sor ry,  how Tr i l l i an  acqu i red  Nkonk i  and  we w i l l  

d iscuss tha t  in  cons iderab ly  more  de ta i l  la te r  as  Nkonk i  

was a  b id  to  be  purchased us ing  cr im ina l  fund ing .   In  the 

same per iod ,  subsequent  to  the  purchase o f  Nkonk i  by  the  

Tr i l l i an  Group,  i t  was awarded as  a  se r ies  o f  cont rac ts  a t  



24 MAY 2021– DAY 401 
 

Page 102 of 266 
 

Eskom.  

 Wel l ,  i t  was appo in ted  as  supp ly  and deve lopment  

par t s  tha t  i s  a  ser ies  o f  cont rac ts  a t  Eskom in  wh ich  the  

pr imary  par tners  were  De lo i t te ,  KPMG,  or  PWC.   A l l  o f  

those cont rac ts  appear  to  be  i r regu lar.   Wi th  regards to  

De lo i t te ,  they have acknowledged  tha t  they are  i r regu lar  in  

respect  o f  the  Eskom task  o rders  SM002 and SM004.  

On wh ich  De lo i t te  engaged in  cont rac t ing  a  

subcont rac to r,  and they have  agreed to  be  pa id  a  

R150 mi l l ion  o f  the  fees,  they w i l l  pay  to  them on re levant  10 

cont rac t  a t  captu res  two Annexures.   The s ta tement  tha t  

was issued by  Eskom on the  25 t h  o f  October  2019 

announc ing  i t s  dec is ion  to  recover  the  funds f rom Delo i t te .  

And then subsequent ly,  the  jo in t  s ta tement  tha t  was  

issued on the  25 t h  o f  March 2020  by  Eskom and De lo i t te  

when the  d ispute  was se t t led  pa r t ia l l y  to  the  repayment  o f  

the  R150 mi l l ion .   PWC’s  Eskom cont rac ts  was re fer red  to  

as  the  Cap i ta l  Scrubb ing  cont rac t .  

 And i t  i s  desc r ibed very  ex tens ive ly  in  the  a f f idav i t  

o f  Jonathan Wi l l iam Gordon Cawood wh ich  was submi t ted  20 

by  PWC to  the  Commiss ion  and wh ich  is  a t tached here to .   

The deta i l s  se t  ou t  by  Mr  Cawood is  tha t  PWC engaged  

Nkonk i  on  the  Eskom cap i ta l  sc rubb ing  cont rac t ,  fo l low ing  

an unsuccessfu l  a t tempt  by  PWC – sor ry,  an  unsuccessfu l  

a t tempt  in  September  2016 by  Tr i l l i an  depar t ing  ways w i th  
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PWC.  

 Subsequent ly,  Eskom a l lowed  |Nkonk i  to  be  

cons idered fo r  par tne r ing  w i th  PWC desp i te  the  fac t  tha t  

Nkonk i  had not  met  the  requ i rements  fo r  Eskom’s  pane l  b .   

I t  appears  tha t  Eskom cons t i tu tes  a  pane l  c  to  

accommodate  the  pos i t ion  o f  Nkonk i .  

 Eskom then conc luded a  r i sk -based cont rac t  w i th  

the  PWC /  Nkonk i  consor t ium.   Th i s  was i r regu la r  as  Eskom 

had not  ob ta ined the  necessary  Treasury  approva l  fo r  such 

a  cont rac t .   As  in  the  case o f  McK insey Tr i l l i an  maste r  10 

serv i ces  agreement ,  Eskom ef fec t i ve ly  m is represented to  

PWC tha t  i t  had obta ined the  necessary  Treasury  approva l .  

 KPMG’s  Eskom cont rac t  w i th  Nkonk i  was in  respect  

o f  a  task  o rder  ca l led  SM008.   I t  i s  descr ibed  in  the  

s ta tement  o f  Ahmed Hassen Ja f fa r  wh ich  was submi t ted  by  

KPMG to  the  Commiss ion  and wh ich  I  a t tached in  my  

repor t .  

 As  appears  f rom the  S ta te ,  Mr  Ja f fa r  the  process fo r  

task  order  SM008 was mani fes t l y  i r regu lar  and appears  to  

have been des igned to  ensure  tha t  a  40  percent  o f  the  20 

va lue  o f  the  cont rac t  wou ld  be  a l l oca ted  to  Nkonk i .   KPMG 

ended up submi t t ing  proposa ls  fo r  th is  task  order  four  

t imes as  the  requ i rements  kept  on  chang ing .  

 KPMG was appo in ted  on the  bas is  o f  i t s  four th  

submiss ion  wh ich  proposed sub-cont rac t ing  to  four  
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d i f fe ren t  subcont rac tors ,   Nkonk i  was one o f  those,  and 

even i f  tha t  fa i l s  to  qua l i f y  fo r  Eskom’s  pane l  b  and th ree  

o ther  cont rac tors  who were  –  who had qua l i f ied  fo r  

Eskom’s  pane l  b .  

 A f te r  be ing  appo in ted ,  KPMG were  then 

subsequent ly  to ld  tha t  they were  no  l onger  a l lowed to  

subcont rac t  to  the  th ree  qua l i f ied  f i rms on Eskom’s  

pane l  b .   Ins tead they wou ld  on ly  –  they cou ld  on l y  

subcont rac t  to  subcont rac tors  on  Eskom’s  pane l  c  o f  wh ich  

Nkonk i  was the  on ly  one.  10 

 Th is  e f fec t i ve l y  ensured tha t  the  fu l l  40  percen t  

va lue  o f  the  subcont rac tors  was subcont rac ted  by  KPMG to 

[ ind is t inc t ]  and then we can d iscuss the  to ta l  fees  a t  the 

tab le  fo l low ing.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Be fore  we get  to  the  to ta l  fees ,  

you drew a  para l le l  w i th  what  you desc r ibed  as  the 

McK insey Tr i l l i an  MSA cont rac t  a t  Eskom,  where  Eskom 

misrepresented in  tha t  case to  McK insey tha t  i t  had the  

necessary  t reasury  approva l  f o r  r i sk ,  a  r i sk  based 

remunera t ion  sys tem and in  th is  case to  PWC.   20 

 I  wou ld  jus t  l i ke  to  c la r i f y  o f  course  tha t  tha t  was a  

cont rac t  w i th  McK insey d i rec t l y,  no t  w i th  McK insey and  

Tr i l l i an .   Tr i l l i an  sor t  o f  worked a longs ide  McKinsey on tha t  

cont rac t ,  bu t  we have heard  ev idence tha t  there  was never  

any subcont rac t  be tween Tr i l l i an  and McKinsey even 
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though Tr i l l i an  d id  work  a longs ide  McKinsey on tha t  

cont rac t .   

 Get t ing  to  the  payments  wh ich  you address in  tab le  

49 ,  can you take  the  Cha i r  th rough the  payments  on  a l l  o f  

these cont rac ts  tha t  you have been desc r ib ing?  

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly.   The,  a t  tab le  49  we se t  ou t  the  

payments  done prompt ly  by  De  Lo i t ,  KPMG,  PWC and 

Eskom.   The f i rs t  i tem is ]  invo i ces pa id  by  PWC which  does  

not  inc lude VAT and be Nkonk i  invo i ces  be tween January  

and December  2017,  Nkonk i  was pa id  by  PWC an amount  10 

o f  R166,031,535-00.   

 The next  i tem is  Nkonk i  invo i ces tha t  were  pa id  by  

KPMG,  aga in  exc lud ing  VAT.   The  f i rs t  was on the  31s t  o f  

October  2017 fo r  the  va lue  R2 154 237-48.   On the  14 t h  o f  

December  2017 Nkonk i  was pa id  an  amount  o f  R1 896 303-

36.   

 On the  same date  there  was payment  in  the  amount  

o f  R771 155-20.   On the  9 t h  o f  February  2018 the re  was  

payment  in  the  amount  o f  R2 565 517-56.   On  6  March  

2018 there  was payment  in  the  amount  o f  R2 282 450-00.   20 

On the  20 t h  o f  Apr i l  2018 there  was payment  in  the  amount  

o f  R866 621-03.  

 On the  1 s t  o f  March  2019 there  was payment  in  the  

amount  o f  R1 537 459-99 wh ich  br ings the  sub to ta l  o f  

payments  to  KPMG,  by  KPMG to  Nkonk i  o f  R11 379 802-62.   
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We then move on  to  the  Nkonk i  invo i ces tha t  were  pa id  by  

De Lo i t  and aga in  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Sor ry  Mr  Ho lden.   These amounts  

s t re tch  ove r  one and a  ha l f  pages.   Maybe i f  I  can  j us t  ask  

you to  scro l l  and get  to  the  subto ta l  on  page 110.  

CHAIRPERSON:  Ja .   

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly.   The subto ta l  fo r  De  Lo i t  i f  

R42 401 008-38 and Nkonk i  was  pa id  d i rec t l y  by  Eskom 

and cer ta in  on  the  KPMG cont rac t  and was pa id  an  amount  

o f  R5 141 894-00.   That  i s  across  fou r  invo ices,  wh ich  10 

br ings us  to  a  to ta l  exc lud ing  VAT o f  R74 954 240-00.   The 

VAT amount  on  tha t  i s  R10 493 593-60 wh ich  br ings us  to  a  

to ta l  o f  R85 447 833-60.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then you dea l  in  aggregate  

w i th  the  amounts  pa id  by  Eskom to  De Lo i t ,  KPMG and  

PWC,  and can you jus t  g ive  the  Cha i r  the  to ta l  tha t  you  

reach in  paragraph 140?   

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly.   The to ta l  aggregate  f igure  pa id  

to  the  cont rac tors  was R367 263 450-87,  to  wh ich  I  then 

added the  add i t i ona l  amount  as  pa id  d i rec t l y  to  Nkonk i  o f  20 

R5 141 894-00 wh ich  then br ings  the  to ta l  cos t ,  the  to ta l  

amount  pa id  by  Eskom on these cont rac t s  r i ses  to  

R362 405 344-87  exc lus ive  o f  VAT or  R413 142  093-15 

inc lus ive  o f  VAT.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Then the  next  l ine  i tems on tha t  
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master  tab le  re la te  to  Tegeta  and Opt imum payments  by  

the  s ta te  to  Tegeta  and Opt imum.   There  has been a  wea l th  

o f  ev idence before  the  commiss ion  in  re la t ion  to  bo th .   

Maybe i f  you can jus t  take  the  Cha i r  to  the  tab le  o f  

payments  and jus t  f i rs t  in  re la t ion  to  Tegeta  is  page 113.   

 Tab le  51  and aga in  we are  dea l ing  w i th  a  g reat  

many payments .   So maybe i f  you can jus t  iden t i f y  the 

th ree  bank accounts ,  the  subto ta ls  by  bank account  and  

the  to ta l  ove ra l l .   

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in l y  Cha i r.   We have the  f i rs t  se t  o f  10 

payments  tha t  a re  made to  Tegeta ,  exp lora t ion  o f  

resources and aga in  I  apo log ise  fo r  the  shor ten ing  to  

Tegeta  Resources in  tab le  51 .   

 The f i rs t  payments  are  made in to  Tegeta  

Exp lo ra t ion ’s  FNB account  and the  subto ta l  o f  payments  

made in to  the  FNB account  was R1 547 947 599-09 .   I t  was  

then subsequent l y  pa id  by  a  s ta te  Bank o f  Ind ia  account  

and the  to ta l  va lue  o f  those payments ,  i t  i s  qu i te  [ ind is t inc t  

payments  fu r ther  on  the  second page over  was  

R725 221 794-80  and then f ina l l y  i t  was remunera ted  v ia  20 

ex  Bank o f  E roda account ,  end ing  042 and  i t  was  pa id  a  

to ta l  amount  o f  R142 354 587-06,  wh ich  br ings us  the  to ta l  

amount  pa id  by  Eskom to  Tegeta  Exp lo ra t i on  and 

Resources o f  R2 442 523 980-95.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Then in  tab le  52 ,  you dea l  w i th  



24 MAY 2021– DAY 401 
 

Page 108 of 266 
 

payments  by  Eskom to  Opt imum a f te r  14  Apr i l  2016 wh ich  

was the  day on  wh ich  Tegeta ’s  acqu is i t ion  o f  Opt imum 

became f ina l .   Aga in  i f  you  can,  there  are  no  subt i t les ,  bu t  

i f  you  can ident i f y  the  th ree  payments  and the  th ree  bank  

s ta tements  in to  wh ich  amounts  are  pa id ,  and the  to ta l .   

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly.   Cha i r,  there  were  payments  made  

between the  14 t h  o f  Apr i l  2016,  the  22n d  o f  Ju ly  2016 were  

made in to  the  S tandard  Bank account  364029.   On the  29 t h  

o f  Ju ly  2016 unt i l  the  27 t h  o f  March 2018,  i t  was pa id  in to  

ex  Bank o f  E roda accounts ,  end ing  523 and then  on the  10 

17 t h  o f  May 2018,  as  fa r  as  I  reca l l  th is  i s  a  re fe rence to  an  

a t to rney th rough wh ich  they rece ived the  payment  o f  funds.   

 That  i s  fo r  one payment  o f  R208 887 589.   The to ta l  

va lue  o f  payments  to  Opt imum subsequent  to  the  purchase 

by  the  Gupta  en terp r ise  was R1 682 026 066-26.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   You are  in  fac t  cor rec t  tha t  tha t  

las t  payment  i s  a  payment  to  an  a t to rney ’s  f i rm.   You 

address i t  in  paragraph 147.   Can you take  the  Cha i r  to  

tha t  paragraph?  

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly.   I  hes i ta ted  to  ment ion  the  name 20 

because I  was wor r ied  about  ge t t ing  i t  wrong.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I t  i s  paragraph 147 a t  page 116.   

MR HOLDEN:   Yes,  I  am sor ry,  I  am look ing  in  my ha rd  

copy.   I t  was pa id  th rough the  t rus t  accounts  o f  the  

a t to rneys Roer i ch  Wolmarans and Luder i ck ’s  Incorpora ted .   
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And do you know why i t  went  to  

an  a t to rney ’s  account  a t  tha t  s tage?   

MR HOLDEN:   As  fa r  as  I  unders tand there  were  no  

bank ing  fac i l i t i es  ava i lab le  to  Opt imum at  tha t  po in t .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes.   Can we then dea l  w i th  TNA 

Media  and there  are  vast  numbers  o f  payments  tha t  were  

made to  TNA Media .   Maybe the  best  way o f  hand l ing  them 

is  to  go  to  the  execut ive  summary a t  page 15,  pa rag raph  

19 where  the  amounts  by  organ o f  s ta te  are  se t  ou t  

together  w i th  c ross- re ferences to  the  re levant  source  10 

tab les  in  the  repor t .   

 So i f  you  can take  the  Cha i r  th rough tha t  tab le  a t  

parag raph 19 on page 15 o f  the  execut ive  summary? 

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly.   I  am jus t  load ing  i t  up  fo r  the  

pub l i c  to  see i t  as  we l l .   We have the  f i rs t  i tem is  an 

amount  o f ,  Eskom pa id  to  the  TNA an amount  o f  

R35 401 246-60.   Transnet  pa id  an  amount  o f  

R144 147 790.   Depar tment  o f  Water  and San i ta t ion  pa id  

an  amount  o f  R5 924 333-64.   The  o f f i ce  o f  the  premier  o f  

the  Free S ta te  pa id  an  amount  o f  R42 062 906-36 .   Free  20 

Sate  prov inc ia l  t reasury  pa id  an  amount  o f  R11 331 233-

30.   The o f f i ce  o f  the  premier  o f  Mpumalanga was  pa id  an  

amount  o f ,  sor ry  pa id  an  amount  o f  R6 581 301-20 and the  

o f f i ce  o f  the  premier  o f  the  Nor th  West  p rov ince pa id  TNA 

an amount  o f  R9 303 888-20.   
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Now the  i r regu la r i t y  o f  these 

payments  as  t raversed in  the  repor t  and some o f  i t  has  

been t rave rsed in  ev idence.   Maybe i f  we can take  an 

i l l us t ra t i ve  example ,  the  case o f  the  Free S ta te  t reasury  

wh ich  you dea l  w i th  on  page 130,  paragraph 158 on.  

MR HOLDEN:   I  appear  to  have  missed your  re fe rence  

there .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I t  i s  Bund le  9 ,  page 130.   

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly.   Cha i r,  I  was made aware  o f  

invest iga t ions tha t  the  commiss ion  under took in  re la t ion  to  10 

payments  made by  the  Free S ta te  prov inc ia l  t reasury  to  

TNA.   The invest i ga t ions revea led  tha t  TNA was pa id  la rge  

sums by the  Free S ta te  prov inc ia l  t reasury  w i thou t  any o f  

the  requ is i te  cont rac tua l  ag reements  by  one.   

 Upon request  the  Free S ta te  prov inc ia l  t reasury  

cou ld  on l y  p rov ide  a  s ing le  se rv ice  leve l  agreement  to  

wh ich  TNA wou ld  supp ly  the  prov inc ia l  t reasury  w i th  6000 

newspapers  fo r  an  amount  o f  R576 000-00 wh ich  is  less  

than 10% of  the  amount  tha t  i s  to ta l l y  t ransfe r red ,  the  to ta l  

tha t  i s  t ransfer red  to  TNA by the  Free S ta te  p rov inc ia l  20 

t reasury.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Yes,  okay.   You may cont inue.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Then in  tab le  57  you i temise  a l l  

o f  those payments .   Aga in  I  do  no t  need you to ,  need you  

to  go  th rough them a l l ,  bu t  maybe you can jus t  repeat  
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aga in  what  the  to ta l  amount  pa id  was in  the  contex t  o f  a  

case where  the  on ly  cont rac t  tha t  the  t reasury  cou ld  

produce was fo r  R576 000-00.   

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly.   The to ta l  amount  tha t  i s  pa id ,  i s  

R11 331 233-68.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then i f  you cou ld  dea l  w i th  

the  Mpumalanga o f f i ce  o f  the  prem ier  payments .  

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly.   Aga in  I  was in fo rmed o f  

invest iga t ions tha t  were  under taken by  the  commiss ion  in to  

these cont rac ts ,  and what  i t  d iscovered was tha t  the  o f f i ce  10 

o f  the  premier  conf i rmed to  the  commiss ion  tha t  no 

cont rac ts  a re  pu t  in  p lace  between the  Mpumalanga o f f i ce 

o f  the  premier  and TNA,  and ins tead a l l  p rocu rement  was  

under taken by  dev ia t ion .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And the  to ta l  amount  o f  these 

payments?  

MR HOLDEN:   Was R6 581 301-20 .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then we come to  dea l  w i th  

VR Lazer  and Dene l .   There  has been ex tens ive  ev idence  

before  the  commiss ion  in  re la t ion  to  the  re levant  cont rac ts .   20 

I  wou ld  mere ly  ask  you to  take  the  Cha i r  to  the  payments  

tha t  you have ident i f ied  in  tab le  61 ,  on  page 136.   Runn ing  

a l l  the  way th rough to  140 and aga in  I  wou ld  ask  you not  to  

read them a l l  in to  the  reco rd ,  because tha t  wou ld  probab ly  

take  ha l f  an  hour.   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Bu t  maybe jus t  to  ment ion  the  

da tes  tha t  a re  spanned and the  aggregate  amoun ts  and 

poss ib ly  I  do  no t  even th ink  we need to  ment ion  the  bank 

accounts .   They speak fo r  themse lves,  bu t  the  per iod  o f  

these payments  and the  aggregate  amount  wou ld  be  usefu l .   

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly  Cha i r.   The f i rs t  payment  was  

made on the  7 t h  o f  October  2014 and the  f ina l  payment ,  

mu l t ip le  pages down,  was made on the  12 t h  o f  December  

2017 and the  to ta l  amount  pa id  was R242 425 736070.   I f  I  10 

may I  w i l l  repeat  tha t ,  because I  d id  s tumble  there .   

 I t  i s  R242 425 736-70.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   The next  l ine  i tem re la tes  to  

G loba l  Sof t  Tech  So lu t ions jus t  be low where  you  are  in  

your  repor t .   So i f  you  can go to  page 142 o f  the  repor t  and  

f i rs t  exp la in  who  Globa l  Sof t  Tech So lu t ions were  wh ich  

you do in  paragraph 171 o f  your  repor t .   

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly.   G loba l  Sof t  Tech So lu t ions are  

an  IT company and in  2014 Sahara  Systems purchased a  

50% share  in  GSS.   In  May 2016 i t  so ld  i t s  sha res,  i t s  50% 20 

share  i n  GSS to  a  company by  the  name o f  Fu tu re  Tech 

and Future  Tech i s  a  company tha t  was opera ted  by  and fo r  

the  benef i t  o f  the  Gupta  Ente rpr i se .  

 We wi l l  d iscuss Future  Tech in  cons ide rab ly  more  

de ta i l  when we d iscuss the  f low  o f  funds in  re la t ion  to  
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Tr i l l i an .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then i f  you can jus t  comment  

on  the  once o f  fee  pa id  to  G loba l  Sof t  Tech So lu t ions in  

Apr i l  2017.   

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly.   On the  11 t h  o f  Apr i l  2017 GSS 

was pa id  a  once  o f f  payment  o f  R16 199 400-00.   That  i s  

R16 199 400-00.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Then i f  we can go down to  

Cut t ing  Edge,  and wh ich  you dea l  w i th  jus t  be low Globa l  

Sof t  Tech So lu t ions f rom paragraph 176 and i f  you can f i rs t  10 

exp la in  the  re la t ionsh ip  be tween  Cut t ing  Edge and the  

Gupta  en terpr i se .   

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly.   In  2014 Sahara  Ho ld ings 

purchased 51% o f  the  shareho ld ing  in  Cut t ing  Edge wh ich  

was then,  I  sa id  prev ious l y  known as Leonardo Bus iness  

Consu l t ing ,  bu t  as  fa r  as  I  reca l l  i t  i s  ac tua l l y  subsequent ly  

known as Leonardo Bus iness Consu l tan ts .   

 Cut t ing  Edge became an e f fec t i ve  subs id ia ry  o f  the  

Sahara  Group on tha t  da te .   In  ev idence o f  tha t  we have an  

emai l  f rom the  Gupta  Enterpr ises  a t to rney P ie ter  van der  20 

Merwe to  Sanchez Tobey wh ich  records  the  sa le  and there  

are  o ther  emai ls  wh ich  are  a t tached to  the  repor t  wh ich  

ind ica te  tha t  the  sa le  was conc luded.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then i f  you can cont inue in  

parag raph 176 in  re la t ion  to  the  cont rac t  tha t  Cut t ing  Edge 
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acqu i red  w i th  Transnet  shor t l y  a f te r  i t  became a  Sahara  

subs id ia ry.   

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly.   On the  17 t h  o f  October  2014  

Transnet  i ssued a  le t te r  o f  in ten t  to  conc lude a  two year  

cont rac t  w i th  Cut t ing  Edge to  prov ide  Transnet  w i th  a  

so lu t ion  fo r  sys tems,  fo r  a  sys tems ana ly t i ca l  too l  and 

capab i l i t y  to  repor t  on  key procurement  met r i c .  

 The cont rac t  was awarded to  Cut t ing  Edge on a  

conf inement  bas i s  w i thout  any compet i t i ve  b idd ing .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then you desc r ibe  the  10 

payments  made on th is  cont rac t  tha t  have been awarded  

w i thout  any compet i t i ve  b idd ing .   Can you te l l  the  Cha i r  

what  per iod  those payments  spanned and what  the  to ta l  

amount  was w i th  re ference to  tab le  63?  

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly.   I t  was pa id ,  the  f i rs t  payment  

was made on the  22 n d  o f  September  2014 and I  shou ld  

ment ion  tha t  tha t  seems to  be  before  the  issue o f  a  le t te r  

o f  in ten t  tha t  i s  i ssued by  Transnet  to  Cut t ing  Edge.   In  any  

event ,  on  the  22 n d  o f  September  2014 the  f i rs t  payment  i s  

made.   20 

 The f ina l  payment  i s  made on the  1s t  o f  March  2017  

and the  to ta l  amount  pa id  to  Cut t ing  Edge under  th is  

cont rac t  was R41  294 949-60.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then in  parag raph 178 you 

dea l  w i th  the  Cut t ing  Edge cont rac t  wh ich  may in  fac t  ho ld  
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the  record  fo r  the  qu ickest  cont rac t  f rom unso l i c i ted  

proposa l  to  mul t i  m i l l i on  rand payment .   Can you te l l  the 

Cha i r  about  th is  cont rac t?  

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly.   On the  29 t h  o f  Apr i l  2016 ,  Cut t ing 

Edge so l i c i ted  an  unso l i c i ted  proposa l  to  Eskom to  prov ide  

da ta  management  and c lean ing  serv ices .   That  p roposa l  i s  

a t tached.   On the  9 t h  o f  May 2016 Eskom conc luded the  

cont rac t  w i th  Cut t ing  Edge in  tha t  regard .   

 The VAT inc lus i ve  va lue  o f  tha t  cont rac t  was  

R71 166 780-00.   So rough ly  in  the  course  o f  11  days we  10 

went  f rom unso l i c i ted  proposa l  to  s ign ing  the  cont rac t  and  

o f  course  there  was no compet i t i ve  b idd ing  process in  

re la t ion  to  the  cont rac t  as  one wou ld  imag ine .   

 F ina l l y  tha t  fu l l  amount  o f  the  cont rac t  i s  pa id  to  

Cut t ing  Edge on the  16 t h  o f  May 2016 and as  my ev idence 

leader  jus t  acknowledged,  we there fo re  have a  s i tua t ion  

where  an  unso l i c i ted  proposa l  p roduced a  payment  o f  71  

m i l l ion  rand in  a  mere  17  days.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Th i s  must  rea l l y  have been a  reco rd ,  and  

o f  those 17 days I  am su re  some were ,  some were  20 

weekends.   So i f  you  look a t  work ing  days,  then i t  i s  even  

probab ly  much more  than,  we l l  i t  is  less  than 17.   I t  m igh t  

no t  be  much.  

 Maybe i t  i s  40  days,  30  days.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Do not  fo rge t  May day.   That  i s  a  
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pub l i c  ho l iday.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  r igh t .   So they had done work  

w i th in  tha t  per iod  o f  two weeks tha t  was wor th  71  mi l l ion  

rand,  and i t  i s  . . .  i t  was a  prov i s ion  o f  da ta  management  

main ta in ing  serv i ces  to  Eskom.   Okay,  a l r igh t .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I t  was a  speed c lean ing  serv ice  

Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Now,  and Mr  Ho lden can you 

br ie f l y  ta lk  about  the  las t  payment  o r  se t  o f  payments  to  10 

Cut t ing  Edge tha t  you address in  paragraph 179? 

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly.   What  we see is  over  and above 

th is  payment ,  Eskom then pa id  a  fu r the r  amount  o f  

R24 432 133-44.   That  i s  R24 432 133-44 dur ing  the  course  

o f  2017.   Those  payments  were  a l l  made on an  ad hoc 

bas is ,  and tha t  was made on the  bas is  o f  Cut t ing  Edge ’s  

pos i t ion  on  the  Eskom IT pane l  o f  serv i ce  prov ide rs .   

 In  th is  regard ,  those par t i cu la r  cont rac ts  were  no t  

invest iga ted  in  any great  depth ,  bu t  i t  does bear  po in t ing  

ou t  tha t  by  October  2017 Eskom was so  over  spend ing  on 20 

i t s  IT pane l  o f  serv i ce  prov iders ,  i t  requ i red  a  f i ve  year  

budget  fo r  th is  pane l  to  be  increased by  more  than 230% 

f rom 740 mi l l ion  to  2 .5  b i l l i on  and  tha t  was subsequent  to  

Cut t ing  Edge be ing  appo in ted  as  pane l .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   You then in  pa ragraph,  sor ry  
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tab le  64  and paragraph . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry  Mr  Chaska lson.   Jus t  remind 

me aga in ,  the  connect ion  be tween Cut t ing  Edge  and the  

Guptas?  Mr  Ho lden may . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Mr  Ho lden,  can you take  the 

Cha i r  back to  pa rag raph 176 fo r  the  connect ion  be tween 

the  Guptas  and Cut t ing  Edge? 

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly.   A t  parag raph 176 I  no te  tha t  

Sahara  Ho ld ings  bought  a  51% share  i n  Cut t ing  Edge  in  

m id-2014.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  yes .   

MR HOLDEN:   And the  sa le  i s  recorded in  the  emai l  o f  the  

17 t h  o f  Ju ly  2014.   A l l  o f  the  cont rac ts  to  wh ich  I  speak now 

were  awarded to  Cut t ing  Edge subsequent  to  tha t  

purchase.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then in  tab le  64  you have an  

aggregate  l i s t  o f  payments  f rom Eskom to  Cut t ing  Edge.   

Can you jus t  b r i e f l y  aga in  jus t  ta lk  about  the  pe r iod  and 

the  to ta l?  20 

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly.   So in  re la t ion  to  the  unso l i c i ted  

b id  on  the  16 t h  o f  May 2016,  Cu t t ing  Edge was pa id  an  

amount  o f  R71 166 780-00 and  then fo r  the  ad  hoc 

appo in tment  the  payments  beg in  on  the  31s t  o f  January  

2017 and  run  unt i l  the  28 t h  o f  November  2017,  and the  to ta l  
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fo r  the  ad  hoc payments  was R24 432 133-44.  

 When added to  the  unso l i c i ted  b id  we get  a  to ta l  

f igure  o f  R95 598  913-44.   

CHAIRPERSON:   And o f  course  a l l  these payments  tha t  

were  happen ing  i n  2017 and these ones on th is  t ab le  64 ,  

except  fo r  one,  i t  looks  l i ke  a l l  o f  them were  in  2017 f rom 

January  up  to  November.   They were  happen ing  long a f te r  

the  re lease o f  the  pub l i c  p ro tec tor ’s  repor t ,  da te  o f  capture  

wh ich  was in  October  o r  ear l y  November  2016,  wh ich  bu t  i t  

i s  l i ke  these t ransact ions were  cont inu ing  as  i f  there  was 10 

noth ing .    

 Yes,  okay.   Le t  us  cont inue.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Las t ly  be fore  we move o f f  Cut t ing  

Edge,  you have  a  tab le  65  wh ich  aggregates  bo th  the 

Transnet  and Eskom payments .   Can you jus t  record  the  

to ta l  aggregate  f igure  f rom Transnet  and Eskom to  Cut t ing  

Edge?   

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly.   The Transnet  amount  aga in  i s  

R41 294 949-60.   The Eskom amount  i f  R95 598 913-44 

and tha t  b r ings us  to  a  to ta l  o f  R136 893 863-04.   20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Then Mr  Ho lden,  the  next  la rge  

amounts  tha t  a re  on  your  aggrega te  tab le  tha t  we s tar ted  

o f f  w i th ,  a re  payments  in  respect  o f  cont rac ts  in  respect  o f  

the  Crane cont rac ts .   Now we spent  a t  leas t  a  fu l l  day ’s  

ev idence poss ib l y  too ,  on  these cont rac ts  when you 
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tes t i f ied  in  December.   

 I  do  no t  want  to  d iscuss the  de ta i l ,  bu t  maybe jus t  

ment ion  the  aggregate  f igures  tha t  you used on the ,  tha t  

you re fe r red  to  on  tab le  72  a t  pages 152 to  153 .   I  jus t  

want  to  check.   Before  you share  your  sc reen on th is ,  can  

you jus t  check tha t  you have a  redacted page 152? 

 Because the ,  e i ther  company A or  company B ’s  

name appears  on  the  or ig ina l  page 152 in  a  d i f fe ren t  

contex t .   

MR HOLDEN:   Le t  me have a  look qu ick ly.   Yes,  i t  i s  10 

reduct ive .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Okay.   Okay,  fo r  fu tu re  re ference 

probab ly  do  no t  share  your  screen wh i le  you are  check ing .    

MR HOLDEN:   [ ind is t inc t ]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes,  anyway.   There  is  no  harm 

done.   So can you jus t  ment ion  the  aggregate  f igures  

because these are  ex t raord ina ry  f igures  o f  what  the  s ta te  

pa id  on  these cont rac ts  and these  are  the  f igures  you have  

taken as  I  unders tand i t  f rom the  ev idence o f  Ms  Welsh  

be fore  th is  commiss ion .  20 

MR HOLDEN:   And I  was [ ind is t inc t ]  the  fu l l  se t  o f  

payments  were  no t  d isc losed in  the  in i t ia l  repor t ,  because  

there  are  j us t  so  many o f  them,  bu t  the  aggregate  f igures  

in  re la t ion  to  the  95  20E e lec t r i c  locomot ives ,  a l l  in  cos t  

the  amount  exc lud ing  VAT was R3 015 372 544-19,  to ta l  
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amount  inc lud ing  VAT was R3 432 869 565-21.  

 That  was pa id  to  CSR.   In  re la t ion  to  the  232 45D 

d iese l  locomot ives ,  the  cost  inc lud ing  the  cost  o f  the 

re loca t ion  o f  redact ion  fac i l i t i es  to  Durban,  [ ind is t inc t  -  

d is to r ted ]  Nor th  Ra i l  was pa id  an  amount  exc lud ing  VAT o f  

R2 447 076 643-61.    

 Wi th  VAT i t  becomes a  to ta l  amount  o f  

R2 823 869 773-71.   In  re la t ion  to  the  100 21E e lec t r i c  

locomot ives ,  the  a l l  in  cos t  exc lud ing  VAT was 

R4 526 147 303-20.   The to ta l  amount  there fore  i s  f i ve ,  10 

inc lud ing  VAT apo log ies  i s  R5 158  831 654-92.    

 In  re la t ion  to  the  359 22E e lec t r i c  locomot ives  a l l  in  

cos t ,  CSR was pa id  an  amount  o f  R13 092 575  534-47.   

Wi th  VAT inc luded i t  i s  an  amount  o f  R14 910 761 921-66.   

In  re la t ion  to  a l l  o f  the  locomot ive  cont racts  we have an  

amount  exc lud ing  VAT o f  R23 081 172 025-47.   Inc lud ing  

VAT is  an  amount  o f  R26 327 322 915-50.  

 In  re la t ion  to  the  Leber  c rane con t rac tor  addressed  

in  my prev ious ev idence,  a  VAT exc lus ive  amount  was pa id  

o f  R737 806 002-30.   The VAT inc luded i t  i s  R841 098 842-20 

64.   In  re la t ion  to  the  ZPMC crane cont rac tor  aga in  

addressed in  p rev ious ev idence,  the  VAT exc lus i ve  amount  

i s  R770 005 468-00 and the  VAT inc lus ive  amount  i s  

R877 806 234-00  wh ich  br ings us  to  a  sub to ta l  o f  a l l  the 

crane cont rac ts  invo lv ing  Leber  and ZPMC of  
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R1 507 811 470-00 wh ich  br ings us  to  a  VAT inc lus ive  

amount  and the  VAT inc lus i ve  amount  fo r  those two is  

R1 718 905 076-16.  

 When a l l  o f  those cont rac ts  a re  added togethe r,  we 

get  an  amount  exc lus ive  o f  VAT o f  R24 588 983 495-79 and  

a  VAT inc lus i ve  amount  o f  R28 046 227 991-66.   That  i s  

R28 046 227 991-66.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Now before  we leave th is  sec t ion  

on  cont rac ts  ta in ted  by  s ta te  capture ,  you have ind ica ted  

a t  var ious po in ts  in  the  repor t  tha t  you have on ly  added up  10 

amounts  tha t  where  there  is  ev idence o f  i r regu lar i t y  in  the 

award  o f  the  cont rac t ,  and the  con t rac t  i s  ta in ted  by  Gupta  

l inked s ta te  captu re .   

 You have d i scussed in  your  ev idence thus fa r  o ther  

amounts  tha t  a re  unre la ted  to  the  Guptas .   I  want  to  take  

you to  the  examp le  o f  Sahara  Compute rs ,  wh ich  is  re la ted  

to  the  Guptas ,  bu t  wh ich  you have exc luded,  because you  

have not  go t  c lear  ev idence o f  i r regu lar i t y,  desp i te  a  

poss ib le  susp ic ion .  

 So can I  ask  you  to  take  the  Cha i r  to  page 146 o f  20 

your  repor t  and paragraph 181 where  you exp la in  why you 

do not  inc lude Sahara  Compute rs  payments  in  your  to ta l  

account  he re .    

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly.   Cha i r,  the  commiss ion  in  i t s  

invest iga t ion  to  the  Tr i l l i an  re la ted  ident i f ied  payment  
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agg regat ing  to  j us t  over  102 mi l l ion  rand tha t  was  pa id  to  

the  Sahara  Group by  the  s ta te .   There  was an ex tens i ve  

a t tempt  to  es tab l i sh  the  cont rac ts  on  the  bas is  upon wh ich  

those procurements  were  made and whether  they were  fa i r  

and equ i tab le .  

 I t  appears  tha t  a  number  o f  o rgans o f  s ta te  were  

unab le  to  p roduce any ev idence.   However,  many o f  these  

payments  were  made a  very  long t ime ago and i t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  

to  know based on what  has been  d isc losed whether  the  

lack  o f  cont rac tors  due to  the  pass ing  o f  t ime and fo r  10 

record  keep ing ,  o r  whethe r  spec i f i ca l ly  because the re  were  

no  cont rac t .   

 I t  was a lso  I  th ink  w i th in  the  t ime a  lo t  and very  

d i f f i cu l t  to  es tab l i sh  on  a  payment  by  payment  o r  cont rac t  

by  cont rac t  bas i s ,  in  the  absence o f  huge amounts  o f  

mater ia l ,  wr i t ten  mater ia l  jus t i f y ing  the  payments .   Which  

ones cou ld  and cou ld  no t  be  cons idered i r regu la r.   

 On wh ich  bas is  I  thought  i t  was p robab ly  the  most  

p rudent  op t ion  was to  enumera te  the  payments  to  the 

Sahara  Group to  g ive  an  ind ica t ion  o f  the  sca le  o f  i t s  20 

cont rac t ing  w i th  the  s ta te ,  bu t  they are  no t  inc luded in  the 

to ta l  ta l l y  o f  the  cost  o f  s ta te  captu re .  

 In  an  abundance  o f  caut ion ,  i t  may be tha t  fu r the r  

searches th rough  the  s ta te  records  wou ld  ident i f y  cont rac ts  

o r  indeed Sahara  m ight  be  ab le  to  p roduce cont rac ts  tha t  
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speak to  those payment  amounts .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Then the  las t  i ssue tha t  I  want  to  

t raverse  on th is  t op ic  o f  aggregate  payments  f rom the  s ta te  

pa in ted  by  s ta te  capture ,  i s  a  b reakdown o f  these 

payments  by  organ o f  s ta te ,  because i t  i s  ex t remely  

revea l ing .  

 Can I  ask  you to  go  to  page 155 o f  your  repor t ,  

where  you have done tha t  exe rc i se .   Unfor tunate l y  you d id  

no t  number  the  tab le  where  you d id  i t ,  bu t  i t  appears  under  

parag raph 196 on page 155 and i f  you can take  the  Cha i r  10 

th rough tha t  p rocess wh ich  exp la ins  to  us  where  the  rea l  

harm was su f fe red  in  s ta te  capture  in  f inanc ia l  te rms.  

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in l y  Cha i r.   So as  the  ev idence leader  

ind ica ted ,  i t  became an in te res t ing  exerc ise  once  we had  

es tab l i shed the  to ta l  amounts  pa id ,  where  the  pr imary  

s igh ts  o f  s ta te  capture  were  in  te rms o f  the  expend i tu re .   

The top  th ree  s igh ts  o f  s ta te  capture  we ident i f ied  were  

Transnet  inc lud ing  the  second def i ned benef i t  fund,  Eskom 

and then the  Free S ta te  loca l  government  inc lud ing  the  

o f f i ce  o f  the  premier,  the  aggregate  f igures  fo r  Transnet  20 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Sor ry  Mr  Ho lden,  i f  I  can  jus t  

cor rec t  you the re .   We are  ta lk ing  about  the  Free S ta te 

prov inc ia l  government ,  no t  the  Free S ta te  loca l  

government .   Occas iona l l y  in  the  repor t  and l i kewise  lower  
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down i t  i s  the  Nor th  West  p rov inc ia l  government ,  no t  loca l  

government .   

MR HOLDEN:   Yes.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   There  is  an  er ror  tha t  was not  

p icked up there ,  bu t  p lease cont inue and I  wou ld  ask  you 

to  read these f igures  in to  the  record  because they make fo r  

ex t raord ina ry  read ing .   

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly.   So in  re la t ion  to  Transnet  

inc lud ing  the  second def ined bene f i t  fund,  i t  i s  an  amount  

o f  R40 084 201 927-00 wh ich  ind ica tes  tha t  Transnet  was  10 

respons ib le  fo r  81 .59% of  payments  made by  the  s ta te  in  

cont rac ts  re la ted  to  s ta te  capture ,  re la ted  to  the  Gupta  

en terpr i se .   

 Second [ ind is t inc t  -  d is to r ted ]  Eskom which  pa id  an  

amount  o f  R6 969 886 305-20 wh ich  equa ls  a  percentage  

amount  o f  14 .19% of  a l l  payments  made by  the  s ta te  on  

cont rac ts  pa ined by  the  invo lvement  o f  the  Gupta  

en terpr i se .    

 The Free S ta te  prov inc ia l  government  pa id  an  

amount  o f  R441 042 621-08 and somewhat  d is tu rb ing ly  tha t  20 

very  la rge  f igure  on ly  amounts  to  0 .9% of  the  to ta l  amount  

pa id  by  the  s ta te  in  cont rac ts  a f f l i c ted  w i th  s ta te  capture  

invo l v ing  the  Gup ta  en terp r ise .   

 Subsequent  to  tha t  i s  Dene l  wh ich  pays an  amount  

o f  R248 423 159-00 wh ich  i s  0 .51%.   The IDC,  indust r ia l  
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deve lopment  corpora t ion  pa id  an  amount  o f  R250 000 000,  

so  250 mi l l ion  rand wh ich  is  equa l  to  0 .51%.   The SABC i t  

i s  an  amount  o f  R62 733 557-24.   So 0 .13%.   

 The Nor th  West  p rov inc ia l  government  inc lud ing  the  

o f f i ce  o f  the  premier  i s  R39 308 888-02 wh ich  br ings us  to  

a  percentage f igure  o f  0 .08%.   South  A f r i can A i rways and 

South  A f r i ca  MSA express wh ich  I  pu t  together  here ,  i t  was  

an amount  o f  R26  402 833-20.  

 Which  is  equa l  to  0 .05%.   The o f f i ce  o f  the  premier  

o f  Mpumalanga is  an  amount  o f  R6 581 301-20 tha t  i s  10 

0 .01% and fo r  Sasco l  i t  i s  an  amount  o f  R5 711  400-00 

wh ich  i s  0 .01% and i f  I  may  jus t  reemphas ise  aga in  to  the  

Cha i r  and to  the  pub l i c  tha t  these  are  the  on ly  amounts  in  

re la t ion  to  s ta te  capture  invo lved in  the  Gupta  en te rpr ise .   

 I t  does not  ta l l y  the  amounts  tha t  may have been in  

fac t ,  i t  was the  s ta te  captu re  no t  invo lv ing  the  Gupta  

en terpr i se .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Can I  ask  you th is  quest ion  Mr  Ho lden.   

Would  i t  be  cor rec t  to  say most  o f  these payments  tha t  one  

is  ta lk ing  about ,  par t i cu la r l y  w i th  spec ia l  re fe rence to  20 

Eskom and Transnet ,  tha t  may be the  o ther  en t i t ies  tha t  

you have jus t  dea l t  w i th  in  th is  tab le ,  tha t  most  o f  them 

wou ld  have happened a f te r  2013.   

 I s  tha t  your  sense or  you are  no t  ab le  to  say?  

MR HOLDEN:   [ ind is t inc t ]  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Sor ry?  

MR HOLDEN:   Apo log ies  Cha i r,  there  was a  b i t  o f  a  lag  

there ,  so  I  m ight  have cu t  you o f f  by  m is take,  bu t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  okay.   I  am ask ing  whether  i t  i s  your  

sense tha t  most  o f  these payments  and I  am ta lk ing  about  

the  ones tha t  you  have jus t  dea l t  w i th  now,  to  by  Transnet  

and Eskom and the  o ther  en t i t ies  tha t  you have jus t  dea l t  

w i th ,  tha t  most  o f  these payments  wou ld  have happened  

a f te r  2013 or  i s  tha t  someth ing  you are  no t  ab le  to  10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR HOLDEN:   That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  i s  cor rec t?   Okay,  a l r igh t .   I  know you  

have got  the  da tes  o f  payment  in  the  repor t ,  bu t  my sense 

is  tha t  genera l l y  speak ing  i t  does look l i ke  most  o f  the  

payments  happened a f te r  2013.   Ja ,  okay a l r igh t .   

MR HOLDEN:   Cha i r,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .   I  th ink  what  i s  

par t i cu la r l y  in te res t ing  in  tha t  regard ,  obv ious l y  there  are  

cer ta in  payments  in  re la t ion  to  the  capture  o f  p rov inc ia l  

government  tha t  happens before  2013 in  the  Free S ta te .   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes .   

MR HOLDEN:   Bu t  there  is  de f in i te ly  a  sense o f  momentum 

tha t  deve lops over  the  years ,  tha t  as  the  years  go  by,  the  

more  money is  spent .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   
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MR HOLDEN:   And as  we se t  ou t  in  the ,  in  fu r ther  

ev idence,  par t  o f  the  exp lanat ion  o f  tha t  i s  tha t  the  Gupta  

en terpr i se  i s  very  e f f i c ien t  a t  [ ind is t inc t  –  00 :16 :09]  these  

cr im ina l  funds and then us ing  them to  re - invest  in to  new 

assets  wh ich  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR HOLDEN:   Which  i s  then used to  p rocure  add i t iona l  

funds f rom the  s ta te  and i t  becomes sor t  o f  a  snowbal l  

e f fec t  i f  you  w i l l ,  o f  c r im ina l  funds be ing  recyc led  and  

purchas ing  assets ,  bu t  tha t  leads to  fu r ther  s ta te  capture .   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.   Thank  you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   What  I  wou ld  l i ke  us  to  move to  

now is  a  d i f fe ren t  ca tegory  o f  numbers .   We have been 

look ing  thus fa r  a t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Can we take a  shor t  ad journment?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Cer ta in ly  Cha i r.   I t  i s  a  ve ry  

conven ien t  t ime to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  we were  go ing  to  take  one  a t  four  

bu t  le t  us  take  i t  now and then we  sk ip  fou r  o ’c lock .   I f  we 

s t i l l  need to  cont inue,  we w i l l  con t inue beyond fou r.    20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   We ad jou rn .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  le t  us  con t inue.   A re  you there  Mr  
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Ho lden?  

MR HOLDEN:   Yes,  I  am here  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Thank you.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So  Mr  Ho lden,  we are  now go ing  

to  move f rom look ing  a t  the  to ta l  payments  made  by  the  

s ta te  on  amounts  tha t  were ,  on  cont rac ts  tha t  were  ta in ted  

by  s ta te  captu re  to  the  share  o f  tha t  amount  o f  49  b i l l i on  

tha t  went  d i rec t l y  to  the  Gupta  en terp r ise .   

 Can I  ask  you  jus t  to  exp la in  the  d is t inc t ion  

be tween these two se ts  o f  numbers  tha t  we,  the  se t  o f  10 

numbers  tha t  we  have been look ing  a t  up  to  th is  po in t  in  

the  se t  o f  numbers  tha t  we a re  now go ing  to  look  a t .    

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in l y  Cha i r.   So the  numbers  we have 

been look ing  a t  up  to  da te  are  the  amounts  tha t  a re  pa id  by  

the  s ta te  in  re la t i on  to  a l l  o f  those  cont rac to rs  a f fec ted  by  

s ta te  capture .   So tha t  i s  the  amount  tha t  i s  pa id  to  

cont rac tors  in  re la t ion  to  those cont rac ts .   

 The second f igu re  we w i l l  dea l  w i th  now is  the  

amount  o f  money tha t  i s  pa id  d i rec t l y  to  the  Gupta  

en terpr i se ,  le t  me rephrase tha t .   I t  i s  the  to ta l  amount  o f  20 

money the  Gupta  en terpr i se  earned o f f  s ta te  capture .   Now 

I  th ink  the  best  way to  unders tand the  d i f fe rence between 

these two f igures  is  to  ra ther  say  tha t  when we wr i te  about  

th is  o r  ta lk  about  th is ,  tha t  o f  the  49  b i l l i on  rand tha t  was 

pa id  ou t  in  s ta te  captu re  cont rac ts ,  the  Gupta  en terp r ise  
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earned jus t  under  16  b i l l i on  rand o f  tha t  money and there  

are  th ree  ca tegor ies  o f  payments  tha t  we ident i f y  in  

re la t ion  to  th is .   

 The f i rs t  i s  payment  tha t  were  made d i rec t l y  to  the  

Gupta  en terp r ise .   The Gupta  en terp r ise  compan ies  as  

cont rac tors  be ing  in  bus iness fo r  the  s ta te  or  a l te rna t ive ly  

where  those Gupta  en te rpr i se  compan ies  ac ted  as  

subcont rac to rs  to  th i rd  pa r ty  en t i t ies  do ing  bus iness w i th  

the  s ta te .   

 Then we a l so  look a t  payments  made by  cont rac tors  10 

to  the  s ta te  to  what  I  ca l l  f i rs t  leve l  money launder ing  

en t i t y  opera t ing  w i th in  South  A f r i ca ,  an  example  o f  wh ich  

we w i l l  see  now wou ld  be  Reg iments  fo r  example .    

 What  I  mean here  is  payment  wou ld  have been by  

the  s ta te  to  Reg iments  and f rom Reg iments  a  cer ta in  

amount  we wou ld  pay to  the  f i rs t  leve l  [ ind is t inc t  – 

d is to r ted ]  en terpr ises  and then f ina l l y  i t  i s  the  k ickbacks,  

the  enumerated  k ickbacks pa id  d i rec t l y  to  the  Gupta  

en terpr i se  compan ies  ou ts ide  o f  South  A f r i ca .   

 That  i s  in  re la t ion  to  the  Transnet  cont rac t s ,  the  20 

locomot ive  procurements  and the  t ra in  cont rac t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So  le t  us  then s ta r t  w i th  the  f i rs t  

o f  your  ca tegor ies ,  wh ich  i s  payments  tha t  a re  made by  the  

s ta te  d i rec t l y  to  the  Gupta  en terpr i se  or  payments  tha t  a re  

made by  s ta te  cont rac tors  d i rec t l y  to  Gupta  en terpr i se  
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compan ies .   

 Can I  ask  you to  pu t  on to  the  screen your  tab le  134  

on page 226?  Where  you l i s t  those payments  and maybe i f  

you can take  the  Cha i r  th rough those payments .   

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly.   So the  f i rs t  ca tegory  o f  payments  

i s  d i rec t  payments  made to  Gupta  en terpr i se  compan ies  by  

the  s ta te .   The f i rs t  en t ry  i s  the  Free S ta te  Depar tment  o f  

Agr icu l tu re  and Rura l  Deve lopment  to  pay New Lane an  

amount  o f  R24 984 240-00.  

 The second ent ry  i s  the  Free S ta te  Depar tment  o f  10 

Agr icu l tu re  and Rura l  Deve lopment  wh ich  pa id  Est ina  an  

amount  o f  R280 202 652.   The F ree S ta te  Depar tment  o f  

Educat ion  pa id  Sunbay Trad ing  an amount  o f  28 .5  m i l l i on 

rand.    

 The Free S ta te  o f f i ce  o f  the  premier  pa id  Sunbay  

Trad ing  an amount  o f  R4 578 810-00.   Transnet  pa id  to  

Cut t ing  Edge an amount  o f  R45 904 113-24.   Eskom pa id  

Cut t ing  Edge an amount  o f  R107,  I  th ink  tha t  f igure  m ight  

ac tua l l y  be  a  m is- t ransposed f igure ,  now tha t  I  look  a t  i t .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I t  i s .   The co r rec t  f igure  w i l l  be ,  i t  20 

is  about  12  m i l l ion  less  I  reca l l .   

MR HOLDEN:   Yes.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes,  we w i l l  ge t  the  cor rec t  f igure  

and inser t  i t  there .   Apo log ies  fo r  no t  p ick ing  tha t  one up 

but  le t  us  look a t  the  Eskom SAP payments .   
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MR HOLDEN:   The payments  to  SAP by Eskom were  a  to ta l  

o f  R564 733 122-57.   The amount  pa id  by  Transnet  to  SAP 

was R225 883 124-88.   An amoun t  tha t  Transnet  pa id  to  

Zesta lo re  i s  an  amount  o f  R13 407  883-18.   An amount  tha t  

Transnet  pa id  to  Zesta lo re  v ia  Innovent  Asset  Management ,  

an  amount  o f  R222 839 809-93.  

 The amount  pa id  by  Eskom to  Tege ta  Exp i ra t ion  and  

Resources was an amount  o f  R2 442 523 980-95 .   The 

amount  pa id  by  Eskom to  Opt imum Coa l  was an amount  o f  

R1 682 206 066-26.   The amount  pa id  by  the  IBC to  Oak  10 

Bay Investment ,  Oak Bay Resources in  ac tua l  investments  

was 250 mi l l ion  rand.   

 The amount  pa id  by  Eskom to  TNA Media  was 

R35 401 246-60.   The amount  pa id  by  Transnet  to  TNA 

Media  was R144  147 790-00.   The amount  pa id  by  the  

o f f i ce  o f  the  premier  o f  the  Free  S ta te to  TNA Media  was  

R42 062 906-36.   

 The amount  f rom the  Free S ta te  t reasury  o f f i ce  o f  

the  t reasury  to  TNA Media  was an  amount  o f  R11 331 233-

68.   The amoun t  pa id  to  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  premier  o f  20 

Mpumalanga by,  to  TNA Media  was R6 581 301-20.   The 

amount  pa id  by  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  premie r  o f  the  Nor th  West  

p rov ince to  TNA Media  was R9 308 999-02 and then on the  

fo l low ing page we ca r ry  on .   

 The amount  pa id  by  Dene l  to  DR Laser  was 
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R242 425 736-70.   The amount  pa id  by  Transnet  to  G loba l  

Sof t  Tech So lu t ions or  GSS is  R1 6199 400-00,  wh ich  g i ves  

us  a  subto ta l  o f  d i rec t  payments  to  the  Gupta  en te rpr ise  in  

cont rac ts  a f fec ted  w i th  s ta te  capture ,  invo l v ing  the  Gupta  

en terpr i se  o f  R6 400 815 744-13.  

 We then move on  to  the  second ca tegory  and tha t  i s  

the  amount  tha t  i s  pa id  by  s ta te  cont rac tors ,  der i ved f rom 

s ta te  capture  cont rac ts  invo l ved in  the  Gupta  en terp r ises  

tha t  i s  then pa id  to  Gupta  en te rp r ise  compan ies .   So in  

re la t ion  to  the  Tr i l l i an  Group and i t  i s  pa id  f rom the  GFB 10 

Break Through cont rac t  w i th  Transnet ,  the  Eskom 2016  

August  2016 and February  2017 master  serv i ces  

agreement ,  Cut t ing  Edge Commerce i s  pa id  an  amount  o f  

R71 240 396-00.   

 The amount  tha t  is  pa id  to  Zesta lo re  by  Tr i l l i an  f rom 

the  August  2016 master  serv ices  agreement ,  Transnet  

company B  and Sethaba Computer  Serv ices  is  an  amount  

o f  R95 485 677-62.   I f  I  may,  a  company B  supp l ied  

deve lopment  agreement  w i th  Sethaba Compute r  Systems 

fo r  R323 413 332-51.  20 

 Sof tware  AG and SAP pa id  an  amount  to  G loba l  Sof t  

Tech So lu t ions o f  R15 021 194-28.   SAP pa id  to  Cab House 

an amount  o f  R99 924 993-94.   Curova Mediosa pa id  an 

amount  o f  R1 556 561-49 to  Sethaba Compute r  Systems 

and then f ina l l y  an  amount  was pa id  to  a  Gupta  en terp r ise  
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en t i t y  by  the  name o f  Sentor  Min ing  wh ich  is  then  

subsequent ly  owned by  a  company by  the  name o f  Cent ra l  

Ventures  wh ich  we w i l l  exp lo re  I  th ink  in  g reater  ev idence  

be low.   

 I t  i s  pa id  an  amount  f rom the  2016 Eskom MSA 

December.   The  February  2017  Eskom master  serv i ces  

agreement  and a  Transnet  bene f i t  fund by  the  Tr i l l i an  

Group.   I t  i s  pa id  an  amount  o f  R270 461 906-00.   So the  

ind i rec t  payments  by  s ta te  cont rac tors  i s  R877 104 061-84.    

 So there fo re  the  d i rec t  and ind i rec t  payments  to  the  10 

Gupta  en terp r ise  compan ies  ar is ing  f rom s ta te  capture  i s  

R7 277 919 805-97.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   The nex t ,  so  we have now dea l t  

w i th  the  f i rs t  ca tegory  o f  payments  rece ived by  the  Gupta  

en terpr i se ,  the  amounts  pa id  d i rec t l y  to  i t  by  the  S ta te  or  

by  cont rac tors  tha t  a re  dea l ing  w i th  the  s ta te .   Your  second 

ca tegory  on  your  l i s t ,  no t  on  your  l i s t ,  on  your  descr ip t ion  

was what  you ca l led  payments  made by  s ta te  cont rac tors  to  

f i rs t  leve l  money laundry  en t i t ies .   

 Th is  i s  go ing  to  requ i re  some exp lanat ion .   So can  20 

you exp la in  to  the  Cha i r  what  you mean by  f i rs t  leve l  

money laundry  en t i t ies  or  f i rs t  leve l  laundry  en t i t ies?  

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in l y  Cha i r.   What  we re fer  to  there  is  

the  compan ies  tha t  were  ident i f ied  by  the  Gupta  en terp r ise  

to  rece ive  success fees or  bus iness deve lopment ,  supp ly  
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deve lopment  payments .   That  was the  f i rs t  payment  tha t  

was made f rom a  s ta te  cont rac to r  in to  the  Gupta  

en terpr i se .   

 I t  was the  f i rs t  s tep  in  the  laundry  process.   From 

there  as  you w i l l  see  in  much more  de ta i l  in  la te r  ev idence,  

the  funds moved f rom the  f i rs t  leve l  laundry  en t i t y  in to  an  

ex t remely  expens ive  and compl ica ted  loca l  and 

in te rnat iona l  money launder ing  ne twork .   

 The use o f  ident i f y ing  payment  i f  I  may to  f i rs t  leve l  

cont rac ts ,  i s  tha t  we know the  payments  be ing  made in  th is  10 

regard  to  f i rs t  leve l  laundry  en t i t ies ,  a re  be ing  made to  

compan ies  e i ther  to ld  by  the  Gupta  en terp r ise  or  who a re  

rece iv ing  an t ic ipa t ing  funds on  beha l f  o f  the  Gupta  

en terpr i se .   

 We cannot  t race  a l l  o f  these funds  to  the i r  end po in t  

as  much as  i t  goes in to  a  very  compl ica ted  in te rnat iona l  

money launder ing  ne twork .   I  have t rea ted  a l l  the  payments  

to  f i rs t  leve l  laundry  en terp r ise ,  f i rs t  leve l  laundry  

compan ies  as  e f fec t i ve ly  payment  to  the  Gupta  en terpr i se  

to  genera te  a  f i gure  o f  how much the  Gupta  en terpr i se  20 

earned o f f  the i r  capture  cont rac t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And can you te l l  the  Cha i r  who  

are  they key p layers  in  re la t ion  to  these f i rs t  leve l  laundry  

en t i t ies?  

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly.   We see repeated the  key p layers  
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a re  Sa l im Essa and Ashok Narayan.   Fo r  example  we saw 

in  re la t ion  to  the  d iscuss ion  o f  Dentons,  i t  was Narayan 

who was d i rec t ing  and cont ro l l ing  the  manner  in  wh ich  four  

t ime cont rac ted  w i th  Dentons and how i t  was pa id .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And can  you l i s t  fo r  the  Cha i r  the  

names o f  these f i rs t  leve l  laundry  en t i t ies .  

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly.   The f i rs t  one is  A lva thyme.   The  

second is  [ ind is t i nc t  -  d is to r ted ] .   The th i rd  i s  B lock  Man ia .   

The four th  i s  Tav i tha  Trad ing .   The f i f th  i s  For  Sure  

Consu l tan ts .   The s ix th  i s  Fo r  Time Consu l tan ts .   The 10 

seventh  i s  Homex.   The e igh th  i s  I sma.   The n in th  i s  an 

en t i t y  ca l led  Jacksa Trad ing .   Tenth  i s  an  en t i ty  ca l led  

Maher  S t ra tegy.   The e leventh  i s  an  en t i t y  ca l led  Max and 

Cap i ta l .   The twe l f th  i s  an  en t i t y  ca l led  Majoo l .   The 

th i r teenth  i s  an  en t i t y  by  the  name o f  Pack Trade and the  

las t  en t i t y  i s  opera tes  by  the  name o f  Shack le  Commerce.   

I  see  the  Cha i r  was scro l l ing  th rough the  repor t  to  t ry  and 

f ind  tha t  l i s t  o f  names.   

 I  cannot  remember  exact ly  where  on  the  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  seem to  remember  i t .   I  seem to  

remember  i t  be t te r  in  the  execut ive  summary.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I t  i s  in  the  de f in i te ly  in  the  

execut ive  summary Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I t  wou ld  appear  in  the  execut ive  

summary a t  pa ragraph 34.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   On page 23 o f  the  execut ive  

summary.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.   A l r igh t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Now you have been desc r ib ing 

these ent i t ies  as  laundry  en t i t ies  tha t  a re  do ing  money  

launder ing .   Perhaps you cou ld  i l l us t ra te  tha t  w i th  

re fe rence to  an  emai l  tha t  I  w i l l  ask  you to  look  a t ,  wh ich  10 

comes f rom Ashok Narayan in  re la t ion  to  one o f  these 

ent i t ies .   

 I t  i s  in  Bund le  13 ,  page 381.   Bund le  13 ,  page 381.   

I t  i s  Annexure  45  to  your  repor t .    

MR HOLDEN:   Annexure  45?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Annexure  45 .   

MR HOLDEN:   [ ind is t inc t  –  d i s to r ted ]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And can you te l l  the  Cha i r,  can 

you descr ibe  wha t  th is  emai l  suggests  to  you.   Or  f i rs t  who  

i t  i s  f rom,  to  whom i t  i s  sent  and what  you see there .   20 

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in l y  Cha i r.   Th is  i s  an  emai l  tha t  i s  

sent  on  the  17 t h  o f  September  2015.   I t  i s  sent  f rom an  

emai l  address wa l lamsa@gmai l . com,  wh ich  we ac tua l l y  the  

commiss ion  has heard  qu i te  a  lo t  o f  ev idence about  tha t  

emai l  add ress,  bu t  i t  i s  the  emai l  address fo r  Ashok  
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Narayan.   

 The emai l  i s  sent  to  Er ic  Wood  wi th  the  sub jec t  

payment ,  and the  sub jec t  o f  th is  i s  to  d iscuss the  manner  

in  wh ich  For  Time wou ld  be  pa id  by  Reg iments .   The to ta l  

For  Time,  the  to ta l  invo ice  amount  was R14 345 760-00.   

However,  Ashok Narayan then asked Mr  Wood to  sp l i t  tha t  

one invo ice  amount  in to  th ree  separa te  payments .   

 One o f  f i ve  m i l l ion  rand on September  the  17 t h ,  tha t  

i s  the  da te  o f  the  emai l .   F ive  m i l l ion  rand on September  

the  18 t h  wh ich  is  the  Fr iday and then an amount  o f  10 

R4 354 760-00 on the  21 s t  o f  September,  tha t  i s  the  

Monday.   

 Then a  fu r ther  amount  wh ich  i s  a  separa te  invo i ce ,  

wou ld  be  pa id  fo r  R4 075 500-00 on September  the  22 n d .   

Th is  i s  a  very  c lea r  example  o f  what  we ident i f ied  as  

[ ind is t inc t  –  d is to r ted ]  in  my prev ious ev idence,  wh ich  is  

jus t  to  take  a  s ing le  la rge  payment  amount  and to  reduce i t  

in to  smal le r  payment  amounts  pa id  over  a  ce r ta in  number  

o f  days.   

 In  the  hope tha t  the  smal le r  payment  amounts  w i l l  20 

a t t rac t  less  a t ten t ion  f rom whoever  m ight  be  charged w i th  

the  regu la t ing  o f  the  f low o f  funds.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Now a t  page 194 o f  your  main  

repor t ,  in  tab le  113 you have b roken down the  payments  to  

laundry  en t i t y  by  s ta te  cont rac t  as  i t  were ,  and can you 
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take  the  Cha i r  th rough tha t  tab le  a t  page 194 o f  Bund le  9?   

Maybe the  s ta r t ing  po in t  be fore  we get  in to  the  l ine  i tems,  

i s  to  re fe rence,  yes .    

 I s  to  ta lk  about  the  to ta l  amount  tha t  was pa id  by  

s ta te  cont rac tors  in to  these laundry  en t i t ies .   

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly  Cha i r.   A t  parag raph 263  I  se t  up  a  

to ta l  amount  tha t  i s  pa id  to  the  f i rs t  leve l  laundry  en t i t ies  

and tha t  amount  i s  R1 207 032 055-67.   That  i s  one b i l l i on ,  

two hundred and seven mi l l ion  th i r t y  two thousand f i f t y  f i ve 

rand and s ix t y  seven cents .   10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry,  I  cannot  see tha t  f igure .   I  am 

a t  194.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Cha i r,  Mr  Ho lden was read ing  

f rom paragraph 263.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.   I  am a t  paragraph 263.   Jus t  repeat  

the  f igure  tha t  you gave Mr  Ho lden? 

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly.   I t  i s  R1 207 032 055-67.    

CHAIRPERSON:   I  seem to  th ink  your  bund le  and m ine,  the  

page numbers  a re  no t  a lways exact ly  the  same.   I  do  no t  20 

th ink  I  have got  tha t  number  on ,  o r  i t  i s  no t  in  the  tab le .   I  

was look ing  on  the  tab le .   The number  i s  no t  in  the  tab le .   

I t  i s  above the  tab le .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I t  i s  above the  tab le ,  indeed  

Cha i r.   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.   No,  I  was busy look ing  a t  the  

numbers  tha t  a re  in  the  tab le .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   No,  i t  i s  be fo re  we get  to  the  

tab le .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   You w i l l  see  there  a t  the  very  

bo t tom,  you scro l l  a l l  the  way down to  the  bo t tom o f  the  

tab le ,  you w i l l  see  the  same number  aga in .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Wi th  the  to ta l .   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  no  you can proceed Mr  Ho lden.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then Mr  Ho lden can you jus t  

take  us  cont rac t  by  cont rac t ,  laundry  en t i t y  by  laundry  

en t i t y  th rough th i s  tab le?    

MR HOLDEN:   Abso lu te ly,  and I  apo log i se  fo r  cu t t ing  i t  o ff ,  

there  i s  a  s l igh t  lag .   So I  am t ry ing  no t  to  appear  rude.   In  

tab le  113 the  cont rac t  we re fer red  to  here  is  the  Med iosa 

cont rac ts ,  and tha t  i s  a l l  o f  the  cont rac t s  tha t  we have  

ident i f ied ,  pa id  to  Med iosa a t tached to  s ta te  capture  

payments .   20 

 The f i rs t  payment  i s  made to  [ ind i s t inc t  –  d is to r ted ]  

o f  R15 960 000-00.   Then there  is  a  payment  made to 

A lba tyme and tha t  i s  ac tua l l y  a  separa te  payment  to  

Coogan Mood ley,  bu t  together  they  come to  R2 538 948-00.   

The next  p ro jec t  i s  the  Ch ina  nor th  ra i l  Durban re locat ion  
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p ro jec t .   

 Which  was awarded to ,  there  was a  payment  o f  

ex t rac to r  p roducts  and f rom there  Bex pa id  an  amount  o f  

R15 228 070-98 to  Majoo l ,  an  amount  o f  R14 . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Sor ry  Mr  Ho lden,  I  apo log ise  fo r  

in te r rup t ing  bu t  I  shou ld  have ind ica ted  to  the  Cha i r  that  

there  is  a  vers ion  o f  th is  tab le  w i th  c ross- re ferences  to  the 

under l y ing  source  tab le  tha t  i s  in  the  execut ive  summary a t  

page 24,  paragraph 36.   

 There ,  in  tha t  vers ion  there  w i l l  be  cross- re fe rences  10 

wh ich  te l l  you  how th is  amount  o f  R15 960 000-00 is  made  

up.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  no  tha t  i s  f ine ,  I  have made a  no te .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Sor ry  Mr  Ho lden,  i f  you  might  

cont inue?  I  apo log ise  fo r  the  in te r rup t ion .  

MR HOLDEN:   Thank you.   To  repeat ,  in  re la t ion  to  Isma 

Bex pa id  an  amount  o f  R14 147 400-00.   Bex then  fu r ther  

pa id  an  amount  o f  R18 140  820-00 to  Fo r  Time 

Consu l tan ts .   [ ind is t inc t  –  d is to r ted ]  S t ra tegy was  pa id  an  

amount  o f  R18 605 940-00 and B lock  Man ia  was pa id  an 20 

amount  o f  R10 154 226-18.  

 In  the  Reg iments  group and he re  we aggregate  a l l  

o f  the  s ta te  capture  cont rac t s ,  in  wh ich  deve lopment  fees  

were  then,  deve lopment  fees or  o ther  fees were  pa id  to  

Gupta  cont ro l  compan ies ,  o r  Gupta  en terp r ise  compan ies .   
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The f i rs t  amount  i s  A lba tyme.  

 The amount  tha t  i t  i s  pa id  by  Reg iments  Cap i ta l  and 

i t  i s  pa id  R224 055 778-48.   The second ent ry  aga in  i s  

A lba tyme,  bu t  th i s  t ime pa id  f rom Reg iments  Secur i t ies .   I t  

i s  pa id  an  amount  o f  R5 609 572-72.   Tav i tha  Trad ing  is  

pa id  an  amount  o f  R129 229 827-25 and i f  you can reca l l ,  

Tav i tha  Trad ing  was the  en t i t y  tha t  Sa l im Essa ident i f ied  in  

h is  dea l ings w i th  combined pr i va te  invest iga t ions.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR HOLDEN:   Fo r  Sure  Consu l tan ts ,  we have an amount  o f  10 

R16 890 928-70.   Fo r  Time Consu l tan ts  we have an amount  

o f  R53 880 753-93.   Fo r  Homex we have an amount  o f  

R179 506 583-48.   For  [ ind is t inc t ]  S t ra tegy we have an  

amount  o f  R10 322 510-00.   In  re la t ion  to  Majoo l  we have a  

payment  o f  R29 558 898-91.   

 We then move on  to  the  Tr i l l i an  Group in  re la t ion  to  

the  Transnet  C lub  loan and the re  A lba tyme was pa id  an  

amount  o f  R74 784 000-00.   We then move to  the  Tr i l l i an  

Group ’s  payment  in  re la t ion  to  the  Transnet  Proper ty  

Database cont rac t ,  and they pa id  f rom tha t  amount  20 

[ ind is t inc t ]  P ro jec ts ,  R4 847 893-00.    

 Top Majoo l  an  amount  o f  R10 362 200-00.   For  Time 

Consu l tan ts  i t  i s  R4 981 800-00.   In  re la t ion  to  the  SA 

Express cont rac t  tha t  was awarded  to  the  Tr i l l i an  Group,  i t  

then went  on  to  pay Bursa  Pro jec ts  an  amount  o f  
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R3 420 000-00.    

 In  re la t ion  to  the  Tr i l l i an  Group in  re la t ion  to  the  

cont rac t ,  to  the  payment  tha t  was made,  rece ived f rom 

Transnet  in  re la t i on  to  the  GFB and [ ind is t inc t  –  d i s to r ted ]  

cont rac ts ,  i t  thereaf te r  pa id  A lba tyme an amount  o f  3 .5  

m i l l ion  rand.   

 Bursa  Pro jec ts  an  amount  o f  12  m i l l ion  rand.   

Ma joo l  an  amount  o f  R19 380 000-00 and then  on the  

fo l low ing page,  an  amount  o f  For  Time Consu l tan ts  o f  

R4 959 000-00.   Remain ing  w i th  the  Tr i l l i an  Group,  the  10 

amount  tha t  i t  rece ived f rom,  in  re la t ion  to  the  Eskom 

corpora te  p lan  cont rac t ,  i t  thereaf te r  pa id  an  amount  o f  

R4 847 093 to  Bursa  Pro jec ts .  

 In  re la t ion  to  the  August  2016  Eskom master  

serv i ces  agreement  payment  to  the  Tr i l l i an  Group an 

amount  o f  R17 045 000-00 was pa id  to  Bursa  Pro jec ts .   To 

Majoo l  an  amoun t  o f  R9 822 000-00 was pa id .   For  Time  

Consu l tan ts  an  amount  o f  R12 427  328-00 was pa id .   

 Max im Cap i ta l  was pa id  an  amount  o f  R1 970 000-

00.   Pack Trade  was pa id  an  amount  o f  R3 030  000-00.   20 

Shack le  Commerce was pa id  an  amount  o f  R2 850 000-00.   

Jacksa was pa id  an  amount  o f  R2 150 000-00,  tha t  i s  2 .15  

mi l l ion  rand.   

 In  re la t ion  to  the  Neote l  cont rac ts  where ,  sor ry  

spec i f i ca l l y  to  the  300 mi l l ion  rand and the  1 .8  b i l l i on  rand 



24 MAY 2021– DAY 401 
 

Page 143 of 266 
 

con t rac ts ,  i t  does  not  re fe r  to  the  CCTV cont rac t .   Homex 

was then pa id  an  amount  o f  R75 573 519-00.   In  re la t ion  to  

Leber  Cranes,  Homex was pa id  R1  800 000-00,  so  i t  i s  1 .8 

m i l l ion .  

 Sethaba Computers  was pa id  on to  Homex 

apo log ies ,  an  amount  o f  R828 569-10 and to  A lba tyme an  

amount  o f  [ ind is t inc t ]  and then subsequent ly  made  fu r ther  

payments  to  Homex o f  R499 783-00.   To  A lba tyme o f  

R954 146-84.   To  For  Time Consu l tan ts  an  amount  o f  

R1 387 652-63.  10 

 Then mov ing  on  to  Zesta lo re .   Zesta lo re  made a  

payment  o f  R120  000-00 to  Tav i tha  Trad ing .   A payment  o f  

R630 883-00.   The Bursa  Pro jec t  amount  o f  R1 261 766-00 

to  Pack Trade.   

 Then mov ing  on to  combined pr i va te  invest iga t ions.   

They made a  payment  to  Tav i tha  o f  R14 673 600-00.   To  

Homex they pa id  an  amount  o f  R17 510 400-00.   To  Bursa  

Consu l t ing  they pa id  an  amount  o f  R2 918 400-00.   To  

Majoo l  they pa id  an  amount  o f  R10 797 201-85.   

 Denton South  A f r i ca  pa id  to  Fo r  Time Consu l tan ts  20 

an  amount  o f  R1 873 788.   Lorma Vis ion  made payments  to  

Bursa  Pro jec ts  in  the  amount  o f  R3 019 868-23 and to  

Shack le  Commerce an amount  o f  R5 779 767-40.   In  

re la t ion  to  the  Transnet  CCTV con t rac t  tha t  was or ig ina l l y  

p laced w i th  Neote l  and then subcont rac ted  to  Techno logy 
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P rocurement  Ho ld ings,  the  funds  were  pa id  to  Homex by  

Tech Pro  and o r  a  company ca l led  D ig i ta l  Video So lu t ions  

in  the  amount  o f  R119 700 000-00.   That  i s  one hundred  

and n ine teen mi l l ion ,  seven hundred thousand.   

 CRRC which  was  one o f  the  cont rac to rs  in  re la t ion  

to  the  locomot ive  cont rac t ,  pa id  an  amount  to  For  Time  

Consu l tan ts  o f  R7 892 226-77.   In  re la t ion  to  SAP and C lad 

House Bursa  Pro jec ts  was pa id  an  amount  o f  R3 420 000-

00.   

 B r ing ing  us  to  a  to ta l  o f  R1 207 032 055-67.    10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then i f  you can go to  page  

198 where  you had aggregated these same payments  by  

laundry  en t i t y.   

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly.   Here  we have in  tab le  114 the  

f i rs t  en t ry  i s  A lba tyme wh ich  rece ived R311 556 446-04.   

Bursa  Pro jec ts  wh ich  earned R49 230 737-23.   B lock  Man ia  

wh ich  was pa id  an  amount  o f  R10 154 226-18.   Tav i tha  

Trad ing  wh ich  is  pa id  an  amount  o f  R144 093 427-25.   

 For  Sure  Consu l tan ts  was pa id  an  amount  o f  

R19 809 329-70.   For  Time Consu l tan ts  was pa id  an 20 

amount  o f  R105 543 369-69.   Homex was pa id  an  amount  

o f  R395 418 856-44.   I sma was pa id  an  amount  o f  

R14 147 400-00.  

 Dapsha was pa id  an  amount  o f  2 .15  mi l l ion .   Maher  

S t ra tegy was pa id  an  amount  o f  R28 928 450.   Max im  
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Cap i ta l  was pa id  an  amount  o f  R1 970 000-00,  so  i t  i s  1 .97  

mi l l ion .   Ma joo l  was pa id  an  amount  o f  R95 148 371-74.   

Trade was pa id  an  amount  o f  R4  291 766-00 and Shack le  

Commerce was pa id  an  amount  o f  R24 589 767-40.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So  tha t  i s  your  second,  your  

second ca tegory  o f  payments  to  the  Guptas  f rom s ta te  

capture .   Your  th i rd  i s  the  known k ickbacks and these  

re la te  to  the  locomot ive  and crane  cont rac ts  tha t  we dea l t  

w i th  in  your  p rev ious ev idence.   

 So i t  may be as  we l l  to  go  to  s imp ly  to  the  summary  10 

tab le  wh ich  is  a t  page 420 o f  Bund le  9 .   Tab le  247 and can 

you take  the  Cha i r  th rough those amounts .   

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in l y  Cha i r.   What  we have he re  is  the  

grand to ta l  o f  a l l  k ickbacks pa id  to  the  Gupta  en terp r ise  

re la ted  to  the  95  100359 and 232 locomot ive  procurements ,  

a t tended main tenance cont rac t ,  the  CNR re locat ion  costs  

and the  purchase  o f  Leber  Cranes w i th  the i r  PMC.  

 For  the  pu rchase  o f  Leber  Cranes  we were  ab le  to  

ident i f y  payments  o f  R26 586 799-49.   In  re la t ion  to  the 

purchase o f  ZPMC c ranes we were  ab le  to  ident i f y  amounts  20 

o f  R33 379 031-04.   In  re la t ion  to  the  95  100359 and 232 

locomot ive  cont rac ts ,  inc lud ing  main tenance cont rac ts ,  we 

have an amount  o f  R3 400 558 015-00.    

 In  re la t ion  to  the  CNR re locat ion  cont rac t  we have  

an amount  o f  R76 586 903-13.   Which  b r ings us  to  a  sub  
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to ta l  o f  conf i rmed k ickback pa id  o f  R3 537 110 748-66 and  

i t  may be wor thwhi le  exp la in ing  he re  Cha i r.   I f  you  reca l l  in  

the  ev idence tha t  I  was led  in  December,  we were  ab le  to  

conf i rm those payments  aga ins t  a  range o f  documents ,  

inc lud ing  bank  s ta tements ,  in te rna l  Gupta  en terp r ise  

ledgers .   

 A f te r  a  cer ta in  po in t  the  bank ing  reco rds go  co ld ,  

however  we do know tha t  there  were  an  issue o f  payments  

tha t  were  made to  the  Gupta  en te rpr ise  and i t  seems tha t  

in  the  per iod  in  wh ich  [ ind is t inc t ]  I  assume they have been 10 

made.   

 In  wh ich  case we  get  an  amount  o f  R3 768 046 193-

40 wh ich  br ings us  to  a  to ta l  k ickback f igure  o f  

R7 305 156 942-06.   That  i s  seven b i l l i on  th ree  hundred 

and f i ve  m i l l ion  one hundred and  f i f t y  s ix  thousand n ine  

hundred and fo r ty  two rand and s ix  cents .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then  i f  we add up these th ree  

ca tegor ies  and i t  may be,  le t  me jus t  check i f  th is  i s  the ,  

no .   The execut ive  summary s imp ly,  i f  one goes  to  the  20 

execut ive  summary a t  page 32,  paragraph 46 you  have a  

conso l ida ted  f igu re  fo r  payments  t o  the  Gupta  en te rpr ise .   

 I f  you  can take  the  Cha i r  th rough  those payments  

by,  s imp ly  by  subto ta l  because we have gone to  l ine  i tem 

a l ready,  and what  the  aggregate  to ta l  i s .   
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CHAIRPERSON:   22  or  32?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I t  i s  page 32 Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   32?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   32  o f  the  execut ive  summary.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.   

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  have got  i t .   Yes.  

MR HOLDEN:   So  in  re la t ion  to  d i rec t  payments  to  the  

Gupta  en terp r ise  by  organs o f  s ta te  wh ich  we have a l ready 

enumerated,  i t  was an amount  o f  R6 400 815 744-13.   In  10 

payments  by  s ta te  cont rac tors ,  de r ived f rom s ta te  capture  

cont rac ts  and Cha i r,  I  do  no t  th ink  I  have redac ted th is  

execut ive  summary.   

 So I  am go ing  to  s top  shar ing  the  sc reen fo r  one 

second.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Maybe Mr  Ho lden,  because we 

are  jus t  ta lk ing  sub to ta ls ,  you can ment ion  the  sub to ta ls  

w i thout  the  l ine  i tems or  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR HOLDEN:   That  i s  cor rec t .   Ja ,  I  have now moved the  20 

PDF beyond tha t  po in t .   The ind i rec t  payments  v ia  s ta te  

cont rac tors  i f  R886 860 561-84.   In  re la t ion  to  payments  to  

f i rs t  leve l  laundry  en t i t ies ,  we  have a  sub to ta l  o f  

R1 207 032 055-67.   

 We have two l ines  we have not  dea l t  w i th  he re ,  
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wh ich  I  am sure  we w i l l  beg inn ing  w i th  in  s l igh t ly  fu r ther  

ev idence,  i s  a  payment  tha t  i s  made f rom Reg iments  to  

A lba tyme and Tr i l l i an  wh ich  is  then pa id  to  Tegeta ,  

Exp lo ra t ion  and Resources o f  160  mi l l ion  rand.   

 From Reg iments  there  i s  an  occas ion  wh ich  I  am 

sure  we w i l l  dea l  w i th  in  more  de ta i l  la te r,  where  

Reg iments  e f fec t i ve ly  rece ives and launders  an  amount  

f rom Tech Pro  in  re la t ion  to  the  CCTV cont rac t ,  wh ich  is  

then subsequent ly  pa id  f rom Reg iments  to  TNA o f  17 .1  

m i l l ion  rand.   10 

 The sub to ta l  o f  those cases i s  R177 100 000-00.   

That  i s  hundred  and seventy  seven mi l l ion  rand,  one  

hundred thousand rand.   The k ickbacks to  the  Gupta  

en terpr i se  i s  a  sub to ta l  o f  R7 305 156 943030,  wh ich  i s  

how we then ar r i ve  a t  the  to ta l  amount  ea rned  by  the  

Gupta  en te rpr i se  f rom s ta te  capture  as  R15 967 208 804-

87.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Do you want  to  say tha t  in  

m i l l ions  and b i l l i ons?  

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly.   That  i s  f i f teen b i l l i on  n ine  20 

hundred and s ix ty  seven mi l l ion  two hundred and e igh t  

thousand e igh t  hundred and four  rand and e igh ty  seven  

cents .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Be fore  we c lose  today  I  wou ld  

l i ke  us  to  dea l  w i th  the  th i rd  ca tegory.   We have dea l t  w i th  
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the  amounts  tha t  the  s ta te  pa id  ou t  in  to ta l  on  s ta te  

capture  cont rac ts  a f fec t ing  the  Guptas  o r  ta in ted  by  the  

Guptas .   We have a  share  o f  tha t  amount  tha t  the  Guptas  

rece ived.   

 The th i rd  ca tegory  tha t  I  wou ld  l i ke  us  to  look  a t  i s  

the  loss  su f fe red  by  the  s ta te  th rough Gupta  en terpr i se  

s ta te  captu re  and I  wou ld  l i ke  you to  in  assess ing  th is  

ca tegory  where  we have not  go t  the  same leve ls  o f  

p rec is ion  tha t  we have on the  o the rs .   

 Jus t  to  descr ibe  the  var ious heads o f  loss  tha t  the  10 

s ta te  wou ld  have su f fe red  and you do th is  in  your  execut ive  

summary a t  page  38,  s ta r t ing  w i th  paragraph 47.   Maybe i f  

you can take  the  Cha i r  th rough th i s  ana lys is  tha t  you do in  

re la t ion  to  the  loss  su f fe red  by  the  s ta te .   

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly.   Cha i r,  as  the  ev idence leader  

cor rec t l y  po in ts  ou t ,  the  f igures  tha t  I  have tabu la ted  in  

re la t ion  to  payments  in  re la t ion  to  s ta te  captu re  con t rac ts ,  

i s  rea l l y  I  re fe r  to  i t  as  the  to ta l  cos t  o f  s ta te  capture ,  bu t  i t  

ac tua l l y  i s  no t  the  to ta l  cos t  in  so r t  o f  gener ic  te rms .   

 I t  i s  an  account ing  cost .   I t  i s  the  amount  tha t  we  20 

can ident i f y  as  pa id  in  the  conf i rmed payments  to  the  

Gupta ,  sor ry  in  re la t ion  to  s ta te  capture  cont rac ts .   I t  does 

not  even beg in  to  quant i f y  the  harm and loss  su f fe red  by  

the  s ta te  and I  have ident i f ied  a  number  o f  d i f fe ren t  heads  

o f  loss ,  where  the  s ta te  may have  los t  qu i te  a  o f  money in  



24 MAY 2021– DAY 401 
 

Page 150 of 266 
 

add i t ion  to  the  amounts  tha t  were  pa id  ou t .   

 The f i rs t  i s  the  to ta l  va lue  o f  k ickbacks pa id  to  the  

Gupta  en terp r ise  by  th i rd  par ty  cont rac tors  to  conc lude a  

cont rac t  w i th  the  s ta te .   Th is  amount  can be assumed to  be  

[ ind is t inc t ]  by  the  s ta te  because  o f  an  open and  honest  

p rocu rement  p rocess w i thout  in te r fe rence by  the  Gupta  

en terpr i se  or  o ther  cor rup t  par t ies .   

 I t  can  be assumed tha t  the  b idders  wou ld  have f i xed  

pr ices  a t  a  leve l  tha t  d id  no t  need to  accommodate  the  

k ickbacks tha t  they had commi t ted  to  pay the  Gupta  10 

enterpr i se .   Here  we are  ac tua l l y  ab le  to  i dent i f y  a  loss  to  

the  s ta te  d i rec t l y,  wh ich  is  the  amount  o f  k ickbacks tha t  we  

are  aware  o f ,  and tha t  we have  ident i f ied  prev ious ly  as  

R7 305 156 942-06.  

 The th i rd  ca tegory  o f  loss  i s  the  to ta l  va lue  o f  

g ra tu i tous expend i tu re  where  tha t  expend i tu re  took p lace,  

seeming ly  w i th  l i t t le  mot iva t ion  beyond enr i ch ing  the  Gupta  

en terpr i se  and tha t  i s  cer ta in l y  in  cases where  there  was 

no rea l  a t tempt  to  de l i ve r  any sor t  o f  va lue  to  the  s ta te .   

 One example  o f  tha t  i s  the  payment  o f  254 mi l l ion  20 

rand to  TNA.   Adver t i s i ng ,  market ing  and newspapers  and I  

th ink  i t  can  be sa fe ly  assumed tha t  most ,  i f  no t  a l l  o f  th is  

expend i tu re  wou ld  have been avo ided i f  the  Gupta  

en terpr i se  was not  us ing  i t s  in f luence over  the  s ta te  to  

ensure  i t .   



24 MAY 2021– DAY 401 
 

Page 151 of 266 
 

 For  me a  more  c lear  cu t  example  is  the  Est ina  Da i ry  

p ro jec t ,  wh ich  we have now heard  ev idence th rough the  

commiss ion  and ev idence tha t  I  have led ,  wh ich  shows tha t  

there  is  a lmost  no  a t tempt  to  de l i ver  a  da i ry  fa rm 

[ ind is t inc t ]  and i t  seems tha t  f rom concept ion  to  the  

execut ion  the  who le  p ro jec t  was des igned s imp ly  to  enr i ch  

the  Gupta  en terpr ise  and de l i ver  e f fec t i ve l y  no  va lue  to  the  

s ta te .   

 Th is  however  i s  an  exe rc i se  tha t  i s  a  qua l i ta t i ve  

exerc ise  tha t  I  hes i ta te  to  make on beha l f  o f  the 10 

commiss ion  and i t  requ i res  qu i te  a  sens i t i ve  account ing .   

So I  have not  g iven a  f igure  in  tha t  re la t ion  bu t  I  assume i t  

i s  qu i te  substant i a l .   

 The th i rd  ca tegory  o f  loss  i s  the  p r ice  in f la t ion  tha t  

i s  in tended on cont rac ts  made w i th  the  Gupta  en terp r ise  by  

sa id  en t i t ies ,  espec ia l l y  in  the  case and th is  happened in  

a la rm ing number  o f  t imes where  no  such compet i t i ve  

b idd ing  took p lace.   

 We can assume in  those cases tha t  the  amount  tha t  

was pa id  by  the  s ta te  was cons iderab ly  more  than the  20 

go ing  market  ra te  or  even  the  usua l  ra tes  pa id  by  the  

Gupta ,  charged by  the  Gupta  en terpr i se  fo r  i t s  non tech  

c l ien ts  and a  ve ry  good example  o f  tha t  i s  Sunday Trad ing .   

 As  we have d i scussed prev ious ly,  Sunday Trad ing  

was pa id  R33 078 810-00 by  the  Free S ta te  government ,  
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a lmost  a l l  o f  wh ich  was pa id  over  to  Sahara  Computers  and  

Sahara  Compute rs  de l i vered on tha t  cont rac t .   In te rna l  

records  f rom the  emerg ing  f rom the  Gupta  leaks,  show tha t  

the  un i t  p r i ce  tha t  was charged by  Sunday /  Sahara  to  the  

Free S ta te  government  was t imes a lmost  doub le  what  

Sahara  was charg ing  i t s  corpora te  c l ien ts  on  the  open 

market .   

 Aga in ,  th is  i s  somewhat  beyond the  scope o f  my 

repor t  sad ly  so .   I  have not  been ab le  to  pu t  a  spec i f i c  

f igure  on  tha t .   Then there  is  a  four th  head ing ,  the  to ta l  10 

va lue  o f  p r ice  in f la t ion  in  the  cont rac t  p r i ce  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  jus t  want  to  in te r rup t  a t  th is  

po in t ,  because I  jus t  want  to  warn  you not  to  scro l l  down 

because you wou ld  no t  have redac ted someth ing  under  D2.   

So p lease do not  sc ro l l  down to  D2 .   

MR HOLDEN:   I  may swi tch  back to  my camera  in  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   P lease do.   

MR HOLDEN:   As  a  mat te r  o f  caut i on .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thanks.   20 

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly.   A t  head ing  D we have the  to ta l  

va lue  o f  p r ice  in f la t ion  and the  cont rac t  p r ices  charged to  

the  s ta te  by  th i rd  par ty  cont rac tors  who d id  bus iness w i th  

the  s ta te ,  where  they were  p ro tec ted  by  the  Gupta  

en terpr i se  and what  we re fe r  to  here ,  i s  the  fac t  tha t  the  
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Gupta  en te rpr i se ,  s ta te  capture  pro jec t  cor rec ted  a  cu l tu re  

o f  cor rup t ion  and  d i f fe rence to  cost  in  many s ta te  owned  

enterpr i ses  in  government  depar tments .   

 There  is  good reason to  be l ieve  tha t  those ent i t ies ,  

they were  pro tec ted  by  the  Gupta  en terpr ise .   Used tha t  

pos i t ion  to  inc rease the  va lue  o f  the  cont rac t s  awarded to  

them and a lso  in f la te  the  amounts  they charged to  the  

s ta te  in  o rder  to  max im ise  the  pro f i t s  they make f rom tha t .    

 The example  I  g ive  there  is  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Le t  us  leave tha t  example .   10 

Sor ry.   Because i t  i s  an  example  to  wh ich  we can re turn  a t  

a  la te r  s tage,  bu t  we shou ld  no t  ment ion  i t  now.   

MR HOLDEN:   Okay.   The f i f th  head ing  is  the  to ta l  va lue  o f  

cont rac tua l  damages su f fe red  by  the  s ta te  in  the  cont rac ts  

o f  the  Gupta  en te rpr ise  i t se l f  o r  th i rd  par ty  cont rac tors  and 

here  we,  what  we are  ta lk ing  about  essent ia l l y  i s  tha t  in  

cer ta in  cases where  there  were  s ta te  capture  a l legat ions o r  

s ta te  capture  payments  tha t  we made,  those par t ies  who 

cont rac ted  w i th  the  s ta te ,  p robab ly  may have de l i vered on 

the i r  cont rac ts  d i l igent ly  and cor rec t l y  and not  cause harm 20 

to  the  s ta te .   

 However,  in  cer ta in  cont rac t s  i t  i s  qu i te  l i ke l y  tha t  

the  cont rac t  pe r fo rmance was inc red ib ly  poor,  wh ich  there  

was o f  cou rse  add i t iona l  loss  to  the  s ta te  and here  I  wou ld  

l i ke  to  re fe r  to  someth ing  tha t  i s  in  the  pub l i c  domain  as  fa r  
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as  I  unders tand,  bu t  i s  no t  ac tua l l y  appended to  the  repor t  

and I  wonder  i f  my ev idence leader  wou ld  l i ke  to  address 

how tha t  i s  now dea l t  w i th .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes,  I  mean you can cer ta in l y  

re fe r  to  mater ia l  tha t  i s  in  the  pub l i c  domain .   You can,  I  

know what  you want  to  re fe r  to  and the  document  t ha t  you 

need to ,  as  ev idence is  someth ing  tha t  the  commiss ion  can  

obta in  in  the  pub l i c  domain .  

 So maybe g i ve  the  i l l us t ra t ion  tha t  you have in  m ind  

here .   10 

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly.   What  we have here ,  wha t  I  re fe r  

to  here  is  the  loss  su f fe red  by  Eskom in  re la t ion  to  the  

Opt imum cont rac ts  a f te r  Opt imum was purchased by  the  

Gupta  en te rpr i se ,  and here  what  i s  qu i te  in te res t ing ,  i s  tha t  

we have estab l i shed tha t  the  Gup ta  en terpr i se ,  so  Eskom 

pa id  an  amount  o f  1 .68  b i l l i on  rand  to  Opt imum but  ac tua l l y  

the  loss  su f fe red  by  Eskom was  cons iderab ly  more  than 

tha t .   

 Eskom has submi t ted  a  damages c la im in  re la t ion  to  

th is  cont rac t  and  they a re  c la im ing damages in  re la t ion  to  20 

the  loss  su f fe red  by  Eskom because o f  poor  qua l i t y  coa l  

de l i vered by  Op t imum and the  loss  su f fe red  by  Eskom 

because o f  insu f f i c ien t  quant i t ies  o f  coa l  de l i vered,  and 

then the  loss  su f fe red  by  Eskom because h is to r ica l  

cont rac tua l  pena l t ies  were  no t  lev ied  where  they  shou ld  
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have been.  

 The to ta l  c la im tha t  i s  be ing  f i led  by  Eskom,  I  do  

no t  have the i r  exact  f igure  here ,  bu t  I  know tha t  i t  i s  ove r  

th ree  b i l l i on  rand .   So what  we have he re  is  an  example  o f  

the  s ta te  may have pa id  1 .68  b i l l ion  rand to  Opt imum but  

su f fe red  losses  a lmost  doub le  tha t  because  o f  the  

per fo rmance o f  the  cont rac t .   

 Then f ina l l y  we ident i f ied  co l la te ra l  waste fu l  

expend i tu re  incur red  by  organs  o f  s ta te  to  accommodate  

s ta te  captu re  con t rac ts ,  and here  what  I  re fe r  to  as  those 10 

ins tances where  the  s ta te  may have cont rac ted  w i th  th i rd  

par t ies  who were  no t  par ty  to  s ta te  captu re ,  bu t  pa id  them 

amounts  tha t  were  equa l  to  the  or  in  the  same ba l l  park  i f  

you  w i l l ,  to  those amounts  tha t  were  pa id  to  the  Gupta  

en terpr i se  pro tec ted  ent i t ies ,  and tha t  may have happened 

in  o rder  to  d isgu ise  the  d i screpancy between the  amounts  

pa id  to  compan ies  pro tec ted  by  the  Gupta  en te rpr ise  and  

those not .   

 One good example  he re  is  in  re la t ion  to  the  

locomot ive  cont rac t .   I t  i s  poss ib le  tha t  Genera l  E lec t r i c  20 

and Bombard ier  were  o f fe red  te rms by  Transnet  wh ich  were  

more  favourab le  than they poss ib ly  cou ld  have got ten  i f  

they  negot ia ted  harder  bu t  were  po tent ia l l y  d is inc l ined to  

do  so  because the ,  i t  wou ld  revea l  the  exaggera ted  cost  

tha t  was be ing  pa id  to  CSR and CNR and CRRC.   
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 That  exaggera ted  cost  had to  be  pa id  in  o rder  to  

c rea te  a  20% ha i rcu t  tha t  f rom wh ich  the  k i ckbacks  cou ld  

be  pa id .   So I  do  no t  a t tempt  to  quant i f y  the  losses 

su f fe red  by  the  s ta te  in  re la t ion  to  Gupta  en te rpr i se  re la ted  

to  s ta te  capture ,  bu t  I  th ink  I  can say w i th  ex t reme ly  h igh  

leve l  o f  conf idence,  tha t  tha t  amount  fa r  exceeds the  jus t  

under  16  b i l l i on  rand tha t  was pa id  to  the  Gupta  en terpr i se  

f rom s ta te  captu re .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Cha i r,  we have got  to  a  po in t  in  

Mr  Ho lden ’s  ev idence where  i t  w i l l  be  d i f f i cu l t  to  p roceed 10 

w i thout ,  we l l  d i f f i cu l t  to  p roceed in  the  l igh t  o f  the  Ru le  

3(3 )  cons idera t ions.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So  I  wou ld  ask  tha t  he  s tand  

down a t  th is  po in t  and re turn  a t  a  la te r  s tage when the  

Ru le  3(3 )  d i f f i cu l t y  no  longer  p reva i l s .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   We wi l l  s top  

here  then and a  da te ,  I  w i l l  de termine a  da te  when  you can  

come back Mr  Ho lden to  comple te  your  ev idence.   That  i s  

go ing  to  be  as  soon as  poss ib le ,  bear ing  in  m ind the  20 

ear l ies t  cons idera t ions.   

 Okay,  thank you very  much Mr  Ho lden and 

ar rangements  w i l l  be  made fo r  you to  come back.   Once  

aga in ,  thank you fo r  ava i l ing  yourse l f  to  ass is t  us .   

MR HOLDEN:   Thank you ve ry  much Cha i r,  i t  i s  my  



24 MAY 2021– DAY 401 
 

Page 157 of 266 
 

p leasure .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   Okay Mr  Chaska lson,  we w i l l  

ad journ  fo r  . . .  we w i l l  ad journ  the  day sess ion  now and I  

hope tha t  the  even ing  sess ion  is  ready.   I  w i l l  ad journ  fo r  

about  15  m inutes  and then come back to  dea l  w i th  

ev idence re la t ing  to  Eskom,  and then tomor row we wi l l  dea l  

w i th  mat te rs  tha t  a re  schedu led  fo r  tomorrow and they 

inc lude Ms Dudu Myen i .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We ad jou rn .   10 

HEARING ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:   . . .  morn ing ,  the  greet ing  is  the  same.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   I s  the  same.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cha i r,  Mr  S ingh  is  the  next  w i tness.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Good even ing ,  good a f te rnoon Mr  S ingh?   

MR SINGH:  Good  a f te rnoon Cha i r.   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   And as  usua l  represented  by  my  

learned f r iends w i th  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay,  thank  you.   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  th ink  there  has been a  su f f i c ien t  lapse 
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o f  t ime.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  p lease admin is te r  the  oa th  o r  

a f f i rmat ion .    

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r,  wh i le  we are  do ing  tha t ,  tha t  l igh t  

jus t  needs to  be  ad jus ted  a  l i t t le  b i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sor ry,  the  l igh t?  

MR SINGH:   That  l igh t  jus t  needs to  be  ad jus ted  a  l i t t le  b i t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  okay.   Wi l l  somebody a t tend to  tha t?    

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record?  

MR HOLDEN:   Ano j  S ingh.  10 

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any  ob jec t ion  to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

MR SINGH:   No.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you cons ider  the  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  

consc ience?  

MR SINGH:   I  do .   

REGISTRAR:   Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence  

you w i l l  g i ve  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ,  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  

bu t  the  t ru th?   I f  so ,  p lease ra i se  your  r igh t  hand and say  

so  he lp  me God.   20 

MR SINGH:   So  he lp  me God.   

ANOJ SINGH:   (D .s .s )  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you,  you may be seated Mr  S ingh.   

I s  the  l igh t  f ine  now?  I s  the  l igh t  f ine  now? 

MR SINGH:   Yes,  thank you.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Se leka,  do  you want  fo r  

the  benef i t  o f  the  pub l i c  jus t  to  say where  we are  w i th  Mr  

S ingh ’s  ev idence and what  w i l l  be  covered?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  thank you  Cha i rpe rson.   We have 

ra ised qu i te  ex tens i ve  g round w i th  Mr  S ingh.   We dea l t  w i th  

i ssues per ta in ing  to  McK insey and Tr i l l i an .   H is  re la t ions  

w i th  o r  lack  thereof  w i th  Mr  Sa l im Essa,  w i th  the  Guptas .   

We have dea l t  w i th  h is  t rave ls  las t  t ime.   

 What  we are  le f t  w i th  in  the  main  is  the  Tegeta  OCM 

mat te r.   There  a re  i ssues,  we l l  I  th ink  one or  two issues 10 

s t i l l  need ing  to  be  f ina l i sed,  pa r t i cu la r l y  in  regard  to  the  

payment  to  subcont rac tors .   Cha i r,  the  w i tness has f ina l l y  

p repared the  a f f idav i t  wh ich  she has under taken to  have i t  

s igned and commiss ioned,  and p rov ided to  us  today.   

 I  know tha t  I  had not  ye t  rece ived i t  by  the  t ime I  

a r r i ved  he re .   But  hopefu l l y  we w i l l  g ive  i t  to  Mr  S ingh 

ton igh t  i f  i t  i s  has come th rough and i t  can be addressed 

on Wednesday.   I t  i s  a  m inor  i ssue .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Ja .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Bu t  fo r  now is  the  Tegeta  mat te rs .   The  20 

pre -payments  tha t  were  made to  Tegeta .   The guarantee  

tha t  was a lso  i n i t ia ted  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  Mr  S ingh is  ab le  to  

share  in fo rmat ion  w i th  the  commiss ion  on  tha t .   He  wou ld  

do  so  by  re ference o f  the  vers ion  o f  the  o ther  w i tnesses.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  we,  you  sa id  we dea l t  w i th  the  

t rave l l ing .   Which  is  t rue .   I  no ted  when the  personne l  f rom 

the  t rave l  agency came,  tha t  la rge ly  the i r  ev idence and  

your  ev idence converged.   The on ly  i ssues as  I  reca l l  i s  

s imp ly  tha t  f rom your  vers ion  you say Mr  Essa had noth ing  

to  do  w i th  your  book ings th rough Trave l  Exce l lence .    

 Whereas they say he  in t roduced you and they used 

h is  [ ind i s t inc t ]  what  they ca l l  gua ranto r,  bu t  they sa id  tha t  

most  o f  the  book ings you ca l led  to  make,  asked them to  10 

make book ings.   They a l so  sa id  tha t  you ca l led  to  say 

somebody w i l l  come and br ing  payment  wh ich  was in  cash.   

 There  is  on ly  one I  th ink  t ransact ion  i f  I  reca l l ,  

payment  tha t  was made I  th ink  t h rough EFT,  i f  I  am not  

m is taken o f  wh ich  i t  came f rom Mr  Sa l im Essa and I  d id  

ask  tha t  they shou ld  t ry  and obta in  the  documenta t ion  f rom 

the  bank tha t  m ight  show exact ly  when tha t  payment  came.   

 But  la rge ly  there  seems to  be  convergence between  

your  ve rs ion  and  the i r  vers ion  in  regard  to  your  t rave l l ing  

book ings.   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Le t  us  cont inue.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   That  payment  Cha i r,  i s  the  s ix ty  

thousand.   I  th ink  Mr  S ingh,  they  sa id  they rece ived i t  v ia  

cash and depos i t ed  the  money in to  the  bank account ,  bu t  

there  was a  payment  wh ich  they cou ld ,  we l l  the  

ar rangement  was made wi th  Mr  Asha Chawla  and the re  was 
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no  ident i f i ca t ion  o f  the  payee on the  bank account  and I  

th ink  the  po in t  ra ised by  the  Cha i rperson,  I  rose  po in ted ly  

in  regard  to  tha t  one.   

 Mr  S ingh,  on  the  Tegeta  mat te rs  there  are  two main  

i ssues or  th ree .   Wel l ,  one is  re la ted  to  the  o the r.   I t  i s  the  

submiss ion  o f  December  2015 fo r  p re -payment  o f  1 .6 

m i l l ion  rand to ,  and you w i l l  te l l  the  Cha i rperson  to  who 

because the  board  members  say i t  was to  G lenco.  

 You w i l l  g ive  the  Cha i rperson your  unders tand ing  o f  

tha t  submiss ion .   That  submiss ion  i s  fo l lowed by  a  10 

guarantee o f  the  same amount .   In  respect  o f  the 

guarantee i t  i s  c lear  in  whose favour  the  guarantee was 

issued,  tha t  was in  favour  o f  Tegeta .   

CHAIRPERSON:   A re  we go ing  to  use Eskom Bund le  18?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Cha i r,  we are  go ing  to  use Eskom 

Bund le  18 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER SC:   Cha i rpe rson,  wh i le  my  

learned f r iend is  busy w i th  tha t  maybe he can a lso  jus t  

ident i f y  fo r  us  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Be fore  you p roceed.   We wi l l  s ta r t  f rom 

what  page Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  i s ,  I  w i l l  s ta r t  f rom page 352 po in t  89 .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t .   I  jus t  wanted to  make su re  

tha t  I  am on the  r igh t  page.   
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  i t  i s  the  beg inn ing  o f  an  a f f idav i t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Wel l ,  a  s ta tement .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   O f  a  s ta tement  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   You know,  Mr  E f ron  has been sa id  to  be  

mak ing  submi t t ing  to  the  commiss ion  s ta tements  wh i le  

o ther  peop le  are  submi t t ing  a f f idav i t s .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   A f f idav i t s .    

CHAIRPERSON:   I  have not iced tha t  th is  i s  a  s ta tement  

and i t  does not  have a  da te  as  to  when he d id  i t .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  I  be l ieve  he tes t i f ied  on  the  bas i s  10 

o f  i t ,  in  phase 1  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  we l l  i f  he  . . .  i f  i t  was used fo r  

tes t i f y ing  he  wou ld  have conf i rmed under  oa th  tha t  i t  i s  

t rue .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   And cor rec t ,  bu t  w i tnesses have po in ted  

out  tha t  he  seems to  be  send ing  s ta tements  tha t  a re  no t  

under  oa th  or  tha t  a re  no t  a f f i rmed dec la ra t ions because 

there  was the  one tha t  he  submi t ted  th is  yea r,  wh ich  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   He d id .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink  was a l so  sa id  to  be  jus t  a  normal  

s ta tement .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  was h is  s ta tement  and we have  

ra ised tha t  w i th  h is  a t to rneys Cha i r.   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  because i t  i s  qu i te  s t range.   

Everybody is  submi t t ing  a f f idav i t s  o r  a f f i rmed dec lara t ions.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   No,  we have ra ised i t  w i th  h is  

a t to rneys.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   He is  overseas,  I  do  no t  know where .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   And we have  asked h im to  go  to  the 

South  A f r i can embassy to  have the  submiss ions.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Counse l  fo r  Mr  S ingh  10 

wanted to  say someth ing?  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER SC:   Cha i rperson,  I  jus t  wanted 

my learned f r iend  . . .  he  says the  board  members  say i t  was  

a  payment  to  G lenco.   I f  he  can maybe jus t  ident i f y  fo r  us  

wh ich  board  members  so  tha t  we can a l l  be  on  the  same 

page.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am not  sure ,  I  am not  su re  i s  tha t  . . .  

what  was tha t  Mr  Se leka?  Were  you s t i l l  j us t  te l l ing  us  

what  Mr  S ingh ’s  ev idence w i l l  be  about?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   I  was g i v ing  Mr  S ingh a  20 

background . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Le t  me a l low you to  s ta r t .   Jus t  s ta r t  

a f resh . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   On tha t .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   And then I  w i l l  hear,  ja .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  I  was say ing  the re  are  main ly  two  

issues Mr  S ingh.   You can say th ree  but  the  second one is  

re la ted  to  the  f i rs t ,  wh ich  is  one is  the  submiss ion  fo r  the  

1 .68  mi l l ion  rand .   B i l l i on ,  and w i th  tha t  i s  the  guarantee  

fo r  the  same amount .   

 Then I  sa id  to  you you w i l l  exp la in  to  the  

Cha i rperson your  unders tand ing  o f  who was meant  to  

rece ive  tha t  payment  o f  1 .68  b i l l i on  because the  board  10 

members  in  the i r  tes t imony befo re  the  commiss ion ,  you  

wou ld  have seen a l so  in  the i r  a f f idav i t s ,  tha t  they 

unders tood i t  to  be  a  payment  in  favour  o f  G lenco.   

 Then I  sa id  we l l ,  in  regard  to  the  guarantee i t  i s  

c lea r  who was the  benef ic ia ry  to  rece ive  the  guarantee.   

Those are  the  two aspects .   Then the  th i rd  happens  in  Apr i l  

2016.   That  i s  the  pre-payment  o f  659 mi l l ion  rand,  and th is  

one is  a lso  c lea r  tha t  i t  was a  pre -payment  to  Tegeta .   

 That  Cha i r,  i s  o ther  i ssues.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Cont inue.   20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.   Mr  S ingh,  the  . . .  we were  

taken th rough what  I  wou ld  say to  be  phase 1  ev idence las t  

week ex tens ive l y  by  Mr  Koko to  the  po in t  where  the  

bus iness rescue prac t i t ioners  i ssue a  le t te r  on  20  August  

2015 tha t  they cannot  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry  Mr  Se leka.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Can I  jus t  ra ise  someth ing  tha t  I  am not  

sure  where  I  have ra i sed i t  be fore .   I  do  no t  know i f  I  

ind ica ted  tha t  the  in ten t ion  i s  tha t  when we ad jou rned on  

Wednesday even ing ,  tha t  shou ld  be  the  las t  t ime  fo r  Mr  

S ingh to  g ive  ora l  ev idence.   

 D id  I  ment ion  tha t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cha i r,  we . . .  we l l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am more  concerned about  he r.   Do you 10 

know anyth ing  about  tha t?  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER SC:   Cha i rperson,  you w i l l  reca l l  I  

th ink  the  second  t ime or  when we s tar ted  we ind i ca ted  to  

the  Cha i rpe rson depend ing  on how Mr  S ingh ’s  ev idence 

progresses.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER SC:   We might ,  we l l  we reserved  

our  r igh t  to  po ten t ia l l y  f i l e  an  a f f idav i t  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER SC:   Ins tead o f  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   O f  o ra l ,  yes .   

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER SC:   Indeed.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER SC:   Bu t  we w i l l  wa i t  and see how 

my lea rned f r iend  per fo rms today . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER SC:   In  respect  o f  h is  par t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  no  tha t  i s  a l r igh t .   

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER SC:   Thank you Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  I  am happy tha t ,  tha t  i s  what  I  

wanted to  check to  tha t  we are  on  the  same page.   So tha t  

i s  f ine .   

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER SC:   My learned f r iend gave an  

ind ica t ion  today tha t  he  is  go ing  to  f in ish  w i th  my c l i en t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   10 

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER SC:   So  tha t  wou ld  leave Basson  

fo r  Wednesday.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  no  tha t  i s  a l r igh t .   Mr  Se leka,  tha t  

i s  what  I  wanted to  check,  whethe r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   We have ta lked about  what  cou ld  happen 

a f te r  you are  done.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  no  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   A l r igh t .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Hopefu l l y  I  w i l l  no t  f in ish  w i th  Mr  S ingh,  

bu t  I  w i l l  f in ish  w i th  h is  ev idence.   Thank you Cha i r.   So Mr  

S ingh,  i f  you  look  a t  th is  a f f idav i t ,  I  mean the  s ta tement  o f  

Mr  E f ron ,  in  Eskom Bund le  18 ,  page the  a f f idav i t  s ta r ts  on  
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the  page I  have g iven,  35  I  mean the  s ta tement .   

 352,  po in t  89  bu t  I  want  to  p ick  i t  up  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SINGH:   Sor ry  Mr  Se leka,  tha t  i s  the  b lack  numbers ,  

r igh t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The b lack  numbers  yes.   I  want  to  p ick  

i t  up  a t  page 352  po in t  100.   Paragraph 48.   48  ta lks  about  

the  appo in tment  o f  the  bus iness rescue prac t i t ione rs  and i t  

reads:  

 “Fo l lowing the  appo in tment  o f  4  August  2015,  

the  bus iness rescue prac t i t ione rs  i dent i f ied  the  10 

CSA as the  key issue caus ing  the  OCH and the  

OCM f inanc ia l  ha rdsh ip .   The bus iness rescue 

prac t i t ioner ’s  main  ob jec t i ve  was to  avo id  the  

l iqu ida t ion  process and accord ing l y  they 

requested a  meet ing  w i th  Eskom,  w i th  the  v iew 

to  reach ing  an agreement  wh ich  wou ld  avo id  

l iqu ida t ion .   However,  Eskom re fused to  meet  

w i th  the  bus iness  rescue prac t i t ioners .   On 20 

August  2015 . . . ”  

 Before  I  read on  Mr  S ingh,  were  you aware  o f  the  20 

in te rac t ion  be tween the  bus iness rescue prac t i t ioners  and 

Eskom?   

MR SINGH:   No s i r.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   You were  no t  aware?  

MR SINGH:   No.   
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Okay.   So you wou ld  no t  have 

been aware  o f  th is  exchange be tween them which  I  w i l l  

dea l  w i th  in  a  shor t  wh i le  where  they sent  a  le t te r  to  Eskom 

and they say they cannot ,  they are  unab le  in  the  

c i rcumstances to  cont inue supp ly ing  coa l .   

MR SINGH:   No s i r.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   You were  no t  aware?  

MR SINGH:   A t  th is  s tage,  no  s i r.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Wel l ,  the  20 t h  o f  August  they do  

tha t .   When you tu rn  the  page,  pa rag raph 50 on page 352 10 

po in t  101.   A meet ing  ge ts  to  be  ca l led  a t  Eskom.   The  

paragraph reads:  

 “A f te r  the  bus iness rescue p rac t i t ioners  has 

se i zed the  supp ly  o f  coa l  to  Eskom,  Eskom 

requested a  meet ing  w i th  the  BRP’s .   The 

BRP’s  and I  a r ranged to  meet  w i th  Mr  Mole fe 

and the  then group execut ive  techno logy o f  

Eskom,  Mr  Koko on 3  September  2015. ”  

 Mr  Koko has tes t i f ied  about  th is  meet ing :  

 “However,  when  we ar r i ved a t  Eskom’s  20 

premises,  Mr  Mole fe  and Mr  Koko ins is ted  tha t  

the  BRP’s  remain  ou ts ide  and I  acco rd ing ly  

met  w i th  them a lone. ”  

 What  comes out  o f  th is  meet ing  Mr  S ingh,  when we 

read the  a f f idav i t  i s  the  agreement  to  re ins ta te  the  supp ly  
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o f  coa l  to  Eskom.   Have you had a  chance to  read th is  

a f f idav i t?    

MR SINGH:   No s i r.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Paragraph 51:  

 “A t  th is  meet ing  Mr  Mole fe  ins is ted  tha t  I  

res tore  the  supp ly  o f  coa l  to  Hendr ina .   I  

exp la ined to  Mr  Mole fe  tha t  i t  was the  BRP’s  

who had se i zed the  supp ly  o f  coa l  and had any 

dec is ion  to  recommence supp ly  was the i rs .   In  

my pos i t ion  as  a  representa t i ve  o f  G lenco,  as  10 

opposed to  on  beha l f  o f  OCH and or  OCM 

which  were  under  the  cont ro l  o f  the  BRP’s ,  

wh ich  wou ld  need  to  . . . ”  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Why a re  you  read ing  a l l  o f  tha t  fo r  

somebody who was not  in  tha t  meet ing?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja ,  okay.   Le t  me get  to  the  jus t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  you can jus t  summar i se  what  20 

emerged f rom tha t  meet ing .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   In  so  fa r  as  i t  i s  re levant  to  the  quest ion  

you want  to  ra ise  w i th  h im.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   So what  emerges 
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then f rom th is  meet ing  Mr  S ingh,  i s  the  agreement  be tween  

the  par t ies  wh ich  is  Eskom on the  one hand,  and the  

bus iness rescue  prac t i t ioners  to  re ins ta te  the  supp ly  o f  

coa l  to  Eskom.  

 Now tha t  supp ly  happens on the  bas i s  o f  the  

ex i s t ing  coa l  supp ly  ag reement  be tween Eskom.   So what  

the  ev idence f rom Mr  E f ron  shows,  i s  tha t  they then  

cont inue to  supp ly  coa l  a t  R150-00 per  ton .   Now Cha i r,  

w i th  tha t  I  want  to  show Mr  S ingh the  ev idence o f  Mr  

R ishaban Mood ley  and i f  you cou ld  p lease,  Eskom Bund le  10 

14.   

 Do not  remove the  o the r  one ye t ,  I  jus t  want  to  read 

a  parag raph f rom Eskom Bund le  14(D) .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do I  need to  go  there?  I  m igh t ,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Not  rea l l y  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Jus t  read i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  the  Mr  Mood ley  who was the  

a t to rney fo r  Eskom for  the  record ,  Eskom Bund le  14(D) ,  

page 894,  parag raph 32.  

MR SINGH:   B  you say?  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   D .   14(D) .  

MR SINGH:   I  have got  B .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  my jun io r  w i l l  ass i s t  you.  

MR SINGH:   18?   

CHAIRPERSON:   And do you th ink  Mr  S ingh wou ld  need to  



24 MAY 2021– DAY 401 
 

Page 171 of 266 
 

see i t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   He can s imp ly  l i s ten  to  i t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe l i s ten  to ,  Mr  S ingh i f  a f te r  the  

quest ion  is  done  you th ink  you must  look  a t  i t ,  then you 

can look a t  i t .   

MR SINGH:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  bear  in  m ind th is  i s  what  emerges 

f rom the  meet ing  o f  the  3 r d  o f  September  and about  what  

happens thereaf te r  i s  what  Mr  Mood ley  wr i tes  he re .   He 

says:  10 

 “CDH ass i s ted  Eskom wi th  p repar ing  the  

necessary  documents  fo r  i n te r im a r rangements  

be tween Eskom and the  BRP o f  G lenco 

bus iness rescue,  so  as  to  ensure  the  

cont inuat ion  o f  coa l  supp ly  to  the  power  

s ta t ion  and in  o rder  to  m i t iga te  aga ins t  the  r i sk  

o f  the  power  s ta t ion  no t  be ing  supp l ied  w i th  

any coa l  by  OCM.   Th is  in te r im ar rangement  

pers is ted  fo r  the  dura t ion  o f  the  bus iness  

rescue p roceed ings f rom about  August  2015 to  20 

Ju l y  2016.   The BRP or  the  bus iness rescue 

prac t i t ioners  has g iven the  da tes  o f  the  

cont inuat ion  f rom September  2016 ,  2015 I  beg  

your  pa rdon to  October  2016. ”  

 Now for  tha t  du ra t ion  accord ing  to  the i r  ve rs ion ,  
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the i r  cont inued to  be  supp ly  o f  coa l  to  Eskom by OCM.   I  

wou ld  l i ke  you to  exp la in  to  the  Cha i rpe rson f i rs t l y  in  

regard  to  the  submiss ion  fo r  1 .6  b i l l i on  rand pre-payment ,  

what  you unders tood tha t  payment  to  re la te  to  o r  tha t  

submiss ion  to  re la te  to  and who was to  be  pa id  in  t e rms o f  

tha t  submiss ion .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Th is  i s  the  submiss ion  tha t  we f ind  

where?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The submiss ion  Cha i r,  i t  i s  a lso  in  

Eskom Bund le  18A.   I t  i s  on  page 493.    10 

MR SINGH:   Four  n ine  th ree?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Four  n ine  th ree ,  Eskom Bund le  18A.   

So on page 497 Mr  S ingh,  we see  tha t  you were  one o f  the  

s ignator ies  to  th is  document .    

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Cont inue then.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  Mr  S ingh.  

MR SINGH:   Sor ry  Mr  Se leka,  the  quest ion  you wou ld  l i ke  

me to  answer?  

CHAIRPERSON:   He was ask ing  what  you unders tood tha t  20 

submiss ion  to  re la te  to ,  I  th ink  tha t  was the  f i rs t  po in t .   

F i r s t  leg  o f  the  quest ion .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  and who was to  be  g i ven . . .  who 

was go ing  to  be  the  rec ip ien t  o f  the  pre -payment .   

MR SINGH:   Okay.   So Mr  Cha i r,  as  Mr  Se leka has  po in ted  
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ou t ,  the  submiss ion  re la ted  to  the  pre-purchase fo r  coa l  

f rom the  OCM.   The reason beh ind  the  submiss ion  was to  

m i t iga te  as  po in ted  out  in  the  document ,  the  supp l ie r  o f  

coa l  r i sk  tha t  had been  ident i f ied  re la t ing  to  OCM as we l l  

as  supp ly  to ,  I  th ink  i t  was the  Kroonfonte in ,  ja  f rom the  

Kroonfonte in  Mine wh ich  is  a l so  a  subs id ia ry  o f  OCM.   

 So i t  rea l l y  re la ted  to  the  supp ly  o f  coa l ,  re la t ing  to  

OCM as we l l  as  an  issue re la t ing  to  Ex i ra  in  te rms o f  the 

supp ly  o f  coa l .   Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  was the  background  beh ind  

the  submiss ion .   In  te rms o f  the  pa r ty  tha t  was supposed to  10 

be  pa id  fo r  the  coa l ,  i f  we look a t  the  under l ined,  in  te rms 

o f  the  reso lu t ion ,  th is  i s  a  reso lu t ion  tha t  i s  submi t ted  to  

the  board ,  fo r  the  board  to  approve .   

 The under l y ing  agreements  obv ious l y  ge t  p repared 

and the  under l y ing  ag reements  then obv ious ly  represent  

the  under l y ing  lega l  en t i t ies  tha t  en tered  in to  the 

agreement ,  and  the  lega l  agreement  tha t  was then 

prepared,  I  th ink  i t  i s  in  here  somewhere  as  we l l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The what?  

MR SINGH:   The  lega l  ag reement  tha t  was,  underp ins  the  20 

reso lu t ion .   The  coa l  supp ly  agreement  tha t  was  s igned 

between . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Oh,  the  coa l  supp ly  agreement?  

MR SINGH:   Yes ,  so  tha t  i s  where  you w i l l  f ind  Mr  Cha i r,  

and th i s  i s  I  th ink  where  Mr  Se leka is  go ing  to ,  i s  you say  
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here  OCM,  but  the  coa l  supp ly  agreement  i s  ac tua l l y  made 

out  to  Tegeta .   I s  tha t  the  nexus?  

CHAIRPERSON:   He jus t  wants  your  unders tand ing  o f  who 

was supposed to  be  pa id .   

MR SINGH:   Yes,  then hence I  am say ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR SINGH:   Th is  document  eventua l l y  leads  to  the 

under l ined cont rac t  tha t  ge ts  s igned.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR SINGH:   And  Eskom cannot  pay 1 .6  b i l l i on  w i thout  a  10 

cont rac t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR SINGH:   So  the  under ly ing  cont rac t ,  e f fec t i ve ly  gave 

r i se  to  the  fac t  tha t  Tegeta  ge ts  pa id  or  po ten t ia l l y  wou ld  

have been pa id  1 .6  b i l l i on  fo r  the  pre-pu rchase o f  coa l  

f rom OCM.   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  who d id  you unders tand a t  the  t ime o f  

s ign ing  the  submiss ion  to  be  the  in tended rec ip ien t?   Was  

i t  Tegeta  or  was i t  OCM under  G lenco?  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r,  f rom my unders tand ing  a t  the  t ime,  20 

f rom the  read ing  o f  the  submiss ion  and enqu i r ies  tha t  I  

have made o f  Mr  Koko and Ms Dan ie l s ,  the  payment  was 

in tended to  be  made to  Tegeta .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR SINGH:   And Mr  Cha i r,  in  answer ing  one  o f  the  
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quest ions o f  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   And then,  and tha t  I  guess is  in  

acco rdance w i th  the  c lear  word ing  o f  C lause,  paragraph  

2 .2  o f  the  submiss ion  wh ich  was say ing  you wanted a  

reso lu t ion  o f  the  board  tha t  wou ld  say tha t  the  group ch ie f  

execut ive  togethe r  w i th  the  group execut ive  fo r  genera t ion  

are  hereby author i sed to  nego t ia te  and conc lude an  

agreement  w i th  the  proposed new owners  o f  OCM in  regard  

to  the  pre-payment  to  secure  the  f i xed  coa l  p r i ce  fo r  a  

per iod  o f  12  months .   10 

 I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r,  yes .   In  te rms o f  parag raph  2 .1 .2  to  

be  more  spec i f i c .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  2 .2  no t  2 .1 .2 .  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON:   A t  page 475.   

MR SINGH:   I f  you  are  a t  page 18/493.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry,  have  I  gone to  a  wrong th ing  

now?  Four  n ine  th ree .  

MR SINGH:   Yes,  four  n ine  th ree .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Page 493.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  okay.   I  th ink  I  made . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  i s  the  evo lu t ion  o f  the  . . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay be fo re  i t  go t  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    To  where  we a re  on  page 493.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t  me –  oh  okay.  

MR SINGH:    Bu t  you are  cor rec t  in  you r  summary.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay –  yes.  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The group ch ie f  execut ive  together  w i th  

the  group execut ive  fo r  Genera t ion  –  oh ,  i t  i s  the  same 

th ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  the  same th ing .   I t  i s  jus t  the 

number ing  o f  pa ragraphs.  

MR SINGH:    The  number ing  is  i t ,  ja .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  –  ja ,  okay.  

MR SINGH:    So,  Mr  Cha i r  tha t  i s  the  paragraph tha t  we –  

tha t  I  re fe r  to .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  in  address ing  tha t  quest ion  and  

respond ing  to  Mr  Se leka ’s  quest ion  around board  members  

and the i r  v iew,  Mr  Cha i r  I  th ink  the  submiss ion  -  i f  you  read  

the  submiss ion  in  i t s  en t i re ty,  I  th ink  i t  makes i t  qu i te  c lear  

tha t  fo r  a l l  in ten ts  and purposes,  th is  payment  was be ing  

made in  l ieu  o f  an  acqu is i t ion  t ransact ion .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    In?  

MR SINGH:    In  l ieu  o f  a  t ransac t ion  tha t  re la ted  to  an  

acqu is i t ion  o f  the  m ine.   I f  you  look a t  –  Mr  Cha i r,  t he  word  

proposed owners  or  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  you  say in  l ieu  o f  –  in  l ieu  o f  i s  in  
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the  face  o f .   You mean in  an t ic ipa t ion  o f  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  o f  an  acqu is i t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

MR SINGH:    And  I  say  tha t  Mr  Cha i r  because i f  you look a t  

the  submiss ion  as  I  sa id ,  i f  you  read i t  in  i t s  en t i re ty,  

p roposed owners  –  new owners ,  in  the  en t i re ty  o f  the  

document ,  i t  ge ts  ment ioned a t  leas t  s ix  to  e igh t  t imes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR SINGH:    They then go on to  ment ion ,  Mr  Cha i r  i f  you  

look a t  fo r  example  paragraph 3 .1 .6 ,  they ment ion  tha t  a  10 

due d i l igence  has commenced on the  10 t h  o f  

November  2015 and is  cur ren t ly  under  way.   3 .1 .6 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    You say,  3 .1 .6 .  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  ja  i t  i s .  

MR SINGH:    I t  says  tha t  i f  you look a t  the  second  

sentence,  Mr  Cha i r.   The due d i l igence commenced  around  

10 t h  o f  November  and is  cur ren t ly  under  way.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  20 

MR SINGH:    And  tha t  i s  p receded by  the  fac t  tha t  the  

bus iness rescue prac t i t ioners  had  brought  togethe r  to  the  

tab le  a t  I  th ink  i t  was a  meet ing  on  the  25 t h  o f  November  or  

there  or  the reabouts .   So,  Mr  Cha i r  i t  wou ld  be  d i f f icu l t  to  

unders tand how th is  wou ld  no t  be  an t ic ipa ted  tha t  th is  
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wou ld  be  a  payment  tha t  was been made in  an t ic ipa t ion  o f  

an  acqu is i t ion  o f  a  m ine.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  o f  course ,  Mr  S ingh i t  i s  no t  –  the 

one d i f f i cu l t y  i s  why the  board  shou ld  be  asked to  reso lve  

tha t  payment  be  made to  somebody who is  no t  the  owner  o f  

the  m iners  were  a t  the  t ime.   I s  i t  no t  because Tegeta  a t  

tha t  s tage had not  conc luded any  –  had not  conc luded a  

sake,  i s  i t  no t?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r  tha t  i s  cor rec t .   I f  you  then have  

regard  to  the  ac tua l  under ly ing  cont rac t ,  Mr  Cha i r  you w i l l  10 

see tha t  tha t  –  the  under l y ing  cont rac t  conta ined 

suspens ive  cond i t ions .  

CHAIRPERSON:    [A ff i rms] .  

MR SINGH:    And  those suspens ive  cond i t ions ,  Mr  Cha i r  

wou ld  e f fec t i ve l y  had –  wou ld  have needed Tegeta  to  

ac tua l l y  take  ownersh ip  o f  the  mine before  the  payment  

wou ld  e f fec t i ve l y  have been made.   There  were  f i ve  

suspens ive  cond i t ions  conta ined in  the  agreement .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  the  reso lu t i on  d id  no t  say  tha t  the 

payment  shou ld  be  before  cer ta in  cond i t ions  were  met  in  20 

th is  –  the  ac tua l  reso lu t ion  d id  no t  say  tha t .  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  the  –  the  reso lu t ion  does  not  say  

tha t  per  se ,  bu t  i f  you  look a t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    In  o ther  words,  the  reso lu t ion  tha t  was  

ask  –  tha t  the  board  was asked to  p rov ide ,  was 
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uncond i t iona l .   I s  i t  no t?  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r  i f  you  look a t  2 .1 .3  i t  says :  

“Th is  agreement  sha l l  be  sub jec t  to  the  

necessary  regu la tory  approva ls  hav ing  

been obta ined by  Eskom and the  supp l ie r  

respect ive ly,  as  and when necessary. ”  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    So ,  and then i f  you look a t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    You say one or  more  o f  those approva ls  

were  cond i t ions  p recedent .  10 

MR SINGH:    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Where  do  we f ind  those 

cond i t ions?  

MR SINGH:    I  th ink  i f  we jus t  go  to  the  agreement .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  i t  the  CSA? 

MR SINGH:    Yes.   Wel l ,  no  i t  i s  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wel l  –  no .  

MR SINGH:    The  under ly ing  agreement  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    The sa le  agreement?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  le t  me t r y  to  ass is t .   Mr  S ingh I  20 

found,  I  have a  f lag  w i th  one on –  I  wonder  whether  th is  i s  

the  s igned one?  

CHAIRPERSON:    A t  page?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    From page 758.  

MR SINGH:    7 -5-8 .  



24 MAY 2021– DAY 401 
 

Page 180 of 266 
 

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  th ink  fo r  p resent  purposes we can 

probab ly  use th is  one.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  am say ing ,  Mr  Cha i r  I  th ink  fo r  

p resent  purposes -  th is  i s  no t  the  s igned one,  bu t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  bu t  i t  shou ld  be  the  same.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Bu t  I  am assuming we cou ld  use th is  

one.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Oh,  the  agreement  you were  ta lk ing 10 

to  about  was fo r  –  was the  pre-purchase o f  coa l .  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    As  opposed to  the  sa le  o f  coa l  –  o f  no  ,  

no ,  no t  coa l .   The  sa le  o f  purchase  o f  OCM.  

MR SINGH:    OCM,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.   A l r igh t .  

MR SINGH:    So  th is  agreement ,  Mr  Cha i r  i s  the  ou tput  o f  

the  reso lu t ion  –  the  pre-pu rchase.   And you w i l l  no t ice ,  

Mr  Cha i r  i f  you  go to  page 18-759 . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    18?  20 

MR SINGH:    18  Yes,  18-759 . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  the  one I  am look ing  a t  does not  

have paragraph 18 or  c lause 18.  

MR SINGH:    No,  no ,  S i r.   Page 18.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  you are  look ing  a t  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]  
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MR SINGH:    Page 18-759.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  18  is  the  Bund le .  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  Bund le  18 .   You do not  need to  

ment ion  18 ,  jus t  ment ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH:    Oh,  okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  what  i s  the  page number  then?  

MR SINGH:    759 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    759 ja ,  I  am there .  

MR SINGH:    And  then i f  you look  a t  cond i t ion  p recedent ,  10 

parag raph 5  in  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes?  

MR SINGH:    So  those agreements  the re ,  I  mean  those 

cond i t ions  speak to  them,  okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  me jus t  have a  look.  

“Save fo r  c lauses  1 ,  5  and 7  to  12 ,  a l l  o f  

wh ich  become e f fec t i ve  immedia te l y,  th is  

agreement  i s  sub jec t  to  the  fu l f i lment  o f  

the  cond i t ions  p recedented by  no  la te r  

than 17h00 on 31 March 2016.   5 .1 .  A l l  20 

approva ls  and  concerns under  the  

Minera l  and Pet ro leum Resources  

Deve lopment  Act  requ i red  fo r  the  shared  

t ransfer  inc lud ing  bu t  no t  l im i ted  to  

Sect ion  11  approva l  has been ob ta ined  
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by  the  par t ies .   A t  best  they share  

t ransfer…”  

That  i s  about  the  sa le  o f  OCM.  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    “A l l  agreements  and 

t ransact ions contempla ted  in  th is  

agreement ,  w i th  the  ex terna ls  tha t  have  

been approved  by  the  comple t ion  

au thor i t ies  tha t  suppor t  OCM,  the  

Companies  Safe ty  Act  and o f  cou rse  OSB 10 

tha t  g ives  the  next  conf i rmat ion  no t ice  tha t  

conf i rm tha t  pursuant  the  share ,  t ransfer  

the  shares on  in  OCM have been  

t ransfer red . ”  

Th is  does not  connect  w i th  the  payment  o f  –  o r  does i t ,  

w i th  the  payment  o f  tha t  amount  i n  the  –  or  the  payment  

contempla ted  in  the  2 .1 .2 ,  i s  i t  no t?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Or  do  I  m isunders tand someth ing? 

MR SINGH:    No,  th is  –  th is ,  I  th ink  i s  a  d ra f t .   You w i l l  f ind  20 

tha t  there  is  ano ther  one tha t ,  the  f ina l  one tha t  ac tua l l y  

cor re la tes  to  the  R1.6  b i l l i on  payment .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  I  see.  

MR SINGH:    Ac tua l l y  i f  you  look  a t  c lause 6 .2  o r  6 .1 ,  i t  

does re ference to  R1.68 b i l l i on  payment .  



24 MAY 2021– DAY 401 
 

Page 183 of 266 
 

CHAIRPERSON:    “Eskom wi l l  make an advance 

payment  to  OCM to  pre -purchase fu tu re  

coa l  supp ly  in  te rms o f  the  ex is t ing  coa l  

supp ly  agreement  in  the  amount  o f  

R1,680,240 payab le  on  fu l f i lment  o f  the  

cond i t ions  precedent  se t  ou t  in  c lause 5 .1”  

Wel l ,  tha t  m ight  connect  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH:    And  then tha t  leads . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    The payment ,  ja .  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  leads then to  6 .2 ,  Mr  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    “6 .2  Pursuant  to  6 .1 ,  Eskom wi l l  

i ssue a  guarantee in  favour  o f  Tegeta  in  

the  amount  o f  R1,680,000 to  secure  the  

payment  o f  the  advance payment .   I t  i s  

recorded tha t  the  issue o f  the  grant  w i l l  be 

cond i t iona l  on  the  s im i la r  te rms as  se t  ou t  

in  c lause 5  hereo f . ”  

So,  c lause 6 .1  i f  tha t  a lso  ex is t  in  the  s igned one,  says 

tha t  the  advance  payment  w i l l  happen,  w i l l  be  payab le  on  

fu l f i lment  o f  the  cond i t ions  precedent  wh ich  means there  20 

w i l l  have been –  there  wou ld  have been a  t ransfe r  o f  the  

shares f rom Glencoe to  Tegeta .  

MR SINGH:    To  Tegeta .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So ,  tha t  i s  tha t .   Of  course  tha t  was not  

be fore  the  board  because tha t  wou ld  have been prepared  
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a f te r,  i s  i t  no t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  Mr  Cha i r  bu t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Ja ,  bu t  

MR SINGH:    And  you see,  6 .1  does . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    The po in t  I  am mak ing  is  tha t  the  

agreement  tha t  was conc luded,  ensured tha t  the  payment  

to  Tegeta  wou ld  on ly  happened when the  shares have been  

t ransfer red .  

MR SINGH:    Wel l  ac tua l l y,  Mr  Cha i r  th is  agreement  

env isaged a  payment  to  OCM d i rec t l y.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    And  by  v i r tue  o f  p rov id ing  payment  secur i t y  to  

Tegeta  who was  the  purchaser  o f  the  –  o f  OCM,  6 .2  

prov ided the  guarantee.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Of  course ,  OCM as such the  who le  

th ing  was whethe r,  i s  i t  OCM under  G lencoe or  OCM under  

Tegeta .   I s  i t  no t?  

MR SINGH:    Hence,  Mr  Cha i r  th is  makes i t  key,  hey.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  there  was a  d i s t inc t ion  be tween when 20 

t ransfer  o f  ownersh ip  ac tua l l y  happened.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .   No,  no ,  I  unders tand tha t .   

The re fe rence to  the  cond i t ions  precedent ,  you ind ica te  

tha t  tha t  payment  wou ld  on l y  happen a f te r  Tegeta  has 

come on board  
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MR SINGH:    On board ,  exact ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Okay,  Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  thank you,  Cha i r.   Mr  S ingh we 

know tha t  the  submiss ion  was submi t ted  on  an urgent  bas is  

to  the  board .   So,  so  much urgent  tha t  the  board  dec ided  

the  mat te r  on  a  round rob in  bas i s .   What  was the  reason  

fo r  the  urgency?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  i f  we go back to  the  –  where  do  we  

get  the  submiss ion?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The submiss ion ,  page 493,  10 

Eskom Bund le  18 ,  Docket  A .  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r  as  I  sa id ,  the  document  was  look ing  

to  a l lev ia te  supp l ie r  –  coa l  supp ly  r i sk  and based  on the  

d iscuss ions tha t  we had w i th  Mr  Koko a t  the  t ime,  he  

ident i f ied  th is  to  be  a  s ign i f i can t  mat te r  tha t  needed to  be  

cons idered by  the  board ,  and  hence submi t ted  the  

documenta t ion  tha t  needed to  be  cons idered on an  urgent  

bas is .  

I  th ink  i t  was w i th  h im and Ms Dan ie l s  tha t  –  

ac tua l l y  I  th ink  i t  was Ms Daniels that prepared the documentation 20 

that it should be a round robin resolution as to whether it needed to go 

to board of IFC.  I think that was something that was also discussed 

previously in some of the testimony that was provided to the 

Commission. 

But by and large, Mr Chair it was the supply of all risk issue 
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that led to the urgency that needed to be  ...[intervenes] 

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  ac tua l l y,  there  was no such urgency 

tha t  the  mat te r  cou ld  no t  be  d i scussed by  the  board  in  a  

proper  meet ing .   By  then in  a  few days ’ t ime or  the  

fo l low ing week,  i s  i t  no t?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  am not  aware  o f  the  fac t  tha t  

there  was no urgency –  I  th ink  i f  Mr  Se leka can e labora te  

on  tha t ,  then i f   . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    From you ’ re  your  know obv ious ly,  he  

wants  to  f ind  ou t  f rom you whethe r  on  your  unders tand ing ,  10 

where  there  any  grounds fo r  th is  to  be  t r iggered as  so  

urgent  –  i t  i s  a  very  b ig  amount ,  i t  i s  so  urgent  tha t  the  

board  must  dec ide  th is  w i thout  a  p roper  meet ing .   You do  

not  know o f  any reason why the  board  cou ld  no t  have been 

asked to  have a  proper  meet ing  because r i sk  i s  an  

impor tan t  mat te r.  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r  I  th ink ,  i f  you  look a t  the  s ta te 

o f  Eskom at  the  t ime,  I  th ink  tha t  wou ld  have p layed in to  

the  mat te r  o f  whether  i t  was urgent ,  o r  no t .   I  th ink  Eskom 

prev ious l y  had –  I  th ink  in  2008,  had a  coa l  c r i s is .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR SINGH:    Which  obv ious ly  led  to  i ssues tha t  a rose a t  

the  t ime in  te rms o f  load shedd ing  and those issues.   In  

2015 Eskom was in  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Obv ious ly,  what  happened in  2008 cou ld  
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no t  be  a  grounds fo r  u rgency in  2015.  

MR SINGH:    No,  no ,  Mr  Cha i r  I  mean -  I  am say ing  tha t  

there  i s  a  h i s to ry  o f  coa l  re la ted  issues in  Eskom.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  I  unders tand tha t .  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  led  to  the  issue o f  load shedd ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  we were  charged a t  the  t ime –  or  

the  board  was charged a t  the  t ime w i th  the  i ssue o f  

a l lev ia t ing  load shedd ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  tha t  cou ld  no t  jus t i f ied  when the  10 

board  was be ing  asked to  cons ider  such an impor tan t  i ssue  

say ing  dea l  w i th  i t  on  the  phone o r  someth ing  l i ke  tha t ,  and 

not  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Not  have the i r  p roper  meet ing  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH:    I f  you  a l low me . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Which  cou ld  be  had in  a  few days ’ t ime  

or  even the  fo l low ing week,  yes .   Now I  a l low you.  

MR SINGH:    Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    I f  we had re ference to  2008/  and  I  agree tha t  

i t  i s  p robab ly  some seven years  be fore  th is  event ,  bu t  i t  i s  

no t  un l i ke  Eskom to have coa l  c r i ses ,  f i rs t l y  in  te rms 2008.   

Second ly  in  2008,  Mr  Cha i r  the  board  a l so  a t  tha t  t ime,  
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cons idered on an  urgent  bas is  v ia  round rob in  reso lu t ion ,  

the  issue o f  coa l  and coa l  re la ted  cont rac ts .  

 Mr  Cha i r,  in  2008 they were  awarded R10 b i l l i on  

wor th  o f  cont rac ts  on  an  emergency bas is  on  a  round rob in  

reso lu t ion .   I f  I  am not  m is taken,  in  te rms o f  my 

unders tand ing  and read ing  o f  the  repor t ,  they  ac tua l l y  

i ssued R164 b i l l i on  wor th  o f  cont rac ts  in  tha t  manner.  

Second ly,  Mr  Cha i r  i f  you  then take  cogn isance o f  

the  fac t  tha t  Eskom I  th ink  in  2014 or  there  or  thereabouts ,  

a lso  dec la red a  coa l  c r i s is  because o f  wet  coa l  and a l l  o f  10 

these type o f  th ings,  wh ich  eventua l l y  led  to  one th ing  

wh ich  was load shedd ing .  

When we –  I  mean no.   When I  go t  there  in  

August  2015,  Mr  Cha i r  one o f  the  th ings tha t  I  sa id  to  you  

tha t  we se ized w i th  was prevent  load shedd ing .   And th is  

was premised on  the  bas is  tha t  i f  th is  was not  addressed,  

i t  w i l l  resu l t  in  load shedd ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  I  want  to  s top  you there ,  Mr  S ingh  

because whatever  you say,  I  th ink  you a re  no t  go ing  to  be  

say ing  to  me there  was –  you are  aware  tha t  there  was a  20 

proper  round o f  u rgency tha t  made  th is  so  urgent  tha t  there  

shou ld  be  no wa i t ing  fo r  a  few days fo r  the  board  to  have a  

proper  meet ing .   You a re  no t  go ing  to  be  say ing  tha t ,  in  the  

end.  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r  i f  you  look a t  the 
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cor respondence re la t i ve  to  the  mat te r  a t  hand,  I  th ink ,  

Mr  Cha i r  in  d iscuss ion  w i th  Mr  Koko re la t ing  to  the  

submiss ion  a t  the  t ime in  te rms o f  unders tand ing  whether  

there  was an urgent  need o f  what  was the  na ture  o f  the  

coa l   -  secur i t y  o f  supp ly  r i sk  tha t  he  had ident i f ied .  

 I  th ink  he  d id  ment ion ,  Mr  Cha i r  tha t  a t  the  t ime the  

coa l  supp ly  f rom OCM was v ia  the  communica t ion  f rom the  

bus iness rescue prac t i t ioners  themse lves as  we l l  as  I  th ink  

the   a t to rneys  on  reco rd  found the  bus iness as  

prac t i t ioners .   That  ca l l  was ac tua l l y  on l y  guaranteed up I  10 

th ink  un t i l  January  –  31  January  2016,  and . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    In  tha t  case,  Mr  Cha i r  i t  was impera t i ve  tha t  

we obv ious l y  ga ined secur i t y  supp ly  fo r  coa l  beyond 

31 January  2016.   That  led  to  Mr  Koko engag ing  w i th  the  

depar tment  o f  Minera ls  and Energy.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  Mr  S ingh.   I  th ink  in  

the  end the  one th ing  tha t  you cannot  say,  you are  

ind ica t ing  what  Mr  Koko sa id  and so  on ,  bu t  I  th ink  you –  i t  

i s  because I  th ink  ear l ie r  on ,  I  unders tood you  to  be  20 

suggest ing  tha t  maybe somebody  e lse  shou ld  be  asked  

what  the  grounds o f  u rgency was.   But  I  may have 

misunders tood you.  

MR SINGH:    I  mean,  Mr  Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  obv ious ly  t he  –  i f  the  supp l ie r  o f  
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coa l  a re  go ing  to  ex is t ing  supp l ies  wou ld  end in  a  month ’s  

t ime,  in  two months ’ t ime or  whatever,  the  board  co ld  meet  

in  th ree  days ’ t ime,  in  four  days ’ t ime and dea l  w i th  th is  

mat te r  p roper ly.  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r  I  guess so .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  because w i th  round rob in  i s  i t  no t ,  

there  is  no  proper  –  there  is  no  d iscuss ion  among the  

members .   They are  jus t  send documenta t ion  to  say th is  i s  

what  about  and each one cons iders  the  documenta t ion  and 

ind ica te  whether  they suppor t  o r  do  no t  suppor t .  10 

 Of  course  they  can ra ise  quest ions i f  they  want  to  

ra ise ,  bu t  the re  i s  no  d iscuss ion  such as  one you w i l l  ge t  in  

a  meet ing  w i th  them.  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r  equa l ly  so  every  board  

member  has the  r igh t  to  say we l l ,  th is  i s  e i the r  too  r i sky,  I  

do  no t  unders tand i t  o r  i t  i s  too  weak.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  I  -  tha t  is  a  fa i r  po in t ,  we l l .  

MR SINGH:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  tha t  i s  someth ing  tha t  one wants  to  

look  a t  the  board  members  themse lves,  say  what  made 20 

these board  members  to  th ink  tha t  i t  was f ine  no t  to  have a  

proper  meet ing  and a  p roper  d i scuss ion  be fore  mak ing  th is  

dec is ion .  

You know,  what  made a l l  o f  them to  be  comfor tab le  

to  dea l  w i th  i t  on  by  way o f  a  round rob in ,  you know so,  
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tha t  too  is  someth ing  to  cons ider  because the  execut ives  

d id  no t  fo rce  them to  cons ider  th i s  mat te r  th rough a  round 

rob in .  

Whatever  i t  was,  i t  was a  sugges t ion  or  a  request ,  

bu t  i t  was up to  them to  say we th ink  fo r  th is  t ype o f  

dec is ion  we need  a  meet ing .  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And we do not  th ink  tha t  you  peop le  

have the  proper  g rounds to  say we cannot  have a  meet ing 

in  a  few days ’ t ime.  10 

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  thank you.   Mr  S ingh,  and my 

quest ion  a lso  ar ises  f rom the  fac t  tha t  the  under l y ing  

agreement  you have re fer red  wh ich  is  the  supp ly  o f  coa l  – 

purchase o f  coa l  agreement ,  d id  no t  in  par t  o r  in  most  par t  

come in to  fo rce .  

I t  was sub jec t  to  th is  suspens ive  cond i t ions  tha t  

were  to  be  fu l f i l l ed  on  the  31s t  o f  March  2016.   And I  

remember  your  answer  to  the  Par l iamenta ry  por t fo l io  20 

Commi t tee ,  you  sa id  coa l  cou ld  no t  be  supp l ied 

immedia te ly  in  te rms o f  th is  agreement .  

MR SINGH:    In  te rms o f  the  coa l  supp ly  aga in?  

CHAIRPERSON:    The pre -purchase.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The under l y ing  agreement .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    The pre -purchase.  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Say aga in?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  cor rec t .   So,  tha t  a l l  the  more  

and i t  ge ts  the  u rgency w i th  wh ich  the  dec is ion  was made.  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  i f  we are  go ing  to  answer  

tha t  quest ion ,  we have to  then go to  another  ag reement  

tha t  I  th ink  the  bus iness rescue p rac t i t ioners  re fe rs  to  and 

I  th ink  Mr  Koko a lso  re fe r red  to  i t  in  h is  tes t imony  i f  I  am 10 

not  m is taken.  

I s  the  ac tua l  –  and th is  i s  the  agreement  tha t  maybe 

you are  re fer r i ng  to ,  Mr  Cha i r  the  ac tua l  agreement  tha t  

was s igned between Tegeta  and Glencoe fo r  the  purchase  

o f  OCM.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The sa le  o f  shares ag reement?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  be tween Tegeta  and Glencoe.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes –  no ,  I  unders tand.  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  tha t  w i l l  no t  he lp  w i th  the  i ssue o f  20 

the  urgency o f  the  reso lu t ion .  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  Cha i r  i f  you  look a t  one o f  those there  

was in  te rms o f  tha t  agreement ,  Mr  Cha i r  there  was an 

under tak ing  tha t  there  wou ld  be  an agreement  o r  a  p re-

f inanc ing  agreement  –  a  pre-commencement  f inanc ing  
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agreement  o r  someth ing  tha t  was  ment ioned.   And aga in ,  

Mr  Cha i r  I  was not  pa r ty  to  these agreements  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  I  th ink  you were  no t  a  par ty.  

MR SINGH:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    We shou ld  no t  spend too  much t ime on 

someth ing  tha t  you were  no t  invo l ved in .  

MR SINGH:    Bu t  i t  answers  h is  quest ion ,  Mr  Cha i r  i t  

becomes . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  what  i s  the  answer  tha t  i t  p rov ides?  10 

MR SINGH:    There  was a  pre -commencement  agreement  –  

pre -commencement  f inance agreement  tha t  was agreed to  

in  te rms o f  tha t  agreement  be tween the  BRP’s  and Tegeta .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hmm.  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  they wou ld  supp ly  coa l  and they wou ld  

then in  tu rn  supp ly  coa l  f ree  o f  scope.   So,  tha t  wh ich  in  

te rms o f  tha t  agreement ,  i t  –  there  was secur i t y  o f  supp ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    In  te rms o f  th is  agreement  yes,  there  wou ld  

have been no coa l  supp ly  because i t  was suspens ive .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .  

MR SINGH:    Bu t  in  te rms o f  the  pre-commencement  

f inanc ing  agreement  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  the  bus iness rescue prac t i t ione rs  have  
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gone in to  qu i te  a  de ta i l  o f  d iscuss ion ,  tha t  enab led  Eskom 

to  s t i l l  ob ta in  supp ly  o f  coa l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And when was tha t  p re- f inance or  

whatever  agreement?  

MR SINGH:    I  th ink  i t  was a  –  I  th ink  i t  was an agreement  

tha t  was s igned as  par t  o f  the  as  \ i  sa id  the  sa le  o f  shares  

agreement  be tween Tegeta  and Glencoe.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And when wou ld  tha t  have been tha t  you 

remember?  

MR SINGH:    I  th ink  tha t  was a round 1`0 t h  o f  whenever  –  10 

10 t h  o f  December  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    December?  

MR SINGH:    Or  the  8 t h  o f  December.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And th is  a  reso lu t ion  was what  da te?  

MR SINGH:    Th i s  was on the  8 t h  o r  9 t h  –  8 t h  o r  9 t h .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    9  December,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Okay,  Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Ja ,  Mr  S ingh the  –  

tha t  you a re  say ing  to  the  Cha i rperson i t  was c lear  f rom 20 

th is  submiss ion  to  the  board  tha t  payment  –  the  pre -

payment  was to  be  made to  Tegeta .  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  the  pre-payment  was in  te rms o f  the  

agreement .   The under l y ing  lega l  agreement  tha t  we have 

jus t  read together  w i th  Cha i rman.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    6 .1  Of  tha t  agreement  made c lea r  tha t  the  

payment  wou ld  be  made to  OCM.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    And  in  o rder  fo r  us  to  ge t  payments  accepted 

to  Tegeta  in  te rms o f  the  R1.68,  tha t  wou ld  have been pa id  

under  the  suspens ive  cond i t ions  o f  the  coa l ,  the  6 .2  o f  tha t  

agreement  gave e f fec t  to  a  guaran tee.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Sor ry,  I  was  not  ta lk ing  about  the  

submiss ion .   You are  say ing  i t  i s  c lear  f rom the  submiss ion  10 

tha t  the  payment  –  the  pre-payment  o f  R1.68 b i l l i on  was to  

be  made to  Tegeta .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  tha t  i s  wha t  you sa id .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  on  read ing  o f  the  agreement ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  tha t  i s  what  i t  i s .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So ,  in  o rde r  to  purchase coa l  f rom 

Tegeta ,  tha t  wou ld  coa l  supp ly  . . . [ in te rvenes]  20 

MR SINGH:    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Was to  fac i l i ta te  to  secure  coa l .   The 

submiss ion  sa id  the  board  shou ld  prov ide  a  reso lu t ion  

a long the  l ines  o f  the  –  o f  2 .1 .2 .   So,  i t  i s  c lea r  tha t  the  –  

the  reso lu t ion  contempla ted  tha t  the  payment  wou ld  go  to  
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Tegeta .   Remember,  those are  the  issues we ra i sed w i th  

the  board .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Board  members  and they sa id  tha t  fo r  a  

number  o f  –  we l l ,  maybe a l l  o f  them those who gave 

ev idence here ,  sa id  they were  under  the  impress ion  tha t  

they were  au thor i s ing  payment  to  G lencoe.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    G lencoe,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And I  guess tha t  Mr  S ingh i s  go ing  to  

say bu t  how cou ld  they be  –  how cou ld  they have  though  10 

tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because the  submiss ion  tha t  was g iven 

to  them is  c lear  tha t  they shou ld  au thor i se  payment  to  the   

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The p roposed owner.  

CHAIRPERSON:    To  the  proposed  owners .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    But  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Which  is  what  we ra ised w i th  them.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r  I  th ink  i t  i s  impor tan t  f rom my 

perspect ive ,  to  make a  d is t inc t ion  be tween the  submiss ion  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  
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MR SINGH:    And  the  lega l l y  b ind ing  ag reement  tha t  f lowed 

f rom the  submiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    Or  f lowed f rom the  reso lu t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  fo r  purposes o f  the  board  what  one 

is  look ing  a t  i s  what  was before  the  board  when they made  

dec is ion  to  au tho r ise  to  do  the  –  to  g ive  the  reso lu t ion  tha t  

they gave.   You see,  tha t  i s  what  i s  impor tan t  to  say what  

in fo rmat ion  was  p laced before  them and we know the  

submiss ion  was before  the  counc i l .  10 

MR SINGH:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And the  submiss ion  ta lks  about  

conc lud ing  an  agreement  and payment  to  the  proposed  

owners ,  so  as  fa r  as  I  can remember  none o f  them was 

ab le  to  exp la in  how they cou ld  a l l  have missed those words  

in  2 .1 .2  and thought  tha t  they were  be ing  asked to  g ive  a 

reso lu t ion  tha t  payment ,  p repayment  be  made to  G lencor  o r  

G lencor,  to  OCM under  G lencor.  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  a lso ,  I  th ink  i f  you  look a t  

2 .1 ,  2 .1 .2  and aga in  maybe i t  i s  jus t  semant ics ,  bu t  maybe  20 

jus t  fo r  the  sake  o f  me po in t ing  i t  ou t ,  i t  i s  au tho r ised to  

negot ia te  and conc lude a  pre-purchase o f  coa l  ag reement  

w i th  the  proposed  owners  o f  OCM.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    Okay,  i t  does not  say  i t  needs to  make a  
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payment  to  the  proposed owners  o f  OCM.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Th is  i s  the . . .   Where  is  the  ac tua l  

reso lu t ion?  

MR SINGH:    I t  is  on  493 s i r,  page 493 and we go back to  

2 .1 .2 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Th is  i s  a  summary.  

MR SINGH:    Cha i r,  page 493.  

CHAIRPERSON:     Yes,  I  can see tha t .  

MR SINGH:    And then we look aga in  a t  your  paragraph o f  

2 .1 .2 .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    We bas ica l l y  asked fo r  au thor i t y  to  negot ia te  

and conc lude a  key purchase o f  coa l  agreement .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    Wi th  the  proposed owners  o f  OCM.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  obv ious l y  i f  you  are  go ing  to  

secure  coa l ,  because as  I  unders tand i t  th is  was secur ing  

coa l  fo r  fu tu re ,  i f  the  peop le  tha t  you are  seek ing  to  secure  

coa l  f rom a re  the  peop le  you are  go ing  to  reach an 

agreement  w i th ,  you a re  asked to  reach an agreement  w i th ,  20 

i t  makes sense tha t  the  payment  wou ld  then go to  them,  i s  

i t  no t?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  th is  i s  where  I  am t ry ing  to  d raw the  

d is t inc t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  
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MR SINGH:    I f  you  look a t  th is  i t  says  negot ia te  and  

conc lude.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    The  key purchase ag reement .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    I t  does not  say  anyth ing  about  a  payment .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    I f  you  then go to  the  under l y ing  ag reement  

tha t  we have read,  6 .1  o f  tha t  makes i t  c lear  tha t  the  

payment  w i l l  go  to  OCM.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    When the  suspens ive  cond i t ions  are  fu l f i l l ed .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  tha t  OCM is  OCM under  Tegeta .  

MR SINGH:    When the  suspens ive  cond i t ions  have been  

fu l f i l l ed .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Obv ious ly,  ja .  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  so  when he says OCM in  tha t  

agreement  i t  does not  mean OCM under  G lencor,  because 

the  cond i t ions  precedent  tha t  wou ld  have happened,  wou ld  20 

have brought  in  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH:    Yes Mr  Cha i r,  bu t  then i f  you  look a t  the 

submiss ion  i t  says  what  those,  tha t  money wou ld  have 

been used fo r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  
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MR SINGH:    I t  wou ld  have been used to  se t t le  OCM 

cred i to rs  as  par t  o f  the  sa le  p rocess.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  I  am not  sure  about  tha t  par t ,  bu t  

Mr  Se leka,  cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  tha t  makes i t  d i f f i cu l t  Mr  S ingh,  

because tha t  i s  why the  Board  sa id  they thought ,  and  

par t i cu la r l y  IFC,  Doctor  Na idoo sa id  fo r  tha t  reason he 

thought  you were  pay ing  G lencor  and he wro te  a  suppor t  

le t te r  say ing  we l l ,  now OCM wi l l  come out  o f  bus iness 

rescue,  the  debts  w i l l  be  pa id ,  i t  w i l l  opera te  normal ly,  le t  10 

the  CEO of  Eskom and tha t  o f  G lencor  make  a  jo in t  

s ta tement .  

MR SINGH:    But  Mr  Cha i r,  the  on ly  d i f f i cu l t y  we have w i th  

Mr  Na idoo ’s  summary is  tha t  he  then ment ions tha t  in  tha t  

same summary tha t  he  is  ve ry  happy tha t  the  ownersh ip  o f  

OCM is  now go ing  to  be  51% BEE empowered,  so  i f  tha t  

was the  case how i t  was i t  go ing  to  be  someth ing  tha t  was 

go ing  to  be  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  he  says he  is  happy tha t?  

MR SINGH:    I  am say ing  tha t  in  tha t  summary Mr  Na idoo  20 

makes he a l ludes to  the  fac t  tha t  th rough th is  t ransact ion  

OCM becomes a  51% empowered ent i t y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Which  was  on ly  go ing  to  happen 

because o f  Tegeta .  

MR SINGH:    Tegeta .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    So  hence I  am say ing  aga in  I  am confused as  

to  how he be l ieved tha t  th is  was a  t ransact ion  o ther  than  

what  we had contempla ted  in  the  documents .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  bu t  the  quest ion  obv ious l y  i s ;  

wh ich  l iab i l i t i es  o f  OCM were  go ing  to  be  pa id  by  the  

prepayment  o f  R1,  68  b i l lon?  You have answer  tha t  

quest ion .   Tegeta  is  no t  in  the  p ic tu re  a t  th is  s tage,  i t  i s  a  

p roposed owner.  

MR SINGH:    Yes ,  and hence the  suspens ive  cond i t ions  in  10 

the  under ly ing  agreement  tha t  we  have jus t  read.   We do  

make ment ion  o f  the  fac t  tha t ,  i f  you  look a t  3 .6 .2  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  one second,  Mr  S ingh.   Mr  Se leka,  

the  Board  reso lu t ion ,  you say i t  was made on the  9 t h  o f  

December .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And the  agreement  tha t  Mr  S ingh  re fers  

to  as  the  under ly ing  agreement  was made on the?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    10  December.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  in  tha t  event  Mr  S ingh,  you  cannot  

use the  agreement  o f  the  10 t h  o f  December  to  exp la in  the  

dec is ion  o f  the  9 t h  o f  December ,  because tha t  was not ,  tha t  

had not  happened.   The Board  d id  no t  have the  agreement  

o f  the  10 t h  o f  December ,  i s  i t  no t?  
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MR SINGH:    Ne i ther  d id  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    When they made the  reso lu t ion .  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  the  agreement  d id  to  ex is t  a t  tha t  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  i t  d id  no t  ex i s t  a t  tha t  t ime.  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And in  the  submiss ion  there  was a lso  

no th ing  tha t  was  say ing ,  the re  was noth ing  to  the  e f fec t  

tha t  the  ag reement  i s  about  to  be  conc luded on the  10 t h  o r  

anyth ing  l i ke  tha t ,  i s  i t  no t?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  we d id  . . . [ in te rvenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    There  m ight  no t  be  a  da te ,  bu t  i t  was 

ind ica ted  tha t  i t  m igh t  happen.  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  i f  you  look a t  3 .1 .7 ,  wh ich  is  on  

page 494,  the  proposed purchase  tha t  was presented a t  

the  meet ing  conf i rmed tha t  the  company had commenced 

due d i l igences and tha t  i t  wou ld ,  i t  was commi t ted  to  a 

30  day,  o r  a  de f in i t i ve  agreement  to  be  in  p lace  by  

15  December  2015.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  there  was not  even a  dra f t  

agreement  a t  tha t  s tage before  the  Board ,  o r  was the re? 20 

MR SINGH:    No,  no ,  there  was not  a  d ra f t  agreement .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .   No,  I  am not  sure  tha t  you,  one  

can use the  te rms o f ,  I  do  no t  th ink  you can use the  te rms 

o f  the  agreement  tha t  were  no t  in  p lace  a t  the  t ime the  

Board  made the  dec i s ion  to  exp la in  the  Board ’s  dec i s ion .  
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MR SINGH:    No Mr  Cha i r,  and th is  i s  why I  am say ing  I  am 

drawing a  d is t inc t ion  be tween the  reso lu t ion  and the  ac tua l  

lega l  under ly ing  b ind ing  ag reement .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    So  the  Board  gave us  a  reso lu t ion  to  inc lude,  

negot ia te  and inc lude a  p re-pu rchase o f  coa l  ag reement .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And comple te ly,  ac tua l l y  comple te ly  le f t  

the  te rms and cond i t ions  o f  tha t  agreement  to  you,  fo r  

those tha t  i t  au thor ised to  negot ia te ,  i s  i t  no t?  

MR SINGH:    We d id  . . . [ in te rvenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    So  i t  d id  no t  even know what  the  te rms  

and cond i t ions  o f  tha t  agreement  wou ld  be ,  they gave you 

and the  CEO and the  Gupta  Enterp r ise  fo r  Genera t ion  a  

b lank cheque.  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  under  ‘ key  assumpt ions ’ I  th ink  we  

d id  ind i ca te  tha t ,  we l l  these were  f low ing to  the ,  these  

were  f low ing to  the  cond i t ions  precedent .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes?  

MR SINGH:    Le t  me jus t  f ind  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  I  do  no t  know,  m is te r  20 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  the  ag reement  wou ld  have 

bas ica l l y  been an  agreement  to  pu rchase coa l  f rom OCM at  

a  d iscount  o f  5% and fo r  the  Kroonfonte in  Mine a t  a  

spec i f i c  p r i ce  tha t  i s  re f lec ted  a t  3 .3 .1 .  



24 MAY 2021– DAY 401 
 

Page 204 of 266 
 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.   Mr  Se leka,  cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  you are  r igh t ,  the  submiss ion  

re la ted  to  the  prepayment ,  p re -pu rchase o f  coa l ,  the 

under l y ing  ag reement  i ssues a  guarantee to  Tege ta .   A re 

you ab le  to  exp la in  to  the  Cha i rpe rson why wou ld  an  SOE 

have dec ided to  i ssue a  guarantee  to  a  pr iva te  en t i ty?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  as  I  have exp la ined,  the  under l y ing  

agreement  conta ins  suspens ive  cond i t ions  and the  

suspens ive  cond i t ions  wou ld  have been fu l f i l l ed  over  a  

per iod  o f  t ime,  as  Ms Dan ie l s  had exp la ined to  me a t  the  10 

t ime tha t  the  proposed purchases ,  because Tegeta  a t  the 

t ime requ i red  payment  cer ta in ty  tha t  Eskom wou ld  be  in  a 

pos i t ion  to  pe r fo rm when those suspens ive  cond i t ions  were  

fu l f i l l ed  and tha t  was the  need  fo r  us  to  i ssue the  

guarantee in  v iew o f  tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You were  guarantee ing  tha t  Eskom 

wou ld  be  ab le  to  per fo rm.  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  bu t  Eskom was be ing  supp l ied  coa l  

by  OCM under  G lencor  and as  I  heard  th rough you,  tha t  20 

in te r im ar rangement  cont inued th rough Ju l y  2016.   There  is  

another  da te ,  August  2016.   You d id  no t  g ive  them a  

guarantee tha t  you w i l l  per fo rm.  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  was under  a  normal  coa l  

supp ly  agreement .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    When you say guaranteed to  pe r fo rm,  do  

you mean the  payment?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.   I f  I  unders tand you 

cor rec t l y  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  a  guarantee,  i t  was a  guarantee fo r  

payment ,  i s  i t  no t?  

MR SINGH:    Th is  was a  guarantee spec i f i ca l l y  fo r  the  

payment  o f  R1,  6  b i l l i on  under  the  agreement .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   I f  you  say guaranteed to  per fo rm i t  

m igh t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  le t  us  ca l l  i t  what  i t  i s .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   So you d id  no t  g ive  them the  

guarantee tha t  you w i l l  pay  them,  they supp l ied  you coa l  

and you pa id .  

MR SINGH:    Yes Mr  Cha i r,  because tha t  was in  te rms o f  

the  ag reement  tha t  requ i red  them to  supp ly  coa l  a t  R150 a  

ton  on  a  month ly  bas is .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  and they  were  the  owners  o f  the  

m ine,  Tegeta  was  not ,  in  December  2015.  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You do not  f ind  i t  s t range tha t  you 

needed to  g ive  Tegeta  a  guarantee tha t  you w i l l  pay  them? 
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MR SINGH:    We l l  Mr  Cha i r,  i f  you  look a t  the ,  the  na tu re  

o f  the  coa l  supp ly  agreement  w i th  OCM of  R150 a  ton ,  the  

na ture  i s  d i f fe ren t  to  the  agreement  tha t  was reached fo r  

the  pre-purchase  o f  coa l  f rom OCM.   The pre-purchase 

agreement  was p remised on the  bas is  tha t  Eskom wou ld  

need to  pay R1,  6  b i l l i on  on  the  fu l f i lment  o f  the 

suspens ive  cond i t ions  and tha t  R1,  6  b i l l i on  was the  

payment  r i sk  tha t  Tegeta  was tak ing  on  Eskom,  i f  we had  

the  ab i l i t y  to  per fo rm in  te rms o f  the  agreement ,  the  pre-

purchase agreement .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    The r i sk  tha t  Tegeta  was tak ing  w i th  

Eskom at  a  t ime  when i t  was no t  even the  owner  o f  the  

m ine.  

MR SINGH:    In  te rms o f  the  suspens ive  cond i t ions ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Mr  S ingh ,  then the . . .   Sor ry,  I  am 

t ry ing  to  th ink  what  I  wanted to  ask  you.   So there  is  th is  

p repayment ,  you guarantee,  Tegeta  a lso  g ives  you  coa l  in  

January  2016,  February  2016,  March,  Apr i l  2016,  w i thout  a  

guarantee.  20 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  as  I  sa id  wou ld  fo l low the  p re-

commencement  f inanc ing  ar rangement  tha t  they en tered  

in to  w i th  the  VRPs.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And d id  you know tha t  they were  

buy ing  the  coa l  to  supp ly  to  Arnot  they were  buy ing  i t  f rom 
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OCM? 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Se leka,  I  d id  no t  have pe rsona l  knowledge 

o f  tha t  a t  the  t ime,  no .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    O f  those in te r im agreements  they had  

w i th  OCM? 

MR SINGH:    Yes.   I  mean look,  I  mean we now know tha t  

those ag reements  were  in  p lace .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    And they were  i n  p lace  between Tegeta  and  

the  VRP.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    And then bas ica l l y  then,  Tr i l l i an   bas ica l l y  

supp l ied  us  th rough those pre-commencement  f inanc ing  

agreement .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    A lso  when I  say  ‘us ’ I  mean Eskom.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    But  I  know tha t  you knew about  th is  a t  

the  Par l iamenta ry  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee .  

MR SINGH:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You even sa id  tha t ,  when you were  20 

asked about  a  mark-up,  tha t  Eskom wou ld  pay because i t  i s  

us ing  an  in te rmed iary,  i t  i s  us ing  Tegeta  to  ge t  coa l  f rom 

OCM.   Tegeta  w i l l  impose a  mark -up when they on-sa le  to  

you or  Eskom,  and you sa id  i t  makes bus iness sense to  do  

tha t .  
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MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  reca l l  the  exact  contex t  in  

te rms o f  however  tha t  quest ion  was asked a t  the  Por t fo l io  

Commi t tee ,  bu t  based on what  we  know now i t  seems l i ke  

Tegeta  bas i ca l l y  en tered in to  an  agreement  w i th  the  

bus iness rescue prac t i t ioners  a t  the  same ra te  a t  the  coa l  

supp ly  agreement  and bas ica l l y  so ld  i t  to  Eskom at  the 

same ra te .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you want  to  go  to  the  re levant  par ts  

o f  the  t ranscr ip t  o r  record  o f  the  Par l iamenta ry  Por t fo l io  

Commi t tee  so  tha t  Mr  S ingh can be reminded  o f  the  10 

contex t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   I  th ink  my jun io r  w i l l  l oca te  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  you can con t inue w i th  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Do you have i t  in  Mr  S ingh ’s  bund le?   

16A.   Thank you.   Then I  w i l l  come back to  tha t ,  Mr  S ingh,  

when we dea l  w i th  the  R658 mi l l ion  prepayment .   So le t  us  

see what  i s  your  comment  on  th i s .   Tegeta  i s  the  p roposed  

owner,  i t  was about  to  acqu i re  and you made  a  very  

in te res t ing ,  in te res t ing  s ta tement ,  you sa id  the  payment ,  

the  prepayment  was be ing  made  in  l ieu  o f  acqu is i t ion  o f  20 

the  m ine,  ea r l ie r.  

MR SINGH:    No,  maybe  I  used the  wrong word ,  I  th ink  t he  

Cha i r  cor rec ted  me.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wel l  ja ,  bu t  tha t  i s  an  in te res t ing  

s ta tement ,  because le t  us  hear  what  you say to  th is ;  a t  the 
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t ime Tegeta ,  Oak Bay is  seek ing  to  acqu i re  OCM 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH:    Sor ry,  I  jus t  d id  no t  hear  the  open ing  o f  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    A t  the  t ime,  dur ing  th is  t ime December  

2015,  we l l  in  fac t  a t  the  t ime o f  the  submiss ion  they had 

agreed on 2  December  2015 a f te r  Min is te r  Zwane  was in  

Swi tze r land,  they  had ora l l y  ag reed or  come to  te rms on  

the i r  agreement  fo r  the  acqu is i t ion  o f  sha res and Tegeta ,  

Oak Bay had o f fe red  R2,  15  b i l l ion  as  the  purchase pr i ce ,  

wh ich  was accepted.  10 

I t  has  been a l leged,  and I  want  you r  react ion  to  

th is ,  tha t  th is  t ransact ion  we a re  dea l ing  w i th  here ,  the  

pre -purchase agreement  w i th in  Eskom,  s ta r t ing  w i th  the  

submiss ion ,  conver ted  in to  a  guarantee,  fo l lowed w i th  th is  

p re -purchase agreement ,  was in  fac t  a  sham to  ass is t  

Tegeta  Oak Bay  w i th  the  f inanc ia l  fac i l i t y  o r  capac i ty  to  

show tha t  i t  can  pay the  purchase pr i ce .   What  i s  your  

comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    We l l  Mr  Cha i r,  le t  me s tar t  here ,  i t  i s  a lways  

good to  go  back to  the  under ly ing  l ega l  agreements .   I f  we 20 

had re ference to  tha t ,  the  supp ly  ag reement  tha t  the ,  

parag raph 6 .2  o f  tha t  agreement  and aga in  Mr Se leka,  I  

w i l l  ask  your  he lp  fo r  tha t ,  I  th ink  i t  was,  843 I  th ink  i t  was.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Do you want  the  supp ly  agreement?  

MR SINGH:    Yes p lease,  s i r.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    The supp ly  agreement .   I  w i l l  use  the  

one on page 759.  

MR SINGH:    759? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.    

MR SINGH:    So Mr  Cha i r,  i f  I  take  you to  759,  wh ich  aga in  

tha t  i s  the  uns igned ve rs ion ,  bu t  I  am assuming the  s igned 

vers ion  resembles  th is .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  fu r ther  on ,  the  s igned vers ion  i s  

fu r ther  on .  

MR SINGH:    Bu t  I  th ink  fo r  the  present  purposes i t  is  f ine .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  go  to  the  s igned one.  

MR SINGH:    Page 774.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    774.   I  see  i t  is  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH:    No,  tha t  i s  no t  the  s igned one.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  i t  i s  no t  the  s igned one.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  i t  i s  on ly  s igned by  Ms Lav ind ra  

Nath .  

MR SINGH:    774 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    S igned by  Tegeta  on ly.   

ADV SELEKA SC:    You have  not  s igned tha t  one,  20 

Mr  S ingh.    

MR SINGH:    My 744 does not  have a  s igned one a t  a l l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  no ,  tha t  i s  the  beg inn ing  o f  the  

agreement ,  774.  

MR SINGH:    776  Is  no t  s igned.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    The s igned page,  bu t  on ly  s igned by  

one par ty,  i s  782.  

MR SINGH:    782 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    A re  you in  Eskom bund le  A?  

MR SINGH:    18 ,  Hey?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    18A,  yes .   Sor ry.   So we have 782.  

MR SINGH:    782 ,  Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  the  cor rec t  document .  

MR SINGH:    So  we can use th is ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  the  . . . [ in tervenes]  10 

MR SINGH:    So  we go to ,  fo r  ou r  spec i f i c  response  to  the 

quest ion  le t  us  go  to  page 780.   You w i l l  no t ice  Mr  Cha i r,  i f  

we look a t  c lause 6 .1  i t  i s  s im i la r  to  the  c lause tha t  you 

read in  the  prev ious agreement .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    And  then 6 .2  i s  s im i la r  to  the  c lause tha t  you  

read in  the  prev ious agreement .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    So  6 .1  makes re ference to  the  phys i ca l  cash 

payment  and then  6 .2  re fers  to  the  bank guarantee.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    Now o f  in te res t  here  in  respond ing  to  the  

quest ion  i s  the  las t  sentence o f  6 .2  i t  i s  reco rded tha t  the  

issue o f  the  guarantee w i l l  be  cond i t iona l  on  the  s im i la r  

te rms se t  ou t  on  c lause 5  hereof  and c lause 5  hereof  
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Mr  Cha i r,  i s  obv ious l y  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry,  you a re  read ing  f rom? 

MR SINGH:    Sor ry  Mr  Cha i r,  page  780.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja?  

MR SINGH:    I f  you  look a t  6 .2  i t  dea ls  w i th  the  guarantee.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    And i t  i s  the  same as you have read in  the  

dra f t  agreement .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    Bu t  o f  re levance to  us  here  is  t he  las t  10 

sentence o f  6 .2 .   I t  says  i t  i s  recorded tha t  the  i ssue o f  

lega l i t y  w i l l  be  cond i t iona l  on  the  s im i la r  te rms as  se t  ou t  

in  c lause 5  hereo f .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    Which  means i t  i s  the  cond i t ions  precedent .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    What  i t  means Cha i r,  i s  tha t  we have  s igned  

th is  agreement  and we bas ica l l y  sa id  to  Tegeta  we are  

happy to  g ive  you th is  guarantee in  good fa i th  to  show tha t  

we have the  ab i l i t y  to  per fo rm,  bu t  jus t  no te  tha t  in  o rder  20 

fo r  tha t  to  happen,  whatever  these suspens ive  cond i t ions  

are  in  th is  agreement  i t  in fo rms th is ,  the  guarantee tha t  

you are  go ing  to  ge t ,  we w i l l  fo rm,  the  suspens ive  

cond i t ions  w i l l  be  m i r ro red there in  and Mr Cha i r,  i f  you  look 

a t  the  ac tua l  guarantee tha t  was then issued,  aga in  I  am 
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go ing  to  ask  Mr  Se leka fo r  h is  he lp  to  take  me to  i t ,  I  th ink 

i t  i s  p robab ly  be fore  th is .   Ah I  th ink  Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  th is  

answers  a  few quest ions a t  the  same t ime.   So Mr Cha i r,  i f  

you  go to  page 719 o f  the  same bund le  tha t  you are  in .  

CHAIRPERSON:    719?  

MR SINGH:    Yes .   Th is  i s  ac tua l l y  a  vers ion  o f  the  s igned 

agreement ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    Okay,  i t  goes fo rm 719,  720 and then  

e f fec t i ve l y  I  th ink  721 shou ld  be  the ,  721 and  722 is  10 

bas ica l l y  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  th is  i s  the  s igned . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The copy o f  the  s igned agreement .  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  so  tha t  answers  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  we must  no te  where  i t  i s  to  be  found,  

Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    Yes.   So go ing  back to  6 .2 ,  as  I  sa id  i t  

re fe rences the  suspens ive  cond i t ions .   Then i f  you go to  20 

717,  Mr  Cha i r,  th is  i s  ac tua l l y  the  ac tua l  guarantee tha t  i s  

now issued by  Absa in  favour  o f  Tegeta .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    G iv ing  e f fec t  to  c lause 6 .2  o f  tha t  under l y ing  

agreement .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    You  w i l l  no t ice  tha t  po in t  2  o f  tha t  guarantee  

on page 717 Mr  Cha i r,  conta ins  the  same suspens ive  

cond i t ions  as  re f lec ted  in  c lause 5  o f  the  agreement .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    And you w i l l  no t ice  Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  the 

guarantee has bas i ca l l y  been i ssued as  a  non negot iab le ,  

tha t  i s  on  the  top  o f  page 717.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    And i t  i s  covered aga in  in  c lause 7  on  10 

page 718 where  i t  says  th is  agreement  i s  ne i ther  

negot iab le ,  nor  t ransferab le  and  i t  i s  res t r i c ted  to  the 

payment  o f  the  sum o f  money on ly,  and l im i ted  to  the  

guaranteed amount .  

So Mr  Cha i r,  where  I  am go ing  w i th  th is  i s  tha t  fo r  

any,  fo r  any par ty  to  re ly  on  e i ther  the  under l y ing  pre -

purchase agreement  o r  to  re l y  on  the  per fo rmance 

guarantee pr io r  to  the  suspens ive  cond i t ions  be ing  fu l f i l l ed 

in  i ssu ing  any sor t  o f  comfor t  tha t  R1,  6  b i l l i on  wou ld  be  

ra ised by  Tegeta  on  the  s t rength  o f  those two documents ,  20 

wou ld  be  do ing  so  ve ry  reck less ly,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes?  

MR SINGH:    The second po in t  Mr  Cha i r,  i s  i f  you  have  

regard  to  the  ev idence o f  Mr  Mi les  and we can go  to  the  

spec i f i c  pages and paragraphs i f  we need to ,  bu t  I  th ink  Mr  
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Mi les  has g iven  h is  a f f idav i t  o r  s ta tement  and in  there  

Mr  Cha i r,  he  does re fer  to  the  fac t  tha t  there  were  

numerous t imes tha t  they had t r ied  to  es tab l i sh  whethe r  

Tegeta  had the  ab i l i t y  to  per fo rm in  te rms o f  the  R2,  15  

b i l l i on  and in  those Mr  Cha i r,  they  were  no t  p rov ided w i th  

the  requ i red  comfor t  tha t  they were  look ing  fo r  in  te rms o f  

be ing  ab le  to  ascer ta in  whether  Tegeta  had the  ab i l i t y  to  

per fo rm or  no t .  

I t  does not  make re ference to  th is  guarantee,  nor  

the  under ly ing  pre-purchase o f  coa l  agreement  as  comfor t  10 

tha t  he  took in  te rms o f  be ing  ab le  to  run  th i s  th ing ,  

whethe r  Tegeta  had the  ab i l i t y  to  per fo rm o r  no t .  

I  th ink  there  was  a  le t te r  tha t  was prov ided to  the  

BRPs a t  some po in t  in  t ime tha t  re fe r red  to  the  fac t  tha t  

Tegeta  had the  ab i l i t y  to  per fo rm.   I  th ink  the  bus iness  

rescue prac t i t ioners  together  w i th  the  Consor t ium Bank 

re jec ted  tha t  asser t ion  and requested Tegeta  to  conf i rm  

tha t  th rough a  sw i f t  no te ,  wh ich  is  obv ious ly  a  sys tem tha t  

the  banks use,  and tha t  was not  poss ib le  and Mr  M i les  d id  

no t  conf i rm i t .  20 

So Mr  Cha i r,  i f  th is  ins t rument  was  in  any way used  

and i f  anyone had p laced re l iance on th is  ins t rument  

Mr  Cha i r,  the  request  fo r  i t  to  have been conf i rmed by  a  

swi f t  wou ld  have been done.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  qu i te  c lear ly  Tegeta  made out  
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someth ing  to ,  o r  was,  o r  appears  to  have been in  need o f  

e i ther  ob ta in ing  the  cash as  soon as  poss ib le  o r  in  need o f  

a  guarantee in  regard  to  the  coa l ,  fo r  whatever  reason.   I t  

was not  p repared to  jus t  work  on  the  bas i s  o f  reach an  

agreement ,  s ign  on  beha l f  o f  Eskom to  say you w i l l  g ive  us  

coa l  fo r  th is  per iod  and we w i l l  pay  you,  we are  an  SOE,  

we a re  no t  go ing  to  fa i l ,  p repared  to  re ly  on  tha t  s i tua t ion  

on ly.   They e i the r  needed to  have  cash or  to  have  a  bank  

guarantee in  regard  to  tha t  coa l .  

MR SINGH:    Wel l  Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  may have been the  case.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Mr  Se leka,  I  do  no t  know whethe r  

we have spent  too  much t ime on th is .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  no ,  I  am ready to  move on,  Cha i r.   

Mr  S ingh,  on  the . . .   So tha t  i s  the  R1,  6  b i l l i on  conver ted  

in to  a  guarantee,  wh ich  I  unders tand was never  used,  tha t  

guarantee,  so  the  guarantee was never  used.  

MR SINGH:    No s i r,  i t  was not .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    When you get  to  the  659,  and jus t  

remember,  bear  in  m ind th roughout  th is  pe r iod  tha t  

acco rd ing  to  Eskom’s  a t to rneys,  no t  on l y  OCM,  bu t  20 

Eskom’s  a t to rneys,  there  are  agreements  w i th  Eskom and 

OCM to  cont inue  supp ly ing  coa l  to  Eskom f rom September  

a t  leas t  2015 r igh t  th rough to  Ju ly,  August  2016 .   Now 

comes the  prepayment  submiss ion  o f  Apr i l  2016.   Am I  

cor rec t  tha t  you a lso  s igned tha t  one,  o r  you d id  no t  s ign  
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i t?  

MR SINGH:    No,  s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  you d id  no t  s ign  i t .   Do you have. . .   

Oh sor ry,  be fo re  I  move then,  so r ry  Cha i r,  be fore  I  move 

there ,  we have seen f rom the  documenta t ion  here  tha t  the 

submiss ion  in  regard  to  the  R1,  6  b i l l i on  was sent  by  Lup ia  

to  Er ic  Wood,  o r  i s  i t  yourse l f  who sent  i t?  

MR SINGH:    I  th ink  in  te rms  o f  the  documenta t ion  

Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  i t  was my PA tha t  sent  i t  to  Mr  Wood.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    D id  she do i t  a t  your  behest?  10 

MR SINGH:    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Can you exp la in ,  why d id  you invo lve  

them?  Because we have  seen tha t  no t  on ly  does i t  go  to  

Mr  Er ic  Wood,  i t  goes to  Bus inessman In fopor ta l  who 

comments  and says he  wants  the  PFMA requ i rement  to  be 

taken out  and he says he  does not  want  i t  to  go  to  IFC,  he  

wants  the  reso lu t ion  to  go  to  the  Board .  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r  yes ,  in  te rms o f  answer ing  the  

quest ion  as  to  why invo lv ing  Reg iments  Mr Cha i r,  a t  the  

t ime you wou ld  reca l l  tha t  Reg imen ts  was invo lved w i th  the  20 

corpo ra te  p lan  o f ,  le t  us  say  Reg iments /Tr i l l i an  was  

invo lved w i th  the  corpora te  p lan  o f  Eskom at  the  t ime and 

Mr  Cha i r,  they  were  a l so ,  as  you  w i l l  reca l l ,  invo l ved in ,  

la te r  on ,  i ssues re la t ing  o f  the  MSA and in  the  MSA there  

were ,  as  Mr  Se leka po in ted  out  to  us  p rev ious ly,  the re  were  
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cash un lock ing  oppor tun i t ies  tha t  were  be ing  exp lo red and 

they obv ious l y  had access to  in fo rmat ion  re la t ing  to  

Eskom,  Eskom’s  coa l ,  Eskom f inances and a l i ke  a t  the  

t ime.  

I  then requested,  Mr  Cha i r,  because on the  vers ion  

tha t  I  was prov ided the  f inanc ia l  cons ide ra t ions re la t ing  to  

the  R1,  6  b i l l i on  prepayment  in  my v iew was not  du l y  

cons idered and I  asked Mr  Wood to  app ly  h is  m ind in  te rms  

o f  the  f inanc ia l  imp l ica t ions o f  a  t ransact ion  o f  th is  na ture  

and a t  tha t  s tage  Mr  Cha i r,  he  then rev ised the  document  10 

to  inc lude the  imp l ica t ions and the ,  o r  rev i sed net  p resent  

va lue  re la t ing  to  the  t ransact ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    D id  you know who is  Bus inessman 

In fopor ta l?  

MR SINGH:    No s i r,  I  d id  no t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    D id  you see the  e-mai l  tha t  was  

exchanged between h im and Mr  Er i c  Wood?  

MR SINGH:    A t  the  t ime?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    No.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    D id  you go  to  the  o f f i ces  o f  Mr  Er ic  

Wood?  

MR SINGH:    I  occas iona l l y,  due  to  bus iness needs and 

meet ings,  yes  I  d id .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  bu t  spec i f i ca l l y  in  re la t ion  to  th is?  
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MR SINGH:    No,  s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   P lease look a t  the  a f f idav i t  o f  

Ms Fah ima,  no t  now,  bu t  you w i l l  look  a t  i t ,  we have 

exchanged i t  w i th  your  lawyers .   Now in  respect  o f  the  659  

prepayment  you fea ture  in  the  BTC meet ing  o f  the  13 t h  o f  

March,  the  13 t h  o f  Apr i l  2016.   Cha i r,  I  w i l l  f ind  the  

re ference in  a  shor t  wh i le .    

And then Mr  S ingh,  accord ing  to  the  m inutes  you 

apo log ised to  the  BTC for  no t ,  fo r  hav ing  over looked the  

fac t  tha t  Tegeta  was fac ing  go ing  concern  issues in  tha t  10 

the  banks had c losed the i r  accounts  and they found i t  

d i f f i cu l t  to  t rade.   Do you reca l l  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  reca l l  tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   Shou ld  I  f ind  the  m inutes  fo r  

you?  

MR SINGH:    Indeed p lease.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Cha i r,  I  w i l l  f ind  the  

m inutes  o f  BTC meet ing  o f  13  Apr i l  2016.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  i s  the  po in t  about  those minutes?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  what  i s  recorded in  the  m inutes  or  20 

captured in  the  m inutes  is  the  apo logy by  Mr S ingh say ing  

to  the  Board :  

“ I  apologise.   I  over looked to disclose the 

facts or to report  to you,  BTC, that  Tegeta is 

facing going concern issues in  that  the 
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banks have closed thei r  accounts. ”  

Because tha t  ra i sed the  quest ion  mark  as  to  whe ther  the  

prepayment  o f  R659 mi l l ion  cou ld  s t i l l  be  made.   I t  m igh t  

be  d i f f i cu l t  fo r  them in  the  c i r cumstances to  even supp ly  

coa l ,  bu t  Mr  S ingh says he  canno t  reca l l  tha t  aspect  and  

my jun io r  i s  look ing  fo r  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  a re  the  top ics  you wanted to  cover  

w i th  h im th is  even ing?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  th is  i s ,  we a re  now on the  th i rd  

one Cha i r,  th is  i s ,  we are  now on the  th i rd  one,  wh ich  is  10 

the  las t  one,  the  prepayment  o f ,  the  dec i s ion  o f  1 .6 ,  the  

guarantee.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And now the  659 prepayment .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Ja ,  I  jus t  want  us  t o  cover  

as  much as  we can.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I f  you  are  ab le  to  f in ish  whatever  

quest ions you have o f  h im th is  even ing ,  a l l  the  be t te r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  i f  desp i te  your  best  e f fo r ts  you are  

no t  ab le  to ,  then we take i t  f rom there ,  because  

Wednesday has been se t  as ide  fo r  tha t .   Then le t  us  t ry.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   I  am near l y  ac tua l l y  f in ished.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay no,  tha t  i s  f ine .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    I  am near l y  ac tua l l y  f in ished.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Mr  S ingh and I  w i l l  be  le f t  w i th  the  

smal l  i ssues to  t idy  up  on Wednesday.   Mr  S ingh then 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I f  they  a re  smal l  i ssues they cou ld  be  

dea l t  w i th  in  wr i t ten  fo rm.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  in  o ther  words,  he  on ly  has to  come 

back on  Wednesday i f  there  i s  a  rea l  need.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The smal l  i ssues they can be dea l t  w i th  

in ,  you can send  a  request  and he can do an a f f idav i t  to  

respond to  tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  yes .  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    You wanted to  say someth ing ,  Mr  S ingh.   

Ja?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.   I  mean in  te rms o f ,  jus t  fo r  the  sake o f  

exped iency,  jus t  fo r  comple teness in  my response to 20 

Mr  Se leka ’s  ques t ion  why the  m inutes  are  be ing  sought ,  

Mr  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  reca l l  the  apo logy as  m inuted,  because I  

never  made the  apo logy.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR SINGH:    In  tha t  the  m inutes  a re  an  incor rec t  re f lec t ion  
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o f  what  t ransp i red  a t  the  meet ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  you suggest ing  tha t  you a re  aware  

tha t  the  m inutes  re f lec t  an  apo logy,  bu t  you say you do not  

reca l l  hav ing  made i t ,  o r  what  i s  the  pos i t ion?  

MR SINGH:    So Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  be fore  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  you are  say ing  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  the  

m inutes  may re f lec t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH:    Ref lec t  i t ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    An  apo logy,  you do not  reca l l  hav ing  

made such an apo logy.  10 

MR SINGH:    Yes,  and the  m inutes  are  an  incor rec t  

re f lec t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I f  tha t  i s  what  they re f lec t?  

MR SINGH:    I f  tha t  i s  what  they say.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR SINGH:    And i f  we get  the  m inutes  as  we l l  as  the 

submiss ion  fo r  t he  11 t h  o f  Apr i l  i t  w i l l  be  qu i te  c lea r  in  

te rms o f  the ,  le t  us  ca l l  i t  the  inaccuracy o f  the  m inute .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Mr  Se leka? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  thank  you Cha i r,  I  found the  20 

minutes ,  Eskom bund le  18 (b) .  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  i s  the  po in t  about  the  apo logy  

aga in?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Tegeta  faced w i th  the  c los ing  o f  bank 

accounts ,  the  acknowledgement  tha t  i t  m igh t ,  i t  may not  be  
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ab le  to  t rade,  the  dec i s ion  however  on  the  13 t h  wh ich  was  

made on the  11 t h  o f  Apr i l  2016,  i t  hangs in  the  ba lance,  bu t  

nonethe less  they dec ide  to  make the  prepayment .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No the  rea l  quest ion  is ;  why was the  

prepayment  made?  And Mr  S ingh can address,  the  

quest ion  is  u l t imate ly  go ing  to  be ;  were  you mak ing  the  

prepayment  to  he lp  Tegeta  wh ich  was in  f inanc ia l  d is t ress  

because the  bank had c losed the i r  accounts  when you  

made the  prepayment ,  and why cou ld  you not  make the  10 

payment  in  the  normal  cou rse?  You supp ly  coa l  and you  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  i f  they  a l ready had the  ob l iga t ion  to  

pay,  to  make the  prepayment ,  wou ld  the  c los ing  o f  the 

accounts  ob l i te ra te  the  ob l iga t ion?  I n  o ther  words,  

whethe r  they were  he lp ing  ou t  Tegeta ,  i s  tha t  no t  

someth ing  tha t  shou ld  be  looked a t  p r io r  to  the  conc lus ion  

o f  the  agreement  i t se l f  and so  on ,  and the  reso lu t ion? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because i f  they  a l ready have a  lega l  20 

ob l iga t ion  to  pay,  I  am not  sure  tha t  the  banks c losed the i r  

accounts ,  I  mean tha t  wou ld  mean tha t  they do  not  have to ,  

they do  not  owe,  they must  no t  honour  the i r  ob l iga t ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes Cha i r,  the  quest ion  obv ious ly  

a r ises  as  to  whe ther  there  was tha t  lega l  ob l iga t ion .   So 
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what  has,  and I  apprec ia te ,  because I  am not  tak ing  

Mr  S ingh th rough tha t ,  because  he says he  was not  

invo l ved.   So I  wanted to  zoom in to  h is  ro le  when th i s  

dec is ion  was made,  i t  i s  on  the  11 t h  o f  Apr i l  a t  the 

meet ings he ld  by  te lephone confe rence a t  n ine  o ’ c lock  in  

the  even ing ,  bu t  i s  made on the  bas i s  o f  a  request  and we  

t raversed tha t  w i th  Ms –  Dr  Ayanda Nte te  on  the  bas is  o f  

the  request  f rom Tegeta  fo r  the  prepayment .  

So there  is  no  cont rac t  in  p lace .   They made tha t  

dec is ion  on  the  11 t h  o f  Apr i l  when  the  BTC was schedu led  10 

to  s i t  on  the  13 t h  o f  Apr i l  2016.   I t  u l t imate ly  s i t s  on  the  

13 t h  o f  Apr i l  and i t  d iscusses the  same issue.   On tha t  day  

the  payment  was  made wi th  the  ins t ruc t ion  tha t  i t  shou ld  

be  made before  the  banks c losed on tha t  day,  bu t  Cha i r,  we  

must  read tha t  a lso ,  so  tha t  i s  the  one aspect  about  Tegeta  

s t rugg l ing ,  bu t  I  a lso  want ,  I  need to  pu t  to  Mr  S ingh the  

ev idence o f  Mr  P ierce  Marsden and Mr  C l in ton  E f ron  who  

says pr io r  to  the  13 t h  Mr  Hawa comes to  h im and  say we  

are  600 mi l l ion  shor t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    So Mr  S ingh,  i t  i s  those two aspects .   

Cha i r,  can I  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  no ,  i t  i s  f ine ,  go  ahead,  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  i f  you  go,  i f  we go to  the  m inutes ,  I  

gave you the  page,  Eskom bund le  18(b) .  
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MR SINGH:    Page?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Page 971,  972 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    971?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    971.   The minu te  s ta r ts  there .    

MR SINGH:    971? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    971.  

MR SINGH:    Yes? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    You see the  m inutes  o f  the  Eskom 

Board  Tender  Commi t tee  meet ing  he ld  a t  the  boardroom,  

13  Apr i l  2016 a t  09 :00 .  10 

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You see tha t .   So you were  p resent  in  

the  meet ing  together  w i th  o ther  o r  some o f  your  

co l leagues.   Page 972,  paragraph 41.  

MR SINGH:    4 .1 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    4 .1 ,  Thank you.   Spec ia l  BTC meet ing ,  

conf i rmat ion  f rom CFO in  respect  o f  secur i t ies  f rom Tegeta  

Resources.    

“The CFO recapped tha t  the  submiss ion  

tab led  be fore  the  spec ia l   BTC meet ing  20 

he ld  on  the  11 t h  o f  Apr i l  2016 had been 

rev iewed by  h im,  a long w i th  the  rev iew o f  

the  secur i t y  package tab le  f rom Tegeta  

Resources.   He apo log ised fo r  hav ing  

over looked the  cons ide ra t ion  o f  the  cu r ren t  
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c i rcumstances a round Tegeta . ”  

Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

“There  were  var ious issues re la t ing  to  the  

cha l lenges the  company was fac ing  f rom i t s  

bank ing  ins t i tu t ions .   Eskom had taken 

cess ion  over  the  company ’s  revenue,  a 

lean ove r  the  coa l  assets ,  e t  ce te ra ,  wh ich  

fo rmed the  secur i t y  package requ i red  fo r  10 

the  t ransact ion  under  cons ide ra t ion .   In  

l igh t  o f  cur ren t  events  be ing  exper ienced 

by  Tegeta ,  ques t ions had ar isen  around  

Tegeta ’s  go ing  concern  s ta tus  over  the  next  

th ree  to  12  months ,  there  was the re fore  no  

va lue  to  Eskom in  ho ld ing  the  cess ion  o f  

the  revenue,  because w i thou t  bank 

accounts  the  company wou ld  no t  be  in  a  

pos i t ion  to  opera te .   The above cha l lenges  

were  ident i f ied  post  the  BTC’s  approva l  20 

hav ing  been g iven to  the  tab led  submiss ion  

a t  the  spec ia l  commi t tee  meet ing . ”  

Do you see tha t  apo logy is  recorded? 

MR SINGH:    I  do ,  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Do you s t i l l  say  you do not ,  I  mean the  
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m inu tes  are  incor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    That  i s  cor rec t .   Mr  Cha i r,  I  say  tha t  hav ing  

regard  to ,  i f  you  look a t  the  second l ine  i t  says  ‘a long wi th  

the review of  the secur i ty package table f rom Tegeta 

Resources’ ,  which would mean that  the BTC submission on 

the 11t h had a BTC submission or securi ty package that  was 

at tached.  Now i f  the ,  I  do  no t  know i f  we have the  ac tua l  

BTC submiss ion  f rom the  11 t h ,  do  we have i t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Say aga in?  

MR SINGH:    The  BTC submission for the 11t h.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  we do have that .   Page 931.  

MR SINGH:    Mr Chai r,  i f  whatever  to the submission to the 

Board Tender Commit tee on the 11t h of  Apri l  2016,  which 

starts at  931 . . . [ in tervenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Sorry,  sorry Mr Singh,  let  us go to 

page 936,  that  is the signed one,  936.   936,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  is the signed one.  

MR SINGH:    So Mr Chai r,  you wi l l  see that  936,  937,  938 

and 939 is basica l ly the submission that  was ref lected as the 20 

submission that  was tabled on the meet ing of  the 11t h of  

Apri l  2016.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes? 

MR SINGH:    You wi l l  not ice the f ive pages,  Mr Chai r,  does 

not  refer to any securi ty package that  had been tabled 
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before the Commit tee,  i t  just  requests that  the Commit tee 

approves the prepayment wi th Tegeta,  I  th ink in the value of  

R586 778 500,  and that  is recorded on page 938 at  

paragraph 3.3.2.    

I t  jus t  requests ,  and fo r  the  record  Mr  Cha i r,  I  d id  

no t  a t tend th is  meet ing  and the  reso lu t ion  tha t  i s  requ i red  

Mr  Cha i r,  i s  bas i ca l l y  recorded a t  2 .1 ,  2 .2 and 2 .3 .   I t  

bas ica l l y  says tha t  the  Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Of f i cer  i s  hereby 

author ised to  approve the  bas i s  fo r  the  prepayment  to  

secure  the  f i xed  pr ice  ca l l  and the  per iod  o f  the  ex tens ion ,  10 

fo r  the  per iod  o f  the  ex tens ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    So  Mr  Cha i r,  th is  bas i ca l l y  i s  the  document  

tha t  i s  tab led  and  i f  we then have re ference to  the  minutes ,  

Mr  Cha i r,  you w i l l  see  tha t  i t  re fe rences the  fac t  tha t  the  

secur i t y  package  tha t  was tab led  a t  th is  meet ing ,  so  there  

was obv ious l y  no  secur i t y  package tha t  was tab led  a t  tha t  

meet ing ,  because tha t  was the  BTC submiss ion  tha t  was  

submi t ted .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  make tha t  po in t  aga in .  20 

MR SINGH:    So Mr  Cha i r. . .   Sor ry,  Mr  Se leka.   Sor ry  

Mr  Se leka,  the  m inutes  aga in  i s  on  page? 

CHAIRPERSON:    971.  

MR SINGH:    971 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    For  the  meet ing  o f  the  13 t h  o f  Apr i l .  
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MR SINGH:    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  971.  

MR SINGH:    So  i f  you  look,  i f  you  have re ference or  

regard  to  971 . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    And you are  ta lk ing ,  you are  supposed to  

be  ta lk ing  a t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH:    And  I  am ta lk ing  to  942.  

CHAIRPERSON:    972?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  972.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  10 

MR SINGH:    Le t  me get  there  myse l f ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Under  parag raph . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH:    971.   So Mr  Cha i r,  i f  you  look a t  4 .1  and i t  

says  there  the  CFO recapped the  submiss ion  tab le  be fore  

the  BTC meet ing  on  the  11 t h  o f  Apr i l  2016,  wh ich  is  the 

submiss ion  tha t  appears  on  page 942,  okay,  had been 

rev iewed by  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes?  

MR SINGH:    I  have not  rev iewed  tha t  submiss ion  be fore  i t  

was tab led  be fo re  the  BTC o f  11 t h  o f  Apr i l ,  Mr  Cha i r.   A long 20 

w i th  the  rev iew o f  the  secur i t y  package tab led  f rom Tegeta  

Resources,  now tha t  was the ,  f rom the  BTC submiss ion  on  

942,  Mr  Cha i r,  you do not  f ind  a  secur i t y  package tha t  i s  

re fe r red  to  in  the  submiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes?  
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MR SINGH:    So  there fore ,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  am say ing  tha t  the  

re f lec t ion  in  the  m inutes ,  the  way the  m inutes  are  captured 

is  inaccura te .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  there  an  aud io ,  Mr  Se leka,  an  aud io  

record ing  o f  the  meet ing ,  do  you know? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i r,  I  canno t  reca l l  o f fhand.   I  know 

there  a re  m inutes  tha t  have aud ios ,  o thers  do  not  have.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  w i l l  check on  th is  one.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  10 

MR SINGH:    Bu t  fo r  a l l  in ten ts  and pu rposes Mr Cha i r,  my 

reco l lec t ion  o f  the  meet ing  was as  fo l lows,  o r  le t  us  no t  

say  the  reco l lec t ion  o f  the  meet ing ,  the  reco l lec t ion  o f  the  

events  was as  fo l lows.   I  was not  aware  tha t  the  BTC was  

s i t t ing  a t  21 :00  on the  11 t h  to  cons ider  th is  mat te r.    

The f i rs t  t ime I  had come to  know about  th is  mat te r  

was on the  12 t h  o f  Apr i l ,  wh ich  was the  morn ing  o f  the  12 t h  

o f  Apr i l  and Ms Dan ie l s  had in fo rmed me tha t  the  BTC had  

sa t  and had taken a  reso lu t ion  fo r  a  p repayment  o f  th is  

amount  and tha t  the  BTC had requested me to  do  cer ta in  20 

th ings and I  th ink  one was then,  one o f  them was to  ensure  

tha t  there  was a  d iscount ,  the  o ther  one was tha t  the  

secur i t y  package tha t  was o f fe red  by  Tegeta  was 

appropr ia te  and th i rd ly  tha t  i t  made economic  sense fo r  

Eskom,  or  someth ing  to  tha t  e f fec t .  
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Mr  Cha i r,  on  be ing  adv ised o f  tha t  I  then sa id  okay,  

so  how do we do  th is ,  so  I  th ink  then we ca l led  a  meet ing  

w i th  Tegeta ,  I  th ink  i t  was on the  12 t h ,  and engaged w i th  

them and a t  tha t  meet ing  i t  was then put  on  the  tab le  tha t  

obv ious ly  we a re  prov id ing  you a  cess ion  o f  revenue and  

hav ing  submi t ted ,  g iv ing  us  a  cess ion  o f  revenue,  g iven the  

fac t  tha t  you are  hav ing  these issues w i th  banks,  you may  

not  even be here  in  th ree  months  f rom now,  so  tha t  i s  no t  

rea l l y  secured.  

The o ther  op t ion  tha t  we d id  and looked a t  Mr Cha i r,  10 

a t  tha t  meet ing  was to  unders tand what  i s  the  ne t  asset  

va lue  o f  Tegeta  or  Oak Bay,  I  am not  su re  whethe r  i t  was  

Oak Bay or  Tegeta ,  bu t  the  management  accounts  tha t  

were  prov ided to  us  a t  the  t ime were  a lso  no t  adequate ,  

because I  th ink  ne t  asset  va lue  o f ,  tha t  was re f l ec ted ,  i f  

memory  se rves,  was in  the  reg ion  o f  about  R24 mi l l ion  to  

R25 mi l l ion ,  so  aga in  tha t  d id  no t  he lp .  

What  was o f  va lue  to  us  was the  issue o f  the  ac tua l  

coa l  supp ly  agreement  tha t  we had w i th  Tegeta ,  wh ich  a t  

the  t ime was  the  Brakfon te in  cont rac t ,  wh ich  was  20 

conc luded I  th ink  in  March 2015  or  so ,  and I  th ink  tha t  

cont rac t  ran  fo r  a  per iod  o f  10  years .    

So tha t  was the  on ly  secur i t y  tha t  we cou ld  ac tua l l y  

take  and hav ing  conc luded w i th  Tegeta  tha t  l i s ten ,  i f  they  

wanted to  go  ahead w i th  th is  t ransact ion  then the  on ly  way  
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fo r  them to  go  ahead w i th  th is  t ransact ion  was to  bas ica l l y  

p rov ide  w i th  the  cess ion  o f  sha res on  Tegeta ,  tha t  wou ld  

g ive  us  access,  the  under ly ing  cont rac t  tha t  Eskom had 

w i th  Brak fon te in ,  wh ich  then wou ld  enab le  us  in  the  event  

o f  de fau l t  to  bas ica l l y,  le t  us  ca l l  i t  os tens ib ly  ge t  p re  coa l .   

So we had,  ac tua l l y  had access to  the  en t i re  coa l  reserves 

o f  the  Brakfon te in  Mine.   We then d iscussed the  issue o f  

the  d iscount  and the  d iscount  was  agreed a t  I  th ink  3% or  

3 .5%.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  was tha t?  10 

MR SINGH:    I t  was ag reed a t  I  th ink  3% o r  3 .5% i f  I  am 

not  m is taken,  bu t  i t  was then eventua l l y  pu t  in to  the  

agreement .   Those d iscuss ions tha t  then happened on the  

12 t h ,  Mr  Cha i r,  was then the  sub jec t  o f  th is  d i scuss ion  a t  

the  BTC on the  13 t h .    

Th is  d iscuss ion  tha t  I  then gave  feedback to  the  

Commi t tee ,  i f  you  look a t  th is ,  aga in  the  second l ine  tha t  

says ‘had been  rev iewed by  h im ’ ,  so  I  sa id  to  the  

Commi t tee  tha t  you took th is  dec i s ion  on  the  11 t h ,  I  had 

access to  the  documents  post  tha t ,  I  have rev iewed tha t .   20 

Hav ing  rev iewed  tha t ,  an  engagement  w i th  Tegeta  on  the  

12 t h ,  these are  the  issues tha t  we now f ind .   The proposa l  

tha t  they had g i ven us  in  t e rms o f  the  cess ion  o f  revenue is  

unacceptab le ,  the  ne t  asset  va lue  is  no t  acceptab le .  

The on ly  a l te rna t ive  tha t  we have i s  th is ,  how can I ,  
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cess ion  o f  shares  wh ich  g ives  us  access to  Brak fon te in  and 

i f  tha t  i s  acceptab le  to  you as  the  BTC then we  can go  

ahead and take  tha t  as  secur i t y  and then the  BTC 

cons idered tha t  and g i ven,  and then took the  reso lu t ion  to  

say tha t  empowered us  to  en ter  in to  a  cess ion  o f  shares  

agreement  w i th  Tegeta .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Mr  S ingh,  I  am go ing  to ,  you 

know in  your  response issues  about  the  d i scount ,  I  

remember  there  were ,  tha t  d iscount  i ssue was po in ted l y  10 

ra ised w i th  you a t  a  Par l iamentary  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  and 

we went  th rough i t  here  w i th  Doctor  Ayanda Mte ta .   Tegeta  

had in  fac t  a l ready ind i ca ted  tha t  they w i l l  g ive  a  d iscount ,  

in  the i r  le t te r,  o f  3% and you were  asked who d id  you 

negot ia te  the  d i scount  w i th ,  you  cou ld  no t  reca l l  a t  the 

Par l iamentary  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  and in  fac t  what  

t ransp i res  here  was the  ev idence o f  Ms Ayanda Mte ta ,  i t  

was a  3 .5%.  

That  o f fe r  was made,  i t  came f rom Tegeta  and i t  d id  

no t ,  i t  was not  the  resu l t  o f  any d iscuss ion  be tween  you or  20 

Tegeta  regard ing  a  d iscount .  

MR SINGH:    Wel l  Mr  Cha i r,  i f  you  look a t  the  reso lu t ion  

tha t  was,  tha t  BTC eventua l l y  took  i t  sa id  tha t  the re  shou ld  

be  a  d iscount  and there  was a  d iscount .   I t  d id  no t  say  tha t  

you shou ld  then get  3% d iscount  and you needed to  make 
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i t  f i ve  or  there  was a  1% d iscount  and you needed to  make 

i t  th ree ,  the  reso lu t ion  sa id  there  must  be  a  d iscount .   And 

on the  engagement  w i th  Mr  Mte twa in  the  meet ings ,  I  th ink  

on  the  12 t h ,  o r  the  engagement  w i th  Tegeta  in  the  meet ing  

o f  the  12 t h ,  the  mat te r  o f  the  d iscount  was d i scussed and 

the  3  or  3 .5  % was the  number  tha t  was se t t led  on .   So I  

am not  too  sure  what  the  issue is .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja ,  we l l ,  I  have to ld  you th is  –  the 

pos i t ion  on  the  d iscount .   Le t  me go to  another  majo r  i ssue 

wh ich  we see f rom Mr  Ephron ’s  s ta tement  and Mr  P ierce  10 

Marsden ’s  a f f idav i t .   And Cha i r,  I  want  you to  go  there  and 

th is  i s  the  las t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Can we jus t  take  a  ten  m inutes ’ 

ad journment .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Cer ta in ly.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We ad jou rn .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Eskom Bund le  

18(a) ,  page 352.115.  

MR SINGH :    Sor ry,  one second,  Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja ,  18(a ) .  
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MR SINGH :    18 .   Page?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    352.115.  

MR SINGH :    352 .115.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    115.   Page –  paragraph 105.    

MR SINGH :    I  am there ,  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you .   Mr  Ephron says a t  

parag raph 105:  

“ In  the  week beg inn ing  4  Apr i l  2016,  I  rece i ved 

a  te lephone ca l l  f rom Mr  Essa adv is ing  tha t  

Tegeta  was shor t  o f  an  amount  o f  R 600 mi l l ion  10 

fo r  the  purpose o f  payment  o f  the  pu rchase  

pr ice .  

We requested tha t  G lencore  Fund  be shor t fa l l  

o f  R 600 mi l l ion  and sa id  tha t  Oakbay wou ld  

ge t  Eskom to  pay the  f i rs t  R 600  mi l l ion  f rom 

coa l  sa les  to  G lencore .  

G lencore  dec l ined th is  request . . . ”  

 Mr  S ingh,  you wou ld  no t  have known about  th is  

conversa t ion .  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    He ca r r ies  on  and says:  

“A t  the  meet ing  on  11 Apr i l  2016,  Mr  Marsden,  

one o f  the  Bus iness Rescue P ract i t ioners ,  was  

adv ised by  Mr  Howa tha t  Tegeta  was  

R 600 mi l l ion  shor t  and Mr  Howa requested  
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tha t  Mr  Marsden approached the  Consor t ium o f  

Banks request ing  a  br idg ing  loan in  the  

amount  o f  R 600 mi l l ion  in  o rder  to  f inance the 

shor t fa l l  on  the  p re-purchase pr i ce .  

Mr  Marsden ar ranged a  meet ing  w i th  the  

Consor t ium o f  Banks whereaf te r  Mr  Marsden 

adv ised Mr  Howa tha t  the  Consor t ium o f  Banks  

was not  p repared  to  f inance the  shor t fa l l  o f  the  

purchase pr i ce . . . ”  

 You wou ld  a l so  no t  have been aware  o f  th is?  10 

MR SINGH :    I  was not .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Now,  th is  i s  p r io r  to  the  BTC meet ing  

urgent ly  in  the  n igh t  o f  the  11 t h  o f  Apr i l  2016 to  make tha t  

dec is ion  fo r  a  p repayment  o f  R 659 mi l l ion .   D id  you take  

par t  in  tha t  meet ing?  

MR SINGH :    On the  11 t h?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    On the  11 t h ,  ja .  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Oh,  you on ly  took par t  in  the  meet ing  

o f  the  13 t h  o f  Apr i l?  20 

MR SINGH :    Sor ry,  s i r?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    You on ly  took par t  in  the  meet ing  o f  

13  Apr i l  2016.  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So on the  face  o f  these a l lega t ions,  i t  
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wou ld  appear  tha t  Tegeta  was,  as  i t  i s  a l leged,  aga in  

seek ing  f inanc ia l  o r,  ra the r,  hav ing  f inanc ia l  d i f f icu l t y  to  

pay fo r  the  ba lance o f  the  purchase pr ice  fo r  the  

acqu is i t ion  o f  OCM and i t  makes,  f i rs t l y,  these a t tempts  to  

ge t  the  R 600 m i l l ion  shor t fa l l  and when tha t  fa i led ,  i t  

wou ld  seem tha t  i t  then came to  Eskom.   In  fac t ,  even  

suggested here  tha t  G lencore  shou ld  pay and Oakbay  

wou ld  ge t  the  R 600 mi l l ion  as  a  f i rs t  payment  f rom the  

sa le  o f  coa l  to  Eskom and pay G lencore  back.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Was 11 Apr i l ,  Mr  Se leka,  the  same date  10 

on wh ich  the  submiss ion  to  the  BTC was s igned? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    The 11 t h  o f  Apr i l?  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Was i t?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    In  the  –  around four.   So you see the 

emai ls  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    . . . f ina l i s ing  the i r  submiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    And the  meet ing  is  v ia  te lephone 

conference a t  n ine  o ’c lock .  

CHAIRPERSON :    In  the  n igh t?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    A t  n igh t ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    . . .Mr  S ingh  says he  was no t  par t  o f  

tha t .   Those who  came here ,  Mr  S ingh have a  d i f f i cu l t y  –  

we l l ,  they  u l t imate ly  say they do  not  see why i t  was  urgent  

to  meet  on  the  11 t h  o f  Apr i l  when there  was a  BTC meet ing  

a l ready schedu led  fo r  the  13 t h  o f  Apr i l  2016.   A re  you ab le  

to  answer  the  urgency?  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    A re  you ab le  to  answer  why  on the  10 

13 t h  o f  Apr i l  2016  d id  you make a  payment  on  an  urgent  

bas is?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  the  payment  tha t  was made  on the  

13 t h  o f  Apr i l  2016  was as  a  resu l t  o f  an  agreement  tha t  was 

entered in to  be tween Eskom and Tegeta  tha t  had been and 

w i l l  remain  by  the  c lose  o f  bus iness so  they can get  pa id .   

So in  te rms o f  tha t  agreement ,  Mr  Cha i r,  we  had an  

ob l iga t ion  to  per fo rm.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]   No,  Mr  S ingh,  tha t  cannot  be  

the  answer.   I f  the  quest ion  is  why  i t  was urgent  what  –  to  20 

pay on  the  13 t h ,  the  answer  cannot  be  because o f  the 

agreement .   Because the  quest ion  wants  to  f ind  ou t  why 

d id  Eskom,  in  the  f i rs t  p lace ,  agree to  pay so  urgent ly  on  

the  13 t h .  

MR SINGH :    Wel l . . .   That  payment  emanated f rom the  
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meet ing  on  the  11 t h  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    . . .wh ich  I  was not  pa r ty  to .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.    

MR SINGH :    I  was . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    From what  one sees he re .   The urgency 

was about  Tegeta  need ing  money in  o rde r  to  be  ab le  to  pay 

the  pr ice .  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r  . . . [ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR SINGH :    . . . I  wou ld  no t  be  ab le  to  comment .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    You w i l l  no t  be  ab le  to  say anyth ing  

about  i t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Cha i r,  tha t  essent ia l l y  conc ludes my 

quest ions in  regard  to  the  Tegeta  t ransact ions to  Mr  S ingh 

because h is  invo l vement  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes  

ADV SELEKA SC :    . . . i s  indeed l im i ted .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.    20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    And I  was showing Mr  S ingh  a  v ideo  

c l ip  o f  a  p ress  conference by  h im and Mr  Mole fe  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    . . .where  they are  ta lk ing  about  th is  
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i ssue.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And I  thought ,  i f  the  Cha i r  a l lows,  I  

cou ld  p lay  tha t  as  the  par t ing  shot .    

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  how long does i t  take?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I t  i s  a  n ine  m inutes  bu t  we p ick  i t  up 

somewhere  in  the  m idd le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay le t  me hear.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja ,  they ta lk  about  th is  t ransact ion  and 

why they pa id  Tegeta  R 659 mi l l ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV VAN HEERDEN :    Cha i rperson,  jus t  one quest ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  

ADV VAN HEERDEN :    I s  Mr  Mo le fe  coming back  to  g ive  

ev idence?  Because my reco l lec t ion  is  he  is  the  person 

tha t  speaks in  th is  v ideo and th is  was never  pu t  to  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  le t  me –  I  do  no t  know what  i s  a id  

in  the  v ideo,  f i rs t  o r  in  the  aud io .   Le t  me see tha t  f i rs t  and  20 

then whether  i t  i s  war ran ted to  ask  anybody  fu r ther  

quest ions.   We wi l l  take  i t  f rom the re .    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   H ’m? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Whi le  they  are  ge t t ing  the  sound  
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cor rec t .   Th is  i s  a  p ress  conference.   I t  i s  a  v ideo c l ip  o f  a  

p ress  confe rence  g iven by  Mr  Mole fe .   Next  to  h im is  Mr  

S ingh.   The date  i s  the  5 t h  o f  Ju ly  2016.   And they are  

ta lk ing  –  the  reasons –  or  advanc ing  the  reasons why the  

prepayment  o f  R 659 mi l l ion  was made to  Tegeta .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And is  the re  a  t ransc r ip t  o f  tha t  

in te rv iew?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I  have my own f reehand t ranscr ip t  bu t  

we w i l l  do  a  fo rmal  t ranscr ip t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  t ry  and do a  fo rmal  t ranscr ip t  o f  tha t .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Le t  us  hear.  

[Video c l ip  played into record]  

Mr Mole fe :   “Umzinget i  sa id  they are  okay.   

They w i l l  con t inue supp ly ing  Arnot .   Tegeta  

sa id :   We can he lp  you a t  A rnot  w i th  coa l  bu t  

there  is  a  por t ion  o f  the  m ine tha t  G lencore  

was not  m in ing ,  wh ich  was expor t  coa l ,  bu t  

G lencore  had been sav ing  the  expor t  coa l  

quant i t y  coa l  to  exper t  i t  when the  pr ice  20 

improved,  no t  to  g ive  to  Eskom,  to  expor t  i t .  

Bu t  Tegeta  sa id :   We wi l l  m ine  i t  bu t  we have a  

prob lem.   We do not  have the  cap i ta l  to  res tar t  

those opera t ions.   We do not  have the  cap i ta l  

to  res tar t  those opera t ions because ou r  bank  
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accounts  have been c losed.   Nobody wants  to  

g ive  us  c red i t  and we have jus t  pa id  Opt imum 

for  the  –  we have jus t  pa id  G lencore  fo r  the  

Opt imum Mine.   Would  you cons ider  advanc ing  

to  us  the  money  to  reopen the  expor t  s ide?  

And we w i l l  g ive  you tha t  coa l .   And we ag reed 

because we have  no reason not  to  do  bus iness  

w i th  Tegeta .   Nobody has to ld  me why we  

cannot  do  bus iness w i th  Tegeta .   We took the  

shares o f  Tegeta  as  secur i t y  and sa id :   I f  you  10 

do not  pay us  back th is  money,  you w i l l  lose  

th is  company.   And they agreed.   They gave us  

the  shares.   They  took the  money,  they res tar t  

the  opera t ion ,  they have been supp ly ing  to  us  

a t  the  h igher  p r ice  because tha t  i s  expor t  

qua l i t y  coa l .   But  tha t  h igher  p r ice  i s  f i ve  

hundred and four -seventy.   A t  470 .   They have 

been supp ly ing  to  us  a t  470 wh ich  is  more  than  

ha l f  o f  what  we  have been pay ing  Exxaro .   

. . . [ Ind is t inc t ]  d id  no t  p ick  tha t  up .   More  than 20 

ha l f  o f  what  we were  pay ing  Exxaro  a t  1132  

per  ton .   We have not  been pay ing  them for  

the  coa l  because  we have been deduct ing  the  

coa l  tha t  we have  rece ived f rom. . . ”  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Okay does tha t  cover  what  you wanted?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I t  covered i t  Cha i r  because the  reason 

they advance Mr  S ingh fo r  g iv ing  money to  them was 

because nobody wanted to  t rade w i th  them,  accord ing  to  

the  s ta tement ,  as  the i r  bank accounts  were  c losed .   I  see  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  Ju ly  2016,  né?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    That  i s  Ju ly  2016,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    That  i s  sho r t l y  a f te r  Apr i l  2016.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    And Ju ly  i s  no t  shor t l y  a f t e r  Apr i l .  

[ laughs]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON :    You have got  May and June in  be tween.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  Cha i r.   [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Mr  S ingh,  do  you d isagree w i th  

Mr  Mole fe?  

MR SINGH :    What  i s  you r  p ropos i t ion ,  s i r?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    On the  reason fo r  the  payment .   D id  20 

you pay them because the  bank accounts  were  c losed and 

nobody wanted to  do  bus iness w i th  them? 

ADV VAN HEERDEN :    Cha i rpe rson,  tha t  i s  no t  what  was  

sa id  on  the  v ideo  c l ip  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  th ink  what  he  sa id  i s .   In  e f fec t ,  
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they  pa id  Tegeta  so  tha t  Tegeta  cou ld  se l l  them the  coa l  

tha t  G lencore  had reserved fo r  expor t .   So they d id  no t  

have –  the i r  accounts  have been  c losed but  they  needed 

money so  tha t  they cou ld  access the  expor t  sa id ,  as  he  put  

i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Do you agree w i th  tha t  reasons,  

Mr  S ingh?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  a t  the  da te  o f  approva l  o f  these  

t ransact ions,  obv ious ly,  I  was not  aware  o f  tha t .   But  10 

subsequent  to  tha t ,  obv ious ly,  yes .   Through the  med ia .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  mean,  a t  the  t ime o f  the  in te rv iew,  was 

tha t  the  reason as  you unders tood  i t  as  we l l?  

MR SINGH :    We l l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  a t  the  t ime o f  the  in te rv iew,  

no .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  now when you hear  i t ,  you  agree?  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  yes ,  Mr  Cha i r  th rough read ing  a l l  the  

documents  and s tu f f  because then –  I  th ink  tha t  was  e luded 20 

to  dur ing  the  pe rmiss ion  o f  the  11 t h  o f  Apr i l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    So I  wou ld  th ink  tha t  i s  what  Mr  Mole fe  i s  

re fe r r i ng  to .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   But  I  –  why wou ld  you not  know 
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th is?   I  mean,  you were  the  CFO.   Why wou ld  you not  know 

why th is  money was be ing  pa id?   D id  you know a  d i f fe ren t  

reason f rom the  one he gave a t  the  t ime o f  the  in te rv iew?  

In  o ther  words,  d id  he  g ive  a  reason tha t  was not  the  same 

reason as  the  one you knew? 

MR SINGH :    No ,  Mr  Cha i r.   As  I  sa id .   In  te rms o f  the  

documents  tha t  were  ava i lab le  to  me a t  the  t ime,  was on ly  

the  BTC minutes  or  the  BTC submiss ions o f  the  11 t h  o f  

Apr i l  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  10 

MR SINGH :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  bu t  my quest ion  is .   You were  s i t t ing  

next  to  h im as he  gave th is  reasons fo r  the  payment .  

MR SINGH :    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  you  –  i f  you  e i ther  bo th  knew the  same 

reason or  you knew d i f fe ren t  reasons.   D id  you know the 

same reason wh ich  is  the  reason he gave? 

MR SINGH :    And I  am t ry ing  to  exp la in  Mr  Cha i r.   On ly  

where  tha t  I  cou ld  know tha t  reason was re ference  to  the  

BTC submiss ions  on  the  11 t h  wh ich  . . . [ in te rvenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    In  o ther  words,  a t  tha t  t ime 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .o f  the  in te rv iew,  he  was g i v ing  a  

reason tha t  was unknown to  you?  
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MR SINGH :    No,  Mr  Cha i r.   Remember,  I  had rev iewed  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH :    . . . the  BTC submiss ion  o f  the  11 t h  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    . . .pos t  a  meet ing ,  as  I  have exp la ined  to  you.   

The meet ing  o f  the  11 t h  happened.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja-no,  do  no t  go  back to  the  meet ing .  

MR SINGH :    Okay . . . [ in te rvenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    The s imp le  quest ion  i s .   You have 

l i s tened to  h im g iv ing  a  reason why . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .payment  was  made.   You are  s i t t ing 

next  to  h im.    

MR SINGH :    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    My quest ion  is .   As  you were  s i t t ing  next  

to  h im,  the  reason he gave,  was i t  a  new reason as  fa r  as  

you were  concerned?  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.   No.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Or  d id  you know the  same reason to  be  

the  reason fo r  the  payment?  

MR SINGH :    I t  was the  same reason.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .   Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja .   Thank you,  Cha i r.   Mr  S ingh,  tha t  
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seems to  resona te  w i th  tha t  paragraph in  the  m inutes  o f  

the  13 t h  o f  Apr i l  2016 about  the  awareness tha t  Tegeta ’s  

bank accounts  had been c losed and tha t  they had g rowing 

concern  issues.   What  Mr  Mole fe  sa id  there ,  seems to  

resonate  w i th  tha t .  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  Mr  Se leka.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  he  i s  ra is ing  tha t  Mr  S ingh,  

because you sa id  tha t  the  m inutes  were  incor rec t  to  the 

ex ten t  tha t  they sa id  you had apo log ised and tha t  they  

re f lec ted  what  they re f lec ted .   He is  say ing  the  reason,  10 

wh ich  you say was known to  you,  wh ich  he  g i ves ,  i s  

cons i s ten t  w i th  what  was wr i t ten  in  the  m inutes .   What  do  

you say to  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  in  response to  the  accuracy  o f  the  

m inutes ,  I  was re fer r ing  to  the  propos i t ion  tha t  Mr  Se leka  

have me regard ing  the  apo logy.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    And I  sa id  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  the  m inutes  o f  

cour ts  me hav ing  g iven an apo logy . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  20 

MR SINGH :    . . .and hav ing  rev iewed the  m inutes  or  the  

submiss ion  o f  the  BTC o f  the  11 t h  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    . . .pr io r  to  go ing  to  the  BTC on the  11 t h ,  tha t  

par t  o f  the  m inutes  is  inaccura te .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    Bu t  as  i t  re f lec ts ,  the  issues re la t ing  to  the 

bank accounts ,  the  issue o f  the  growing concern ,  fo r  

example ,  I  wou ld  have ra i se  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    Because tha t  emanated f rom the  meet ing  o f  

the  12 t h  w i th  Tegeta .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    So  the  m inutes  as  re f lec ted  in  those aspects  

are  cor rec t ,  s i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    So are  you say ing  tha t  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  

the  m inutes  re f lec t  tha t  you ind ica ted  tha t  i t  appeared tha t  

Tegeta  had growing concern  issues,  they are  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  you ra i sed tha t  i ssue?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   And tha t  –  because as  I  reca l l  

the  m inutes ,  I  th ink  tha t  was ment ioned together  w i th  the 20 

c losure  o f  the  bank accounts .  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  [ cough ing ]  contex t . . .   I f  I  can  g i ve  

you the  contex t  and i t  w i l l  take  two  minutes ,  Mr  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH :    So ,  as  I  sa id ,  the  11 t h  submiss ion  I  have no 
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par t y  to .   I  go t  to  know i t  on  the  12 t h  bu t  when I  go t  to  

know i t  on  the  12 t h ,  i t  then cu lm inated in  the  mee t ing  w i th  

Tegeta .   P r io r  to  tha t  meet ing  w i th  Tegeta ,  as  I  unders tood  

i t ,  there  was no  secur i t y  package tha t  was p rov ided by  

Tegeta .   When we engaged w i th  them,  post  the  meet ing  o f  

the  11 t h ,  because  one o f  the  issues tha t  emanated f rom the  

11 t h ,  was fo r  me to  ob ta in  appropr ia te  secur i t y.  

 When the  engagement  w i th  Tegeta  on  the  12 t h ,  

the  issue o f  them prov id ing  a  cess ion  o f  revenue  was put  

as  a  secur i t y  package by  them.   I  then looked a t  th is  th ing  10 

and I  sa id :   But  you guys,  i t  i s  common knowledge now 

because o f  the  press  repor ts  tha t  your  bank accounts  are  

c losed.   So o f  what  use i f  the  cess ion  o f  revenue to  me i f  

your  bank accoun ts  are  go ing  to  be  c losed,  f i rs t l y?    

 And second ly,  you are  ced ing  your  own revenue  

to  me and I  am your  b iggest  c red i to r.   So you are  ac tua l l y  

ced ing  my own revenue to  you.   But  i f  you  do not  have  

work ing  cap i ta l  to  run  your  m ine because your  banks are  

c losed.   Sor ry,  your  bank accounts  are  c losed.   Then th is  

cess ion  o f  revenue does not  mean anyth ing .    20 

 So i t  was fo r  those two reason tha t  we then sa id  

the  secur i t y  package proposed by  Tegeta  was not  good 

enough.   So tha t  i s  where  th i s  i ssue o f . . .  [ cough ing ]  

. . .g rowing concern  emanates .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   I  th ink  Mr  Se leka,  you –  when you 
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had  ra i sed the  i ssue,  in i t ia l l y,  you had  a  ce r ta in  l ine  o f  

quest ion ing  bu t . . .   Okay do you –  are  you fo l low ing up o r  

no t?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You want  to  fo l low up on or  no t?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  you  had asked a  quest ion  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .wh ich  was –  I  do  no t  know whethe r  10 

you comple ted  the  quest ion  or  you s topped and 

re formula ted  the  quest ion  a long the  l ines  o f  why payment  

wou ld  have been  made by  Eskom at  tha t  t ime when  i t  was  

known tha t  –  i f  i t  was a l ready  known tha t  the  bank  

accounts  o f  Tege ta  were  c losed.   But  I  am not  sure .   That  

m ight  t r igge r  your  response or  i t  m igh t  no t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes-no,  co r rec t ,  Cha i r  because –  we l l ,  

i t  comes back to  the  way the  m inute  i s  recorded.   The 

minute  says.   The CFO:   Recapped tha t  the  submiss ion  

tab led  be fo re  th i s  Spec ia l  BTC Meet ing  on  the  11 t h .   So 20 

they say you recapped tha t .   And then he apo log ised fo r  

hav ing  over looked cons idera t ion  o f  the  cur ren t  

c i rcumstances a round Tegeta .   There  were  var ious  issues  

re la t ing  to  the  cha l lenges the  company was fac ing  f rom i t s  

bank ing  ins t i tu t ions .   That  was the  c losu re  o f  the  bank 
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accounts .   Now,  the  quest ion  was.    

 That  b rought  a  quest ion  mark  in  the  BTC’s  m ind  

as  to  whether  i t  was sa fe  to  make tha t  payment .   And you 

ta lked about  secur i t y  bu t  I  remember  the  ev idence o f  Ms 

Susanne Dan ie l s .   Sor ry,  I  am jus t  add ing  th is .   That  even  

a t  the  t ime when  the  payment  was made,  those secur i t ies  

were  no t  in  p lace .  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  no t  cor rec t ,  s i r.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    That  i s?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  incor rec t ,  s i r.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Wel l ,  i t  may . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  me put  th is  quest ion  wh ich  m ight  be  

connected w i th  what  you had in  m ind Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And maybe I  took you o f f  your  thoughts  

a t  the  t ime.   I f ,  Mr  S ing ,  be fo re  the  payment  was made to  

Tegeta  i t  was known tha t  i t s  bank accounts  had been  

c losed.   Why wou ld  Eskom p roceeded to  make the  

payment ,  never the less?  Because  the  fac t  tha t  i ts  bank 

account  –  I  mean,   Tegeta ’s  bank accounts  had been 20 

c losed,  meant  tha t  there  was a  ser ious r i sk  whether  i t  

cou ld  cont inue opera t ing  and the re fore ,  whether  i t  cou ld  

cont inue –  i t  wou ld  be  ab le  to  de l i ver  the  coa l  wh ich  was -  

what  was o f  concern  to  Eskom?   

 Eskom,  as  you sa id ,  Eskom wanted –  the  reason  
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why Eskom was prepared to  make the  prepayment  was to  

secure  coa l  bu t  i f  the  en t i t y  tha t  was supposed to  p rov ide  

tha t  secur i t y  was no longer  a l lowed to  opera te  a  bank 

account ,  obv ious ly,  tha t  must  have been r i sky.   Why  

cont inue to  pay?  Why not  wa i t  a t  leas t  un t i l  tha t  i ssue has 

been sor ted  ou t?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  i f  I  can  answer  i t  in  two  

par t s .   Le t  me answer  Mr  Se leka ’s  quest ion  f i r s t  and then I  

w i l l  come back to  yours  Mr  Cha i r.   So in  te rms o f  the  fac t  

tha t  the  secur i t y  package was no t  in  p lace ,  I  th ink  he  is  10 

inco r rec t .    

 I t  i s  an  inco r rec t  asser t ion  tha t  i s  made by  Ms 

Dan ie ls .   I f  you  had regard  fo r  the  tes t imony o f  Mr  Sne l l  

Hager,  who ac tua l l y  e f fec ted  the  payment .   There  were  

documents  tha t  were  t ransmi t ted  to  h im and there  were  

var ious documents  tha t  were  t ransmi t ted  to  h im by pay ing  

Ms Mayabana f rom my o f f i ce  and tha t  inc luded,  i f  I  reca l l ,  

the  BTC reso lu t ion  o f  the  11 t h  o f  May,  an  invo ice ,  and the  

under l in ing  cont rac t  fo r  the  reso lu t ion  tha t  was taken fo r  

the  prepayment .    20 

 The under l in ing  cont rac t  fo r  the  p repayment  

inc luded a  cess ion  and secur i t y,  I  th ink  i t  was cess ion  and  

secur i t y  and p ledge o f  sha res inc luded,  I  th ink ,  in  C lauses 

5 .1  and 4 .5 .2  o f  the . . .   And tha t  agreement  was  s igned 

pr io r  to  the  payment  be ing  a f fec ted  by  Mr  Sne l l  Hager  and  
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h is  team.   So Ms Dan ie l ’s  asser t ion  is  incor rec t  in  tha t  

regard .  

 Mr  Cha i r,  tu rn ing  to  your  quest ion  i n  te rms o f  the  

–  why make the  payment  to  Tegeta  in  the  face  o f  the  fac t  

tha t  the  bank accounts  were  c losed.   Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  t ime,  i f  

I  reca l l  cor rec t l y,  I  th ink  there  were  –  I  do  no t  th ink  a l l  the 

bank accounts  o f  Tegeta  were  c losed.   I  th ink  the re  was  

one –  I  th ink  one bank tha t  ind i ca ted  tha t  they were  c los ing  

the i r  accounts .   And when we had ra ised th is  w i th ,  Mr  

Cha i r,  they  had  g iven us  assurances tha t  they had  10 

a l te rna t ive  measures i n  p lace  to  enab le  them to  cont inue in  

opera t ions a t  the  t ime.    

 And las t l y,  Mr  Cha i r,  in  te rms o f  our  ob jec t i ve  as  

Eskom.   I  th ink  the  en t i re  submiss ion  was premised on the  

bas is  o f  access to  coa l .   The prepayment  was made,  as  

you know,  and secur i t y  tha t  we had rece ived f rom tha t  was 

tha t  in  the  event  o f  de fau l t  we w i l l ,  bas i ca l l y,  le t  us  ca l l  i t ,  

own the  Brakfon te in  Mine.  

CHAIRPERSON :    In  the  case  o f  de fau l t ,  what  wou ld  

happen?  20 

MR SINGH :    In  the  event  o f  de fau l t ,  we wou ld  own the  

Brakfon te in  Mine .   So Eskom wou ld  become the  owner  o f  

the  Brakfon te in  Mine,  wh ich  in  e f fec t ,  wou ld  mean tha t  i t  

had access to  coa l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  how was tha t  go ing  to  he lp  them? 
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MR SINGH :    Because Mr  Cha i r  we had taken the  cess ion  

o f  sha res.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    And they had p ledged the i r  sha res to  Eskom 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    . . in  the  event  o f  de fau l t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  shares in  OCM? 

MR SINGH :    No,  no ,  no .   So now we are  no t  ta lk ing  about  

OCM,  Mr  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Th i s  i s  shares in  what  en t i t y?  

MR SINGH :    In  Tegeta  i t se l f .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  bu t  i f  Tegeta  was not  ab le  to  

opera te .   How wou ld  i t  make a  d i f fe rence tha t  you – tha t  

there  was a  change in  ownersh ip  o f  shares?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  remember  we pa id  650.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    659 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    To  Tegeta?  

MR SINGH :    To  Tegeta .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR SINGH :    And tha t  was on the  bas i s  tha t  they  wou ld  

de l i ver  coa l  to  us  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    . . .over  a  per iod  o f  s i x  months .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    So fo r  tha t  s ix  month  pe r iod  we were  

exposed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  remember,  you pa id  on  the  13 t h ,  i s  i t  

no t?   Or  what  was the  da te?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    13 t h  o f  Apr i l . . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :   Bu t . . .   And my quest ion  requ i res  you to  10 

look a t  be fore  you make payment .  

MR SINGH :    Hence,  Mr  Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because my quest ion  is .   Once you were  

aware  o f  th is  d i f f icu l t  s i tua t ion  in  wh ich  Tegeta  found  i t se l f .  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    How cou ld  you cont inue to  make the 

payment?   Because tha t  wou ld  have noth ing  to  do  w i th  

secur i t y  o f  coa l  because th is  en t i t y  was in  se r ious  r i sk  o f  

no t  be ing  ab le  to  p rov ide  the  coa l  i f  i t s  accoun ts  were  

c losed.  20 

MR SINGH :    Hence,  Mr  Cha i r,  the  meet ing  o f  the  12 t h  a t  

wh ich  these issues were  d iscussed and I  had pu t  th is  to  

Tegeta  and say ing :   Your  cess ion  o f  revenue is  o f  no  use to  

use because i f  you a re  no t  opera t ing ,  you a re  no t  go ing  to  

be  ab le  to  genera te  revenue.   And one o f  the  reasons tha t  
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we c i ted  was,  the  c losure  o f  one –  I  th ink  one o f  the i r  bank  

accounts .    

 In  response to  tha t  Mr  Cha i r.   They gave us  the i r  

assu rances tha t  i t  was on ly  one o f  the  banks tha t  c losed  

the i r  accounts ,  I  th ink ,  a t  the  t ime and they were  –  i f  they  

were  –  and they had,  I  th ink ,  m i t iga t ing  p lans in  p lace  to  

be  ab le  to  cont inue.   Okay?  A t  leas t  fo r  the  s ix  months  

per iod  tha t  we were  exposed because we . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  tha t  cou ld  no t  be  a  good enough  

reason fo r  . . . [ in te rvenes]  10 

MR SINGH :    No,  no  I  am coming . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . fo r  Eskom to  c l ing  to .    

MR SINGH :    I  am coming back to  tha t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  

MR SINGH :    Because remember,  we were  exposed fo r  a  

per iod  o f  s ix  mon ths .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    R igh t .   And th is  where  now th is  secur i t y  

package tha t  we have taken comes in to  p lay.   The secur i t y  

package tha t  we ended up in  tak ing ,  Mr  Cha i r,  was a  20 

p ledge o f  shares  in  Tegeta .   Now Tegeta ’s  major  asset  a t  

the  t ime was the  Brakfon te in  cont rac t  tha t  we had w i th  

them.   Remember,  Tegeta  owned the  Brakfon te in  Mine.   

That  m ine had va lue  because there  was under l in ing  coa l  in  

tha t  m ine.   In  the  event  o f  de fau l t ,  o f  Tegeta  w i th in  the  s ix  
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month  per iod ,  had they de fau l ted ,  we wou ld  have become 

the  owners  o f  the  Brakfon te in  Mine  w i th  the  coa l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  you wou ld  be  –  your  shares –  the  

shares you ta lk  about  were  in . . .  

[B reak in  record ing ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . i s  i t  no t?   So i f  Tegeta  becomes an 

ent i t y  tha t  no  banks want  to  dea l  w i th ,  you cannot  do  

anyth ing  w i th  those shares.  

MR SINGH :    No,  Mr  Cha i r  we wou ld  then become owners  

o f  Tegeta .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . you  wou ld  become owners  o f  Tegeta  

bu t  what  i s  tha t  you do w i th  i t?  

MR SINGH :    Bu t  then,  e f fec t i ve ly,  Eskom wou ld  be  ab le  to  

fund the  opera t ions o f  Eskom to  be  ab le  to  access the  

coa l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You wou ld  be  ab le  to?  

MR SINGH :    Eskom wou ld  then become the  funder  o f  

Tegeta .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    So ,  bas ica l l y,  e f fec t i ve ly,  Tegeta ’s  bank 

account  wou ld  c lose .  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  –  ja  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SINGH :    R igh t?   Eskom wou ld  . . . [ in te rvenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Tegeta  wou ld  no t  be  ab le  to  –  or  to  do 

bus iness.  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  the  po in t ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    Eskom wou ld  be  become the  owners  o f  new 

coa l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    Le t  us  ca l l  i t  new coa l .   New . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  why shou ld  you put  yourse lves in  

tha t  s i tua t ion  as  i f  Tegeta  i s  the  on ly  en t i t y  tha t  you have 10 

to  dea l  w i th?   Tegeta  is  in  t roub le .   You are  – you want  to  –  

you are  g iv ing  i t  a  lo t  o f  money.   I t  i s  in  t roub le .   I t  m igh t  

go  down.   I t  m igh t  be  l iqu ida ted .   I  do  no t  now.   I t  cannot  

opera te  anymore .   One wou ld  have  thought  tha t ,  to  say the  

least ,  you wou ld  ho ld  back and look a t  the  s i tua t ion  

proper ly  by  them pay immedia te ly  desp i te  tha t  s i tua t ion .    

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r  I  wou ld  assume tha t  the  BTC 

made th is  we igh ing  up o f  th is  dec is ion  tha t  they needed to  

make because . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Were  they aware  o f  th is  –  o f  th is  20 

s i tua t ion  o f  Tegeta  when they made th is  dec is ion ,  as  fa r  as  

you know? 

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r  th is  was the  feedback  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . c losu re  o f  accounts .  
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MR SINGH :    . . . th is  was the  feedback tha t  I  had g ive  them 

on the  13 t h .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    And a t  tha t  meet ing  o f  the  13 t h ,  they  then 

took the  reso lu t ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    . . . to  take  the  p ledge o f  sha res.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Mr  Se leka,  I  guess you had sa id  you  

were  round ing  o f f .    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja ,  I  was f in ished and I  am – I  see in  10 

the  m inute ,  Mr  S ingh,  there  are  no  –  we l l ,  you  have  the  f i le  

w i th  you.   That  very  m inute  o f  the  23 r d  o f  Apr i l  2016,  i s  

recorded there :  

“ I t  was noted tha t  Eskom d id  no t  want  to  own 

the  m ine. . . ”  

 On page 973.   So Tegeta  wou ld  be  asked to  

p rov ide  the  p ledge ag reement  fo r  the  shares and be  g iven 

a  per iod  o f  14-days to  pu t  in  p lace  the  a l te rna t ive  

guarantee tha t  wou ld  rep lace the  shares.   And i t  i s  

recorded there ,  a lso ,  tha t :  20 

“The CFO conf i rmed tha t  Eskom wou ld  dra f t  a  

document  govern ing  the  o f fe red  secur i t ies . . . ”  

 So these th ings,  a t  tha t  s tage,  a re  no t  in  p lace  

and the  in ten t ion  to  own the  m ine,  i t  seems to  be  

d isavowed the re .    
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MR SINGH :    No ,  no  Mr  Cha i r.   I  mean,  a t  the  end o f  the  

day,  Eskom’s  in ten t ion  is  to  genera te  e lec t r i c i t y.   I t  i s  no t  

to  own the  m ine.   And tha t  comment  was made by  myse l f .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    And the  reason why  the  comment  was made 

Mr  Cha i r,  i s  no t  tha t  we d id  no t  want  to  change the  

in ten t ion  o f  Eskom f rom be ing  an  e lec t r i c i t y  genera tor  to  

m ine owners ,  no tw i ths tand ing  the  fac t  tha t  we,  you  know,  

do  cost  p lus  m ines and the  l i ke .   I t  was rea l l y  to  g ive  the  

BTC the  comfor t  tha t  th is  was,  in  the  even to  de fau l t ,  that  10 

wou ld  happened.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    Okay,  f i rs t l y.   Second ly.   The issue was a l so  

l im i ted  to  a per iod  o f  14-days tha t  we gave to  Tegeta  to  

come up w i th  a l te rna t ive  guarantees.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR SINGH :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And the  va l id  quest ion  f rom the  

Cha i rperson.   Why d id  you have to  go  th rough th is  t roub le  

when Tegeta  was  owning the  m ine?  Tegeta  d id  no t  even 20 

had a  cont rac t  to  supp ly  you w i th  1 .2  m i l l ion  tons o f  coa l .   

A t  tha t  s tage,  they d id  no t  have tha t  agreement  w i th  OCM.   

A l l  th is  coa l  they supp l ied  subsequent  to  th is ,  was them 

purchas ing  f rom OCM and supp ly ing  Eskom at  Arnot .   Why  

d id  you go th rough a l l  th is  t roub le  when OCM was there?  
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MR SINGH :    Bu t  Mr  Cha i r   

ADV SELEKA SC :    You cou ld  buy d i rec t l y  f rom OCM and 

not  have the  in te rmed iary.    

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r  I  am sure  tha t  these th ings 

were  tab led  a t  the  meet ing  o f  the  11 t h  o f  Apr i l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  does tha t  mean?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  th is  i ssue tha t  Mr  Se leka is  

re fe r r i ng  to  in  te rms o f  the  reason ing  beh ind  who supp l ied  

and why they supp l ied  tha t ,  was cover  in  the  mee t ing  o f  

the  11 t h  o f  Apr i l .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  he  is  go ing  back to  quest ion  o f .   

Why was Eskom go ing  th rough a l l  o f  th is  t roub le  in  respect  

o f  an  en t i t y  tha t  was not  the  owner  o f  the  m ine a t  the  t ime,  

tha t  d id  no t  have an agreement  w i th  –  a t  the  t ime when  

OCM was there?   So i t  i s  jus t  to  say.   You know,  you are  

tak ing  such a  b ig  r i sk  w i th  th is  en t i t y  in  respect  o f  whom –  

I  do  no t  know whethe r  Eskom or  yourse l ves had been  

aware  o f  any en t i t y  tha t  had the i r  bank accounts  c losed but  

fo r  a  lo t  o f  peop le  when th is  happened and was in  the  

med ia .   20 

 I t  was someth ing  unusua l  to  say have compan ies  

and the i r  en t i t ies  c losed,  you know,  because o f  a l l egat ions  

o f  be ing  invo l ved  in  i l l ega l i t ies .   To  say i t  s t i l l  want  to  have 

someth ing  to  do  w i th  them.    

 One wou ld  have  thought  tha t  what  was coming 
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ou t  w i th  the  c losure  o f  the i r  accounts ,  wou ld  be  –  wou ld  

make Eskom to  say:   Hey,  th is  m ight  no t  be  the  type o f  

en t i t y  tha t  we must  dea l  w i th .   I t  i s  too  r i sky.   We do not  

know what  the i r  fu tu re  i s  l i ke  and we are  in te res ted  o f  coa l .   

That  i s  the  on ly  reason why we are  dea l ing  w i th  them and  

i f  they  cannot  –  the  banks are  c los ing  the i r  accounts ,  we 

shou ld  be  –  we shou ld  go  back and maybe ta l k  to  OCM.  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  as  I  o r ig ina l l y  gave a  response.   I  

th ink  i t  i s  in  the  same l ine .   From my perspect ive .   The 

issue was hav ing  access to  coa l  because access to  coa l  10 

wou ld  prov ide  secur i t y  o f  energy fo r  the  count ry.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR SINGH :    The under l in ing  agreement  tha t  we had 

agreed to ,  p rov ided us  access to  tha t  coa l .   The secur i t y  

was in  p lace  in  te rms o f  the  even to  de fau l t .   The BTC 

weighed up the  issue and the  fac tors  re la t ing  to  en ter ing  

in to  th is  agreement  and we then conc luded the  agreement ,  

Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Cha i r,  I  th ink  I  am done.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    H ’m.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Do you contempla te  tha t  you do have 

some quest ions tha t  you wou ld  l i ke  to  send to  h im in  

wr i t ing?  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sha l l  we then work  on  the  bas i s  o f  the 

ten ta t i ve  ag reement  tha t  we d iscussed,  namely  tha t  i f  

Mr  Se leka has fu r the r  quest ions,  he  must  pu t  them in  

wr i t ing  and tha t  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  you may w ish  to  have 

cer ta in  i ssues c la r i f ied  in  te rms o f  Mr  S ingh ’s  ev idence,  

you can prepare  and then submi t  an  a f f idav i t  tha t  c la r i f ies  

those issues?  Would  tha t  be  f ine?  10 

ADV VAN HEERDEN :    We are  happy w i th  tha t  Cha i rperson 

as  long as  we a re  no t  under  t ime pressure  to  do  i t  th is  

week.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  no .   I  w i l l  no t  say  do  i t  th is  

week.   But  le t  us  have some t imef rame because i f  we leave 

i t  open w i thout  a  t imef rame tha t  m ight  c rea te  prob lems.   

But  I  th ink  be fo re  they prepare  –  they f i le ,  they  need to  ge t  

your  quest ions so  tha t  the i r  a f f idav i t  can cover  every th ing  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . inc lud ing  your  quest ions.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    When wou ld  you propose to  f i le  your  –  to  

send them your  quest ions?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I  can  send them no la te r  than  Fr iday,  
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Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No la te r  than Fr iday?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Th i s  coming Fr iday,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  we –  i f  I  f i x  Fr iday o f  next  week fo r  the  

a f f idav i t ,  wou ld  tha t  work  fo r  you?  

ADV VAN HEERDEN :    Cha i rpe rson,  tha t  i s  go ing  to  be  

prob lems fo r  reasons I  cannot  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  da te  wou ld  you p ropose?  10 

ADV VAN HEERDEN :    I  wou ld  suggest  the  week a f te r  the 

11 t h ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The week o f  the  11 t h?  

ADV VAN HEERDEN :    Ja ,  i t  i s  the  week in  the  11 t h .   So. . .   

Sor ry,  the  week o f  the  18 t h .   My a t t o rney has jus t  g i ven me 

the  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    The week o f  the  18 t h?  

ADV VAN HEERDEN :    Yes,  by  the  week o f  the  18 t h .  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  qu i te  fa r.   H ’m?  Can we make i t  

about  f i ve  days ear l ie r  than tha t?  20 

ADV VAN HEERDEN :    Cha i rperson,  the  prob lem is  tha t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    You are  invo l ved  in  o ther  mat te rs .  

ADV VAN HEERDEN :    We are  no t  in  the  count ry.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  
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ADV VAN HEERDEN :    We are  dea l ing  w i th  another  mat te r  

and tha t  i s  why is  why . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    A l r igh t .   So le t  us  say the  18 t h  then.   I s  

tha t  on  or  be fore  the  18 t h?  

ADV VAN HEERDEN :    The 18 t h  w i l l  be  f ine .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .   Le t  us  leave i t  a t  tha t .   

And then,  i f  you  are  –  i f  you  wou ld  l i ke  to  submi t  wr i t ten  

submiss ions in  re la t ion  to  what  ev idence I  shou ld  accept  o r  

re jec t  in  regard  to  w i tnesses who gave ev idence  aga ins t  

Mr  S ingh and in  regard  to  ev idence tha t  he  has g i ven and  10 

so  on .   We need to  f i x  tha t .    

 As  th ings s tand,  I  have on ly  up  to  the  end o f  

June.   We wi l l  ask  fo r  some extens ion  bu t  I  do  no t  th ink  

tha t  we can work  on  the  bas i s  o f  anyth ing  based on a  

poss ib le  ex tens ion .   Can we say you wou ld  submi t  

whatever  wr i t ten  submiss ions you w ish  to  p lace  before  me 

on or  be fore  the  25 t h  o f  June?  

ADV VAN HEERDEN :    We agree w i th  tha t  Cha i rperson.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .   Because there  w i l l  no t  be  

ora l  a rgument  bu t  a t  leas t  there  shou ld  be  wr i t ten  20 

submiss ions.  

ADV VAN HEERDEN :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .   Thank you very  much,  

Mr  S ingh.   Thank  you to  your  lega l  team.   We are  go ing  to  

ad journ  then.   And the  ar rangements  about  what  s t i l l  needs  
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to  be  done,  a re  those tha t  have been agreed.   And I  have 

a l ready announced what  ev idence o f  w i tnesses I  w i l l  be  

hear ing  tomorrow fo r  the  benef i t  o f  the  pub l i c .   Thank you  

very  much to  you Mr  Se leka and your  team,  to  the  

techn ic ians and the  s ta f f .   Thank you to  everybody fo r  

s tay ing  un t i l  th is  t ime.    

 We now ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 25 MAY 2021  


